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Message from the Chief Executive  

 

This is the final annual report of Auckland Regional Council, one of eight former councils which were amalgamated to form 

the Auckland Council group on 1 November 2010. 

This report tracks the performance of the council for the 16-month period 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010 and reports 

progress made against its long-term council community plan (long-term plan) and annual plans.  

Auckland Council, Watercare Services Limited and six new council controlled organisations assumed the responsibilities and 

powers held by the former city, district and regional authorities.  

Final annual reports have also been produced for: 

Auckland City Council  

Franklin District Council 

Manukau City Council 

North Shore City Council 

Papakura District Council 

Rodney District Council 

Waitakere City Council. 

 

This document has been prepared on the assumption of continuity of activities and responsibilities under Auckland Council. 

No adjustment has been made in the financial statements to reflect the dissolution of the former councils.  

With Mayor Len Brown, I acknowledge the work of the former Auckland Regional Council chair, councillors and staff, who 

have left a strong foundation for us to build upon. 

I look forward to producing the first annual report for Auckland Council later this year, which will report on our achievements 

for the period 1 November 2010 to 30 June 2011. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Doug McKay 

Chief Executive  

Auckland Council 
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Welcome to the Auckland RWelcome to the Auckland RWelcome to the Auckland RWelcome to the Auckland Regional Couegional Couegional Couegional Council’s finncil’s finncil’s finncil’s final Annual al Annual al Annual al Annual ReportReportReportReport

This document reports on the performance of 

the Auckland Regional Council (ARC) from 1 

July 2009 to 31 October 2010 against the 

Annual Plan 2009/10 and the 2010/11 four 

month plan to 31 October 2010.  While it is 

termed an Annual Report, it covers a period of 

16 months. 

What’s Inside 
IntroductionIntroductionIntroductionIntroduction    

This Annual Report provides an overview of the 

work carried out by the ARC during the last 16 

months of its operation.  It also includes the 

auditors’ report and a statement of compliance 

and responsibility. 

Our Our Our Our performance by groups of performance by groups of performance by groups of performance by groups of activitiesactivitiesactivitiesactivities    

This part details the ARC’s key activity areas 

and outlines what we achieved, how much it 

cost, key measures we used to gauge our 

progress over the 16 month period and 

comparisons with the 2009/10 annual plan and 

2010/11 four month plan.  

ARC’s seven areas of activity are:  

Transport 

Built environment 

Natural environment and heritage 

Economic development 

Regional leadership and community 

development 

Regional parks  

Safety (including our roles in civil defence and 

the Harbourmaster’s office).  

Our financial performanceOur financial performanceOur financial performanceOur financial performance    

This section provides performance information 

about the ARC’s assets, liabilities, income and 

expenditure.  

Your regional council Your regional council Your regional council Your regional council     

This section contains some additional 

information about the ARC’s management and 

council controlled organisations. 

One Council for Auckland 
On 31 October 2010, the eight Auckland local 

authorities (seven territorial local authorities 

and the ARC) were disestablished.  On  

1 November 2010, the Auckland Council group 

was established inheriting the responsibilities 

and powers of the previous eight councils. 

Audit report 
Audit New Zealand has given an unqualified 

opinion on our performance information (pages 

15 to 18 and 25 to 110) and financial 

statements (pages 112 to 211) on behalf of the 

Auditor-General. Turn to page 21 to see the full 

audit report.  
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Overview of the 16 months 

This is the ARC’s last Annual Report covering the 16 month period from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 

2010.  On 1 November 2010, the ARC was disestablished and the Auckland Council established as a 

unitary authority for the Auckland region.  The Auckland Council inherited the responsibilities of the 

ARC in the Auckland region, except for the Mangatawhiri and Mangatangi catchments and part of the 

Franklin District and the Firth of Thames. These areas were transferred to Hauraki and Waikato District 

Councils and Environment Waikato assumed the responsibilities of the ARC.  Whilst the administrative 

boundary cuts through the Hunua Ranges, the land and assets on that part of the Hunua Regional Park 

outside the Auckland Council's administrative boundary, including Waharau and Whakatiwai Regional 

Parks have been vested in the Auckland Council.  These areas continue to be managed and maintained 

by the Auckland Council as regional parks. 

The Annual Report, was completed by the Auckland Council following the disestablishment of the 

ARC.  The annual report includes the financial results of ARC and Group for the 16 months ended  

31 October 2010 and also reports on our performance by Groups of Activity which details the council’s 

key activity areas and outlines what we’ve achieved, how much it cost and key measures we used to 

gauge our progress over the past 16 months.  Comparisons to the Annual Plan 2009/10 and four-month 

plan to 31 October 2010 are included. 

 

At the dissolution of Auckland Regional Council the major assets and investments transferred to 

Auckland Council and group on 1 November 2010 include: 

 

• public transport related assets of $368 million to Auckland Transport; 

 

• investment in Ports of Auckland of $701 million to Auckland Council Investments Limited 

 

• Wynward Quarter and Queens Wharf represent assets of $213 million to Auckland Waterfront 

Development Agency Limited; and 

 

• Mt Smart assets of $72 million to Regional Facilities Auckland Limited 

 

Other assets, liabilities and responsibilities will be transferred to Auckland Council, Environment 

Waikato or Auckland Council’s controlled entities based on the specific activities and responsibilities to 

be undertaken by each receiving entity. 
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Financial overview 
This section provides an overview of the ARC’s financial results for the period from 1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010. It shows how we have used our financial resources to sustain and improve the region. 

What we planned to spendWhat we planned to spendWhat we planned to spendWhat we planned to spend    and receiveand receiveand receiveand receive    

The ARC’s Annual Plan for 2009/10 and the four month plan to 31 October 2010 together projected 

income of $359.8 million, of which 57 per cent was to come from rates, 30 per cent from Auckland 

Regional Holdings (ARH) distributions, and the balance from service fees, grants and facilities income 

and investment income.  The income from ARH was to be allocated to Auckland Regional Transport 

Authority (ARTA) capital expenditure, a contribution towards ARTA’s operating expenditure, funding of 

the Stormwater Action Plan and the ARC’s Council-Controlled Organisations (CCO) unit. Funding for 

ARTA accounted for 70 percent of ARH’s distributions to the ARC, excluding ARH’s funding of ex-

Infrastructure Auckland (IA) transport grant liabilities. 

The ARC’s overall rate requirement for the 16 month period was projected to be $205.3 million, 

representing an average per ratepayer increase (allowing for a 0.75 per cent increase in the number of 

ratepayers) of 4.82    percent including inflation. 

The ARC’s total operating expenditure was projected to be $398.9 million, including $224.9 million 

funding to ARTA for operating and capital expenditure, $32.5 million for external professional services 

and $70.2 million for personnel costs.   

A net operating deficit of $39.1 million was planned. Capital expenditure of $65.7 million was planned. 

What we What we What we What we actually spentactually spentactually spentactually spent    and receivedand receivedand receivedand received    

The ARC’s income for the 16 months to 31 October 2010 totalled $352.9 million, of which 58 per cent 

came from rates, 29 per cent from ARH distributions, and the balance from service fees, grants and 

facilities income, and investment income.  ARH distributions were $6.2 million below what was 

planned, primarily due to the reduced funding required to fund ARTA’s operating and capital 

expenditure.  The reduced capital expenditure related mainly to rolling stock, rail delivery infrastructure 

projects and integrated ticketing project being delayed.  This under spend was partially offset by other 

projects.  These include New Lynn Station and Kingsland Enhancement Rugby World Cup being ahead 

of planned schedule and $9.6m in respect of the Manukau City rail link being carried forward to align 

the construction phase with the Manukau Institute of Technology plans for this project.  ARTA received  

69 percent of ARH’s distributions to the ARC, excluding ARH’s funding of ex IA transport grant 

liabilities. 

Revenue from rates, at $206.1 million was 0.4 per cent ahead of plan. 

Total operating expenditure was $350.3 million, including $180.84 million funding to ARTA for operating 

and capital expenditure, $38.4 million for external professional services and $69.9 million for personnel 

costs.  A contribution of $10 million was made to the re-development of Eden Park for the Rugby 

World Cup.  A net operating surplus of $2.6 million was generated in the year.   

Capital expenditure of $47.1m was invested into the region.  Significant asset acquisitions included 

Queens Wharf ($20m) and land at Te Muri ($15.1m).  Projects relating to unspent capital expenditure 

were carried forward to Auckland Council for their consideration.  This included $1.4m of regional parks 

development and renewal projects. 

Details of the budgeted and actual capital expenditure programmes are included in section 2 (capital 

expenditure for each group of activities) of the Annual Report. 



Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 12 

 

Total actual iTotal actual iTotal actual iTotal actual incomencomencomencome    Total cost of sTotal cost of sTotal cost of sTotal cost of serviceserviceserviceservices    

        

    
* * * * gross cost of services – including internal charges 

Total capital eTotal capital eTotal capital eTotal capital expenditurexpenditurexpenditurexpenditure    
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Financial TrendsFinancial TrendsFinancial TrendsFinancial Trends    

FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010    

Actual Actual Actual Actual Actual 

2005/06 2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 *2009/10 

  $million $million $million $million $million 

Regional Land Value  87,400.0 145,376.0 151,910.0 168,626.0  195,776.6 

Rates Revenue 119.2 126.6 137.3 148.4 206.1 

Other Income  27.6 56.2 32.5 33.1 45.4 

ARH Distribution Income 30.7 46.3 106.6 94.4 101.4 

Operating expenditure ** (176.2) (195.1) (252.6) (291.0) (350.3) 

Net Deficit/(Surplus)  1.3 34.0 23.8 (15.1) 2.6 

  

Capital Expenditure 31.9 8.2 44.7 15.9 47.1 

Property, plant and equipment  202.2 210.2 247.4 252.2 ***489.1 

Total Equity  967.3 1,001.4 1,025.2 1,010.1 ***1,215.7 

  

Current Ratio 0.58 0.81 0.66 0.49 0.68 

Average rate per property $248.90 $264.89 $281.66 $299.38  $320.23 

* Represents a 16 month period from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010. Comparative years are for 12 months. 
** Included in the 2008/09 operating expenditure is $8.0 million resulting from an increase in the landfill aftercare 
provision due to a change in estimate of the future costs of landfill aftercare,  and a change in the estimated 
period of future liability from 30 years to 100 years 
*** Includes the revaluation gain of $202.9 m arising from the revaluation of certain property, plant and equipment, 
mostly land and improvements, in June 2010. 

    

Income by yearIncome by yearIncome by yearIncome by year    

ARC’s income for 16 months to 31 October 

2010 totalled $352.9m.  13 percent of this 

relates to other income sources being, service 

fees, grants, facilities and investment income. 

Other Income increased significantly in 2006/7 

due to the unplanned funding of $21.3 million 

from the Crown for past rail expenditure and 

$7.0 million being the value of the donated 

park at Atiu Creek. 

Since 1 July 2004, the ARC has received 

income from ARH which has primarily been 

used to support ARTA’s expenditure for 

passenger transport and associated activities.  

During this period, ARH distributions to the 

ARC have varied primarily due to changes in 

the funding allocated to ARTA.  However, the 

increase in 2007/08 was due in part to $25.0 

million to enable the ARC to acquire Wynyard 

precinct land for a headland park, and $8.5 

million to purchase land at Onehunga.    
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Activity cost of services by yearActivity cost of services by yearActivity cost of services by yearActivity cost of services by year    

The chart illustrates the funding sources for 

ARC’s net cost of services.  It includes ARTA’s 

operating and capital expenditure where this was 

funded by the ARC.  

 The portion of expenditure by ARTA which was 

funded by the New Zealand Transport Agency 

(NZTA) was included in ARTA’s accounts from 

December 2004 when ARTA took over the 

transport operations of the ARC.  Prior to this, it 

was included in the ARC’s accounts. 

    

    

    

Operating Operating Operating Operating deficitdeficitdeficitdeficit    

The net operating surplus of $2.6 million for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 comprised of the 

following items: 

ARC’s total income was $352.9m, 1.9 per cent below plan. The key variance related to the income 

received by ARC from ARH.  

ARC’s income and expenditure were lower than plan.  ARC’s lower income was due primarily to the 

lower than planned drawdown from ARH ($6.2m) which was a direct result of reduced funding 

requirements by ARTA in respect to operating and capital expenditure.  ARTA operating expenditure 

was lower than planned across most expenditure types.  ARTA’s bus and rail contract expenses were 

favourable to plan, partially offset by higher than planned depreciation due to timing of capitalisation of 

fixed assets.  ARTA’s reduced capital expenditure related primarily to rolling stock, rail delivery 

infrastructure projects, and integrated ticketing project being delayed. 

ARC’s total operating expenditure at $350.3 million was $48.6 million (12.2 per cent) below plan.  This 

primarily related to lower levels of grant expenditure ($44.0 million) due to the below plan spend on 

ARTA operating & capital expenditure. The revision of the landfill provision resulted in a write-back of 

$3.7 million which was partially offset by a $3m accrual for building remediation works as a result of 

the end of lease for Pitt Street. 

    

Investment returnInvestment returnInvestment returnInvestment return    

Income from ratepayers is invested when it is received, until it is expended throughout the financial 

year.  During the 16 months ended 31 October 2010, the ARC received a return on external investment 

income of 3.36 percent.  This compared favourably with the market 30 day rate of 2.83 percent. 
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Service performance overview 
 

You can find detail on the performance measures we use and actual results for the 16 month period 

under each group of activities within section Two of this report. This report covers a 16-month period 

from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010. As part of the reorganisation of Auckland local government, the 

2009/2010 reporting period has been aligned through legislation with the dissolution date of the 

Auckland local authorities. The performance measure targets are a combination of 12-month targets 

from July 2009 to June 2010, which were set as part of the LTCCP 2009-19 process, and 4-month 

targets from July 2010 to October 2010, set as part of the 2010-11 Annual Plan.  Both these 

documents are available on the council’s website: www.arc.govt.nz. 

 

Key Highlights 
The ARC’s key achievements against performance measures are briefly summarised below and 

reported in more detail in Chapters Two and Three. 

Transport 

Patronage on the Auckland public transport system reached 60.6 million in the year to 30 June 2010, 

the highest since 1984. Patronage for the 4 months to 31 October 2010 reached 22 million which was 

above target for the period. 

Waterfront 

Acquisition of Queens Wharf, jointly with the NZ Government, to provide public facilities for the Rugby 

World Cup and a cruise terminal. The acquisition of Queens Wharf will contribute to making the 

Auckland waterfront more accessible to the public. 

Regional Parks 

Creation of Te Muri Regional Park with the acquisition of 407 hectares of land adjoining Te Muri Beach. 

Purchase of land adjoining existing parkland at Duder, Pakiri and Atui Creek Regional Parks. 

Opening of the Hillary Trail on the West Coast. 

Natural environment and heritage 

Transfer of 200 bellbirds from Tawharanui Regional Park and Tiritiri Matangi Island to Whakanewha 

Regional Park and Fenwick Reserve on Waiheke Island and to Motuihe Island and Hamilton City. 

Management of the challenges posed by kauri dieback disease, including research, community 

engagement, communications, surveillance and the implementation of extensive phytosanitary 

measures on regional parkland. 

Discovery and excavation for conservation of a Maori waka at Muriwai. 

Release of the State of the Auckland Region report providing an in depth analysis of the state of the 

Auckland environment. 

Planning and decision-making 

Completion of the Auckland Regional Land Transport Strategy 2010-40. 

Adoption of the revised Regional Parks Management Plan. 
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Results 
The data for each of these measures comes from the following sources. 

 

Internal dataInternal dataInternal dataInternal data    
The council’s activity areas regularly collect data in various ways, such as through their day-to-day 

operations or by monitoring and research. Every quarter, as part of a review of their balanced scorecard 

results, each manager verifies the accuracy of the information and adds comments on results that are 

outside the assigned level of variance. A summary of performance information is reported to the 

Executive Management Team via the balanced scorecard and monthly financial reports. At any time, 

the chief executive can raise queries on any of the measures. 

 

Unless otherwise stated, we have reported using internal data. 

 

Environmental Awareness survey 2010Environmental Awareness survey 2010Environmental Awareness survey 2010Environmental Awareness survey 2010    
For some of our customer perception/satisfaction measures an independent research company 

conducted an Environmental Awareness survey on behalf of the ARC. The survey gathered the 

responses of 1611 Auckland region residents – ratepayers and non-ratepayers.  The survey was 

conducted between May and June 2010.  Results have been demographically weighted based on age 

and gender to represent the profile of Auckland region residents. These results are identified as 

Environmental Awareness survey results when used in the measures tables. 

 

Summary of Performance Measures ResultsSummary of Performance Measures ResultsSummary of Performance Measures ResultsSummary of Performance Measures Results    
The following table provides a summary of results achieved for the period 1 July 2009 to 30 June 2010. 

A summary of achieved results for the 4 month period have not been included as many of the ARC 

measures could not be reported for this period (i.e. they are measured annually or for a longer period) 

and summarising would not be meaningful.  

 

Note: a small number of measures were also not reported for the 12 month period to 30 June 2010 as 

the measurement involved was not due to be conducted within the period of this report. These are 

noted as ‘n/a’ in the following table.  

 

Activity area Service 

Levels 

achieved 
(1 July 2009 to 

30 June 2010) 

How we performed 

TransportTransportTransportTransport            

Land transport strategy 1 of 2 

 

(1 n/a) 

The Auckland Region Land Transport Strategy 

(ARTLS) was completed and adopted in April 2010.  

It will remain the transport strategy for Auckland 

with the new Auckland Council. 

ARTA operating and capital 

funding 

3 of 6 

 

(2 n/a) 

Long term trend is showing increased use of 

passenger transport (PT) into the CBD at peak 

times. However much of recent PT growth has 

been in off-peak travel. 

Built EnvironmeBuilt EnvironmeBuilt EnvironmeBuilt Environmentntntnt            

Managing Auckland’s 

growth 

1 of 6 

 

(2 n/a) 

Auckland Regional Infrastructure Inventory was 

endorsed by the Regional Sustainable Development 

Forum in September 2009. 

Natural environment and Natural environment and Natural environment and Natural environment and 

heritageheritageheritageheritage    

        

Stormwater management 2 of 3 Pollution response continues to be achieved with 
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and pollution response 100 percent of incidents reported responded to 

within 24hours of notification. 

Freshwater management 4 of 6 

 

(1 n/a) 

The region’s freshwater resources are being 

sustainably managed evidenced by there being no 

cases of over allocation or overuse of the region’s 

17 high-use aquifers. 

Coastal management 2 of 4 

 

(1 n/a) 

Public perception has improved on feeling there is a 

balance between the built elements and natural 

environment on the coastline. 

Land management 2 of 3 The total length of the region’s streams that were 

fenced and planted in 2009/2010 through targeted 

projects was 18.9km. 

Improving air quality 4 of 6 

 

(1 n/a) 

Regional air quality targets for NO2 have been met, 

and only one monitoring site (at Khyber Pass) 

exceeded the target for PM10 for the calendar year 

ending 31 December 2009. 

Natural heritage 

conservation 

2 of 5 

 

(1 n/a) 

The Bird count index in the Waitakere Ranges has 

declined from 513 to 478; however there has been 

an increase in the number of breeding pairs of 

Kokako in the Hunua Ranges. 

Biosecurity 3 of 3 There has been an increase of more than 7,000 

hectares under community pest control.  Possum 

populations in both the Waitakere and Hunua ranges 

have decreased from prior years. 

Cultural heritage 

conservation 

3 of 5 

 

(1 n/a) 

The number of volunteer hours related to cultural 

heritage protection and conservation on Regional 

Parks has increased substantially from prior years. 

Planning for the future 7 of 11 95 percent of resource consents were processed 

within statutory timeframes and all statutory 

enforcement decisions made by the ARC were 

upheld by the Environment court. 

Economic developmentEconomic developmentEconomic developmentEconomic development            

Economic development 4 of 5 AucklandPlus performed best out of participating 

Auckland economic development agencies in a 

Global Benchmarking survey. 

Regional leadership aRegional leadership aRegional leadership aRegional leadership annnnd d d d 

community developmentcommunity developmentcommunity developmentcommunity development    

        

Regional coordination and 

external relations 

3 of 6 82 percent of respondents perceive the ARC is 

fulfilling its role in the region and the Hauraki Gulf 

Forum achieved 100 percent of its statutory 

requirements. 

Democracy services 1 of 2 No decisions or information complaints against the 

ARC were upheld by the Ombudsman. 

Te Hononga Maori/Maori 

relations 

3 of 4 The number of specific Maori community initiatives 

contributed to by the ARC continues to increase and 

was well above target for 2009/2010. 

Sustainable schools and 

communities 

9 of 11 The numbers of schools and students participating 

in programmes such as Learning Through 

Experience and Enviroschools has increased from 

the prior year. 

The number of collection days per year for 

hazardous waste using the Hazmobile service has 

been maintained at 17 days. 

Regional parksRegional parksRegional parksRegional parks            

Looking after our regional 

parks 

5 of 6 Over 90 percent of regional park visitors were 

satisfied with park facilities and settings. Over 

90,000 trees were planted on regional parks with 
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the support of volunteers and other community 

groups. 

Auckland Botanic Gardens 4 of 4 Visitor satisfaction with the Auckland Botanic 

Gardens facilities and settings remains high with 94 

percent (facilities) and 93 percent (settings) 

satisfaction achieved. Over 6,600 people attended 

education programmes at the Botanic Gardens. 

New regional parks 2 of 3 431 hectares of new regional parkland were 

acquired over the 16 months, and combined with 

Auckland’s growth in population, ensures that the 

current ratio of regional parkland per head of 

population is maintained. 

Farming in regional parks 3 of 3 Visitor satisfaction with farm settings as places for 

recreation remains very high with 99 percent 

satisfaction achieved. Greenhouse gas emissions 

per stock unit have reduced with the aid of 

sustainable farming practices. 

Mt Smart Stadium 3 of 3 442 community events were held at Mt Smart 

Stadium over the 16 month period. 

Visitor services 4 of 5 An increasing number of volunteers participate in 

the protection and enhancement of regional parks. 

The number of visitors to parks has increased as a 

proportion of the regional population growth. 

SafetySafetySafetySafety            

Hazards management 4 of 5 100 percent response rate of staff volunteers to 

emergency callouts, meeting the target set. 

Civil Defence Emergency 

Management 

2 of 4 

 

(1 n/a) 

There has been an increase in households who have 

taken steps to prepare themselves or their 

household for natural or manmade hazards or 

disasters, as measured by the Environmental 

Awareness survey. 

The Harbourmaster 2 of 4 

 

(2 n/a) 

100 percent of oil spills are responded to effectively 

and on time. 

 

 



 

Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 19 

ARC’s contribution to community outcomes 

The community outcomes are the outcomes that the 

public told us they wanted in 2005/06.  The public told us 

they wanted a broad range of outcomes for the region, 

including things such as health and wellbeing, a thriving 

regional economy, and a quality built environment.  The 

community outcomes and the ARC’s roles with respect to 

those outcomes are outlined below.    

    

    

ARC's groups of activities and the ARC's groups of activities and the ARC's groups of activities and the ARC's groups of activities and the     
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Quality built environment � � � 
    

A thriving regional economy that supports a good standard 

of living  
� � 

 

� 

   

The ARC, the community, local and central government, 

and business work together to achieve results 
� 

 

� � � 

 

� 

Efficient energy use based on clean and reliable sources � � � 
    

Aucklanders have access to a range of affordable and safe 

ways to move people and goods 
� � 

 

 

  

� 

Recreational and leisure opportunities that offer a range of 

experiences for all 
 

 

� 

  

� 

 

Access to a range of affordable housing  � 
     

Aucklanders are educated and skilled and have access to 

appropriate learning and training opportunities 
 � 

 

� � 

 

� 

Community health and well-being is supported by a healthy 

environment where people have access to appropriate 

healthcare 

� 

 

� 

  

� 

 

Aucklanders caring for and enjoying the natural 

environment 
 

 

� 

 

� � 

 

Open spaces and green places, now and for the future   
 

� 
  

� 
 

Auckland's special places are respected and conserved   
 

� 
 

� � 
 

The diversity of native species and habitats is protected 

and restored 
 

 

� 

 

� � 

 

Valuing our identity and the changing face of Auckland  
 

� 
 

� 
  

Neighbourhoods with a sense of community  � 
   

� 
  

Safer neighbourhoods and public places � � 
    

� 

The significant place of tangata whenua is acknowledged 

and their role as kaitiaki is recognised 
 

 

� 

 

� � 

 

Maori are succeeding socially and economically, and 

contribute to decision-making 
 

 

� � � 

  

Auckland’s population growth and migration are well 

managed 
 � 

  

� 

  

The needs of women are recognised and addressed � 
    

� 
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Statement of compliance and responsibility 

ResponsibilityResponsibilityResponsibilityResponsibility    

Auckland Council is authorised and required by the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau 

Reorganisation) Act 2009 to complete and adopt an annual report for Auckland Regional Council and 

group.  The Council and management of Auckland Council accept responsibility for the completion of 

the Financial Statements and the judgements used in them and hereby adopt the financial statements 

as presented.  When completing the annual report and financial statements Auckland Council has relied 

on the system of internal control maintained by Auckland Regional Council and group and the 

confirmations received from management of Auckland Regional Council and group. 

In the opinion of the Auckland Council the financial statements for the 16 months ended 31 October 

2010 fairly reflect the financial performance, financial position and service performance of Auckland 

Regional Council and group. 

 

Statement of ComplianceStatement of ComplianceStatement of ComplianceStatement of Compliance    

The Council and management of Auckland Council confirm that all the statutory requirements of 

section 98 of the Local Government Act 2002, with exception of the breach in reporting deadline as 

reported in note 51, have been met. 

 

                                    

__________________________ ____________________________ 

Len Brown Doug McKay 

MAYOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

31 March 2011 31 March 2011 
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Audit ReportAudit ReportAudit ReportAudit Report    

To the readers ofTo the readers ofTo the readers ofTo the readers of    

Auckland Regional Council and gAuckland Regional Council and gAuckland Regional Council and gAuckland Regional Council and group’sroup’sroup’sroup’s    

financial statements and performance informationfinancial statements and performance informationfinancial statements and performance informationfinancial statements and performance information    

for the 16for the 16for the 16for the 16----month period ended 31month period ended 31month period ended 31month period ended 31    October 2010October 2010October 2010October 2010    

The Auditor-General is the auditor of Auckland Regional Council and group. The Auditor-General has 

appointed me, D Walker, using the staff and resources of Audit New Zealand, to carry out the audit on 

her behalf. The audit covers the financial statements, the performance information and the other 

requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002 that are included in the report of 

Auckland Regional Council and group for the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010. 

Auckland Regional Council and group’s financial statements, performance information and other 

requirements have been completed by Auckland Council pursuant to the Local Government (Tamaki 

Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009.  

Unqualified Opinion Unqualified Opinion Unqualified Opinion Unqualified Opinion     

In our opinion:  

• The financial statements of Auckland Regional Council and group on pages 112 to 211 that 

are prepared on a dissolution basis: 

� comply with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

� fairly reflect : 

• Auckland Regional Council and group’s financial position as at 31 October 

2010; and 

• the results of operations and cash flows for the 16-month period ended on 

that date.  

• The performance information of Auckland Regional Council on pages 15 to 18 and 25 to 110: 

� complies with generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand; and 

� fairly reflects Auckland Regional Council’s levels of performance for the 16-month 

period ended 31 October 2010, including: 

• the levels of performance as measured against the intended levels of 

performance adopted in Auckland Regional Council’s long-term council 

community plan; and 

• the reasons for any significant variances between the actual performance 

and the expected performance.  

• The report complies with the other requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local Government 

Act 2002 that are applicable to the report. 

The audit was completed on 31 March 2011, and is the date at which our opinion is expressed.  

The basis of our opinion is explained below and refers to the financial statements being appropriately 

prepared on a dissolution basis due to the new local government structure for the Auckland region 

from 1 November 2010. In addition, we outline the responsibilities of Auckland Regional Council, 

Auckland Council, and the Auditor, and explain our independence. 

Basis of OpinionBasis of OpinionBasis of OpinionBasis of Opinion    

We carried out the audit in accordance with the Auditor-General’s Auditing Standards, which 

incorporate the New Zealand Auditing Standards.   

We planned and performed the audit to obtain all the information and explanations we considered 

necessary in order to obtain reasonable assurance that the financial statements, the performance 

information and the other requirements did not have material misstatements, whether caused by fraud 

or error. 
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Material misstatements are differences or omissions of amounts and disclosures that would affect a 

reader’s overall understanding of the financial statements, the performance information and the other 

requirements. If we had found material misstatements that were not corrected, we would have 

referred to them in our opinion.  

The audit involved performing procedures to test the information presented in the financial statements, 

the performance information and the other requirements. We assessed the results of those 

procedures in forming our opinion. 

Audit procedures generally include: 

• determining whether significant financial and management controls are working and can be relied 

on to produce complete and accurate data; 

• verifying samples of transactions and account balances; 

• performing analyses to identify anomalies in the reported financial and performance data; 

• reviewing significant estimates and judgements made by Auckland Regional Council and Auckland 

Council; 

• confirming year-end balances;  

• determining whether accounting policies are appropriate and consistently applied; 

• determining the appropriateness of the reported performance information within Auckland 

Regional Council’s framework for reporting performance; and 

• determining whether all required disclosures are adequate. 

 

We did not examine every transaction, nor do we guarantee complete accuracy of the financial 

statements, the performance information and the other requirements. 

We evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements, the 

performance information and the other requirements. We obtained all the information and explanations 

we required to support our opinion above.  

The financial statements are appropriately prepared on a dissolution basis duThe financial statements are appropriately prepared on a dissolution basis duThe financial statements are appropriately prepared on a dissolution basis duThe financial statements are appropriately prepared on a dissolution basis due to the new local e to the new local e to the new local e to the new local 

government structure for the Auckland region from 1government structure for the Auckland region from 1government structure for the Auckland region from 1government structure for the Auckland region from 1    November 2010November 2010November 2010November 2010....    

On 1 November 2010 the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 dissolved 

Auckland Regional Council. Its functions, duties, and powers were transferred to Auckland Council and 

Environment Waikato. As a consequence of that reorganisation all the assets and liabilities of Auckland 

Regional Council and group have vested in Auckland Council, Environment Waikato and Auckland 

Council’s controlled entities. 

In forming our opinion, we considered: 

• the accounting policy on page 119 about the financial statements being prepared on a 

dissolution basis; and 

• the disclosures regarding the effects of dissolution in notes 11, 29 and 46. 

 

We consider the basis of preparation of the financial statements and the related disclosures to be 

appropriate to Auckland Regional Council and group’s circumstances. 

Responsibilities of the Auckland Regional Council, Auckland Council and the AuditorResponsibilities of the Auckland Regional Council, Auckland Council and the AuditorResponsibilities of the Auckland Regional Council, Auckland Council and the AuditorResponsibilities of the Auckland Regional Council, Auckland Council and the Auditor    

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 required the report of Auckland 

Regional Council for the 16 month period ended 31 October 2010 to be prepared by Auckland Regional 

Council and completed by Auckland Council. 

Therefore, Auckland Council is responsible to ensure that the report of Auckland Regional Council 

includes financial statements and performance information that comply with generally accepted 

accounting practice in New Zealand. The financial statements must fairly reflect the financial position of 

Auckland Regional Council and group as at 31 October 2010. They must also fairly reflect the results of 

operations and cash flows for the 16-month period ended on that date. The performance information 
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must fairly reflect Auckland Regional Council’s levels of performance for the 16-month period ended 31 

October 2010. 

Auckland Council is also responsible to ensure that the report of Auckland Regional Council includes 

the other requirements of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 2002.  

We are responsible for expressing an independent opinion on the financial statements, the 

performance information and the other requirements and reporting that opinion to you. This 

responsibility arises from section 15 of the Public Audit Act 2001 and section 99 of the Local 

Government Act 2002. 

Independence 

When carrying out the audit we followed the independence requirements of the Auditor-General, 

which incorporate the independence requirements of the New Zealand Institute of Chartered 

Accountants.  

Other than the audit of Auckland Regional Council’s report, and the Auditor-General being the auditor of 

Auckland Council, we have no relationship with or interests in Auckland Regional Council or any of its 

subsidiaries, or Auckland Council.  

 

 

 
David Walker 

Audit New Zealand 

On behalf of the Auditor-General 

Auckland, New Zealand 
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Two: Our performance  
by groups of activities 

 

What is in this section:  

 Page 

TwoTwoTwoTwo::::    Our performance     24 

Transport 25 

Built environment 31 

Natural environment and heritage 35 

Economic development 65 

Regional leadership & community development 69 

Regional parks 83 

Safety 101 

Capital expenditure 109 
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2.1 Transport 

Overview 

This group of activities provides for setting the strategy for the Auckland regional land transport 

system, and integrating the planning, funding and development of that system. It includes the 

following LTCCP activities: 

1. Land transport strategy 

2. ARTA operating and capital funding 

Group contribution to community outcomes: 

See chart on page 19 in chapter one 

This group's influence on the four well beings:    

 

This Activity has environmental impacts such as air pollution and water pollution.  Where local air 

quality issues are identified that relate to transport emissions, these will be mitigated through 

measures such as traffic management and regulation aimed at making traffic flows smoother or 

reducing traffic volumes through increased usage of public transport.  The impacts of receiving waters 

from run-off from road surfaces will be mitigated through collection management and treatment of the 

run-off where appropriate.  

 

Summary of group expenditure 

Total cost of services in $millions  

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010. 

Actual 182.8  

Planned 237.3  

Variance* 54.5  
 

* Actual costs were lower than plan for 

‘Transport’ activities due to reduction in  

ARTA operating and capital expenditure 

funding grants. Please refer to section 3 (Cost 

of Services Statement) for further breakdown 

of the activity cost of services. 
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LTCCP Activity 1: Land transport strategy  

Highlight of the period: 

Completion of the Auckland Regional Land Transport Strategy 2010 – 2040 providing an agreed 

direction for development of the regional transport system.     

 

What we do 

The ARC is responsible for strategic transport planning for the Auckland region.  The main component 

of this is the preparation of the Auckland regional land transport strategy (ARLTS), a statutory 

document prepared under the provisions of the Land Transport Management Act 2003. 

Activities: 

• Preparation of regional land transport strategy, 

• Monitoring of regional land transport outcomes, 

• Participation in development of major projects and sub-regional strategies and policies. 

Our objectives 

Ensure that the Auckland transport system contributes to the overall aim of an integrated, safe, 

responsive and sustainable land transport system. 

Ensure that transport system contributes to: 

• assisting economic development, 

• assisting safety and personal security, 

• improving access and mobility, 

• protecting and promoting public health, and  

• ensuring environmental sustainability. 

What we achieved 

The Auckland regional land transport strategy was prepared by the Auckland Regional Transport 

Committee (ARTC) during 2008/09 and 2009/10.  Consultation on the draft strategy was undertaken 

during November and December 2009.  Public hearings were held during February and March 2010.  

The final strategy was recommended by the ARTC at its meeting of 21 April 2010 and approved by the 

ARC at its meeting of 26 April 2010. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 

Level of Service: 

We will seek to ensure that regional land transport planning contributes to achieving an integrated, safe We will seek to ensure that regional land transport planning contributes to achieving an integrated, safe We will seek to ensure that regional land transport planning contributes to achieving an integrated, safe We will seek to ensure that regional land transport planning contributes to achieving an integrated, safe 

and sustainable regional land transport system.and sustainable regional land transport system.and sustainable regional land transport system.and sustainable regional land transport system.    

Performance 
measures: 

Actual 2008/09 
Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

TS 1. Prepare 

the ARLTS by 

April 2010 and 

every 

subsequent six 

years. 

Preparatory work 

was undertaken but 

a new ARLTS was 

not required until 

April 2010. 

To be 

achieved 

2009/10. 

Achieved. The next ARLTS 

is due 2016/17 

Not applicable. 

TS 2. Monitor 
and report on 
the ARLTS by 
30 September 
2011 and every 
subsequent 
three years.*** 

The status of 

regional transport 

indicators and major 

projects was 

reported from time 

to time but the 

formal ARLTS report 

is not required until 

September 2011. 

Not 

applicable  

Not 

applicable. 

Not applicable  Not applicable. 

*** The responsibility for preparing the ARLTS and monitoring report is transferred to Auckland Council 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Comments on these results 

• TS1: The ARLTS was completed and adopted in April 2010.  This document remains the 

transport strategy for Auckland as though it had been approved by Auckland Council.  The next 

ARLTS review is due in 2016. 

• TS2: This is a three yearly target. The first report is due in the financial year 1 July 2011 to  

30 June 2012. 
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LTCCP Activity 2: ARTA operating and capital funding  

Highlight of the period: 

Trips on the Auckland public transport system reached 60.6 million for the year ending 30 June 2010, 

the highest level of patronage since 1984. 

What we do 

The Local Government Auckland Amendment Act 2004 (LGAAA) established ARTA to assist the ARC 

to fulfil its land transport activities.  ARTA’s objective is to plan, fund and develop the Auckland regional 

land transport system in a way that contributes to an integrated, safe, responsive and sustainable land 

transport system for the Auckland region. 

The ARC provides operating and capital funding to ARTA to carry out its functions including: 

• The provision of bus, ferry and rail services, concessionary fares and transport for those with 

disabilities, school bus services, marketing and passenger information, sustainable transport 

including support for cycling, forward planning and ARTA’s corporate and financial functions; 

and 

• Improvement of the Auckland rail system, and investment in bus, ferry and multi-modal capital 

projects designed to improve public transport in the region. 

Our objectives 

The ARC provides operating and capital funding to support ARTA to implement the public transport and 

related components of the ARLTS. 

What we achieved 

• A total of 60.6 million trips were made on the Auckland public transport system during the year 

to 30 June 2010, the highest annual total since 1984.   

• The ARC provided $120.4 million in operating funding and $60.4 million in capital funding to 

ARTA for the 16 months to 31 October 2010.  This allowed ARTA to: 

o Introduce three additional SA trains into service bringing the SA fleet to 23 trains. 

o Complete the Newmarket, New Lynn, Grafton, Avondale and Kingsland stations. 

o Construct stations on the Onehunga branch line and provide half hourly peak rail 

services. 

o Increase peak capacity on the Southern and Eastern rail lines and extend evening 

services on the Western line. 

o Complete renewal works and passenger facilities at the Downtown ferry terminal. 

o Provide improved bus services in the North West, Green Bay and Blockhouse Bay, 

Manurewa, Glenn Inness, and Onehunga. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 

Levels of Service: 

The ARC will ensure that ARTA will give effect to the The ARC will ensure that ARTA will give effect to the The ARC will ensure that ARTA will give effect to the The ARC will ensure that ARTA will give effect to the ARLTSARLTSARLTSARLTS    to the extent it canto the extent it canto the extent it canto the extent it can    do so, given:do so, given:do so, given:do so, given:    

• operational considerations that affect the sequencing and timing of activitiesoperational considerations that affect the sequencing and timing of activitiesoperational considerations that affect the sequencing and timing of activitiesoperational considerations that affect the sequencing and timing of activities    

• the funding available to itthe funding available to itthe funding available to itthe funding available to it    

• its statutory functions.its statutory functions.its statutory functions.its statutory functions.    

Performance measures: 
Actual 
2008/09* 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

ARTA 1. Percentage of 

motorised trips into the 

CBD in the morning peak 

by Passenger Transport 

 

42% in 

2006 

 

49% by 

2015/16 

On track for 

target. 

48.5% 

49% by 2015/16  ** 

ARTA 2. At peak times, 

the percentage of trips in 

the Auckland Region that 

are by Passenger 

Transport (PT) 

 

ARTA target - 100 m PT 
boardings per annum (by 
2016) 

6.5% in 

2006 

 

11% by 

2015/16 

Not 

available 

(census 

data). 

 

11% by 2015/16  ** 

 

58.6m 

 

61.9m for 

2010/11 

Not on 

track. 

60.6m 

 

21.2 million 

 

Achieved 22 

million 

ARTA 3. Walking and 

cycling make up a 

percentage of all trips 

 

ARTA target - 20,000 
fewer car trips each 
morning peak through 
Travel Plans (by 2016) 

 

15.4% in 

2001 

 

15.5% by 

2015/16 

Not 

available 

(census 

data). 

15.5% by 

2015/16  

** 

 

6,492 

fewer trips 

 

9,500 

fewer trips 

for 2010/11 

On target. 

9,619 

fewer trips 

20,000 

fewer car trips 

 by 2016 

 

 

** 

ARTA 4. Percentage of 

decline in road casualties 

per 10,000 population. 

 

2.2% 

decrease 

on 2005 

rate 

 

6% 

reduction 

on 2005 

rate by 

2015/16 

On target. 

5.3% 

decrease 

on 2005 

rate 

 

6% reduction on 

2005 rate by 

2015/16  

** 

* Some results use census data so can only be reported for 2006 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 
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Comments on these results: 

• ARTA 1: The long term trend is for increased PT travel to the CBD, but relatively static car 

travel.  This data is for peak times only; much of the PT growth has been in off-peak travel. 

• ARTA 2: Where public transport infrastructure and services have been improved, patronage has 

grown beyond expectations.  The scale of improvements that have been implemented is less 

than that anticipated in the ARLTS, due mainly to funding constraints. This means we are no 

longer on track to meet the target set by ARTA for 2015/16. A decision on how to address this 

issue will be made by the new Auckland Transport CCO. 

• ARTA 3: Measuring walking and cycling trips as a % of all trips is difficult.  However, ARTA is 

on track to deliver the target of 20,000 fewer car trips to work or study by 2016. 

• ARTA 4: There has been a decline in deaths and serious injuries in the Auckland Region. 
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2.2 Built environment 
Overview 

This group of activities relates to how the ARC manages the region's growth. It includes the following 

LTCCP activity: 

1. Managing Auckland's growth 

Group contribution to community outcomes: 

See chart on page 19 in chapter one 

 

This group's influence on the four well beings:    

 

The Built environment outcomes are largely determined by decisions made by Auckland’s councils and 

other agencies.  Achieving the outcomes requires all the parties to reach agreement and the ARC is 

only one party to this relationship.  If a mutually acceptable decision is not reached, this would 

compromise the outcome. 

 

 

Summary of group expenditure 

Total cost of services in $millions  
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

Actual 7.4 

Planned 10.1 

Variance* 2.7 

 

* Favourable variance in the net cost of services is 

due mostly to the timing of grants and subsidies 

received and when work was carried out. 

 

Please refer to section 3 (Cost of Services Statement) for further breakdown of the activity cost of 

services. 
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LTCCP Activity 1: Managing Auckland’s growth  

Highlight of the period: 

Purchase of Queens Wharf, together with Government, to open it up for permanent public access and 

build a new cruise ship terminal for Auckland.  Queen’s Wharf will also be used as a “fan zone” for the 

Rugby World Cup Celebrations. 

 

What we do 

In 2008, the ARC established the Regional Sustainable Development Forum (RSDF) to provide political 

leadership and guidance to support the region’s long term sustainable development. The RSDF 

involved all Auckland councils together with representatives from central government, adjoining 

regional councils and iwi.   

The ARC also contributes to the region’s development by: 

• Providing a context to manage Auckland’s growth by monitoring development trends and 

capacity and modelling a number of scenarios. 

• Leading the delivery of regionally significant urban development projects.  

Our objectives 

• To co-ordinate a regional response to development and growth in target locations, guided by 

the Auckland Sustainability Framework (ASF). 

• Progress the implementation of the Auckland Waterfront Vision 2040. 

• To improve the quality of the built environment.  

• To develop an Auckland Regional Infrastructure Inventory. 

What we achieved 

• Completed an analysis of different land use scenarios as inputs into the Auckland Spatial Plan. 

• Acquired Queens Wharf as a key component of the Auckland Waterfront Masterplan, as the 

location for a cruise ship terminal, an event space and public open space. 

• Auckland Regional Infrastructure Inventory was endorsed in September 2009 with follow-up 

engagement with infrastructure providers in November 2009 and May 2010. 

• Completed a survey of the region’s residential and commercial land development capacity. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

We will continue to manage a regionally coWe will continue to manage a regionally coWe will continue to manage a regionally coWe will continue to manage a regionally co----ordinated response to development and growth that is guided ordinated response to development and growth that is guided ordinated response to development and growth that is guided ordinated response to development and growth that is guided 

by the ASF, by the ASF, by the ASF, by the ASF, AAAARPS, RPS, RPS, RPS, ARLTSARLTSARLTSARLTS    and and and and AAAARGS.RGS.RGS.RGS. 
BE 1. The RSDF and REDF 

agree to the regional 

priorities contained within 

the One Plan version 1, 

and the RTC adopts the 

agreed ARLTS.  

New 

measure 

To be 

achieved 

Achieved.  

Refer note 

below. 

Not applicable. ** 

We will actively pursue a sustainable quality urban envWe will actively pursue a sustainable quality urban envWe will actively pursue a sustainable quality urban envWe will actively pursue a sustainable quality urban environment for Auckland as a cityironment for Auckland as a cityironment for Auckland as a cityironment for Auckland as a city----region that region that region that region that 

integrates land use and transport provision and outcomes, while minimising adverse environmental integrates land use and transport provision and outcomes, while minimising adverse environmental integrates land use and transport provision and outcomes, while minimising adverse environmental integrates land use and transport provision and outcomes, while minimising adverse environmental 

impacts.impacts.impacts.impacts. 

BE 2. The ongoing 

availability1 of land, for at 

least 20 years capacity, for 

development and growth 

across the region (ARGS, 

ARPS) as reflected in 

relevant regional and 

district plans.  
1Residential availability is 
estimated by comparing 
residential capacity (i.e. 
supply) to household 
projections (i.e. demand). 
High and low growth rates 
are used to produce the 
range. 

16-26 years Average of 

20 years 

Not 

applicable 

 

The next 

result for this 

measure will 

be based on 

analysis of 

2011 aerial 

imagery and 

census data. 

Not applicable  

 

** 

BE 3. The residents' 

consideration of intensive 

housing as a suitable 

housing choice for them, 

as measured by the 

Environmental Awareness 

survey.  

39% 45% Not 

achieved. 

33% 

45%  ** 

We will work in partnership with other agencies to seek the transformation of targeted urban We will work in partnership with other agencies to seek the transformation of targeted urban We will work in partnership with other agencies to seek the transformation of targeted urban We will work in partnership with other agencies to seek the transformation of targeted urban 

environments of significance to the region.environments of significance to the region.environments of significance to the region.environments of significance to the region. 

BE 4. Public satisfaction 

with the look and feel of 

regionally significant 

redevelopment areas such 

as the Auckland 

waterfront. 

 

New 

measure 

To be 

established 

in 2009/10. 

Not 

measured 

(refer note 

below) 

Maintain or 

increase on 

baseline  

** 

BE 5. Percentage of 

respondents who are 

satisfied with their access 

to parks and open space 

(source: Environmental 

Awareness survey).  

 

88% 90% Not 

achieved. 

89% 

90%  ** 
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Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

BE 6. Residents' sense of 

pride in the way the 

region/city looks and feels 

(source: Quality of Life 

survey). 

54% 60% Not 

applicable 

(refer note 

below) 

60%  ** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• BE1: The RTC adopted the ARLTS in April 2010. One Plan Version 1 was endorsed by the RSDF on 10 

October 2008 and adopted by the ARC on 28 October 2008.  A major achievement under the One Plan 

process in 2009/10 was the recognition of the Infrastructure Inventory by the RSDF at 18 September 

2009 meeting, which falls under the One Plan Priorities.  A One Plan programme of action report was 

provided to the RSDF on 30 April 2010.  Note:  The REDF does not have a role in agreeing to the One 

Plan Version 1 as it does not have the mandate to approve that programme.  Reference to the REDF in 

the Levels of Service is an error. 

• BE2: The next result for this measure will be based on analysis of 2011 aerial imagery and census data 

which is not available at this time. 

• BE3: The percentage of respondents who “felt that a terraced house (houses joined side by side) or an 

apartment might suit them in the future” has fallen from 39% in 2008/09, to 33% in 2009/10, which is 

well below target of 45%. In contrast, of those surveyed who currently live in a terraced house or 

apartment, 81% either agreed or strongly agreed that this style of living suited them.  Results of this 

survey have been passed on to the Auckland Council who will work towards ensuring peoples 

perceptions of intensive housing improves over time.  19% of respondents currently live in intensive 

housing. 

• BE4: Council did not proceed with a survey of community perceptions of waterfront development in 

2009/10 as public views had already been sought on the design of a cruise ship terminal on Queens 

Wharf in late 2009.  In 2009/10, the ARC and the New Zealand Government secured Queens Wharf for 

the benefit of the people of the region. This significant acquisition in a strategic location on Auckland’s 

waterfront has secured public ownership and access to a major asset, which is in keeping with the 

agreed masterplan for the waterfront.  The ARC has liaised with a number of stakeholders via the 

Waterfront Stakeholders Forum.  

• BE5: Although the target was not achieved, the actual result of 89% is considered to be within an 

acceptable range. 

• BE6: The Quality of Life survey, which is run outside the control of the ARC, was not conducted during 

the period of this report. 
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2.3 Natural environment and heritage 
Overview 

This group of activities relates to how the ARC manages the region’s natural environment and heritage 

resources. It includes the following LTCCP activities: 

1. Stormwater management and pollution response 

2. Freshwater management 

3. Coastal management 

4. Land management 

5. Improving air quality 

6. Natural heritage conservation 

7. Biosecurity 

8. Cultural heritage conservation 

9. Planning for the future 

Group contribution to community outcomes: 

See chart on page 19 in chapter one 

This group's influence on the four well beings:    

 
The community has high expectations that the quality of the region’s natural environments (air, land, 

water and coast) will be protected and preserved for future generations.   

However, the impacts of growth and development are having significant adverse effects on natural 

resources in many parts of the region.  The current level of funding enables us to meet our immediate 

commitments to manage the development, but does not allow for any expansion of environmental 

programmes. 
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Summary of group expenditure 

Total cost of services in $millions  
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010. 

Actual 88.5 

Planned 68.4 

Variance* (20.1) 
 

 

* Actual expenditure is more than plan due to 

greater operational expenditure resulting from the 

completion of a large number of projects within 

this activity during the reporting period. 
 

 

 

Please refer to section 3 (Cost of Services Statement) for further breakdown of the activity cost of 

services. 
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LTCCP Activity 1: Stormwater management and pollution response  

Highlight of the period: 

Completing 100 per cent of the site visits required for the Scrap Metal and Automotive Dismantling 

Project. 

What we do 

• Operate a 24hr pollution response hotline to attend, contain and clean up pollution incidents 

and take enforcement action where necessary. 

• Carry out proactive catchment based pollution awareness exercises (PAE) where sites are 

visited and any actual or potential pollution sources are identified and addressed. 

• Undertake integrated pollution prevention assessments through an industry based programme. 

Our objectives 

• To respond to all pollution incidents in a timely and efficient manner. 

• To work with the public and industry groups to raise awareness of environmental issues and 

reduce their impact on the environment. 

What we achieved 

• Since April 2010, the Industrial and Trade Processes (ITP) team have undertaken an industry 

focused project. This sought to identify, assess and provide consent advice to the scrap metal 

and automotive dismantling industry within the Auckland region.  The project is phased into 

three phases and the completion of all site assessments in August 2010 concluded the second 

phase.  Work on phase three has commenced.   

• Two catchment based pollution prevention exercises were carried out this year, including the 

largest one ever undertaken by the ARC in New Lynn. 

• Responded to and addressed 3729 reports of pollution in the Auckland Region quickly and 

efficiently. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service1: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

The ARC, in conjunction with stakeholders, will seek to limit the adverse effects of stormwater on the The ARC, in conjunction with stakeholders, will seek to limit the adverse effects of stormwater on the The ARC, in conjunction with stakeholders, will seek to limit the adverse effects of stormwater on the The ARC, in conjunction with stakeholders, will seek to limit the adverse effects of stormwater on the 

region’s natural environment. region’s natural environment. region’s natural environment. region’s natural environment. 2222 

SW 1. Total number of 

Integrated Catchment 

Management Plans 

(ICMPs) completed 

within the region (by 

2020) by TLAs with 

assistance from ARC that 

support freshwater and 

coastal outcomes 

consistent with ICMP 

guidelines.  

13 17 Not 

achieved. 

13 

Timing of ICMP 

completion is at 

the discretion of 

district and city 

councils 

 

** 

 

 

 

We will respond to reported pollution incidents to avoid adverse effects on the region’s environment.We will respond to reported pollution incidents to avoid adverse effects on the region’s environment.We will respond to reported pollution incidents to avoid adverse effects on the region’s environment.We will respond to reported pollution incidents to avoid adverse effects on the region’s environment. 

SW 2.For all pollution 

incidents received by the 

Pollution Response team; 

(i) the number and 

category of incidents and, 

(ii) the percentage that 

are responded to within 

24 hours (excluding 

sediment and 

contaminated land).  

100% 100% Achieved. 

(i) 3729 

(categorised 

below) 

 

(ii) 100% 

100% Achieved 

(i) 655 

(categorised 

below) 

 

(ii) 99.8% 

SW 3. Number of 

business sites that 

receive a site 

assessment with 

guidance on pollution 

prevention each year. 

(It is estimated that there 
are 5,000 moderate and 
2,500 high risk 
commercial sites in the 
Auckland region.) 

New 

measure 

Conduct at 

least one 

catchment 

based 

pollution 

prevention 

project and 

150 

industrial 

site audits 

per annum. 

Achieved. 

Two 

catchment 

based 

pollution 

prevention 

projects. 

195 Industrial 

site audits 

 

35  

industrial site 

audits 

Achieved 

36 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Performance measures relating to consents processing and compliance monitoring are found in  

Activity 9 (Planning for the future). Refer measures PF 8, PF 9, PF 10 and PF 11. 

2.  Please also refer to measure CM 3 in activity 3 (Coastal Management) of this group of activities for a measure 

of the impact of Stormwater on the region’s bathing beaches. 
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Comments on these results 
• SW1: 13 ICMPs have been completed and signed off. However, a further 18 ICMPs have been 

submitted to ARC in draft format and are at various stages of completion. Based on the current 

programme, there are 51 ICMPs to be completed by 2020.    

• SW2: The Pollution Response team received a total of 3729 notifications of pollution incidents 

in 2009/10 and 655 in the four month period to 31 October 2010. There was only one incident 

in the 16 month period that was responded to outside the target 24 hour period, and this was 

recorded as 24 hrs 41 minutes. This still produces a rounded result of 100% of incidents 

responded to within 24 hours of receipt.  The number of incidents responded to by incident 

type are shown below. 

 

Incident TypeIncident TypeIncident TypeIncident Type    

Number of IncidentsNumber of IncidentsNumber of IncidentsNumber of Incidents    

2009200920092009----2010201020102010    

Number of Number of Number of Number of IIIIncidentsncidentsncidentsncidents    

1 July to 1 July to 1 July to 1 July to 31 October 201031 October 201031 October 201031 October 2010    

Smoke 1445 187 

Natural/Not Found 867 129 

Odour 253 61 

Wastewater 251 57 

Hydrocarbons 245 67 

Dirt / Inert Minerals / 

Sediment 
153 50 

Paint / Dye / Inks 133 24 

Other Chemicals 105 29 

Concrete Wastewater 90 29 

Air Other 63 4 

Waste to stormwater 51 3 

Organic Waste 45 9 

Unidentified 28 6 

Total incidentsTotal incidentsTotal incidentsTotal incidents    3729372937293729    655655655655    

• SW3: Two catchment based pollution prevention exercises were carried out this year, including 

the largest one ever undertaken by the ARC in New Lynn.  195 Industrial site audits were 

undertaken and of these, 20 (10%) sites were found to have actual pollution issues while a 

further 39% had potential pollution issues. Most actual and potential pollution issues were 

found among motor vehicle, manufacturing and engineering industry types. In the majority of 

cases, officers directed businesses to cease discharges, organise Spill Response Plans and 

conduct site clean-ups to address the issues. Where necessary, letters were issued and follow-

up visits conducted to ensure clean-up had occurred. 
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LTCCP Activity 2: Freshwater management  

Highlight of the period: 

Completion of the Regional Riparian Characteristics survey providing the first regional assessment of 

stream bank condition, determined by measuring the extent of stream bank fencing, vegetation and 

erosion. The results provide valuable guidance for policy development and a baseline for monitoring 

future changes. 

What we do 

The ARC has a specific responsibility to control the use of land in order to maintain and enhance the 

quality of water and ecosystems in freshwater lakes, streams and coastal waters.  This includes 

monitoring water quality and ecology to measure the effects of land development of these natural 

resources, and the development of policy to achieve the integrated and sustainable management of 

natural and physical resources.   

Under the Resource Management Act 1991, the ARC is responsible for controlling the use and 

protection of freshwater resources. This includes processing and compliance monitoring of resource 

consents to take and use water (both surface water and groundwater), dam and divert water, and 

discharge to water. 

Our objectives 

• Develop sustainable management policies for the allocation and use of the region’s scarce 

freshwater resources.  

• Develop water quality standards to protect fragile freshwater stream systems, lakes and their 

ecology from the effects of land use and development. This will be supported by a programme 

of activities to ensure the better management of degraded soft bottom streams and to protect 

headwater streams in the region. 

• Deliver an efficient, high-quality consent processing and compliance monitoring service that 

meets statutory requirements. 

What we achieved 

• The 2009 State of the Auckland Region report was published on 16 March 2010.  Copies of the 

summary document and supporting DVD have been widely distributed with the comprehensive 

technical report is available on request to the Auckland Council. 

• A resource consent was granted for the ongoing operation of the Mangawheau hydrological 

monitoring station and a programme of 'trap and transfer' has been implemented to assist the 

passage of native fish beyond this barrier. 

• A riparian characteristics survey identified the presence and condition of fences, extent of 

riparian vegetation and presence of erosion along 90 kilometres of pastoral streams distributed 

randomly throughout the region.   
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• The summer field season was concluded successfully with State of the Environment 

monitoring of streams, lakes, wetlands and groundwater systems being completed on time 

and within budget. 

• An investigation into the Onehunga Green Stream ground water contamination was completed 

with the production of a groundwater plume and infrastructure risk assessment report and 

associated maps. 

• The level of understanding of the extent of the stream network in the Auckland region 

continues to improve following refinement of a new digital terrain and watercourse model. 

• The Stream Ecosystem Evaluation methodology continues to be utilised by the ARC, other 

regional councils, consultants and research organisations.  This year, the method was rolled out 

to the freshwater state of the environment monitoring network.   

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service1: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

We aim to protect our high quality fresh water resources to maintain their valued ecosystems, biodiversity, We aim to protect our high quality fresh water resources to maintain their valued ecosystems, biodiversity, We aim to protect our high quality fresh water resources to maintain their valued ecosystems, biodiversity, We aim to protect our high quality fresh water resources to maintain their valued ecosystems, biodiversity, 

amenityamenityamenityamenity    aaaand water quality fromnd water quality fromnd water quality fromnd water quality from    inappropriate subdivision, use, and development.inappropriate subdivision, use, and development.inappropriate subdivision, use, and development.inappropriate subdivision, use, and development. 

FW 1. Length of streams 

in natural stream 

management areas 

adversely affected by 

stream work consents. 

New 

measure 

Decrease on 

baseline 

400m Decrease on 

baseline  

** 

FW 2. Proportion of 

streams in natural stream 

management areas 

protected from stock 

access. 

(Principally measured 
through Regional Parks 
fencing and planting data) 

New 

measure 

Increase on 

baseline 

Not 

measured 

(refer 

comments 

below) 

This measure 

involves fencing 

which is 

completed in 

the six months 

from October to 

March 

** 

 

FW 3. Length of streams 

in natural stream 

management areas 

affected by artificial 

barriers to fish passage. 

115 km in 

2005/06 

Decrease on 

baseline 

Not 

applicable. 

The next 

survey is 

scheduled 

for 

November 

2010. 

This target is 

based on a 

survey which is 

undertaken once 

every five years. 

The next survey 

is scheduled for 

November 2010. 

** 

 

We will contribute to the enhancement of targeted degraded fresh water resources, to realise their potential We will contribute to the enhancement of targeted degraded fresh water resources, to realise their potential We will contribute to the enhancement of targeted degraded fresh water resources, to realise their potential We will contribute to the enhancement of targeted degraded fresh water resources, to realise their potential 

ecological, amenity, and recreecological, amenity, and recreecological, amenity, and recreecological, amenity, and recreational use.ational use.ational use.ational use. 

FW 4. Proportion of 

samples from ARC 

monitored streams within 

catchments receiving 

substantial support for 

riparian fencing that 

exceed the red alert level 

for stock watering.  

 

13.0% Decrease on 

baseline 

Achieved. 

12.5% 

Decrease on 

baseline 

** 
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Levels of Service1: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

We will provide for the sustainable management of the region’s fresh water resources.We will provide for the sustainable management of the region’s fresh water resources.We will provide for the sustainable management of the region’s fresh water resources.We will provide for the sustainable management of the region’s fresh water resources. 

FW 5. Number of high-

use aquifers where 

allocations exceed the 

amount of water 

available, based on 

allocations for 17 high-

use aquifers in the 

region.  

 

0 

No over 

allocations 

Achieved. 

0 

No over 

allocations  

** 

FW 6. Number of high-

use aquifers where actual 

use exceeds the amount 

allocated, based on actual 

use of 17 high-use 

aquifers in the region.  

 

0 

No cases of 

overuse 

Achieved 

0 

No cases of 

overuse  

** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Performance measures relating to consents processing and compliance monitoring are found in Activity 9 

(Planning for the future). Refer measures PF 8, PF 9, PF 10 and PF 11. 

Comments on these results 

• FW1: Data has been calculated using the Regulatory Services consents database. 

• FW2: We were unable to calculate a result for this measure as information on the fencing 

extent distinguished by proximity to watercourses is not currently consolidated in the Parks 

Asset Management System.  The system will be amended so that the relevant proximity 

information required for this measure is captured in future (2011/12). 

This measure involves fencing which is completed from October to March each year therefore 

a result for the 4 months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 is also not applicable. 

• FW3: This target is based on a survey which is undertaken once every five years. The next 

survey is scheduled for November 2010. 

• FW4 – The Mahurangi Action Plan has resulted in substantial fencing of waterways within the 

Mahurangi catchment. It is expected that, over time, poor water quality and riparian 

management will decrease as the benefits of stock exclusion are fully realized.  For this 

performance measure, we use the 1992 stock watering guideline of 1000 colony forming units 

of a bacteria commonly found in the gut of humans and animals.  It acts as a useful indicator of 

contamination. 
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LTCCP Activity 3: Coastal management  

Highlight of the period: 

Completion to ‘treated as operative status’ a change to the coastal plan that introduces a balanced 

policy framework for the management of mangroves.  

What we do 

Remain alert to any current and emerging issues affecting the coastal environment, provide guidance, 

advocacy and advice on these issues and develop appropriate management responses, and complete 

the Resource Management Act process for statutory responses requiring amendment of the regional 

coastal plan.   

The Coastal Enhancement Fund (CEF) provides funding, and practical support and advice to not-for-

profit organisations and members of the community for projects for environmental enhancement, 

improvement of safety and navigation, and public works and infrastructure in the Coastal Marine Area. 

Our objectives 

• Effective policies and initiatives to sustainably manage the appropriate use, development and 

protection of the coastal environment; and balance competing aspirations, obligations and 

demands. 

• Ensure that the quality of coastal waters and marine ecosystems is maintained and enhanced 

as far as practicable. 

• Deliver an efficient, high-quality consent processing and compliance monitoring service, which 

meets statutory requirements. 

• To administer the CEF in accordance with approved funding principles and criteria. 

What we achieved 

• Took Plan Change 3 (Wynyard Quarter) to the Auckland Regional Plan: Coastal (ARP:C), which 

is required to provide for the proposed significant development of the Auckland waterfront, 

through a complex appeal process. 

• Resolved appeals to Plan Change 4 (Mangrove Management) to the ARP:C so that the new 

provisions can be treated as operative.  

• Contributed coastal input to the review of the Auckland Regional Policy Statement. 

• Coordinated ARC technical input into the Hauraki Gulf Forum. 

• 17 Coastal Enhancement Fund (CEF) projects completed during the 2009/2010 year. 

• 21 projects were funded to the value of $328,712.98. 

• 2010/2011 CEF funding round completed in April 2010. Application numbers received were up 

by 18.5% on previous years. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service1: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will contribute to the sustainable management of coastal environments and enhance areas that are We will contribute to the sustainable management of coastal environments and enhance areas that are We will contribute to the sustainable management of coastal environments and enhance areas that are We will contribute to the sustainable management of coastal environments and enhance areas that are 

degraded, to protect the natural character of the coast and quality of the water anddegraded, to protect the natural character of the coast and quality of the water anddegraded, to protect the natural character of the coast and quality of the water anddegraded, to protect the natural character of the coast and quality of the water and    marine ecosystems.marine ecosystems.marine ecosystems.marine ecosystems. 

CM 1. Public perception 

of the balance between 

the built elements and 

natural environment on 

the coastline. 

(Percentage reflects a 
total of those who feel 
there is a balance, plus 
those who feel it could 
be built up more.) 

 

73% 

70% Achieved. 

78% 

70%  ** 

CM 2. Complete changes 

to Regional plan: Coastal 

as set out in this activity 

for delivery between 

2009 -19. 

New 

measure 

To be 

achieved 

Achieved. 

On target 

to 

complete 

delivery by 

2019 

There are no 

plan changes 

scheduled for 

this period. 

** 

 

We will seek to ensure the community has appropriate access to beaches and coastal areas for safe We will seek to ensure the community has appropriate access to beaches and coastal areas for safe We will seek to ensure the community has appropriate access to beaches and coastal areas for safe We will seek to ensure the community has appropriate access to beaches and coastal areas for safe 

recreation and other activities.recreation and other activities.recreation and other activities.recreation and other activities. 

CM 3. Proportion of time 

that monitored bathing 

beaches are suitable for 

swimming and contact 

recreation (November to 

April bathing season).  

 

90% 95% Not 

achieved. 

86% 

Not applicable.  

The bathing 

season runs 

from November 

to April. 

** 

 

CM 4. Length of coastline 

in public ownership and 

the number of formal 

access points to the 

coastline across private 

land (measured every five 

years).  

Source: Based on data 
from Hauraki Gulf State 
of Environment Reports. 

2500km 

coastline of 

the Hauraki 

Gulf Marine 

Park 

Maintain 

baseline 

Not 

measured. 

Next 

assessmen

t is due in 

November 

2010 

Next 

assessment is 

due in 

November 2010 

** 

 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Performance measures relating to consents processing and compliance monitoring are found in Activity 9 

(Planning for the future). Refer measures PF 8, PF 9, PF 10 and PF 11. 
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Comments on these results 

• CM1: This percentage reflects both those that feel there is a good balance, plus those who feel 

it could be built up more. 

• CM2: During the 16 month period ending 31 October 2010, the following progress has been 

made: 

Coastal Management programme as Coastal Management programme as Coastal Management programme as Coastal Management programme as 

described in the LTCCP 2009described in the LTCCP 2009described in the LTCCP 2009described in the LTCCP 2009----19191919    

ProgressProgressProgressProgress    

Between 2009 -11: Resolve any 

appeals to the Regional Plan: Coastal 

changes for Mangrove Management 

and Wynyard Quarter 

All appeals finally resolved during 2010. The plan change for 

Mangrove Management (PC-4) is now operative (March 2011) 

and that for Wynyard Quarter (PC-3) due to be reported to 

Council governing body at the end of March 2011 for adoption. 

PC-3 will then go to Minister of Conservation to 

consider/approve and will subsequently be made operative by 

public notice (possibly in June/July 2011). 

Between 2009 -11: Develop a small 

plan change to the Regional Plan: 

Coastal to give further effect to the 

Hauraki Gulf Marine Park Act 

Decision on whether or not to proceed with the future “small” 

plan change is now superseded by the new Auckland Council 

process (spatial planning, unitary plan development, revision of 

operative plans). Yet to be determined. 

Between 2009 -12: Progress a 

variation to the Regional Plan: Coastal 

to provide a revised aquaculture policy 

framework. 

Aquaculture Legislation Amendment Bill #3 expected to be 

passed into law by July 2011. Options for development of a 

revised aquaculture policy framework to implement the new 

legislation are yet to be presented to Council for their decision.  

Current expectation though is that Council will support the 

requirement for this plan change and that it will either be a 

change to the coastal plan or be included in the unitary plan.  

That is, we currently still expect the plan change to ultimately 

be delivered. 

Between 2009 -13 the ARC will 

develop a plan change to provide for 

Coastal Occupation Charging. 

This was an indicative timeline included with the LTCCP.  It has 

subsequently been affected by legislation review and by 

transition to the Auckland Council.  Whether or not to proceed 

with development of such a plan change has yet to be 

considered or determined 

Between 2012 -18: Carry out 

comprehensive background 

investigations to support development 

of a robust review of the Regional 

Plan: Coastal and accompanying maps 

for notification in 2014.   

This will be undertaken by the Auckland Council at a yet to be 

determined future date. 
Note: the dates in the ARC LTCCP for this work should have 

read ‘Between 2012-14’ 

Between 2012 -15: Receive and 

process any invited private plan change 

requests (outside of excluded areas) to 

establish aquaculture management 

areas within the Regional Plan: 

Coastal.    

This has now been superseded by Aquaculture Bill#3 which 

will remove this unique RMA process. 

 

Between 2015 -19: Receive and 

process any private plan change 

requests (inside of excluded areas) to 

establish aquaculture management 

areas within the Regional Plan: 

Coastal. 

This has now been superseded by Aquaculture Bill#3 which 

will remove the requirement for this RMA process. 
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• CM3: The bathing season runs from November to April and data is supplied by external parties.  

The lower value reported for 2009/10 is impacted by;   

o fewer councils monitoring i.e. not consistent with past years;  

o a higher proportion of freshwater samples (since North Shore City Council stopped 

monitoring, and Waitakere City Council continued); and  

o ongoing high E. coli results at contaminated freshwater sites monitored by Waitakere 

City Council. 

A decision on the number, location and frequency of sites (beaches) to be monitored for 

2010/11 will need to be made by the new Auckland Council in order to achieve a more 

consistent monitoring and reporting programme. 

• CM4: Baseline established for 2500 km coastline of the Hauraki Gulf Marine Park and 

consequently includes parts of the Waikato.  It has not been possible to calculate a revised 

figure for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010.  The next assessment is due in  

November 2010. 
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LTCCP Activity 4: Land management  

Highlight of the period: 

Planting of approximately 22,000 native plants over an area of 5.8 hectares 

What we do 

Through the sustainable Catchment Programme support the ongoing implementation of the Mahurangi 

and Whangateau catchment plans to protect the long term health of these harbours and catchment.  

Management of the ARC’s closed landfills. 

Our objectives 

• Continue engagement in the Whangateau catchment with both primary and secondary 

stakeholders in order to both raise awareness of the harbour and its issues and to encourage 

positive behaviour change. 

• To improve best practice rural land management activities that have the potential to generate 

sediment and other issues that will impact on the health of the harbour. 

• Continue supporting the ongoing implementation of the Mahurangi catchment plan to protect 

the long term health of the harbour. 

• Management of ARC’s closed landfills in accordance with conditions of consent. 

What we achieved 

• Approximately 10.5 kilometres of riparian fencing have been funded in the Mahurangi 

catchment. 

• Approximately 22,000 native plants have been planted over an area of about 5.8 hectares. 

• Two neighbourhood riparian workshops were completed to support implementation of farm 

plans. 

• The review of the 30-year Aftercare budget was successfully completed.   

• All landfill sites were compliant with consents. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Level of Service1: 

We will manage We will manage We will manage We will manage the use and development of land to safeguard the region’s environment, productivity and the use and development of land to safeguard the region’s environment, productivity and the use and development of land to safeguard the region’s environment, productivity and the use and development of land to safeguard the region’s environment, productivity and 

economic value of soil.economic value of soil.economic value of soil.economic value of soil.    2222 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

LM 1. The total length 

(kilometres) of the 

region’s streams that are 

fenced and planted to 

protect riparian margins 

through targeted projects 

each year.  

34.3km At least 15 

km 

Achieved. 

18.9km 

Not applicable. 

Fencing is a 

summer activity. 

** 

LM 2. Rate of loss of 

Prime Land (Class I, II 

and III Land*). 

*Class I, II and III land 
ranges from no 
limitations to moderate 
limitations for arable use, 
but suitable for cultivated 
crops, pasture or forestry. 

333.4 

hectares 

per year for 

period 

2001-2006 

Maintain or 

decrease 

on baseline 

Achieved. 

135.7 

hectares 

per year 

(2006-2008) 

The next 

assessment is 

scheduled to 

take place after 

November 

2010. 

** 

 

LM 3. Percentage of ARC 

landfill aftercare resource 

consents achieving 

category 1 or 2 

compliance with consent 

conditions for activities at 

Pikes Point, Rosedale, 

Greenmount and 

Devonport landfills.  

92% 100% Not 

achieved. 

91% 

100% Not achieved 

91% 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Performance measures relating to consents processing and compliance monitoring are found in Activity 9 

(Planning for the future). Refer measures PF 8, PF 9, PF 10 and PF 11. 

2. Also refer to measures SW 1, FW2 and FW4 contained in Activity 1 (Stormwater management) and Activity 2 

(Freshwater management).  
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Comments on these results 

• LM1: Total fencing data includes components completed as part of Mahurangi Action Plan 

(MAP) and those supported by the Environmental Initiatives Fund. Note that fencing is a 

summer activity and therefore no results are shown for the four month period to 31 October 

2010. 

• LM2: Rate of loss for 2009/10 calculated for the period 2006-2008, the latest period of data 

available. 

• LM3: The target was not met due to one condition of minor non-compliance at Rosedale, 

Greenmount and Pikes Point.  This has affected both the 12 and 4 month results. 
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LTCCP Activity 5: Improving air quality 

Highlight of the period: 

Finalisation of a meteorological dataset and associated user guide to improve consistency in air 

discharge consent applications and improve efficiency in the review of those applications.  

What we do 

The ARC is responsible for managing the effects of discharges of contaminants to air and ensuring that 

air is clean and healthy to breathe. This includes monitoring the quality of the region’s air across a 

range of indicators to measure trends and identify major pollutant sources. This monitoring provides 

the framework for developing and implementing effective policy and management options both for 

improving the region’s air quality and for meeting the Air Quality National Environmental Standards. 

Under the Resource Management Act, the ARC is responsible for controlling the discharges of 

contaminants into air. This includes processing and compliance monitoring of air discharge consents.  

Our key activities include: 

• Advocating for effective policies to reduce air emissions from transport sources in the region 

• Developing policies to reduce air emissions from domestic sources in the region 

• Developing and implementing policies and rules to manage industrial emissions in the region 

• Monitoring the region’s air quality which assists us to evaluate the effectiveness of air quality 

policies in delivering necessary emissions reductions 

• Developing key air quality management tools to forecast the ability of the region to meet clean 

air targets in the future and investigate policy scenarios that will allow us to achieve them.  

Our objectives 

• Transport emission reduction policies are incorporated and implemented by key regional 

planning documents, such as the Regional Policy Statement, Regional Land Transport Strategy, 

Regional Plan: Air, Land, Water, and the Regional Growth Strategy, by 2010. 

• Domestic emission reduction policies are incorporated into and implemented by key regional 

planning documents, such as the Regional Policy Statement, the Regional Plan: Air, Land, 

Water, and the Regional Growth Strategy. 

• The number of days when internationally accepted health standards for air quality are exceeded 

is progressively reduced. 

• To deliver an efficient, high-quality consent processing and compliance monitoring service that 

meets statutory requirements. 

• To work with the regional community, stakeholders and partners to raise awareness of air 

quality issues in the region. 
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What we achieved 

• Worked with government on the proposed amendments to the National Environmental 

Standards for Air Quality. 

• Finalised a meteorological dataset (co-funded by NZTA) and associated user guide that will be 

used by consent holders when preparing assessments of environmental effects (AEEs) for air 

discharges.  This will improve consistency of AEEs and make it more efficient for consent 

officers to review air discharge applications from consent holders.  

• Calculated and undertook modelling of air emissions to investigate future changes in air quality 

in the Auckland region. 

• Completed the second stage of the project to measure the contributions from different 

sources to PM10 in Auckland. 

• Published a technical report “2007 Home Heating Survey Results” on a survey undertaken to 

assess attitudes toward air quality issues and the behaviours relating to home heating of 

Auckland residents to estimate home heating emissions in Auckland. 

• Published a technical report “Estimation of Domestic Fire Emissions 2006” describing the 

estimated emissions from domestic home heating and the likely future emissions based on 

expected trends in solid fuel domestic home heating. 

• Published technical report “Auckland Sustainable Homes Assessment Part 1: Insulation and 

Clean Heat Appliances” which assessed the sustainability of the Auckland housing stock in 

terms of minimum levels of insulation, and clean and efficient home heating appliances 

• Published technical reports “Auckland Vehicle Fleet Emission Measurements 2005: The Big 

Clean Up ‘Tune Your Car’ Campaign” and “Light and Heavy Duty Diesel Vehicle Emissions 

Measurements” which describe the results of emissions measurements from the Auckland 

vehicle fleets and from the heavy vehicle fleet.  The analysis in these reports helps us to 

understand the trends in actual vehicle emissions and which vehicles should be targeted to 

reduce emissions.  

• Continued to operate the air quality monitoring network in the Auckland region.  Relocated the 

air quality mobile trailer to undertake air quality monitoring of particles and nitrogen oxides in 

Helensville. Relocated air quality monitoring site at Khyber Pass into a new purpose built 

laboratory. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service1: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will implement air quality policy and tWe will implement air quality policy and tWe will implement air quality policy and tWe will implement air quality policy and targeted improvement programmes that seek to maintain or argeted improvement programmes that seek to maintain or argeted improvement programmes that seek to maintain or argeted improvement programmes that seek to maintain or 

improve air quality across the region.improve air quality across the region.improve air quality across the region.improve air quality across the region. 

AQ 1. Appropriate 

emissions reduction 

policies are reflected in 

key regional planning 

documents (such as 

ARLTS, ARPS, & ARGS). 

New 

measure 

To be 

achieved 

Achieved 

ARLTS only 

** 

Key planning 

documents are 

unlikely to be 

notified prior to 

31 October. 

** 

AQ 2. Meet regional air 

quality targets as per 

2002 Ambient Air Quality 

Guidelines, particularly 

with regard to Auckland 

residential areas. Targets 

are:  

• 20 micrograms per 

cubic metre for 

PM10 annual 

average, and  

• 100 micrograms per 

cubic metre for 24 

hour average for 

NO2.  

These targets are now 

operative. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12 

 

 

 

 

2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

No sites to 

exceed the 

targets 

annually 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Not 

achieved. 

1 

 

 

Achieved. 

0 

Data is collected 

based on a 

calendar year 

therefore not 

available until 

after Dec 2010. 

** 

We will monitor and report on the quality and health of the region’s air to evaluate the effectiveness of air We will monitor and report on the quality and health of the region’s air to evaluate the effectiveness of air We will monitor and report on the quality and health of the region’s air to evaluate the effectiveness of air We will monitor and report on the quality and health of the region’s air to evaluate the effectiveness of air 

policies and initiatives.policies and initiatives.policies and initiatives.policies and initiatives. 

AQ 3. Percentage of valid 

data collected over a year 

for all pollutants 

measured at ARC air 

quality monitoring sites, 

as per Ministry for the 

Environment ‘Good 

Practice’ Guidelines.  

 

New 

measure 

75% Achieved. 

92% 

75% Achieved 

96% 

AQ 4. Reporting of 

exceedences of the 

National Environmental 

Standards for air quality 

are within statutory 

timeframes (in the month 

following the month of 

exceedence).  

 

New 

measure 

100% 

reported on 

time 

Achieved. 

100% 

100% There were no 

exceedences 

during this period, 

therefore nothing 

to report 



 

Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 53 

 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will provide support and leadership to community and stakeholder groups so they can contribute to We will provide support and leadership to community and stakeholder groups so they can contribute to We will provide support and leadership to community and stakeholder groups so they can contribute to We will provide support and leadership to community and stakeholder groups so they can contribute to 

improving air qualityimproving air qualityimproving air qualityimproving air quality    and to reduce the adverse effects of air pollution in the Auckland region.and to reduce the adverse effects of air pollution in the Auckland region.and to reduce the adverse effects of air pollution in the Auckland region.and to reduce the adverse effects of air pollution in the Auckland region. 

AQ 5. Review and update 

Auckland Air Emissions 

Inventory at least every 

three years. 

New 

measure 

To be 

achieved by 

2012 

Not 

applicable. 

Not applicable 

 

Reviews are 

conducted every 

3 years  

 

** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Performance measures relating to consents processing and compliance monitoring are found in Activity 9 

(Planning for the future). Refer measures PF 8, PF 9, PF 10 and PF 11. 

Comments on these results 

• AQ1: The ARPS and ARGS were not able to be notified this year due to the Auckland transition.  

The council adopted the draft proposed ARPS on 3 August 2010, this will handed over to the 

new Auckland Council.  Relevant air quality emission reductions policies were included in the 

ARLTS which was adopted in April 2010.   

• AQ2: The Regional Air Quality Targets contained within the PARP:ALW, and described under 

the Performance Measures in the preceding table are now operative.  

- PM10 target: Results reported represent a calendar year (i.e. 2009/10 result is for year ending 

December 2009). Target not met for PM10 at one air monitoring site located at Khyber Pass Rd 

(i.e. target not met at 1 of 15 monitoring sites measuring PM10).  Annual PM10 concentrations 

were decreasing until the year 2000, when they levelled off.  Emissions improvements due to 

better vehicle technology and fuels have been countered by growth in vehicle numbers, 

particularly diesel and the increasing age of the vehicle fleet.  Emissions from domestic 

sources such as home heating have changed little over the years. 

 

- NO2 target: Results reported represent a calendar year (i.e. 2009/10 result is for year ending 

December 2009). Target was achieved – no sites exceeded the target.  

• AQ3: Target achieved – 92% of data collected was deemed valid. Most of the invalid data in 

2009 is due to site relocation at Khyber Pass Road in 2009. 

• AQ4: NES exceedences reported in September 2009 and February 2010 reported in the NZ 

Herald as required. There were no exceedences during the period 1 July to 31 October 2010. 

• AQ5: Reviews are conducted every 3 years therefore no results are available during 2009/10 

and 2010/11. 
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LTCCP Activity 6: Natural heritage conservation  

Highlight of the period: 

Successful transfer of 200 bellbirds from Tawharanui Regional Park and Tiritiri Matangi Island to 

Whakanewha Regional Park and Fenwick Reserve on Waiheke Island, and to Motuihe Island and 

Hamilton City. 

What we do 

The ARC advocates for natural heritage protection through statutory plans and processes, and works 

with community groups and landowners to undertake biodiversity conservation on both private land 

and the regional parks network.  The ARC also advocates for the protection of Auckland’s unique 

geological features, landforms and landscapes, including the volcanic cones. 

 The ARC’s natural heritage work includes: 

• Advocating for the protection of Auckland’s unique geological features, landforms and 

landscapes and significant natural areas through statutory and non-statutory processes. 

• Implementing a regional ecological monitoring network of wetland and forest ecosystems. 

Working with our partners, Tawharanui Open Sanctuary Society (TOSSI), Shakespear Open 

Sanctuary Society (SOSSI), the Waitakere Branch of the Royal Forest and Bird Protection 

Society, and other volunteer and community groups to continue  wide-ranging habitat 

restoration and species management programmes on the regional parks. 

• Implementing a biodiversity advocacy and conservation programme focused on landowner 

liaison and community partnership, working in particular with the rural community. 

• Developing regional ecological corridors including the North-West Wildlink, in partnership with 

the community and other agencies. 

• Providing information and advice to the regional community in conjunction with targeted 

education and advocacy programmes. 

Our objectives 

• Advocate for the protection of significant natural heritage resources through statutory and non-

statutory processes. 

• Protect and enhance significant habitats and species in the regional parks. 

• Work with the regional community to raise awareness of, and advocate for, the conservation of 

our natural treasures. 
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What we achieved 
• Successful advocacy for the region’s natural heritage resources through statutory processes. 

• A comprehensive regional forest and wetland biodiversity monitoring programme was 

commenced and annual counts of forest birds at key locations were completed. 

• Ecological advice was provided to over 150 landowners and community restoration groups. 

• Most of the pest-proof fence for Shakespear Open Sanctuary was built. 

• The healthy bellbird and shore skink populations at Tawharanui Regional Park were used as 

sources for translocations to establish populations at new sites. 

• Petrels and kaka were confirmed as breeding at Tawharanui, while reintroduced brown kiwi, 

pateke, whiteheads and robins continue to thrive as a result of effective pest control. 

• The Hunua kokako population continues to increase and kokako were reintroduced to the 

Waitakere Ranges at the Ark in the Park for the first time. 

• A booklet on Auckland’s volcanic cones and heritage was produced. 

• A survey by natural heritage and ranger staff found over 700 rare, native forget-me-not plants 

on the west coast of Waitakere Ranges and a management plan for the species was 

completed. 

• With the help of many volunteers, over 90,000 native trees were planted on the regional parks 

as part of the annual revegetation and habitat restoration programme. 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support with the aim of We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support with the aim of We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support with the aim of We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support with the aim of 

ensuring the protection and enhancement of our natural treasures and heritage.ensuring the protection and enhancement of our natural treasures and heritage.ensuring the protection and enhancement of our natural treasures and heritage.ensuring the protection and enhancement of our natural treasures and heritage. 

NH 1. Percentage of 

respondents who state 

their level of awareness 

of natural heritage issues 

and values has increased 

in the last three years.  

49% Maintain or 

increase on 

previous 

year 

Not 

achieved. 

45% 

Maintain or 

increase on 

previous year  

** 

NH 2. Number of 

volunteer hours related to 

natural heritage 

protection and 

enhancement on 

Regional Parks. 

39,218 Maintain or 

increase on 

baseline. 

Achieved. 

48,189 

9000 

 

** 

We will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of the region’s natural and physical We will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of the region’s natural and physical We will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of the region’s natural and physical We will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of the region’s natural and physical 

resourresourresourresources; native systems, biodiversity, landscapes and geological features, on and off Regional Parks, for ces; native systems, biodiversity, landscapes and geological features, on and off Regional Parks, for ces; native systems, biodiversity, landscapes and geological features, on and off Regional Parks, for ces; native systems, biodiversity, landscapes and geological features, on and off Regional Parks, for 

present and future generations.present and future generations.present and future generations.present and future generations. 

NH 3. Bird count index in 

the Waitakere Ranges 

(indicative numbers of 

Tui, Tomtit, Kereru and 

Fantail). 

513 Maintain or 

increase on 

previous 

year. 

Not 

achieved. 

478 

Maintain or 

increase on 

previous year.  

** 
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Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

NH 4. Number of 

breeding pairs of Kokako 

in the Hunua Ranges. 

 

18 pairs 

 

18 pairs 

Achieved. 

20 pairs 

Breeding only 

occurs annually 

** 

NH 5. The number of 

natural heritage 

resources* formally 

protected in regional and 

district plans. 

*Resources are 
significant natural 
heritage sites and 
features. 

6232 Maintain or 

increase on 

previous 

result 

(measured 

every four 

years) 

Not 

applicable 

Not applicable Not applicable. 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• NH1: Under half of respondents said they knew more about Auckland's natural environment 

and biodiversity (45%) than they did three years ago. This shows a minor drop in awareness 

since 2008/09.  Results of this survey have been passed on to the Auckland Council who will 

work towards raising awareness of Auckland’s natural environment and biodiversity. 

• NH2: Hours contributed by volunteers and open sanctuary partners for biodiversity related 

conservation projects on parks continue to increase significantly, and have increased by almost 

20% since 2008/09.  Volunteer hours are analysed annually. 

• NH3: Long term monitoring results for four native bird species in the Waitakere Ranges 

showed a decrease from 2008/09 to 2009/10 in numbers of tui, tomtit and kereru.  Although 

the total count is less than last year, this may be the result of fluctuation due to environmental 

conditions and normal population changes. Since 1997, when counts started, tui and tomtit 

numbers have more than doubled and kereru have more than trebled. 

• NH4: During the 2009/10 kokako breeding season there were at least 20 breeding pairs within 

the management area. Note that breeding occurs annually; therefore results may only be 

reported for 2009/10 and are not available for the four month period ending 31 October 2010. 

• NH5: This is measured every four years - next results due in 2012. 
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LTCCP Activity 7: Biosecurity 

Highlight of the period: 

Management of the challenges posed by kauri dieback disease, including research, community 

engagement, communications, surveillance of the Waitakere and Hunua Ranges and private land, and 

implementation of extensive phytosanitary measures on regional parkland. 

What we do 

ARC Biosecurity undertakes pest management programmes across the region, in accordance with the 

Regional Pest Management Strategy 2007-2012.  Special emphasis is placed on management of kauri 

dieback disease; landscape-level possum control in high value areas and on the South Kaipara and 

Awhitu peninsulas; response to new biosecurity incursions; protection measures for the Hauraki Gulf 

and 11 High Conservation Value waterbodies; and assisting community pest control initiatives. 

The ARC’s Biosecurity activity includes: 

• Provision of advisory services to ratepayers; maintain outreach programmes; respond to all 

enquiries within three working days. 

• Extensive integrated control of all animal pests in key habitats, including possums, feral deer, 

goats and pigs. 

• Eradication of 33 Total Control Pest Plant species; inspect all plant nurseries and retail outlets; 

maintain intensive control of pest plants on regional parkland and buffer zones. 

Our objectives 

• Adopt a Hauraki Gulf Biosecurity Plan, and implement enhanced biosecurity programmes to 

prevent the movement of pests onto Gulf islands. 

• Implement high level measures to prevent the spread of kauri dieback disease. 

• Consolidate the newly established Possum Control Areas on the Awhitu and South Kaipara 

peninsulas. 

What we achieved 

• Kauri dieback management included tree surveys over the Waitakere and Hunua Ranges and 

Waiheke Island; 130 private land inspections; DNA analysis of infected trees; maintenance of 

phytosanitary measures at over 300 sites; compliance audit of phytosanitary measures; 

creation of a “Care For Kauri” guide; assistance given to MAFBNZ on research, intelligence and 

operational matters; development of community surveys; hosting of the International 

Phytophthora Conference; also 24 events and 7 media releases. 

• Possum control completed at 7 blocks, including the Hunua Ranges and buffer zone, 

maintenance of the Waitakere Ranges and buffer areas, assistance given to many landowners, 

and the Possum Control Areas at Awhitu and South Kaipara intensively treated. 
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• Waitakere Ranges Feral Pig Programme extended to the Hunua Ranges (400 pigs culled) and 

the Hunua and buffer feral goat programme completed (250 goats culled). 

• Broken Islands multi-species pest eradication programme successfully completed. 

• Assistance provided to 51 Landcare Groups, achieving integrated pest control on 57,500 ha, 

plus 64,000 ha covered by Possum Control Areas.  A satisfaction survey of these groups 

conducted with a 91% approval rating. 

• Expanded Hauraki Gulf Biosecurity projects, including consultation programme with transport 

and recreation industries; “Treasure Islands” signage deployed; rhamnus and moth plant 

campaigns at Waiheke and Rakino; awareness campaign for travellers; and Argentine ant 

eradication / surveillance programmes at Great Barrier, Kawau, Rakino and Waiheke. 

• Total Control Pest Plant eradication (930 sites); surveillance at all 400 regional nurseries and 

plant outlets. 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

We will seek to reduce the impact of plant and animal pests on the region’s natural environment.We will seek to reduce the impact of plant and animal pests on the region’s natural environment.We will seek to reduce the impact of plant and animal pests on the region’s natural environment.We will seek to reduce the impact of plant and animal pests on the region’s natural environment. 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

BS 1. Possum population 

index1 in the Waitakere 

Ranges. 

1.97% < 3% Achieved. 

1.21% 

< 3%  ** 

BS 2. Possum population 

index1 in the Hunua 

Ranges. 

7.4% < 8% Achieved. 

1.21% (part 

only) 

< 8%  **  

BS 3. Hectares under 

community pest control. 

 

56,000 

 

50,000 

hectares 

Achieved. 

57,500 

** ** 

1 Possum residual trap catch index. 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• BS1: The 2009/10 result of 1.21 (residual trap catch index) demonstrates a continuing 

downward trend. 

• BS2: Only one third of the Hunua Ranges subject to programme in 2010. In 2009 another third 

of Ranges treated and monitored, with 1.76% result. 

• BS3: There has been a greater level of result monitoring overall by communities, plus an 

increase in the suite of pests controlled in some instances. 
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LTCCP Activity 8: Cultural heritage conservation  

Highlight of the period: 

A Maori waka (canoe) was found exposed in the bank of the Okiritoto stream at Muriwai. The waka, 

which is approximately seven metres long and weighs 1200kg, was excavated and removed for 

conservation. 

What we do 

Auckland’s unique cultural heritage contributes to the region’s sense of identity and is important to its 

environmental, social, economic and cultural well-being. Cultural heritage includes the physical 

components of our heritage: places that are significant to the wider community and Maori because 

they are associated with our ancestors, cultures or our past.   

The ARC advocates for the protection of the region’s cultural heritage through a range of statutory and 

non-statutory mechanisms, and actively manages and restores historic and archaeological heritage 

resources on regional parkland. 

Our objectives 
• To work with the regional community to identify and raise awareness of our significant cultural 

heritage resources. 

• To implement conservation programmes to interpret and enhance significant cultural heritage 

resources in the coastal marine area and on regional parks. 

• To maintain and enhance the regional cultural heritage inventory and undertake survey and 

monitoring programmes to update this information. 

• To advocate for the protection of significant cultural heritage resources through statutory and 

non-statutory processes. 

What we achieved 
• The ARC Cultural Heritage Inventory (CHI) has increased to approximately 17,118 cultural 

heritage sites.  Work is continuing to improve the new online web-based Cultural Heritage 

Inventory which went live this year.  

• Continued archaeological survey, monitoring and investigation on regional parks in accordance 

with statutory requirements.  

• Restoration and conservation work undertaken on a number of historic buildings and structures 

throughout the ARC’s regional parks. 

• Restoration of the historic orchard at the Brook Homestead, Awhitu was completed using 

heirloom varieties of fruit trees from regional parks.  

• Work undertaken with local communities and tangata whenua to identify and protect a number 

of cultural heritage places across the region. 

• Continued support of the Mangere Mountain Education Centre Accord (MMEC) partnership 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measure 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support to ensure the We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support to ensure the We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support to ensure the We will work in partnership with the regional community providing leadership and support to ensure the 

protection and conservation of our cultural treasures and heriprotection and conservation of our cultural treasures and heriprotection and conservation of our cultural treasures and heriprotection and conservation of our cultural treasures and heritage.tage.tage.tage. 

CH 1. Percentage of 

respondents who state 

their level of awareness 

of cultural/ historical 

heritage issues and 

values has increased in 

the last three years.  

41% Maintain or 

increase on 

previous 

year. 

Not 

achieved. 

39% 

Maintain or 

increase on 

previous year.  

** 

CH 2. Number of 

volunteer hours related to 

cultural heritage 

protection and 

conservation on Regional 

Parks. 

389 Maintain or 

increase on 

baseline. 

Achieved. 

827 

90 hours ** 

We will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of tWe will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of tWe will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of tWe will contribute to the management, protection and enhancement of the region’s cultural and historical he region’s cultural and historical he region’s cultural and historical he region’s cultural and historical 

heritage on and off Regional Parks for present and future generations.heritage on and off Regional Parks for present and future generations.heritage on and off Regional Parks for present and future generations.heritage on and off Regional Parks for present and future generations. 

CH 3. The number of 

cultural heritage 

resources1 formally 

protected in regional and 

district plans. 
1 Resources are 
significant cultural 
heritage sites and 
features. 

3994 Maintain or 

increase on 

previous 

result. 

(Measured 

every four 

years.) 

Not 

applicable. 

** 

Maintain or 

increase on 

previous result. 

(Measured 

every four 

years.) 

** 

CH 4. The number of 

assessments completed 

of our cultural heritage 

resources on and off 

Regional Parks to enable 

us to understand and plan 

for restoration and 

protection.  

New 

measure 

Baseline to 

be 

established 

2009/10. 

200 

 

Assessments 

only conducted 

annually 

** 

 

CH 5.Number of visitor 

sessions to the Cultural 

Heritage Index (CHI) 

database website to 

measure uptake and 

access by the public.  

New 

measure 

Baseline to 

be 

established 

2009/10 

219 50  sessions Not measured 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 
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Comments on these results 

• CH1: In 2009/10, under half of respondents said they knew more about Auckland's historic 

heritage (39%) than they did three years ago. This shows a drop in awareness compared to 

2008/09.  Results of this survey have been passed on to the Auckland Council who will work 

towards raising awareness of Auckland’s historical heritage. 

• CH2: Hours contributed by volunteers for cultural heritage related conservation projects on 

parks continue to increase significantly, and have increased by over 50% since 2008/09. 

• CH3: Measured every four years - next results due in 2012. 

• CH4: Assessments conducted annually.  Results are not available for the four month period to 

31 October 2010. 

• CH5: Analysis of CHI website activity was not undertaken during the four month period ending 

31 October 2010 due to impacts caused by the transition to the Auckland Council. 
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LTCCP Activity 9: Planning for the future 

Highlight of the period: 

State of the Auckland Region report launched in March 2010, containing in depth information on the 

state of the Auckland environment. 

 

What we do 

The ARC has an established leadership role in developing and implementing long-term integrated 

planning for managing future growth and development, to ensure multiple objectives are achieved. The 

ARC achieves this through a variety of plans including the Regional Growth Strategy, Auckland 

Sustainability Framework and One Plan for the Auckland Region.   

Our objectives 

• To publicly notify a reviewed Auckland Regional Policy Statement. 

• To develop future landuse scenarios as a basis for the Regional Policy Statement review.   

• To support the transition to a new Auckland planning framework including the spatial plan. 

What we achieved 

• In October 2010, large parts of the Air Land and Water Plan became operative, after resolution 

of outstanding appeals. 

• Implemented Regional Growth Strategy change 8 – Volcanic Viewshafts and Landscapes.  

• A reviewed Auckland Regional Policy Statement was adopted by the ARC but was not notified 

due to the restructuring of Auckland councils. 

• Future landuse scenarios were developed and adopted by the ARC and passed to the new 

Auckland Council for its consideration. 

• Existing plans and evidence base used to inform the new planning framework (including a 

spatial plan) and passed to Auckland Council for its consideration. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will develop and implement policy statements and regional plans which deliver certainty to the We will develop and implement policy statements and regional plans which deliver certainty to the We will develop and implement policy statements and regional plans which deliver certainty to the We will develop and implement policy statements and regional plans which deliver certainty to the 

community of where and how growth, development and activities may occur.community of where and how growth, development and activities may occur.community of where and how growth, development and activities may occur.community of where and how growth, development and activities may occur. 

PF 1. The ARPS is 

reviewed and notified in 

accordance with statutory 

guidelines/ timeframes. 

New 

measure 

November 

2009 

Partially 

achieved. 

** Not applicable. 

We will undertake advocacy with the aim of ensuring that stakeholders give effect to regional policy in We will undertake advocacy with the aim of ensuring that stakeholders give effect to regional policy in We will undertake advocacy with the aim of ensuring that stakeholders give effect to regional policy in We will undertake advocacy with the aim of ensuring that stakeholders give effect to regional policy in 

district plans, local strategiedistrict plans, local strategiedistrict plans, local strategiedistrict plans, local strategies and development proposals.s and development proposals.s and development proposals.s and development proposals. 

PF 2. Percentage of 

selected topics in district 

plans and strategies that 

give effect to regional 

policy, as measured by a 

gap analysis.  

New 

measure 

75% Not 

measured. 

This measure 

will not be 

progressed as 

the activity will 

not be 

completed due 

to Council 

decision to re-

prioritise 

resources. 

Not measured. 

PF 3. Percentage of ARC 

submission points that 

are accepted by relevant 

agencies. 

New 

measure 

60% > 60% 

Refer 

comment 

below 

60% ** 

We will monitor and report on the social,We will monitor and report on the social,We will monitor and report on the social,We will monitor and report on the social,    economic, environmental, and cultural welleconomic, environmental, and cultural welleconomic, environmental, and cultural welleconomic, environmental, and cultural well----being of the Auckland being of the Auckland being of the Auckland being of the Auckland 

Region.Region.Region.Region. 

PF 4. The State of the 

Environment report will 

be produced every five 

years 

New 

measure 

To be 

achieved 

Achieved. 

 

Not applicable. ** 

PF 5. The Community 

Outcomes report will be 

produced every three 

years. 

New 

measure 

To be 

achieved. 

Achieved. 

 

** ** 

PF 6. The ASF Headline 

Indicators report will be 

produced annually. 

New 

measure 

To be 

achieved on 

an annual 

basis. 

Achieved. 

 

** ** 

PF 7. Annual ISO 9001 

assessment of 

Monitoring and Research 

operations. 

New 

measure 

Achieve ISO 

Accreditation 

on annual 

basis. 

Achieved. 

 

** ** 

We will deliver a consent processing and compliance monitoring service that meets statutory requirements We will deliver a consent processing and compliance monitoring service that meets statutory requirements We will deliver a consent processing and compliance monitoring service that meets statutory requirements We will deliver a consent processing and compliance monitoring service that meets statutory requirements 

and is responsive to the needs of the community.and is responsive to the needs of the community.and is responsive to the needs of the community.and is responsive to the needs of the community. 

PF 8. Customer 

satisfaction with the 

resource consent 

process. 

64% 75% Not 

achieved. 

68% 

75%  ** 

PF 9. Percentage of 

resource consents that 

are processed within 

statutory timeframes. 

94% 100% Not 

achieved. 

95% 

100% Not achieved. 

98% 
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Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

PF 10. Percentage of 

statutory enforcement 

decisions that are upheld 

by the court. 

100% 95% Achieved 

100% 

95% Achieved 

100% 

PF 11. Percentage of all 

consents monitored that 

achieve category one or 

two compliance with 

consent conditions. 

92% 80% Achieved. 

94% 

80% Achieved 

95% 

As at 30 Sept 

(measured 

quarterly) 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• PF1: ARPS was reviewed and adopted by the Council, but was not notified during this period as a 

result of the transition to the new Auckland Council. The ARPS was next to be reviewed by ARC in 

2014/15. 

• PF2: This measure will not be progressed as the activity will not be completed due to the decision to 

re-prioritise resources and is a high priority for the new Auckland Council which will undertake the work 

as part of the Auckland Plan and Unitary Plan. 

• PF3: There were approximately 22 submissions made to plan changes and non-complying resource 

consent applications throughout 2009/10 year that have had decisions released.  Nineteen of these 

submissions had more than 60% of submission points accepted.  Of the remaining 3 submissions, 

most were rejected either in their entirety or less than 60% of points were accepted. 

• PF4: Measured every five years - next report due in 2015. 

• PF5: Measured every three years - next report due in 2012/13. 

• PF6: The ASF headline indicators are part of ARC’s broader integrated monitoring programme and are 

reported on in Monitor Auckland. 

• PF7: 2010 ISO Audit fully compliant. 

• PF8: Ongoing initiatives are being identified to address the gap. The results for prior two years (2007/08 

and 2008/09) have been amended due to an error discovered in the overall percentage calculation. 

• PF9: 99% of notified consent decisions and 94% of non-notified consent decisions were made within 

statutory (RMA) timeframes.  The overall percentages (95% to 30 June 2010 and 98% for four months 

ending 31 October 2010) compare favourably with the Ministry for the Environment benchmark of 94% 

consent decisions made within RMA timeframes. 

• PF11: In 2009/10, 94% of consents achieved a category 1 (fully compliant) or category 2 (minor non-

compliance) compliance rating. 
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2.4 Economic development 
Overview 

This group of activities relates to how the ARC will promote economic well-being in the Auckland 

region. It includes the following LTCCP activity: 

1. Economic development 

Group contribution to community outcomes: 

See chart on page 19 in chapter one 

 

This group's influence on the four well beings:    

 

If ARC funding for the Economic Development Unit is not continued, barriers to regional economic 

growth and resourcing for key sectors may not be addressed. 
 

 

Summary of group expenditure 

Total cost of services in $millions  
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010. 

Actual 6.9 

Planned 7.4 

Variance 0.5 

 

Please refer to section 3 (Cost of Services 

Statement) for further breakdown of the activity 

cost of services. 
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LTCCP Activity 1: Economic development  

Highlight of the period: 

AucklandPlus facilitated the development of a strong business case to support investment in Food 

Innovation, based on a concept developed by Massey University securing $10m of central government 

funding for the Manukau Food Innovation Centre as part of the national Food Innovation Network of 

NZ. This will enable new product development and commercialisation to support regional economic 

growth. 

 

What we do 

AucklandPlus, the region’s Economic Development Agency, is responsible for promoting the region to 

visitors, business and prospective investors; acting as a single point of contact for national and 

international investment enquiries; and delivering on key regional initiatives and the work programme 

emerging from the Metro Project Action Plan. 

Our objectives 

• Joint funding Tourism Auckland. 

• Management and ongoing roll out of Brand Auckland. 

• Building a programme of activity to leverage business outcomes for Rugby World Cup 2011, 

and ensuring a business legacy from this event, and other major events delivered by Auckland. 

• Delivering on the regional investment attraction strategy developed for Rugby World Cup 2011. 

• Accelerating growth and activity in the marine, bioscience and food and beverage sectors. 

• Undertaking a productivity pilot. 

What we achieved 

• AucklandPlus was benchmarked by GDP Global as the best performing agency in the region 

providing service for investment enquiries.  

• Commonwealth Games Feasibility project completed on behalf of the region. 

• Partnered Tourism Auckland and Auckland City Council in the delivery of activity around the 

Louis Vuitton Pacific trophy and the Auckland Festival of Sailing.  

• Successful completion of a productivity pilot now scaled up into a fully central government 

funded regional programme.  

• Central government funding ($10m) achieved for the Manukau Food Innovation Centre as part 

of the national Food Innovation Network of NZ. 
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• Work continued on Auckland’s Business capability programme for Rugby World Cup, including 

the development and launch of a business opportunities guide, the development of a national 

tender website, the delivery of a speaker series, and support for KEA’s social 

networking/investment website Pass-it-on.  

• The regional brand was used for all Tourism Auckland promotion and used at an expanding 

portfolio of major events including Auckland’s Rugby World Cup 2011 programme, Heineken 

Tennis Open, ASB Classic, Festival of Sailing, Auckland Racing Carnival and Super 14 games. 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

We will provide information on the Auckland region’s economy in order to provide targeted support for We will provide information on the Auckland region’s economy in order to provide targeted support for We will provide information on the Auckland region’s economy in order to provide targeted support for We will provide information on the Auckland region’s economy in order to provide targeted support for 

strategic decisionstrategic decisionstrategic decisionstrategic decision----making.making.making.making. 

ED 1. Stakeholder 

satisfaction with access to 

and quality of regional 

economic and labour 

market information. 

New 

measure 

To be 

established 

in 2009/10. 

86.5% 

satisfaction 

 

** ** 

We will promote, support and advocate for the Auckland region as a destination for invWe will promote, support and advocate for the Auckland region as a destination for invWe will promote, support and advocate for the Auckland region as a destination for invWe will promote, support and advocate for the Auckland region as a destination for investment, a place for estment, a place for estment, a place for estment, a place for 

people to conduct business and to visit.people to conduct business and to visit.people to conduct business and to visit.people to conduct business and to visit. 

ED 2. Percentage increase 

in enquiries from potential 

investors interested in 

investing in the Auckland 

region as recorded in the 

AucklandPlus Investment 

log and monitored on a 

shared regional register.  

New 

measure 

Baseline to 

be 

established 

2009/10. 

6 5% increase 

on previous 

year. 

** 

ED 3. Growth in dollars 

invested by sector in the 

Auckland region relevant to 

enquiries processed by the 

ARC (AucklandPlus) in 

business sectors* of 

importance to the region 

requiring support.  
* Current business sectors 
are: Food and Beverage, 
Screen Digital, Marine and 
BioScience. 

New 

measure 

Baseline to 

be 

established 

2009/10. 

This is a new 

measure and 

results are 

detailed in 

comment area 

below. 

5% increase 

on previous 

year. 

** 

ED 4. Global investment 

benchmarking as 

measured by GDP Global*. 
* GDP Global are an 
internationally recognised 
provider of benchmarking data 
for investment promotion 
agencies (IPAs). They are 
used by IPAs to benchmark 
the provision of services to 
investors. 
 

New 

measure 

ARC in top 

quartile of 

participating 

organisations 

each year. 

Not achieved. 

53.4% 

ARC in top 

quartile of 

participating 

organisations 

each year. 

** 
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Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

We will coWe will coWe will coWe will co----ordinate, facilitate and seek to influence economic developmentordinate, facilitate and seek to influence economic developmentordinate, facilitate and seek to influence economic developmentordinate, facilitate and seek to influence economic development    activities across the Auckland activities across the Auckland activities across the Auckland activities across the Auckland 

region to ensure the efficient use of resources and to avoid duplication.region to ensure the efficient use of resources and to avoid duplication.region to ensure the efficient use of resources and to avoid duplication.region to ensure the efficient use of resources and to avoid duplication. 

ED 5. Stakeholder 

satisfaction with 

relationship and services 

received from 

AucklandPlus. 

83% 75% Achieved. 

88% 

75% ** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• ED1: Results of 2009 stakeholder survey are: 

o 69.5% aware of the role of AucklandPlus,  

o 84.1% say AucklandPlus is effective in its roles,  

o 74.2% rated AucklandPlus as having a good reputation,  

o 86.5% were satisfied with the quality of support,  

o 83.5% were satisfied with the quality of the advice they received, and 

o 66.1% were satisfied with the performance of AucklandPlus on a particular project. 

• ED2: Decrease in volume of investment enquiries attributed to the worldwide impact on 

available investment funds caused by the Global financial crisis. 

• ED3:NZ Food Innovation Centre at Manukau  - co-funded by Government investment of $11m, 

Massey University $200,000, Manukau $2.5m focussed on commercialisation of processed 

foods , University of Auckland  Institute for Innovation in Biotechnology $30m co funded by 

industry, university and the FRST Partnerships for Excellence Programme, $4m co-funded by 

industry and central government MRI fund for lifting infrastructure for Hobsonville Marine 

Precinct, Wynyard Quarter upgrade $260m total to complete July/Aug 2011 -   $100m public 

works (including Viaduct Events Centre $32m) and $160m ASB building. 

• ED4: Global Benchmarking survey completed in April 2010.  AucklandPlus performed best out 

of the participating Auckland EDAs with a benchmark result of 53.4% (Auckland City Council 

26.1%, Enterprising Manukau 23.3%, Waitakere Enterprise 44.1%, and Enterprise North Shore 

4.5%).  AucklandPlus's result was described by GDP Global as "satisfactory and slightly higher 

than the benchmark set for IPAs in the developed world". 

• ED5: Overall performance of AucklandPlus rated as "high" (>75%) 
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2.5 Regional leadership and 
community development 
Overview 

This group of activities relates to how the ARC provides regional co-ordination, political representation, 

Maori relations, and community development and education services across the region. It includes the 

following LTCCP activities: 

1. Regional leadership and community development 

2. Democracy services 

3. Te hononga Maori / Maori relations 

4. Sustainable schools and communities 

Group contribution to community outcomes: 

See chart on page 19 in chapter one 

This group's influence on the four well beings:    

 
The proposed resourcing for the Sustainable Schools and Sustainable Communities programmes rely 

partially on external funding. There is awareness that community demand exceeds the funding 

proposed in the LTCCP. If the current external funding is not renewed for subsequent years, outcomes 

will be compromised. 
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Summary of group expenditure 

Total cost of services in $millions  
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010. 

Actual 28.9 

Planned 36.3 

Variance* 7.4 

 

* Actual costs were lower than plan due to 

phasing of actual spend compared to plan. 

 

Please refer to section 3 (Cost of Services 

Statement) for further breakdown of the activity 

cost of services.  
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LTCCP Activity 1: Regional coordination and external relations  

Highlight of the period: 

Worked with partner organisations to maximise the economic and social benefits to be gained from the 

2011 Rugby World Cup 

 

What we do 

The ARC works with local councils, central Government, Mana Whenua and other parties to 

collaboratively address regional issues.   

Our objectives 

• Establish and foster relationships with a wide range of stakeholders to advocate and promote 

the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of the Auckland region. 

• Support the integrated management of the Hauraki Gulf through the Hauraki Gulf Forum. 

• Facilitate the ongoing development of a single strategic framework for the Auckland region. 

What we achieved 

• Worked with partner organisations to maximise the economic and social benefits to be gained 

from the 2011 Rugby World Cup. 

• Worked with the Auckland Transition Agency, the Government and local councils to implement 

the Auckland governance reform. 

• Held five meetings of the Hauraki Gulf Forum.  

• Supported the implementation of regional strategies, policies and plans as necessary. 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will establish and foster relationships with a wide range of stakeholders to advocate and promote the We will establish and foster relationships with a wide range of stakeholders to advocate and promote the We will establish and foster relationships with a wide range of stakeholders to advocate and promote the We will establish and foster relationships with a wide range of stakeholders to advocate and promote the 

economic, social, environmental and cultural welleconomic, social, environmental and cultural welleconomic, social, environmental and cultural welleconomic, social, environmental and cultural well----being of the Auckland region.being of the Auckland region.being of the Auckland region.being of the Auckland region. 

RC 1. Community 

perception of the ARC 

fulfilling its role in the 

region, as measured by 

the Environmental 

Awareness survey. 

 

77% 75% Achieved. 

82% 

75%  ** 
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Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will support integrated management in the Hauraki Gulf, through an integrative policy and planning We will support integrated management in the Hauraki Gulf, through an integrative policy and planning We will support integrated management in the Hauraki Gulf, through an integrative policy and planning We will support integrated management in the Hauraki Gulf, through an integrative policy and planning 

framework and support for the Hauraki Gulf Forum.framework and support for the Hauraki Gulf Forum.framework and support for the Hauraki Gulf Forum.framework and support for the Hauraki Gulf Forum. 

RC 2. An integrative 

policy and planning 

framework for the 

Hauraki Gulf is reflected 

in key regional planning 

documents such as the 

ARPS, ARP:C, ARP:ALW.  

New 

measure 

RPS – 

November 

2009 

Not 

achieved 

To be achieved. ** 

RC 3. The Hauraki Gulf 

Forum meets its 

statutory requirements to 

convene, define strategic 

issues, report on the 

state of the environment, 

and report annually to the 

Minister of Conservation 

on its achievements.  

 

100% 100% 

deadlines 

met. 

Achieved. 

100% 

100% deadlines 

met. 

** 

We will We will We will We will facilitate the onfacilitate the onfacilitate the onfacilitate the ongoing development of a single strategic framework and plan of action for the region going development of a single strategic framework and plan of action for the region going development of a single strategic framework and plan of action for the region going development of a single strategic framework and plan of action for the region 

that aims to coordinate, integrate and prioritise public investment across the four wellthat aims to coordinate, integrate and prioritise public investment across the four wellthat aims to coordinate, integrate and prioritise public investment across the four wellthat aims to coordinate, integrate and prioritise public investment across the four well----beings.beings.beings.beings. 

RC 4. An inventory of 

regional infrastructure 

that will inform the 

development of a 

Regional Infrastructure 

Plan is developed and 

approved   As further 

iterations of the plan are 

developed, appropriate 

measures to monitor 

progress of activities 

included will be 

developed and reported. 

New 

measure 

August 

2009. 

Achieved. ** ** 

WeWeWeWe    will coordinate a regional response to climate change that promotes a sustainable region.will coordinate a regional response to climate change that promotes a sustainable region.will coordinate a regional response to climate change that promotes a sustainable region.will coordinate a regional response to climate change that promotes a sustainable region. 

RC 5. A regional 

response to climate 

change is developed and 

reflected in key regional 

planning documents such 

as the ARPS 

New 

measure 

November 

2009. 

Not 

achieved. 

** ** 

We will seek to ensure that the region’s people and businesses have access to the energy services that We will seek to ensure that the region’s people and businesses have access to the energy services that We will seek to ensure that the region’s people and businesses have access to the energy services that We will seek to ensure that the region’s people and businesses have access to the energy services that 

they need through the development of the Regional Energy Strategy.they need through the development of the Regional Energy Strategy.they need through the development of the Regional Energy Strategy.they need through the development of the Regional Energy Strategy. 

RC 6. Regional Energy 

Strategy is developed 

and reflected in key 

regional planning 

documents such as the 

ARPS 

New 

measure 

November 

2009. 

 

Not 

achieved. 

** ** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 

only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 
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The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Comments on these results 

• RC2: The Auckland Regional Policy Statement (ARPS) was reviewed and adopted by the 

Council, but was not notified during this period as a result of the transition to the new Auckland 

Council. 

• RC4: Regional Infrastructure Inventory was completed and approved by the Regional 

Sustainable Development Forum on 18 September 2009.  No further measures have been 

identified at this stage. Measure not applicable beyond 2009/10. 

• RC5 & RC6: Given that the ARC was due to be dissolved as part of the transition to Auckland 

Council the Council resolved not to progress the development of a regional response to climate 

change or the development of a regional energy strategy. 

Note: The Auckland Council are developing an energy and climate change response as part of 

the development of the Auckland Plan. 
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LTCCP Activity 2: Democracy services  

Highlight of the period: 

Managed the notification, hearings and decision processes of the Regional Land Transport Strategy and 

the Regional Parks Management Plan 

What we do 

We provide for the political representation of the regional community, consulting with the community 

about our activities and overall strategic direction. We achieve this through Council and committee 

meetings, preparation of Long-Term Council Community Plan, reporting on the ARC’s activities and the 

region’s progress towards meeting community outcomes, and consulting on a range of strategies, 

policies and plans. 

Our key responsibilities include providing committee secretary functions at meetings, co-ordinating the 

production of documents including agendas, minutes and reports, and the coordination of public 

consultation processes and hearings across the council. In addition to providing effective administrative 

support to the Chairman and councillors, we also manage requests for information received under the 

Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act (LGOIMA). 

Activities carried out to ensure service levels are met: 

• Timely production and distribution of Council and committee agendas. 

• Track and respond to all LGOIMA requests within statutory timeframes. 

• Public notification of all Council meetings as required by LGOIMA. 

• Notification of all resource consent hearings within statutory timeframes under the RMA. 

Our objectives 
• To ensure that the community can appropriately participate in forums that contribute to Council 

decision-making through fair and democratic processes. 

• Ensure that the LTCCP and Annual Plan comply with the Local Government Act. 

• Ensure that all LGOIMA requests are responded to within required timeframes. 

• Enable active public participation in council meetings, hearings and consultative processes. 

What we achieved 
• A total of 114 council and committee meetings. 

• A total of 33 resource consent hearings coordinated, notified, heard and decisions issued 

within statutory timeframes. 

• Notification, hearing and decisions of the Regional Parks Management Plan. 

• Notification, hearing and decisions of the Regional Land Transport Strategy (2010-2040). 

• 93.5% of LGOIMA requests responded to within statutory timeframes. 

• Delivered an Annual Plan that was consistent with the Auckland transition legislation. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Level of Service: 

We will ensure that the community can appropriately participate in forums that contribute to Council We will ensure that the community can appropriately participate in forums that contribute to Council We will ensure that the community can appropriately participate in forums that contribute to Council We will ensure that the community can appropriately participate in forums that contribute to Council 

decdecdecdecisionisionisionision----making through fair and transparent democratic processes.making through fair and transparent democratic processes.making through fair and transparent democratic processes.making through fair and transparent democratic processes. 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

DS 1. No decisions or 

information complaints 

against the ARC are 

upheld by the 

Ombudsman. 

100% 100% Achieved. 

100% 

100% 

 

Achieved. 

100% 

DS 2. Percentage of 

respondents who agree 

that ARC gives the public 

enough say in the 

decisions that affect 

them, as measured by 

the Environmental 

Awareness Survey.  

36% 50% Not 

achieved. 

38.4% 

50%  ** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Comments on these results 

• DS2: Although this performance target was not achieved, the result has improved slightly on 

the 2008/09 result.  How this will be addressed as part of a review of public engagement 

across the whole region is now the responsibility of the Auckland Council. 
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LTCCP Activity 3: Te Hononga Maori/Maori relations  

Highlight of the period: 

Engagement and contribution of tangata whenua to the reviews of the Auckland Regional Land 

Transport Strategy, Auckland Regional Parks Management Plan, Draft Auckland Regional Policy 

Statement and continued support of the Tamaki Regional Mana Whenua Forum. 

What we do 

Through both the Local Government Act 2002 and the RMA, the ARC has specific responsibilities in 

ensuring Maori have opportunities to effectively participate in council decision making and consider 

ways for ARC to contribute to the capacity of Maori to participate. 

Our work in the area of Maori relations focuses on enabling Maori participation in council decision-

making processes and responding to the needs and aspirations of Maori throughout the region.  It is 

designed to achieve the following outcomes: 

• Meeting ARC’s legislative requirements for Maori, 

• Recognising tangata whenua’s role in regional sustainability, 

• Strengthening the ARC’s Treaty-based relationships with Maori, 

• Contributing to Maori Outcomes. 

Our objectives 

Develop and maintain effective relationships between Maori communities and the ARC by: 

• Enhancing practical working relationships with Maori authorities that ensure effective Maori 

participation in council decision-making processes and the effective expression of tangata 

whenua kaitiakitanga obligations. 

• Encouraging integration of region-wide Maori engagement for the development of Version 2 of 

One Plan and other regional initiatives for Auckland. 

• Contributing to the ongoing development of the Regional Mana Whenua Forum. 

• Contributing to the sustainability of tangata whenua marae. 

• Facilitate the contribution of tangata whenua to key regional policy and plan reviews, and 

council decision-making through the Tamaki Regional Mana Whenua Forum.  

• Continue to work with the Crown and iwi in regard to Treaty of Waitangi settlements across 

the region.  

We will also ensure that Maori are succeeding socially and economically and contribute to decision-

making by strengthening partnering opportunities with local councils and Crown agencies in the 

ongoing contribution to Maori outcomes. 
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What we achieved 

• Continued to provide in kind support to the Tamaki Regional Mana Whenua Forum. 

• Contributed to a number of key policy reviews including; 

o Regional Policy Statement 

o Regional Land Transport Strategy 

o Regional Parks Management Plan. 

• Contributed to the Maori outcome plan development for Manukau. 

• Supported a number of marae development projects including Reweti Marae, Whatapaka, 

Reretewhioi, Tahuna and Mangatangi. 

• Supported ongoing work with One Plan.  

• Continued to strengthening a number of relationships with iwi across the region. 

• Sustained a high level of project involvement across the organisation. 

• Organised a number of staff workshops and events for Waitangi Day and Maori Language 

Week. 

• Continued to provide timely relevant advice to Chairman and councillors, Chief Executive and 

general managers with emerging issues such as Auckland's future governance, Kauri dieback 

and the Auckland Treaty of Waitangi Claims Settlement Process. 

• Significant contribution to the Auckland Transition Agency through the Maori and Council 

Transition Project. 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by maintaining effective relationships with Maori, in We will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by maintaining effective relationships with Maori, in We will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by maintaining effective relationships with Maori, in We will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by maintaining effective relationships with Maori, in 

particular tangata whenua, and seek to develop their capacity to contparticular tangata whenua, and seek to develop their capacity to contparticular tangata whenua, and seek to develop their capacity to contparticular tangata whenua, and seek to develop their capacity to contribute to the decisionribute to the decisionribute to the decisionribute to the decision----making processes making processes making processes making processes 

of the Council.of the Council.of the Council.of the Council. 

MR 1. The level of 

participation of Maori in 

ARC decision-making 

processes measured by 

the percentage of iwi 

groups engaged / 

consulted on the Annual 

Plan/LTCCP.  

100% 75% of tribal 

authorities 

within the 

Auckland 

region. 

Achieved. 

90% 

75% of tribal 

authorities 

within the 

Auckland region.  

** 

MR 2. The level of ARC 

engagement with iwi 

authorities, for example 

the number of ARC 

initiated rangatira ki.te 

rangatira (leadership) 

engagements, as an 

indicator of maintaining 

effective relationships.  

New 

measure 

Minimum of 

one 

engagement 

per iwi per 

year. 

Achieved. 

10 

Minimum of one 

engagement per 

iwi per year. 

Not measured 
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Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by ensuring Maori development aWe will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by ensuring Maori development aWe will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by ensuring Maori development aWe will value te ao Maori (Maori culture and values) by ensuring Maori development aspirations are spirations are spirations are spirations are 

considered in the development of regional strategies and policies.considered in the development of regional strategies and policies.considered in the development of regional strategies and policies.considered in the development of regional strategies and policies. 

MR 3. The number of 

specific Maori 

community initiatives 

contributed to by the 

ARC, e.g. Environment 

Programmes (EIF 

applications), Sustainable 

Communities, Economic 

Development, Heritage 

and Maori Relations.  

6 10 or more 

initiatives per 

year 

Achieved. 

15 

10 or more 

initiatives per 

year 

Not measured 

MR 4. The level of ARC 

compliance with its 

statutory responsibilities 

in regard to Maori1, 

measured by an 

assessment against 

compliance criteria based 

on the four well-beings; 

Environmental, Cultural, 

Social and Economic.  

New 

measure 

To be 

established 

in 2009/10 

Not 

measured 

Targets were to 

be established 

in 2009/10 

** 

1 Refer Chapter 7 LTCCP 2009-19 Section 7.7- Developing Maori Capacity. 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Comments on these results 

• MR1: 90% of tribal authorities have been engaged, alongside other key decision making related 

programmes including key policy/ strategy reviews of the Auckland Regional Policy Statement, 

Regional Land Transport Strategy and the Auckland Regional Parks Management Plan. 

• MR2: The Chairman and Chief Executive of the ARC have undertaken a number of rangatira a rangatira 

engagements throughout the 2009/2010 year.  This has been a combination of individual iwi meetings, 

and meetings with the Tamaki Regional Mana Whenua Forum.  This has been further supported by a 

wider range of engagements at differing levels of the organisation on a range of projects and activities. 

• MR3: There have been at least 15 initiatives directly supported by the Maori Relations Team, covering 

marae development, Maori land development and Maori community initiatives.  Other initiatives have 

also been supported through the EIF. 

• MR4: More work needs to be undertaken to further develop this measure. Resources were re-

prioritised due to the transition to the Auckland Council.  However, the organisation has taken the 

opportunity to identify key programmes of work and council processes to identify key statutory 

obligations.  This has centred on the LGA, RMA, LTMA and the Reserves Act obligations to Maori.  This 

has been further reflected in the review of the Auckland Regional Policy Statement, Auckland Regional 

Land Transport Strategy, Auckland Regional Parks Plan, and the Resource Consents process. 
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LTCCP Activity 4: Sustainable schools and communities  

Highlight of the period: 
Working with thousands of people region-wide on conservation and education activities and 

programmes. 

What we do 

The Sustainable Schools programmes work with school teachers and students to develop knowledge 

and understanding of sustainability issues and provide opportunities for young people to take action for 

a sustainable future.      

The Sustainable Communities programmes provide regional leadership, community coordination and 

tools for the ARC to support the council’s and environmental sustainability objectives.   

Our objectives 
• Work with young people and schools supporting them to develop skills and understanding, and 

provide opportunities for them to be actively involved in Auckland’s sustainable future. 

• Provide funding and technical support to encourage and motivate community and individuals in 

environmental action in areas of strategic priority. 

• Work with targeted communities and groups to increase their involvement, understanding of 

sustainability, and the ecological limits of the region. 

• Deliver specific regional services, either directly or through funding, where there is clear public 

value in the provision of these services. 

What we achieved 
• Learning Through Experience programmes run throughout Auckland, with almost 22,000 

students participating. 

• 137 schools took part in the Enviroschools programme with additional workshops and events 

run for teachers throughout the region. 

• One hundred and thirty six students from 43 schools participated in the various strands of the 

Youth Development programme.  

• An Environmental Education resource was produced for schools:  Be resource smart – Wise up 

on Waste and seventeen new schools signed up to the WasteWise Schools programme. 

• The EIF granted a total of $956,889 to 236 applications, through two funding rounds.  

• Eighteen environmental training workshops were provided to community groups including 

restoration, funding, riparian, sustainability and industry training education workshops.  

• The Ecoevents website recorded 64300 page views by 14980 visitors to the site.   

• Three hundred people took part in community shellfish monitoring at eight sites across the 

region.  
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• More than 10,000 people were involved in the Wai Care programme. Activities throughout the 

year included stream restoration and monitoring, planting, and a Wai Care Expo. 

• Nine Diversity in Parks programmes were run, including sustainable gardening workshops. 

• 55 local government officers from two Auckland councils completed the Intercultural 

Awareness and Communication Training programme. 

• Around 7,900 customers utilized 17 Hazmobile collections and 173,000kg of waste was 

collected.  

• Approximately 5,400kg of agricultural and other chemicals was collected from rural residents 

and transfer stations. 

• The ARC and partners were successful in an application to the Ministry for the Environment's 

Waste Levy Fund, for partial funding of a scheme to trial the collection of non-commercial oil to 

be rolled out in 2010/11.  

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will work with young people, schools and targeted communities providing funding, support and We will work with young people, schools and targeted communities providing funding, support and We will work with young people, schools and targeted communities providing funding, support and We will work with young people, schools and targeted communities providing funding, support and 

experiential environmental education opportunities so they can be actively involved experiential environmental education opportunities so they can be actively involved experiential environmental education opportunities so they can be actively involved experiential environmental education opportunities so they can be actively involved in Auckland’s sustainable in Auckland’s sustainable in Auckland’s sustainable in Auckland’s sustainable 

future.future.future.future. 

SSC 1. Number of 

students participating in 

the Learning Through 

Experience programme. 

 

25,413 

Between 

10,000 and 

22,000 

students 

each year 

dependent 

on funding 

from the 

Ministry of 

Education 

Achieved. 

21,957 

4000 Achieved. 

7,920 

SSC 2. Level of 

participant satisfaction 

with Learning Through 

Experience education. 

 

100% 

90% Achieved. 

100% 

90% Achieved. 

100% 

SSC 3. Number of 

schools and students 

registered for 

Enviroschools 

programme. 

150 130 schools/ 

70,000 

students 

Achieved. 

137 

140 schools/ 

74,000 students 

** 

SSC 4. Number of groups 

involved in water quality 

monitoring (Waicare). 

125 110 groups Achieved. 

133 

120 groups ** 

SSC 5. Number of groups 

registered on ARC's 

community group 

database. 
(Indicates levels of change 
in community participation) 
 

415 350 groups Achieved. 

355 

 

360 groups ** 
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Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will provide targeted funding and training to community groups and individuals to support relevant We will provide targeted funding and training to community groups and individuals to support relevant We will provide targeted funding and training to community groups and individuals to support relevant We will provide targeted funding and training to community groups and individuals to support relevant 

environmental projects.environmental projects.environmental projects.environmental projects. 

SSC 6. Level of 

satisfaction of EIF 

applicants with the 

advice and funding 

programme. 

98% 80% Achieved. 

94% 

 

85% 

This measure is 

based on an 

annual grant 

programme. 

** 

 

SSC 7.The uptake of 

funds allocated through 

EIF. 

83% 80% uptake Achieved. 

91% 

85% 

This measure is 

based on an 

annual grant 

programme. 

** 

 

SSC 8. The level of 

satisfaction with training 

programmes provided for 

groups involved in 

environmental action by 

the ARC. 

83% 80% Achieved. 

84% 

 

85% Not applicable. 

No training 

programmes run 

during the period. 

We will seek to reduce the effects of hazardouWe will seek to reduce the effects of hazardouWe will seek to reduce the effects of hazardouWe will seek to reduce the effects of hazardous waste on Auckland’s environment by providing and/or s waste on Auckland’s environment by providing and/or s waste on Auckland’s environment by providing and/or s waste on Auckland’s environment by providing and/or 

funding hazardous waste collection services.funding hazardous waste collection services.funding hazardous waste collection services.funding hazardous waste collection services. 

SSC 9. Number of 

collection days / year for 

hazardous waste using 

the Hazmobile service. 

17 15 or more 

collection 

days 

annually 

Achieved. 

17 

 

6 or more 

collection days 

Achieved. 

8 

SSC 10. The amount 

(kgs) of waste collected 

through the Hazardous 

Waste programme   

(Measures capacity and 

relies on the money 

Territorial Local 

Authorities pay for 

disposal).  

Batteries 

49,887kg 

 

Chemicals  

13,020kg 

 

Oil 

72,000kg 

Batteries 

maintained 

at 2007/08 

levels. 

Chemicals 

and oil 

decreased 

from 

2007/08 

levels. 

Not 

achieved. 

173,075kg 

total waste 

collected 

(refer 

comment 

below) 

Batteries 

maintained at 

2007/08 levels. 

  

Chemicals and 

Oil decreased 

from 2007/08 

levels  

Not achieved. 

53,552 kg waste 

collected to 

September 18th 

2010.  

(Please note that 

results (kgs) of 

waste from two 

collections in 

October 2010 

were not available 

to be included in 

figure above)  

We will coWe will coWe will coWe will co----ordinate and support regional partnerships to achieve betordinate and support regional partnerships to achieve betordinate and support regional partnerships to achieve betordinate and support regional partnerships to achieve better integrated planning and service ter integrated planning and service ter integrated planning and service ter integrated planning and service 

delivery, and to implement regional strategies and programmes.delivery, and to implement regional strategies and programmes.delivery, and to implement regional strategies and programmes.delivery, and to implement regional strategies and programmes. 

SSC 11. Level of 

satisfaction with ARC’s 

support for regional 

partnerships (Hauraki 

Gulf Forum, 

Enviroschools, Waste 

Officers Forum, 

WaiCare).  

New 

measure 

80% Not 

measured. 

See 

comments 

below 

85% ** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 
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The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• SSC3: This measure is based on a school year.  Results for the four month period to 31 

October 2010 are not applicable. 

• SSC4: This includes school and community groups. 

• SSC5: This includes a range of environmental community action groups.  Note that the 

community group database was reviewed in 2010 and old contacts/duplications where one 

group was registered for a number of activities were removed. As a result, numbers have 

reduced overall for 2009/2010 but remain within target. 

• SSC6: This measure is based on an annual grant programme.  Results for the four month 

period to 31 October 2010 are not available. 

• SSC7: While the number of applications received has declined, the fund is still substantially 

oversubscribed.  An increase in “pre application” advisory work, including funding seminars, 

has enabled potential applicants to access alternative funding sources for their projects and/or 

possibly reduced the number of ineligible applications.  Note this includes the uptake of funds 

allocated through the 2008 EIF round as their contracts to undertake the work were completed 

in Nov 2009. 

• SSC8: This was the average result calculated across 18 training programmes for the period 

2009-2010. No training programmes were run during the four month period to 31 October 2010 

due to impacts caused by the transition to the Auckland Council. 

• SSC9: 8216 customers utilized the 17 collections over the 2009-2010 period. 

• SSC 10: The result displayed is for the total amount of hazardous waste collected.  A 

breakdown of results for batteries, chemicals and oil is not available as this level of detail was 

not supplied by the local authorities involved.  A total of 5,249kg of agricultural and other 

chemicals was also collected from rural residents and transfer stations as part of the AgChem 

collections and transfer station drop off centres. 

• SSC11: Development of this measure has not been finalised as it is dependent on the 

Auckland Council structure.   
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2.6 Regional parks 
Overview 

This group of activities relates to how the ARC looks after the regional parks network, ensures that 

park users’ needs are met, plans for the purchase of new parkland, and undertakes capital works on 

regional parks. It includes the following LTCCP activities: 

1. Looking after our parks 

2. Auckland Botanic Gardens 

3. New regional parks 

4. Farming on regional parks 

5. Mt Smart Stadium 

6. Visitor services 

Group contribution to community outcomes: 

See chart on page 19 in chapter one 

This group's influence on the four well beings:    

 

The minimal resources for planning and developing new parks over the life of the plan put meeting 

public expectations at risk. The funding forecast for maintenance and renewals is considered the 

minimum to meet service levels and satisfy public demand. The viability of self-funding business units 

(the Farm business unit and Mt Smart Stadium) is reliant on revenue which cannot be guaranteed due 

to the variables of commodity prices and stadium patronage. 
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Summary of group expenditure 

Total cost of services in $millions  
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010. 

Actual 36.9 

Planned 39.9 

Variance* 3.0 

 

* Actual costs are less than plan.  Optimisation 

and streamlining have assisted in reducing the 

cost of services.  Examples include 

implementation of recycling water run-off to be 

used to irrigate nursery crops and green roof 

installation in the children’s garden to minimise 

run-off and insulate buildings. 

 

 

 

Please refer to section 3 (Cost of Services Statement) for further breakdown of the activity cost of 

services  
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LTCCP Activity 1: Looking after our regional parks  

Highlight of the period: 

Adoption of the revised Regional Parks Management Plan: the Plan was the culmination of a process 

which extended over a three year period and included the consideration of 372 submissions on the 

draft plan. 

What we do 

Programmes on regional parks have been delivered to ensure: 

• Landscapes and facilities on regional parks are maintained and developed to meet visitor needs 

in a way that is sensitive to the values of the land and surrounding area. This has included the 

maintenance of walking tracks, roads, buildings, signs, picnic areas, campgrounds, carparks 

and arrival areas in regional parks through the implementation of the Regional Parks Advanced 

Asset Management Plan 2005. 

• Visitor safety and security is addressed, through the appropriate design and provision of 

facilities on regional parks. 

• The regional parks property portfolio, which includes baches, lodges and commercial leases 

and licenses have been managed and promoted in a way that provides a wide range of 

opportunities to the regional community. 

• The reviews of the Regional Parks Management Plan and the Mt Smart Management Plan 

have been completed and adopted by the Council. 

• Collaborative programmes with users and other agencies have been undertaken to manage the 

impacts of motorised recreation in coastal areas including Muriwai Beach. 

Our objectives 

• Manage countryside regional park settings and facilities to approved levels of service. 

• Timely review of parks management plans. 

• Deliver a programme of planning projects for regional parks. 

• Appropriate management of regional parks property portfolio. 

• Continued availability of publicly booked baches on regional parks. 

• Ensuring conservation and biosecurity programmes on regional parks are effectively delivered 

by park rangers and key partners. 

• Deliver a programme of capital works on regional parks.
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What we achieved 

• Adoption of the revised Regional Parks Management Plan in August 2010 and subsequent 

approval of the plan by the Minister of Conservation. 

• Adoption of the new Mt Smart Stadium Management Plan in August 2010. 

• Strengthening of community partnerships with around 60,000 hours of volunteer support in a 

wide range of activities including tree planting and plant and animal pest control. 

• Development of design guidelines for the Piha area in conjunction with the local community 

which will assist in ensuring developments are appropriate to the natural and cultural values of 

the area. 

• Continuation of the West Coast rock fishing safety programme which has resulted in improved 

safety awareness and an increase in use of life vests by rock fishers. 

• A two year “angel ring” trial at popular West Coast fishing spots to provide these life-saving 

devices was completed and “angel rings” are now a permanent fixture at high risk locations. 

• The first stage of installation of a pest proof fence at Shakespear Regional Park was completed 

with the installation of gates planned for 2010/11. This was made possible by a $500,000 

contribution from the Shakespear Open Sanctuary Society. 

• The opening of the Hillary Trail which provides a multi day tramping experience on the West 

Coast of the Waitakere Ranges from Titirangi to Muriwai, via Whatipu, in January 2010. 

• Completion of the first stage of a walkway link through Omana Regional Park as part of a 

Beachlands – Maraetai Walkway. 

• The upgrading of tracks to standard to avoid compaction of kauri surface roots, and reduce the 

risk of transmission of kauri dieback (PTA) is being undertaken on a site by site basis as funding 

permits. Other measures undertaken to reduce spread of PTA include temporary track closures 

in the Waitakere Ranges during the winter, the installation of in excess of 100 footwear 

cleaning stations, and a visitor awareness programme. 

• Baches and camping continue to be a popular amenity in regional parks with nearly 8,000 

visitor nights accommodated in the 19 baches and lodges during the period 1 July 2009 to 31 

October 2010. In excess of 152,500 visitor nights in campsites were also booked during this 

period. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will manage the countryside regional parks so they preserve and enhance elements of tWe will manage the countryside regional parks so they preserve and enhance elements of tWe will manage the countryside regional parks so they preserve and enhance elements of tWe will manage the countryside regional parks so they preserve and enhance elements of the natural and he natural and he natural and he natural and 

cultural essence of the region.cultural essence of the region.cultural essence of the region.cultural essence of the region.    1111 

RP 1. Number of native 

trees planted on regional 

parks. 

Note: Revegetation is 
important in achieving 
our conservation goals 
including restoration of 
forest, wetland and 
riparian habitats, and 
increasing the diversity of 
native flora and fauna on 
parks. 

New 

measure 

80,000 trees 

annually 

Achieved. 

90,000 

10,000 trees 

Most planting 

takes place in 

autumn 

months. 

** 

RP 2. Proportion of 

historic heritage on 

regional parks (built and 

archaeological) in a good 

or fair condition, based 

on an assessment of 

physical condition, 

integrity, and restoration 

activity.  

New 

measure 

To be 

established in 

2009/10 

Not 

measured 

(See 

explanatio

n below) 

No target set. 

First data 

available in 

2011 

** 

We will manage the countryside We will manage the countryside We will manage the countryside We will manage the countryside regional parks facilities and settings so they offer the opportunity for quality regional parks facilities and settings so they offer the opportunity for quality regional parks facilities and settings so they offer the opportunity for quality regional parks facilities and settings so they offer the opportunity for quality 

outdoor experiences in natural surroundings.outdoor experiences in natural surroundings.outdoor experiences in natural surroundings.outdoor experiences in natural surroundings.    2222 

RP 3. Percentage of 

countryside park visitor 

service standards met 

(Visitor services 

standards include safety 

standards). 

91% > 85% Achieved. 

93% 

> 85% Achieved. 

92% 

RP 4. Visitor satisfaction 

with country side regional 

park settings. 

New 

measure 

> 85% Achieved. 

99% 

> 85% ** 

RP 5. Visitor satisfaction 

with countryside regional 

park facilities. 

91% > 85% Achieved. 

93% 

> 85% ** 

RP 6. Reviews of parks 

management plans are 

completed within 

scheduled timeframes. 

New 

measure 

Completion of a 

review of the 

Regional Parks 

Management 

Plan and 

development of 

a Mt Smart 

(Rarotonga) 

Domain 

Management 

Plan 

Achieved Complete 

review of 

Regional Parks 

Management 

Plan and Mt 

Smart Stadium 

Achieved 

Review was 

completed in 

2009/10 and 

both plans were 

adopted by 

Council in 

August 2010. 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 
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The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Cross references to other performance measures:Cross references to other performance measures:Cross references to other performance measures:Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Please also refer to measures contained in the Natural heritage and Cultural heritage activities found 
earlier in this chapter. (Measures NH2, NH3, NH4, CH2 and CH4)  

2. Please also refer to measures contained in activity 6 (Visitor Services) of this group of activities. 
(Measures VS2 and VS3). 

Comments on these results 

• RP1: Most planting takes place in the autumn months. The number of trees planted for the 

four months to 31 October 2010 was not analysed. 

• RP2: A methodology has been developed for this measure for the over 60 buildings and 

structures on regional parks and will be progressively rolled out by sector. The first data on this 

will not be available for reporting until 2011 and it will be for only one sector, i.e. data on one 

sector undertaken per year. There are over 700 archaeological sites on the regional park 

network for which a methodology for assessing the condition of these sites has yet to be 

developed. 

• RP6: The reviews of both plans were largely completed in 2009/10.  Both plans were adopted 

by the Council in August 2010. 
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LTCCP Activity 2: Auckland Botanic Gardens  

Highlight of the period: 

Stoneleigh Sculpture in the Gardens exhibition was successfully held with more than 314,000 visitors 

and a 90% visitor satisfaction rate.  

What we do 

Collect, document, display, and maintain plant collections to a high standard in a manner that engages 

visitors with the importance of plants and gardens. This is supported by community education 

programmes, initiatives to conserve threatened plants, horticultural research, and the provision of high 

quality visitor services.  

Our objectives 

The primary objective is to provide visitors with a high quality experience that enhances their 

understanding and appreciation of plants and gardens, and provides ideas and information that visitors 

can apply in their own situations.  

What we achieved 

• Annual visits to the Botanic Gardens reached more than 969,000 in 2009/10, an increase from 

485,000 in the 2004/05 year.  

• Visitor satisfaction was 98.9% and satisfaction with facilities was 94%.  

• New garden developments included extending the Potter Children’s Garden and completing 

stage 3 of the Edible Garden redevelopment.  

• Sixty thousand native plants were produced for planting in regional parks.  

• More than 6,600 school children participated in Learning Through Experience programmes.  

• Stoneleigh Sculpture in the Gardens was successfully held with more than 314,000 visitors and 

a 90% visitor satisfaction rate. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Level of Service: 

We will manage the Auckland Botanic Gardens as a place for people of the region to enjoy recreational We will manage the Auckland Botanic Gardens as a place for people of the region to enjoy recreational We will manage the Auckland Botanic Gardens as a place for people of the region to enjoy recreational We will manage the Auckland Botanic Gardens as a place for people of the region to enjoy recreational 

activities and learn about gardening and botany.activities and learn about gardening and botany.activities and learn about gardening and botany.activities and learn about gardening and botany.    1111 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

BG 1. Percentage of 

Auckland Botanic 

Gardens visitor service 

standards met (Visitor 

service standards include 

safety standards). 

 

89% 

 

> 75% 

Achieved. 

92% 

 

> 75% 

Achieved. 

96% 

BG 2. Visitor satisfaction 

with Auckland Botanic 

Gardens facilities. 

96% > 85% Achieved. 

94% 

> 85%  ** 

BG 3. Visitor satisfaction 

with Auckland Botanic 

Gardens settings. 

New 

measure 

> 85% Achieved. 

93% 

 

> 85%  ** 

BG 4. Number of people 

attending Auckland 

Botanic Garden education 

programmes. 

New 

measure 

To be 

established 

in 2009/10 

6,603 > 3000 Achieved. 

3,630 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 
 

Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Please also refer to measure VS3 in activity 6 (Visitor Services) of this group of activities.  

Comments on these results 

BG1-4: The performance measure targets for the Botanic Gardens have all been achieved in 2009/10 

and for the four month period ending 31 October 2010 excluding those not measured during the  

4 months, e.g. annual surveys. Results indicate a high level of service provision well above the 

target. This is evidence that the Botanic Gardens continues to provide quality opportunities for the 

people of the region and visitors to Auckland to enjoy recreational activities and learn about 

gardening and botany. 
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LTCCP Activity 3: New regional parks  

Highlight of the period: 

Creation of Te Muri Regional Park with the acquisition of 407 hectares of land adjoining Te Muri Beach  

What we do 

This activity focuses on acquisition of regional parkland.  As the region’s population grows, so too does 

the need to provide for future generations. Acquisition of new parkland is needed to provide for the 

protection of significant landforms, the coast, natural ecosystems, heritage values, and to provide 

recreational access to natural places and treasures. 

Our objectives 

• Thorough investigation into opportunities with a view to achieving one or more additions to 

existing parkland 

• Contributing to the expansion of regional acquisitions visions including: the Waitemata Harbour 

vision, Manukau rural vision, volcanic landscape vision and the north eastern coastal vision 

What we achieved 

The ARC purchased 13.7 hectares of land as an addition to the existing Duder Regional Park situated 

on the Clevedon Coastal area of Manukau.  The acquisition of the Duder land complements the 

adjoining regional park considerably by improving the visibility, and the scope and potential of the park 

entrance.   

During this year, the ARC also purchased 7.6 hectares of land at Pakiri Regional Park.  The purchase 

connected a once disjointed seaward and landward area of parkland at Pakiri.   

In 2005, Jackie and Pierre Chatelanat gifted their 843ha farm, valued at more than $10 million, to the 

ARC to manage as a farm park (Atiu Creek) for the people of New Zealand.  In June 2010, the ARC 

acquired Courtyard House which is situated within the Atiu Creek Regional Park.  The property 

comprises a substantial dwelling with guest accommodation on 2.39 hectares of land with its own 

freehold title.   

In late September, the ARC announced the purchase of Te Muri Regional Park. Fittingly, this park 

becomes the neighbour to the first regional park ever purchased, at Wenderholm in 1965.  The new 

block at Te Muri on the Mahurangi coast has a boundary on the northern side of the Puhoi River and is 

only 30 minutes from Auckland’s CBD. It backs onto Te Muri Beach, a 1km sandy beach already owned 

by the ARC, and will be named Te Muri Regional Park.  Greater protection of coastal land in this area 

has been a strategic priority for the ARC for the last 30 years.  At 407 hectares, it is the largest park 

purchase since the Auckland Regional Authority (ARA) purchased 588 hectare Tawharanui Regional 

Park in 1973 and the largest addition to the regional parks network since the gifting of Atiu Creek 

Regional Park by Pierre and Jackie Chatelanat. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Level of Service: 

We aim to secure appropriate regional park land in perpetuity to meet the needs of current and future We aim to secure appropriate regional park land in perpetuity to meet the needs of current and future We aim to secure appropriate regional park land in perpetuity to meet the needs of current and future We aim to secure appropriate regional park land in perpetuity to meet the needs of current and future 

generations, with a focus on acquiring a range of natural settings that agenerations, with a focus on acquiring a range of natural settings that agenerations, with a focus on acquiring a range of natural settings that agenerations, with a focus on acquiring a range of natural settings that are representative of the Auckland re representative of the Auckland re representative of the Auckland re representative of the Auckland 

region and that provide a range of opportunities for outdoor recreation.region and that provide a range of opportunities for outdoor recreation.region and that provide a range of opportunities for outdoor recreation.region and that provide a range of opportunities for outdoor recreation. 
Performance measures: Actual 

2008/09 
Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

NP 1. Total hectares of 

new regional parks 

acquisitions. 

 

928 

hectares 

Increase on 

total 

hectares 

annually 

Achieved. 

952 

hectares 

(cumulative 

total) 

Increase on total 

hectares 

annually 

Achieved. 

1359 hectares  

(cumulative total) 

NP 2. Regional 

community satisfaction 

with the provision 

(location and distribution) 

of regional parkland.  

Source: Environmental 

Awareness Survey 

 

 

87% 

 

 

 

> 90% 

Not 

achieved. 

87% 

> 90%  ** 

NP 3. Hectares of 

regional parkland per 

head of population in the 

region. 

 

0.03 

Maintain 

current 

level 

Achieved. 

0.03 

Maintain current 

level 

** 

Based on annual 

population 

estimates which 

will not be 

available during 

this period. 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Cross references to other performance measures:Cross references to other performance measures:Cross references to other performance measures:Cross references to other performance measures: 

1. Please also refer to measure VS 4 in activity 6 (Visitor Services) of this group of activities.  

Comments on these results 

• NP1: 24 hectares added in 2009/10.  Key acquisition achievements included the purchase of land 

adjoining existing parkland at Duder, Pakiri, and Atiu Creek Regional Parks.  In the four month period to 

October 31 2010, ARC was successful in acquiring Te Muri Regional Parkland which is an additional 407 

hectares. This brought the cumulative total as at 31 October 2010 t 1359 hectares (since 2 July 2006). 

• NP2: Although the performance target for this measure was not achieved, Council considers the result 

of 87% to be within an acceptable range. The ARC has successfully continued to add to its network of 

regional parks thereby expanding on the location and distribution of regional parkland for the enjoyment 

of citizens and visitors to the region. 

• NP3: This measure is based on annual population estimates which will not be available during the four 

month period to 31 October 2010. 
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LTCCP Activity 4: Farming in regional parks  

Highlight of the period: 

Greenhouse gas emissions from farming operations were reduced by 4.5% compared to the previous 

year. 

What we do 

The ARC Farm Business Unit manages approximately 7,500 sheep and 825 cattle on approximately 

1,285 hectares.  Livestock are grazed to provide farm settings for recreational use and activity. The 

implementation of sustainable farming practices ensures that the primary park purpose is not 

compromised by farming operation. 

This activity includes: 

• Providing and maintaining pastoral settings for recreational use and activity 

• Undertaking sustainable farm management and animal welfare practices 

• Providing an optimum return from farming operations without compromising the primary park 

purpose 

Our objectives 

• To meet visitor expectation for the management of farm park settings 

• To meet customer service standards for the maintenance of farmed infrastructure and facilities 

• To implement sustainable land management practices 

• To implement best practices in animal welfare and to provide shade and shelter for livestock 

• To reduce greenhouse gas emissions from farming activities  

• To optimise an economic return from farming operations. 

What we achieved 

• Despite a prolonged summer drought, pastoral settings were appropriately managed and met 

visitor satisfaction  

• Farming infrastructure and farm facilities were maintained and met customer service level 

standards 

• The application of lime and soil nutrient products collectively demonstrated a sustainable 

approach to farm management 

• The ongoing funding of tree surrounds for the provision of planting trees for shade and shelter 

contributed to best practice in animal welfare 
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• Greenhouse gas emissions from farming operations were reduced by 4.5% compared to the 

previous year 

• Net farming surplus of $116,000 was generated from the 2010 farming operations. 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Level of Service: 

Our Farming operations will Our Farming operations will Our Farming operations will Our Farming operations will contribute to the management of countryside regional parks, be an example of contribute to the management of countryside regional parks, be an example of contribute to the management of countryside regional parks, be an example of contribute to the management of countryside regional parks, be an example of 

sustainable farming practices, and provide farm settings for the public to experience.sustainable farming practices, and provide farm settings for the public to experience.sustainable farming practices, and provide farm settings for the public to experience.sustainable farming practices, and provide farm settings for the public to experience. 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

F 1. Percentage of 

farming visitor service 

standards met (Visitor 

service standards include 

safety standards). 

 

90% 

 

> 85% 

Achieved. 

88% 

 

> 85% 

Achieved. 

95% 

F 2. Visitor satisfaction 

with farm settings as 

places for recreation. 

 

99% 

 

> 85% 

Achieved. 

99% 

> 85% ** 

F 3.Green house gas 

emissions (CO2 

equivalent) per stock unit. 

 

367 kg per 

stock unit. 

Annual 

reduction on 

previous 

year’s result. 

Achieved. 

359 kg per 

stock unit 

** 

Annual 

reduction on 

previous year’s 

result. 

 

** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Comments on these results 

Farming has achieved a satisfactory result for the year ending June 2010.  These results show not only 

maintenance of above target results but also improvement.  Although not able to be measured, the 

results for the four months to 31 October 2010 are expected to show a similar trend. 
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LTCCP Activity 5: Mt Smart Stadium 

Highlight of the period: 

Mt Smart Stadium successfully hosted international concert events including Pearl Jam and Ben 

Harper in November 2009 and the Big Day Out music festival in January 2010.  The Stadium’s 10 year 

strategic plan and the review Mt Smart Management Plan were completed. 

 

What we do 

Mt Smart Stadium carries out a range of management programmes to ensure delivery of:  

• Facilities: we aim to ensure our assets are maintained and upgraded in a sustainable way that 

meets visitor and stakeholder needs, including safety and security 

• Environment: we seek to enhance and protect the natural values of Mt Smart Stadium, 

incorporate sustainable practices wherever appropriate, and ensure that all works undertaken 

are sensitive to the natural values of Mt Smart Stadium 

• Operations: we aim to review and improve our practices and processes to create high quality 

experiences for our business partners and key stakeholder 

• Relationships: we aim to manage our community and commercial contracts, leases and 

licenses in a way that maximises the opportunities for our regional community to attend or 

participate in sporting and entertainment events 

Our objectives 

• A world class venue for live entertainment and sporting events 

• A facility that is environmentally sustainable 

• Delivery of quality services and products 

• A diverse, vibrant and constantly utilised facility. 

What we achieved 
• Adoption of the new Mt Smart Management Plan in August 2010 

• Completion of a 10 year Strategic Plan in March 2010 

• Successful delivery of over 300 community sporting events: including the North Island Colgate 

Games Auckland Secondary Schools Champion of Champ meetings, Counties Manukau 

secondary school championships, and five Masters athletic meets.  

• Successful delivery of music and entertainment events: including Pearl Jam (November 2009) 

and Big Day Out (January 2010)  

• Successful delivery of the Vodafone Warriors rugby league season, and other rugby league 

games 

• Launch of Mt Smart’s Zero Waste recycling project and completion of an Energy Audit. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 
Levels of Service: 

We will manage the Mt Smart Stadium as a place for the people of the region to enjoy and participate in We will manage the Mt Smart Stadium as a place for the people of the region to enjoy and participate in We will manage the Mt Smart Stadium as a place for the people of the region to enjoy and participate in We will manage the Mt Smart Stadium as a place for the people of the region to enjoy and participate in 

sports and entertainment events.sports and entertainment events.sports and entertainment events.sports and entertainment events. 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

MS 1. Number of 

community events at Mt 

Smart Stadium. 

 

309 events 

 

> 300 

events 

Achieved. 

312 events 

 

95 events 

Achieved. 

130 events 

MS 2. Visitor satisfaction 

with Mt Smart Stadium. 

 

95% 

 

> 85% 
Achieved 

93% 

 

> 85% 

Achieved. 

95% 

MS 3. Regional 

community awareness of 

Mt Smart Stadium as a 

regional facility. 

New 

measure 

 

To be 

determined 
85% 

 

To be 

determined 

** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

 

Comments on these results 

MS1-3: The performance measure targets for Mt Smart Stadium have all been achieved in 2009/10 and 

for the 4 month period ending 31 October 2010 excluding those not measured during the  

4 months, e.g. annual surveys. Mt Smart Stadium continues to provide a wide range of 

opportunities for the people of Auckland and visitors to the region to enjoy and participate in sports 

and entertainment events. 
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LTCCP Activity 6: Visitor services 

Highlight of the period: 

The establishment and opening of the Hillary Trail connecting trails and places, interest groups and 

partner agencies and reminding the people of Auckland (as well as visitors to the region) of the 

remarkable outdoor challenges in their own backyard.  The trail provides remarkable and rugged 

landscapes with outstanding bush and coastal views.  The original vision was held and championed by 

park rangers for many years and realised with the support of the Hillary family and West Coast 

communities.   

 

What we do 

This activity focuses on maintaining and enhancing the diversity of experiences on regional parks by 

providing visitor centres (including Arataki in the Waitakere Ranges Regional Parkland and Huakaiwaka 

at the Auckland Botanic Gardens), interpretation, community and education programmes, and special 

community events.   

It also includes providing event, picnic and camping sites, baches, lodges and other facilities, as well as 

information and reservation services.  In addition, this activity assists the ARC to continue to develop 

partnerships with the wider community through managing volunteer programmes, and continuing to 

develop programmes with community and business organisations. 

Our objectives 
• Hosting successful events, enhancing visitor experience, and improving the profile of 

regional parks 

• Managing and maintaining existing partnerships with communities and community groups 

across regional parks, including volunteer programmes 

• Supporting the ARC’s educational programmes on regional parks 

• Providing, maintaining and managing lodges, short-stay bach accommodation and a range of 

campsites and bookable picnic sites throughout the regional parks network 

• Implementing park safety and security programmes 

• Effectively managing concessionaires 

• Implementing a productive regional parks marketing programme 

• Overseeing and managing the Contact Centre contract and booking systems 

• Producing a quality Pohutukawa Post newsletter 

• Delivering a range of interpretation projects 

• Implementing the Artist in Residence programme 

• Completing a history of regional parks 
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What we achieved 

The Hillary Trail was opened on 11 January 2010.  The 70km trail celebrates New Zealand's best-

known mountaineer and explorer and is designed to introduce families, friends and young people to the 

experience of completing a challenging long tramp, including the adventure of sleeping within the 

Great Forest of Tiriwa.  A 36 page guide, promotional brochure and extensive web content were 

produced to support the trail.  

The twenty-first and twenty-second Ambury Farm Days were held on 12 October 2009, and 10 

October 2010.  These two events saw crowds of 23,000 in 2009 and between 27,000 and 30,000 in 

2010. On both occasions, families had a free day of fun and exercise, as well as the opportunity to 

learn about environmental initiatives and the regional parks network.  The Omana Children’s day and 

the Arataki Kids Day also provided opportunities for families, especially children, to experience the 

parks, and participate in educational yet fun activities.  

The Exhibition Drive interpretation trail was opened.  The trail is designed to make users aware of the 

history of the route and provide context for their journey.  The trail has six interpretive sites which tell 

the story of Exhibition Drive and the reasons for its initial development and use.  The trail will link 

Titirangi with Arataki Visitor Centre in 2011 following completion of the Beveridge Track.    

The Karamatura Valley Hill to Mill interpretation project has also been completed.  The interpretation 

trail is to make visitors aware of the significance, impact and process of timber milling in the 

Karamatura Valley in the Waitakere Ranges.  The trail explains the process and techniques used to 

remove and process kauri from the source up on the hill to the end - the mill on the coast. 

In September 2010, Artist in Residence, Maureen Launder, was welcomed to her residency by friends, 

family and council representatives at the Arataki Visitor Centre.  The purpose of the residency was to 

encourage artistic endeavour in the park and to share an artist’s perspective and process with visitors. 

Maureen will focus on the history and stories associated with Mt Atkinson, located in the Waitakere 

Ranges, to help create her artwork. 

Further additions to the regional park’s Bach Escapes were made, the most recent being Schischka 

House at Wenderholm Regional Park. This farmhouse sleeps 10 people and provides remarkable views 

of the Puhoi River inlet.   The Kayak or Waka Trail along Auckland’s south-east coast (Kayak Escapes) 

also progressed with overnight shelters and facilities being built at Tawhitokino Regional Park and 

Orere Point. 

‘Dreamers of the Day’, a booked written by Graeme Murdoch on the history of Auckland’s Regional 

Parks, was produced and launched in mid-October 2010.  The book covers the history of the regional 

parks and the individuals who were instrumental in creating the remarkable parks network as it stands 

today.   
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 

Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We seek to generate a high level of awareness of We seek to generate a high level of awareness of We seek to generate a high level of awareness of We seek to generate a high level of awareness of the regional park network and promote the extensive the regional park network and promote the extensive the regional park network and promote the extensive the regional park network and promote the extensive 

opportunities for outdoor recreation, overnight stays (in baches, lodges and camping grounds) and special opportunities for outdoor recreation, overnight stays (in baches, lodges and camping grounds) and special opportunities for outdoor recreation, overnight stays (in baches, lodges and camping grounds) and special opportunities for outdoor recreation, overnight stays (in baches, lodges and camping grounds) and special 

events.events.events.events. 

VS 1. Regional 

community awareness of 

the regional parks 

network.  

Source: Environmental 

Awareness Survey 

 

84% 

 

90% 

Not 

achieved. 

86% 

90% ** 

VS 2. Utilisation of 

bookable 

accommodation; 

utilisation of bed nights / 

capacity of bed nights. 

New 

measure 

New 

measure 

2009/10 is 

the baseline 

46% Increase in 

baseline set in 

2009/10. 

Achieved 

49% 

VS 3. Delivery of the 

following events across 

the regional parks 

network on an annual 

basis: 

- Ambury Farm Day 

- Botanic Gardens 

Festival 

The delivery of the 

following events on a 

biennial basis: 

- Sculpture in the 

Gardens 

- Omana Children’s Day 

Successful 

delivery of 

scheduled 

events 

Successful 

delivery of 

scheduled 

events 

Achieved. 

Refer to 

comment 

below. 

Successful 

delivery of 

Ambury Farm 

Day. 

Achieved. 

We will seek to ensure that the services provided about and on parks are accessible and equitable, We will seek to ensure that the services provided about and on parks are accessible and equitable, We will seek to ensure that the services provided about and on parks are accessible and equitable, We will seek to ensure that the services provided about and on parks are accessible and equitable, 

incluincluincluincluding those provided by park rangers.ding those provided by park rangers.ding those provided by park rangers.ding those provided by park rangers. 

VS 4. Number of parks 

visitors’ proportional to 

regional population 

growth. 

3.75:1 Maintain 

current level 

(ratio 3.75:1) 

Achieved. 

3.98 

Maintain or 

improve on 

previous result  

** 

We will provide opportunities for the We will provide opportunities for the We will provide opportunities for the We will provide opportunities for the people of the region to participate in the protection and enhancement people of the region to participate in the protection and enhancement people of the region to participate in the protection and enhancement people of the region to participate in the protection and enhancement 

of the regional parks.of the regional parks.of the regional parks.of the regional parks. 

VS 5. Number of active 

regional parks volunteers. 

2,507 > 2,000 

active 

volunteers 

(cumulative) 

Achieved. 

2,946 

> 2,000 active 

volunteers 

** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 
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Comments on these results 
• VS1: 86 per cent of those surveyed during 2009/10 were aware that the ARC manages a 

network of large scale parks in the Auckland region. This figure shows a steady increasing 

trend since 2007/08 towards achievement of the target figure.  

• VS3: In 2009/10, both annual events, Ambury Farm Day and the Botanic Gardens Festival, were 

delivered successfully together with the biennial Sculpture in the Gardens event. 
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2.7 Safety 

Overview 

This group of activities relates to how the ARC promotes safety in the Auckland region. It includes the 

following LTCCP activities: 

1. Hazard management 

2. Civil defence emergency management 

3. The Harbourmaster 

Group contribution to community outcomes: 

See chart on page 19 in chapter one 

This group's influence on the four well beings:    

 

These activities positively contribute by safer neighbourhoods and public places; Aucklanders have 

access to a range of affordable and safe ways to move people and goods; Aucklanders are educated 

and skilled and have access to appropriate learning and training opportunities. 

Summary of group expenditure 

Total cost of services in $millions  
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010.  

Actual 3.9 

Planned 5.1 

Variance* 1.2 

 

* Personnel costs were lower than planned 

due to vacant positions not being filled.  

Volunteers were relocated as a result of the 

transition and the availability of staff was 

monitored.   
 

Please refer to section 3 (Cost of Services 

Statement) for further breakdown of the activity 

cost of services.  
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LTCCP Activity 1: Hazards management  

Highlight of the period: 

Utilising research and contingency plans developed by the Hazards Management team, during three 

national tsunami emergency management events that supported the coordinated regional emergency 

response effort. 

 

What we do 

Our primary aim is to identify the hazards that pose a risk to our community, and to reduce the 

community’s risk from these hazards in order to ensure public safety.  We achieve this by researching 

the regions natural hazards and developing strategies, policies, and processes for managing and 

communicating the effects of natural hazards region wide.  

Our objectives 

• Identifying the region’s risks associated with natural hazards. 

• Researching the impacts and consequences of natural hazard events. 

• Monitoring trends in natural hazard events. 

• Communicating the likelihood and consequence of hazard events to the community.  

• Developing and implementing policies in order to reduce the community’s risk from natural 

hazards. 

• Developing contingency plans to respond to emergencies.  

What we achieved 

• Probabilistic tsunami inundation modelling for regional sources. 

• Coastal cliff landslide hazard assessment. 

• Volcanic Contingency Plan. 

• Historical tsunami source database. 

• Tsunami contingency plan. 

• Assessment of sea level changes in Auckland.  

• Organising ARC staff volunteers to support the coordinated region wide Civil Defence and 

Emergency Management response. 
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How we performed: operational levels of service measures 

Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 
2009/10 

Actual 
2009/10 

Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will idWe will idWe will idWe will identify and manage hazards and risks so that the risks to the community and the built environment entify and manage hazards and risks so that the risks to the community and the built environment entify and manage hazards and risks so that the risks to the community and the built environment entify and manage hazards and risks so that the risks to the community and the built environment 

are reduced in relation to natural hazards.are reduced in relation to natural hazards.are reduced in relation to natural hazards.are reduced in relation to natural hazards. 

HZ 1. Level of risk to 

developments from 

hazards, measured by the 

level of exposure of 

developments to coastal 

hazards. 

New 

measure 

Maintain or 

reduce 

baseline 

Not 

measured 

Measured five 

yearly. Next 

measure 

2014/15. 

** 

(This is a measure of long term regional change as compared to local change therefore will be measured 
approximately every 5 years.) 

HZ 2. Level of 

community awareness of 

regional hazard risk. 

New 

measure 

Establish 

baseline 76.2% 

Maintain or 

increase on 

baseline 

** 

HZ 3. Extent to which 

regional hazards policies 

are reflected in District, 

Regional and CDEM 

Plans.... 

 

50% 

 

50% 

Achieved. 

50% 

50% ** 

We wiWe wiWe wiWe will provide input and support to the ACDEMG to ensure appropriate civil defence response across the ll provide input and support to the ACDEMG to ensure appropriate civil defence response across the ll provide input and support to the ACDEMG to ensure appropriate civil defence response across the ll provide input and support to the ACDEMG to ensure appropriate civil defence response across the 

regionregionregionregion 

HZ 4. The response rate 

of staff volunteers to 

emergency call out 

meets agreed standard; 

24 people in the EMO 

within 90 minutes. 

New 

measure 

100% Achieved. 

100% 

100% ** 

HZ 5. Level of ARC’s 

contribution to the 

CDEMG’s projects meets 

the agreed standards. 

New 

measure 

To be 

established 

in 2009/10 

 

100% 

75% ** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• HZ1: This measure has not been progressed during the transition to the Auckland Council. 

• HZ2: This is a new question in the Environmental Awareness Survey on whether people feel 

they have enough information to protect themselves in an emergency event.  

• HZ3: There have been no new plan changes relating to managing natural hazards in the last  

12 months. 



Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 104 

LTCCP Activity 2: Civil Defence Emergency Management 

Highlight of the period: 

Establishment of the new Civil Defence Emergency Management Structure. 

 

What we do 

The Auckland Regional Emergency Management Office (AREMO) is the Auckland Civil Defence 

Emergency Management Group’s full time component that works towards achieving the strategic 

direction provided by the Auckland Civil Defence Emergency Management Group Plan 2005.  

AREMO works for the Auckland Civil Defence Emergency Management Group but is governed by and 

reports to the Coordinating Executive Group. 

Our objectives 

• Setting the overall strategic direction for AREMO through the Auckland Group Civil Defence 

Emergency Management Plan.  

• Supporting AREMO to achieve its strategic goals. 

• Maintaining strong governance and ensuring budgetary control is appropriate.  

• Ensuring AREMO works closely with the Group Controller so that operational matters are 

managed in accordance with the legislative responsibilities of the Auckland Civil Defence 

Emergency Management Group. 

What we achieved 

• Development of the new Auckland Civil Defence Emergency Management Group Plan, to be 

finalised in 2011. 

• Supported transition of civil defence functions into the Auckland Council. 

• Responded to incidents as required within 90 minutes of activation. 



 

Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 105 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 

Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will advocate for activities and programmes that seek to reduce risk to public safety and propeWe will advocate for activities and programmes that seek to reduce risk to public safety and propeWe will advocate for activities and programmes that seek to reduce risk to public safety and propeWe will advocate for activities and programmes that seek to reduce risk to public safety and property in the rty in the rty in the rty in the 

Auckland region posed by regional emergencies.Auckland region posed by regional emergencies.Auckland region posed by regional emergencies.Auckland region posed by regional emergencies. 

CD 1. The percentage of 

programmes achieved 

annually in the AREMO 

Business Plan as 

reported to the Co-

ordinating Executive 

Group.  

New 

measure 

80% Not 

measured. 

80% ** 

We will assist the communityWe will assist the communityWe will assist the communityWe will assist the community    to prepare for and develop the ability to recover from emergency events.to prepare for and develop the ability to recover from emergency events.to prepare for and develop the ability to recover from emergency events.to prepare for and develop the ability to recover from emergency events. 

CD 2. The level of 

community preparedness 

as measured by the 

annual Colmar Brunton 

Ministry of Civil Defence 

survey. 

7% fully 

prepared 

and 20% 

prepared at 

home in 

2009 

Annual 

increase 

from 

baseline set 

in 2008. 

Achieved. 

9% fully 

prepared and 

18% 

prepared at 

home  

Annual 

increase from 

baseline set in 

2008 

** 

CD 3. Percentage of 

households who have 

taken steps to prepare 

themselves or their 

household for natural or 

manmade hazards or 

disasters, as measured 

by the Environmental 

Awareness survey.  

54% Maintain or 

improve on 

previous 

year’s result 

Achieved. 

67.5% 

Maintain or 

improve on 

previous 

year’s result 

** 

We will work with community groups and regional agencies to prepare for a coWe will work with community groups and regional agencies to prepare for a coWe will work with community groups and regional agencies to prepare for a coWe will work with community groups and regional agencies to prepare for a co----ordinated response to and ordinated response to and ordinated response to and ordinated response to and 

recovery from regional civil defence emergency events.recovery from regional civil defence emergency events.recovery from regional civil defence emergency events.recovery from regional civil defence emergency events. 

CD 4. Assessment of 

ARC performance in 

national exercises 

demonstrates a 

consistent improvement 

from the baseline set by 

exercise Ruaumoko, 

conducted in 2008.  

New 

measure 

Improve on 

level of 

performance 

set in 2008. 

Not 

applicable. 

No national 

exercises 

were 

conducted in 

this reporting 

period. 

Improve on 

level of 

performance 

set in 2008 

** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 

Comments on these results 

• CD1: The Auckland Region Emergency Management Office business plan was re-prioritised by the 

Auckland Coordinating Executive Group in order to support Auckland transition.  Considerable work 

was completed to ensure a smooth transition to the new Auckland Council’s CDEM structure. 
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LTCCP Activity 3: The Harbourmaster  

Highlight of the period: 

Continuing co-operation of all harbour users ensuring that the waters of the region remain a safe and 

clean place to operate 

 

What we do 

The function of the Harbourmaster’s Office is to ensure a safe environment on Auckland’s waterways, 

fulfilling a statutory role of providing navigation safety regulation by way of the LGA and bylaws, the 

Port and Harbour Marine Safety Code, the management of all moorings, and the maintenance of an 

effective marine oil spill response. 

The function includes: 

• Continuous  management  of the Port and Harbour safety Code Safety Management Plan; 

• Administration and enforcement of the Navigation Safety Bylaws; 

• Regulation of all commercial and recreational shipping activities in the region; 

• Provision of an effective oil spill response capability, including the training of appropriate staff, 

and  regular exercising  to maintain this capability; 

• Administration of all swing and pile moorings in the CMA as a bylaw function. 

Our objectives 

• A safe and clean maritime environment for the people and industry of the region 

• Effective maritime management and marine oil spill response 

• Navigational safety patrols 

• Removal of dangerous flotsam and jetsam 

• Provision of an efficient mooring management system for all swing and pile moorings in the 

Auckland region. 

What we achieved 
• Completed a successful Maritime New Zealand audit of the Auckland Port and Harbour Safety 

Code. 

• Oversaw the successful running of the Louis Vuitton regatta in the Auckland Harbour. 

• Continued with the constant monitoring and enforcement of the regulations on the waters of 

the region through regular harbour patrol. 

• Carried out an ongoing programme of review and development of the mooring management 

areas to ensure that all of the bylaw and the Auckland Regional Plan: Coastal requirements are 

met where possible. 
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• Continued to maintain an effective marine oil spill response capability which resulted in the 

successful response to 23 oil spills. 

• Successfully prosecuted the owners and operators of a merchant ship for a significant spill into 

the Auckland Harbour. 

• Further developed and reviewed both Tier 1(Industry) and Tier 2 (Regional Council) contingency 

plans where required. 

How we performed: operational levels of service measures 

Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Actual 
2008/09 

Target 2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

We will maintain navigational safety, consistent with appropriate risk assessments, as required by the We will maintain navigational safety, consistent with appropriate risk assessments, as required by the We will maintain navigational safety, consistent with appropriate risk assessments, as required by the We will maintain navigational safety, consistent with appropriate risk assessments, as required by the 

Marine Port and Harbour Safety Code.Marine Port and Harbour Safety Code.Marine Port and Harbour Safety Code.Marine Port and Harbour Safety Code. 

HA 1. Percentage of 

significant incidents risk 

assessed against the 

level of acceptance 

identified by the Risk 

Assessment – Port and 

Harbour Safety Code.  

100% 100% of 

incidents 

assessed 

Achieved. 

100% 

100% of 

incidents 

assessed 

Achieved. 

100% 

HA 2. Harbour users and 

stakeholders are satisfied 

with harbour 

management. 

64% At least 50% Not 

applicable 

(biennial 

survey – next 

survey 2011) 

Not applicable, 

based on a 

biennial survey 

** 

We will deliver effective regional marine oil spill response that meets the requirements of the Maritime We will deliver effective regional marine oil spill response that meets the requirements of the Maritime We will deliver effective regional marine oil spill response that meets the requirements of the Maritime We will deliver effective regional marine oil spill response that meets the requirements of the Maritime 

Transport Act and the New Zealand Marine Oil Spill Response StTransport Act and the New Zealand Marine Oil Spill Response StTransport Act and the New Zealand Marine Oil Spill Response StTransport Act and the New Zealand Marine Oil Spill Response Strategy.rategy.rategy.rategy. 

HA 3. Percentage of oil 

spills that are responded 

to effectively and on 

time. 

100% 100% Achieved. 

100% 

100% Achieved. 

100% 

We will effectively and efficiently manage the region’s moorings to ensure navigational safety and to meet We will effectively and efficiently manage the region’s moorings to ensure navigational safety and to meet We will effectively and efficiently manage the region’s moorings to ensure navigational safety and to meet We will effectively and efficiently manage the region’s moorings to ensure navigational safety and to meet 

the needs of thethe needs of thethe needs of thethe needs of the    boating community.boating community.boating community.boating community. 

HA 4. Percentage of 

mooring users who are 

aware of the ARC's role 

in mooring management. 

74% At least 70% Not 

applicable 

(biennial 

survey – next 

survey 2011) 

Not applicable, 

based on a 

biennial survey 

** 

** This measure can not be reported for the four months from 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 as it is 
only measured annually or within a timeframe that is longer than one year (e.g. three yearly). 

The 2008/09 Actual results were measured against the 2006-16 LTCCP performance measures.  The 

2009-19 LTCCP performance measures became effective from 1 July 2009.  Where the performance 

measures for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 varied from the 2008/09 performance measures, 

the actual 2008/09 results were aligned as closely as possible, where relevant, to the current 

performance measures so as to provided a baseline for comparative purposes. 
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Comments on these results 

HA1 & HA3: The performance measure targets for the Harbourmaster have all been achieved in 

2009/10 and for the 4 month period ending 31 October 2010. The Harbourmaster team continue to 

provide effective services for oil spill response and maintaining navigational safety. 

HA2 & HA4: These measures cannot be reported on in 2009/10 as the results come from a biennial 

survey which will be conducted again in 2011. 
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Capital Expenditure during the year for each Group of activitiesCapital Expenditure during the year for each Group of activitiesCapital Expenditure during the year for each Group of activitiesCapital Expenditure during the year for each Group of activities    

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

Actual Plan   Actual Plan  
12 months 12 months 

 
16 months 16 months  

2009 2009 
 

2010 2010 Variance 
$000s $000s $000s 16-MONTH CAPITAL EXPENDITURE STATEMENTS  $000s $000s 

 

 
Built EnvironmentBuilt EnvironmentBuilt EnvironmentBuilt Environment    

 
 

 

    

               -                 -  
Wharves – works were deferred and will continue with the 
Auckland Council. 

               -          4,431      4,431  

               -
 

               - 
 

Bridges, Structures and dams – This includes the 
purchase of Queens wharf and upgrading works and was 
slightly higher than budgeted. 

      20,653         20,036        (617) 

               -                 -   Total       20,653         24,467      3,814  

  
  

 
    

  
Natural EnvironmentNatural EnvironmentNatural EnvironmentNatural Environment    

 
    

               -                 -  Land Improvements                -                 -              -  
           435             504  Plant & Equipment            755             692         63 
           435             504   Total            755             692            63  

  
  

 
    

  
Regional Parks (excluding Mt Smart)Regional Parks (excluding Mt Smart)Regional Parks (excluding Mt Smart)Regional Parks (excluding Mt Smart)    

 
    

        5,838         8,500  New acquisition opportunities were actively investigated 
during the 16 month period to 31 October 2010.  Various 
factors affected the timing to complete regional park 
acquisitions.  Te Muri regional park was the most 
significant purchase of $15m 

     17,792         31,804    14,012  

       2,592          2,598  Land and improvements -  a seasonal impact resulted in 
various regional parks projects being undertaken ahead 
of budget. 

        3,103          2,343         (760) 

           315             263  Bridges, structures and dams – the commencement of 
projects relating to bridges, structures and dams were 
delayed.  Certain unspent capital expenditure will be 
carried forward to Auckland Council for consideration. 

               -             454         454  

        1,004             932  Building Improvements - timing of projects did not 
coincide with allocation of budget.  Certain unspent 
capital expenditure will be carried forward to Auckland 
Council for future consideration. 

           830          1,229         399  

           336             252  Property, plant and equipment - Timing of project did not 
coincide with allocation of budget.   

        1,079             791        (288) 

           699             678  Roads – Improvements to roading were carried out across 
most regional parks.  The timing of projects however did 
not coincide with the allocation of budgets.  Certain 
unspent capital expenditure will be carried forward to 
Auckland Council for future consideration. 

           546             986         440  

      10,784         13,223   Total       23,351         37,607    14,256  

  
  

 
    

  
Mt SmartMt SmartMt SmartMt Smart    

 
    

            69             230  Land Improvements                -                 -              -  
           283             440  Buildings                -             440         440  
           160             164  Plant & Equipment              44               31          (13) 
               -                 -  Roads                -                 -              -  
              6                 -  Furniture & Equipment                -                 -              -  
           151               95  Software & Hardware – Staff and resources redirected to 

amalgamation work.  Decision not to proceed with some 
work due to the change to the Auckland Council. 

               -                 -              -  

           669             929   Total              44             471         427  
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  SafetySafetySafetySafety    

 
    

               -                 -  Land Improvements                -                 -              -  
            10               11  Bridges, structures and dams                -                 -              -  
            24                 -  Buildings                -                 -              -  
               -                 -  Plant & Equipment              59               35          (24) 
            30                 -  Vehicles                -                 -              -  
           205             223  Vessels                -                 -              -  
           269             234   Total              59               35          (24)  

 
    

 
    

 
  Support ServicesSupport ServicesSupport ServicesSupport Services    

 
    

789         1,060  Furniture & Equipment              13  60        47  
           404             528  Vehicles            643             566          (77) 
        2,564          2,294  Software & Hardware         1,605          1,850         245  
        3,757          3,882   Total         2,261          2,476         215  

 
    

 
    

      15,914         18,772  Total Capital ExpenditureTotal Capital ExpenditureTotal Capital ExpenditureTotal Capital Expenditure          47,122         65,748  18,626  
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Three: Our financial performance 
What is in this section: 

 Page 

ThreeThreeThreeThree::::    Our financial performance     111 

Statement of comprehensive income 112 

Statement of changes in equity 113 

Statement of financial position 114 

Statement of cash flows 116 

Notes to financial statements 118 

Cost of services statements 212 
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Statement of comprehensive income 
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 
 

Group  Council      Note  Group  Council Council 
 2009  2009     2010 2010 2010 

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual  Actual      Actual  Actual Plan 
 $000  $000     $000 $000 $000 

    Income Income Income Income     
        148,393       148,441   Rates revenue  3      206,058       206,081            205,269  
              -         94,390   Auckland Regional Holdings income  4                 -       101,359            107,554  

          2,250   Investment income  5        47,832           2,037  1,592  
             973               973   Farming sales  7             904               904                1,291  
        340,352         28,923   Other income  8      517,905         41,077              44,122  

961               961     Other gains  9        21,999           1,469                         -  
        490,679       275,938   Total income       794,698       352,927            359,828  

        
Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure     

          87,867                 -   Net Loss on Investment  5 -                   -                         -  
          27,165               350   Finance costs  6        29,152          1,056                2,874  
             919               919   Value of livestock sold 7             788               788                   356  
              623               434   Other losses  9          391           -                         -  
        178,286       164,202   Grant expenditure  10      270,119       192,261            236,245  
        119,977         50,379   Personnel costs  11      157,336         69,874              70,237  
          48,963            7,586   Depreciation and amortisation expense  12        72,421         12,698              11,851  
        152,516         67,129     Other operating expenses  13      200,317         73,653              77,326  
        616,316       290,999   Total operating expenditure       730,524      350,330            398,889  

              
      (125,637)       (15,061)  Operating surplus /(deficit) for the year before tax         64,174          2,597             (39,061) 
           1,769   -     Share of associate and joint venture surplus  25        2,895                  -                       -  
      (123,868)       (15,061)  Surplus/ (deficit) for the year before tax         67,069           2,597             (39,061) 

          10,995               -   Total tax expense  14        19,968  - -  
                        (134,863)(134,863)(134,863)(134,863)                            (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)            Surplus/(deficit)Surplus/(deficit)Surplus/(deficit)Surplus/(deficit)    after Tax after Tax after Tax after Tax                                 47,47,47,47,101101101101                                        2,5972,5972,5972,597                                                    (39,061(39,061(39,061(39,061))))    

 Surplus/(deficit) attributable to:  
                        (134,863)(134,863)(134,863)(134,863)                            (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)     Auckland Regional Council Group         47,475  2,597 (39,061) 

----    ----     Non-controlling interest (374)    ----    ----    

    Other comprehensive income Other comprehensive income Other comprehensive income Other comprehensive income     
(50,419) ----     Gain on property revaluations (net of tax)      247,260       202,914  ----    
(10,076) ----     Cash Flow Hedges  38             224  ----    ----    
(2,534) ----     Net Loss from Fair Value adjustment on grants  - ----    ----    
1,124 ----     Available for Sale Financial Assets* (net of tax)  38 (3,452) ----    ----    

(61,905)                   -   Total other comprehensive income       244,032       202,914  -  
                        ((((196,768)196,768)196,768)196,768)                            (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)        Total comprehensive income Total comprehensive income Total comprehensive income Total comprehensive income                         291,291,291,291,133133133133        205,511205,511205,511205,511        (39,061(39,061(39,061(39,061))))    

 Total comprehensive income attributable to:  
      (196,768)       (15,061)  Auckland Regional Council Group       291,507       205,511  (39,061) 

-  -   Non-controlling interest             (374) -   - 

* Available for sale Financial Assets 
 
To comply with the New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards, ARH’s equity investments in subsidiary companies have been 
categories as “Available for sale financial assets” by default.  However, ARH has no intention of selling these investments. 
 
Explanations of major variances against plan are detailed in note 50. 
The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements.  
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Statement of changes in equity 
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 
 
 

Group  Council  Note  Group  Council Council 
 2009   2009   2010   2010  2010  

 Actual  Actual  Actual  Actual Plan 
 $000  $000  $000  $000 $000 

1,560,115  1,025,202  Balance at 1 July Balance at 1 July Balance at 1 July Balance at 1 July       1,363,347    1,010,141  
       

1,036,852  

 (196,768)  (15,061) Total comprehensive income      291,133       205,511  
           

(39,061) 

- - 
Non-controlling Interest arising from Business 
Combination          3,300  

                  
-  - 

                    1,363,347 1,363,347 1,363,347 1,363,347             1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141             Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October                             1,657,7801,657,7801,657,7801,657,780                1,215,652 1,215,652 1,215,652 1,215,652     997,791 997,791 997,791 997,791     

Total comprehensive income attributable to: 
(196,768)  (15,061)  Auckland Regional Council Group 291,507  205,511  (39,061)  

                     
-  - Non-Controlling interest (374)  -  -  

    (196,768)(196,768)(196,768)(196,768)                            (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)            Total Comprehensive IncomeTotal Comprehensive IncomeTotal Comprehensive IncomeTotal Comprehensive Income                                        291,291,291,291,133133133133                            205,511 205,511 205,511 205,511         (39,061)(39,061)(39,061)(39,061)    
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Statement of financial position 
As At 31 October 2010 
 

Group  Council      Note    Group  Council Council 
 2009   2009          2010 2010 2010  

 Actual  Actual          Actual  Actual Plan 
 $000  $000         $000 $000 $000 

AssetsAssetsAssetsAssets    

Current assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assetsCurrent assets    
       9,911        273  Cash and cash equivalents 15   162,357     55,820        73,124  
            1            -  Current tax receivable 14           -            -               -  
    42,431     14,428  Debtors and other receivables 16   84,800     46,948       29,103  
      1,141        666  Prepayments   10,182      3,000            900  
           -     31,370  Related party receivables 17 -   16,282         6,982  
   116,550          -  Other financial assets 18          -            -              -  
     4,679           -  Derivative financial instruments 19   2,138            -               -  
     3,811           -  Rental expense in advance 20    2,315          -             -  
     9,478          -  Inventories 21   10,671           -              7  

-           -  Assets held in Trust 22     5,041           -             -  
    19,099            -    Non-current assets held for sale 23            -           -              -  
   207,101    46,737  Total current assets  277,504  122,050      110,116  

NonNonNonNon----current assetscurrent assetscurrent assetscurrent assets    
           -    17,423  Related party receivables 17          -      9,495       23,882  
   286,525   815,696  Other financial assets 18  196,910  815,696      815,696  
     5,201           -  Derivative financial instruments 19 -          -               -  
    16,081            -  Rental expense in advance 20   15,262           -              -  
      1,031      1,031  Biological Assets 24     1,713      1,713        1,031  
   16,918           -  Investments accounted for using the equity method 25  10,743           -  - 
  180,669           -  Investment properties 26  236,264           -              -  
   46,006           -  Goodwill 27   49,306           -              -  

 1,170,757    252,195  Property, plant and equipment 28 1,450,423    489,130       291,671  
    32,659      3,951    Intangible assets 29      35,347      1,992         3,008  
 1,755,847  1,090,296  Total non-current assets 1,995,968  1,318,026    1,135,288  

                  
 1,962,948  1,137,033    Total assetsTotal assetsTotal assetsTotal assets        2,273,472  1,440,076    1,245,404  
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Statement of financial position -continued 
As at 31 October 2010 
 

 Group  Council Note  Group  Council Council 
2009 2009 2010 2010 2010  

 Actual  Actual  Actual  Actual Plan 
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

LiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilitiesLiabilities    

Current liabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesCurrent liabilitiesCurrent liabilities    
    1,305        -  Current tax payable 14    4,062          -             -  

      1,084          -  Derivative financial instruments 19          -          -              -  
         76          -  Rental income in advance 20          -           -             -  

     78,557     16,419  Creditors and other payables 30  209,251  137,889       16,658  
          -    48,794  Related party payables 31          -    23,009        39,653  

    33,274    13,455  Other financial liabilities 32   18,854    12,336     127,526  
  111,306    10,806  Borrowings 33     1,150        106  - 
   13,044      5,504  Employee benefit liabilities 34   11,216     4,005      5,471 

1,115 1,115 Provisions 35 1,246 1,247 9,000 
  239,761    96,093  Total current liabilities  245,779   178,592      198,308  

NonNonNonNon----current liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilitiescurrent liabilities    
   15,466        -  Derivative financial instruments 19   11,240         -         -  
         -      1,152  Related party payables 31         -          -        1,152  

   17,423    16,271  Other financial liabilities 32 10,910     9,495       8,047  
  250,344       344  Borrowings 33 268,084    27,679     27,039  
    2,965     1,109  Employee benefit liabilities 34     3,338     1,624       1,144  
   27,423    11,923  Provisions 35   30,949     7,034     11,923  
   46,220         -    Deferred tax liability 36      45,392         -             -  
   359,841    30,799  Total non-current liabilities  369,913     45,832       49,305  

                  
   599,602   126,892    Total liabilitiesTotal liabilitiesTotal liabilitiesTotal liabilities         615,692   224,424      247,613  

    1,363,346 1,363,346 1,363,346 1,363,346     1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141             Net assetsNet assetsNet assetsNet assets                    1,1,1,1,657,780657,780657,780657,780        1,1,1,1,215,65215,65215,65215,652222                997,791 997,791 997,791 997,791     

 

Group  Council     Note    Group  Council Council 
 2009  2009       2010 2010 2010  

 Actual  Actual        Actual  Actual Plan 
 $000  $000       $000 $000 $000 

EquityEquityEquityEquity    

 1,057,807   989,987   Retained earnings  37 1,014,343    977,964       968,532  
19,985    19,985   Restricted reserves  38   34,605    34,605       29,090  
285,555       169   Other reserves  38  605,906   203,083           169  

- -  Non-controlling interest  27 2,926  - - 
1,363,3461,363,3461,363,3461,363,346        1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141             Total equityTotal equityTotal equityTotal equity            1,1,1,1,657,780657,780657,780657,780        1,1,1,1,215,652215,652215,652215,652                        997,791 997,791 997,791 997,791     

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements 
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Statement of cash flows 
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 
 

Group  Council         Group   Council    Council  
 2009  2009        2010   2010    2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual  Actual        Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000  $000     NoteNoteNoteNote       $000   $000   $000  

Cash flows from operating activitiesCash flows from operating activitiesCash flows from operating activitiesCash flows from operating activities    
  146,542   146,590   Rates revenue    288,051   288,074     344,666  
  198,031          -   Receipts from customers (inclusive of GST)   260,533          -          -  
    18,625           -   Rail fare revenue    28,102          -          -  
      4,436           -   Bus fare revenue     11,322          -          -  
      1,998            -   Ferry wharf revenue      3,464          -          -  
     23,519     27,132   Service and facilities revenue     30,167    31,959        34,235  

          -    93,566  
 Auckland Regional Holdings income - general 
distributions received  -  97,042      110,643  

          -     16,145  
 Auckland Regional Holdings income - distribution for ex 
IA grants received          -     27,333      23,344  

  109,207          -   New Zealand Transport Agency - grants received  200,180  - - 
     2,944     1,594   Other grants and subsidies received    14,548      7,385       12,458  
     2,570      2,502   Other operating income     2,446      2,848        3,620  
      3,310      2,250   Interest received      4,811     2,037         746  
          11            -   Income tax received     -         -          -  
     3,918           -   Dividends received       4,536          -          -  
 (400,010)  (58,693)  Payments to suppliers (inclusive of GST)  (490,220)  (73,551)    (86,668) 
  (62,427)  (49,703)  Payments to employees  (159,356)  (70,858)    (70,513) 

  (15,935)  (14,404) 
 Payments for grant expenditure - distribution for ex IA 
grants    (25,037)  (25,037) - 

          -  (173,784)  Payments for grant expenditure - general distributions  (11,307) (202,055)   (265,561) 
        -          -   Purchase & Development of NZTA Asset held in Trust     (5,041)         -          -  

   (26,312)     (118)  Interest paid   (29,231)    (664)      (860) 
  (10,336)         -     Net GST received and remitted to IRD     (13,581)         -     (17,309) 

91   (6,923) Net cash flows from operating activities 39 114,387         84,513  88,801  
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Statement of cash flows - continued 
For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 
 

Group  Council         Group   Council    Council  
 2009  2009        2010   2010    2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual  Actual        Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000  $000     NoteNoteNoteNote       $000   $000   $000  

    Cash flows from investing activitiesCash flows from investing activitiesCash flows from investing activitiesCash flows from investing activities        
  107,100           -   Withdrawal from portfolio investments   239,594          -          -  
     1,027           -   Proceeds from derecognition of available-for-sale asset          -          -              -  
        250          -   Repayments of loans and advances      6,325          -              -  
     1,819     1,001   Sale of property, plant and equipment     46,211          795           163  
       973       973   Sale of livestock       904        904         -  
          -          -   Contribution to Remediation Obligations    10,000          -              -  
        -          -   Sale of Investment Property      9,700          -  

  (11,622)         -   Loan advanced to joint venture          -          -             -  
 (102,478)  (14,260)  Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (151,903)  (46,856)    (73,574) 
    (6,996)    (1,654)  Purchase of intangible assets    (7,049)     (266)        (642) 
      (169)     (169)  Purchase of livestock      (178)     (178)        - 
            -           -   Purchase of investment property          -          -          -  
           -           -   Purchase of investment in associate     (750)         -              -  
           -            -   Transaction costs for purchase of DFA investments          -          -              -  
    (5,815)          -     Capitalised investment property costs     (22,280)         -              -  
   (15,911)  (14,109) Net cash flows from investing activities   130,574   (45,601)     (74,053) 

                    
        

    Cash flows from financing activities Cash flows from financing activities Cash flows from financing activities Cash flows from financing activities     
    

     16,150     11,150  
 

 Loan funding  
 

   41,685     27,335      32,210 
   (10,000)          -   Payment of loans  (134,200)  (10,700)      25,916 
       (128)     (128)    Payment of finance leases            -          -              -  
      6,022    11,022  Net cash flows from financing activities  (92,515)    16,635      58,126 

                                
    

                          
    (9,798)   (10,010) Net incrNet incrNet incrNet increase in cash and ease in cash and ease in cash and ease in cash and cash equivalents cash equivalents cash equivalents cash equivalents      152,446     55,547      72,874 
    19,709     10,283  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year       9,911        273            250  

                    9,911 9,911 9,911 9,911                     273 273 273 273             CashCashCashCash    andandandand    cash equivalents cash equivalents cash equivalents cash equivalents at theat theat theat the    end of the year end of the year end of the year end of the year     15       162,357 162,357 162,357 162,357                     55,820 55,820 55,820 55,820                 73,12473,12473,12473,124    

                        

The GST (net) component of operating expenses reflects the net GST paid and received with the Inland Revenue Department. The GST (net) component has 
been presented on a net basis, as the gross amounts do not provide meaningful information for financial statement purposes. 

The accompanying notes and accounting policies should be read in conjunction with these financial statements  
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Notes to financial statements 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Note 1: Statement of accounting policies for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

1.1.1.1.    Reporting entity Reporting entity Reporting entity Reporting entity     

The Auckland Regional Council group (ARC group) is a regional local authority governed by the Local 

Government Act 2002 and is domiciled in New Zealand. 

The Group consists of the ARC and its council controlled organisations (CCO), Auckland Regional 

Holdings (ARH) and Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA). ARH and ARTA were established 

on 1 July 2004 by the Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004 (LGAAA). The LGAAA 

defines the ARC as the sole shareholder of ARH and ARTA. Subsidiary companies of ARH include Ports 

of Auckland Limited (POAL) and Sea+City Projects Limited (SCPL). All ARC CCOs are 100 % owned 

and domiciled in New Zealand. 

The primary objective of the ARC group is to enable democratic local decision-making and action by, 

and on behalf of, communities; and promote the social, economic, environmental and cultural well-

being of communities, in the present and for the future.   

The primary objectives of ARH are to: 

a) own, directly or indirectly, and manage assets (including funds) in the long-term interests of the 

Auckland region; 

b) provide funds to the Auckland Regional Council (ARC) in accordance with ARH’s long-term funding 

plan prepared under section 21 of the LGAAA04; 

c) make land transport assets available to assist the Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) to achieve 

ARTA’s objective; and 

d) undertake such other functions as are given to it by the LGAAA04 or any other Act, or are authorised 

by its statement of intent. 

For the purposes of New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (NZ IFRS), 

ARC and ARTA are designated as public benefit entities and Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) a profit-

orientated statutory investment management entity.    

Financial statements of the Council and Group are presented for the 16-month period ended 31 

October 2010. ARC and Group’s report, which includes the financial statements, performance 

information and other requirements, have been completed by the new Auckland Council pursuant to 

the Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act. The financial statements were 

authorised for issue by the Auckland Council on 31 March 2011.         

2.2.2.2.    Basis of preparationBasis of preparationBasis of preparationBasis of preparation    

Statement of complianceStatement of complianceStatement of complianceStatement of compliance    

The financial statements of the ARC group have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 

the Local Government Act 2002, which includes the requirement to comply with New Zealand 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (NZ GAAP). These financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with NZ GAAP.  They comply with NZ IFRS, and other applicable Financial Reporting 

Standards, as appropriate for public benefit entities. 

 

Dissolution basis of accounts preparationDissolution basis of accounts preparationDissolution basis of accounts preparationDissolution basis of accounts preparation    
 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 dissolved Auckland Regional 

Council and Group on 31 October 2010.  The functions, duties and powers of Auckland Regional 

Council and Group became the functions, duties and powers of the Auckland Council, the single unitary 

authority responsible for governing the Auckland region from 1 November 2010, and Environment 
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Waikato. All of Auckland Regional Council and Group’s assets, rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements 

and engagements vested in the Auckland Council group and Environment Waikato at that date. 

 

The dissolution of Auckland Regional Council and Group requires the financial statements to be 

prepared on a dissolution basis, not the normal going-concern basis. All the services Auckland Regional 

Council and Group delivered continue to be delivered by the Auckland Council group and Environment 

Waikato. Because the operations, assets and liabilities of Auckland Regional Council and Group have 

been transferred to the Auckland Council group and Environment Waikato, no adjustments (1) have 

been made in the financial statements resulting from the dissolution basis of preparation, nor have 

there been any changes to the carrying values of the assets other than as set out in Note 11, 29 and 

46. 

(1) Adjustments include assets write downs, termination payments and reclassification of assets and 

liabilities. 

 

Measurement baseMeasurement baseMeasurement baseMeasurement base    

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, modified by the revaluation of 

certain land and buildings, wharves structures, rolling stocks, railway stations, investment property, 

biological assets and financial instruments (including derivative instruments). 

Functional and presentation currencyFunctional and presentation currencyFunctional and presentation currencyFunctional and presentation currency    

The financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars and all values are rounded to the 

nearest thousand dollars ($000). The functional currency of the ARC and ARC group is New Zealand 

dollars. 

Transactions in currencies other than the entities functional currency (foreign currencies) are recorded 

at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date, any 

monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the 

reporting date. Foreign exchange gains and losses, resulting from the settlement of such transactions, 

and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies, are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when deferred 

in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges. 

3.3.3.3.    Changes in accounting policiesChanges in accounting policiesChanges in accounting policiesChanges in accounting policies    

The financial statements for the 16 months to 31 October 2010 have been prepared on a dissolution 

basis.     

ARC group changed its accounting policy to revalue assets instead of being held at historical costs, 

both allowed under NZ IAS 16.  This represents a change in accounting policy under NZ IAS 8.  This 

change is however specifically excluded from the disclosure requirements and retrospective application 

per NZ IAS 8: Changes in accounting policy.  The assets revalued included restricted land and buildings 

(for ARC) and rolling stocks, wharf structures, land (finance lease) and railway stations (ARTA). 

 

With the exception of the change in accounting policy that is explained above, the accounting policies 

set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.   

 

The ARC and Group have adopted the following revisions to accounting standards during the period 

ended 31 October 2010, which have had only a presentational or disclosure effect: 

 

• NZ IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (revised 2007) is effective for reporting periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2009.  The revised standard requires information in financial 

statements to be aggregated on the basis of shared characteristics and introduces a statement 

of comprehensive income. The statement of comprehensive income will enable readers to 

analyse changes in equity resulting from non-owner changes separately from transactions with 

owners.  The ARC and Group have decided to prepare a single statement of comprehensive 

income for the period ended 31 October 2010 under the revised standard. Financial statement 



 

Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 121 

information for the year ended 30 June 2009 has been restated accordingly. Items of other 

comprehensive income presented in the statement of comprehensive income were previously 

recognised directly in the statement of changes in equity. 
 

• Amendments to NZ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures. The amendments introduce a 

three-level fair value disclosure hierarchy that distinguishes fair value measurements by the 

significance of valuation inputs used. A maturity analysis of financial assets is also required to 

be prepared if this information is necessary to enable users of the financial statements to 

evaluate the nature and extent of liquidity risk. The transitional provisions of the amendment do 

not require disclosure of comparative information in the first year of application. The ARC and 

Group have elected to disclose comparative information. 

 

Standards, amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not been eaStandards, amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not been eaStandards, amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not been eaStandards, amendments and interpretations issued that are not yet effective and have not been early rly rly rly 

adoptedadoptedadoptedadopted    

 

• NZ IFRS 9 Financial instruments will eventually replace NZ IAS 39 Financial Instruments: 
Recognition and Measurement.  NZ IAS 39 is being replaced through the following 3 main 

phases:  Phase 1 Classification and Measurement, Phase 2 Impairment Methodology, and 

Phase 3 Hedge Accounting.  Phase 1 on the classification and measurement of financial assets 

has been completed and has been published in the new financial instruments standard NZ 

IFRS 9, which uses a single approach to determine whether a financial asset is measured at 

amortised cost of fair value, replacing the many different rules in NZ IAS 39.  The approach in 

NZ IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments (its business model) 

and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.  The new standard also 

requires a single impairment method to be used, replacing the many different impairment 

methods in NZ IAS 39.  The new standard is required to be adopted for the year ended 30 June 

2014.   

• NZ IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised 2009) replaces NZ IAS 24 Related party 
Disclosures (Issued 2004).  The revised standard simplifies the definition of a related party, 

clarifying its intended meaning and eliminating inconsistencies from the definition.  Its effect 

will be to disclose further information about commitments between related parties. The new 

standard is required to be adopted, at the latest, for the year ended 30 June 2012.   

As the above standards come into effect after the dissolution of the ARC and Group on  

1 November 2010, the ARC and Group has not assessed the effect of the new standards and will 

not be early adopted. 

 

• Improvements to New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 2009. 

These changes are as a result of the IASB’s annual improvements process and include 

amendments to certain recognition, measurement and presentation requirements of NZ IFRS. 

• Improvements to New Zealand Equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards 2010 

(effective from 1 July 2010).  These changes are as a result of the IASB’s annual improvements 

processes and include amendments to certain recognition, measurement and presentation 

requirements of NZ IFRS.  This change is not expected to have a material impact on the Group. 

 

4444....    Significant accounting policiesSignificant accounting policiesSignificant accounting policiesSignificant accounting policies    

Accounting policies are selected and applied in a manner which ensures that the resulting financial 

information satisfies the concepts of relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that the substance of 

the underlying transactions or other events is reported. 

The significant accounting policies that materially affect the measurement of net surplus and the 

financial position are set out below. 
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Basis of consolidationBasis of consolidationBasis of consolidationBasis of consolidation    

The purchase method is used to prepare the consolidated financial statements, which involves adding 

together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses on a line-by-line basis. All 

significant intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. 

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the consolidated financial statements to bring accounting 

policies used by members of the ARC group into line. 

SubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiariesSubsidiaries    

Subsidiaries are consolidated in the group financial statements. Subsidiaries are all entities over which 

the ARC group has the capacity to control their financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits 

from the activities of the entity. This power exists where the ARC group controls the majority voting 

power on the governing board or where such policies have been irreversibly predetermined by ARC 

group or where the determination of such policies is unable to materially impact the level of potential 

ownership benefits that arise from the activities of the subsidiary. 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred and are deconsolidated 

from the date on which control ceases. 

The purchase method is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries. The assets, liabilities and 

contingent liabilities of the subsidiary are measured at their fair value at the date of acquisition, 

irrespective of any minority interest.  Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the 

ARC group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recognised as goodwill. If the cost of 

acquisition is less than the fair value of the ARC group's share of the net assets acquired, the 

difference is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period of 

acquisition. 

Investments in its subsidiaries are carried at cost in the ARC’s own parent entity financial statements. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all transactions, balances and unrealised profits and 

losses on transactions between group entities are eliminated. 

POAL associatesPOAL associatesPOAL associatesPOAL associates    

Associates are entities in which the ARC Group has significant influence but not control, generally 

evidenced by a holding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.  Investments in associates are 

accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, after 

initially being recognised at cost. The group's investments in associates include goodwill identified on 

acquisition.  

The Group’s share of its post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in 

reserves.  The cumulative post-acquisition movements adjust the carrying amount of the investment. 

Dividends receivable from an associate reduce the carrying amount of the investment in the 

consolidated financial statements. 

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, 

including any other unsecured receivables, the group does not recognise further losses, unless it has 

incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. 

Unrealised gains on transactions between the group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of 

the Group’s interest in the relevant associate. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the 

transaction provided evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of 

associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by 

the Group. 

POAL joint venturesPOAL joint venturesPOAL joint venturesPOAL joint ventures    

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby two or more parties undertake an economic 

activity that is subject to joint control. 

The interest in a jointly controlled entity is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using 

the equity method. Under the equity method, the share of the profits or losses of the jointly controlled 
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entity is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, and the share of movements in 

reserves is recognised in reserves in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Profits or losses on transactions establishing the jointly controlled entity and transactions with the joint 

venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s ownership interest until such time as they are 

realised by the jointly controlled entity on consumption or sale, unless they relate to an unrealised loss 

that provides evidence of the impairment of an asset transferred. 

5555....    Income Income Income Income     

Income is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. 

Provision of servicesProvision of servicesProvision of servicesProvision of services    

Income from the rendering of services is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the 

transaction at balance date. The stage of completion is based on the actual service provided as a 

percentage of the total services to be provided. 

Vested assetsVested assetsVested assetsVested assets    

    Where a physical asset is acquired for nil or nominal consideration the fair value of the asset received 

is recognised as income. Assets vested in the Group are recognised as income when control of the 

asset is obtained. 

Sales of goodsSales of goodsSales of goodsSales of goods 

Income from sales of goods is recognised when a product is sold to the customer. The recorded 

revenue is the gross amount of the sale, including credit card fees payable for the transaction. 

Interest incomeInterest incomeInterest incomeInterest income    

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the 

effective interest rate applicable. 

Fare revenueFare revenueFare revenueFare revenue    

ARTA receives fare box revenue from certain bus and ferry services and all rail services. This revenue 

is recognised when the ticket is purchased. 

Rental incomeRental incomeRental incomeRental income    

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant 
agreements. 

Dividend incomeDividend incomeDividend incomeDividend income    

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the right to receive payment has been 

established. 

Rates revenueRates revenueRates revenueRates revenue    

Rates are set annually by a resolution from Council and relate to a financial year. All ratepayers are 

invoiced within the financial year to which the rates have been set. Rates revenue is recognised when 

levied.  Penalties and discounts relating to rates are recognised when conditions are met. 

ARH grant distriARH grant distriARH grant distriARH grant distributionsbutionsbutionsbutions    

The LGAAA provides the ARC with the power to obtain distributions from ARH to fund transport, 

stormwater and other activities. General grant distributions from ARH are recognised as income over 

the periods necessary to match them with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a 

systematic basis, or, for expenses already incurred or for the purposes of giving immediate financial 

support, they are recognised in the period in which they become receivable. 
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New Zealand Transport Agency (NZNew Zealand Transport Agency (NZNew Zealand Transport Agency (NZNew Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) grantsTA) grantsTA) grantsTA) grants    

ARTA receives government grants from NZTA, which subsidies administration, operational and capital 

expenditure. Grant distributions from NZTA are recognised as income when the expenditure they cover 

is incurred i.e. on an accruals basis. Sometimes the income has conditions associated with it in terms 

of delivery. NZTA performs a biannual audit on ARTA’s processes. If an anomaly is found then ARTA 

may be obliged to pay the relevant funds back. 

Farming revenueFarming revenueFarming revenueFarming revenue 

Revenue from farming is recognised when livestock and wool have been sold and the amount of 

revenue can be measured reliably 

6666....    Borrowing costsBorrowing costsBorrowing costsBorrowing costs    

CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil    

The Council has elected to defer the adoption of NZ IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (Revised 2007) in 
accordance with its transitional provisions that are applicable to public benefit entities.   

 

Consequently, all borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are 

incurred. 

 

POALPOALPOALPOAL    

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred, except for 

costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset which are capitalised during the period of 

time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. 

The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the 

weighted average interest rate applicable to the entity's outstanding borrowings during the year. 

Upon consolidation the capitalised interest is eliminated in the Group accounts.  

7777....    Grant expenditureGrant expenditureGrant expenditureGrant expenditure    

Non-discretionary grants are those grants that are awarded if the grant application meets the specified 

criteria and are recognised as expenditure when an application that meets the specified criteria for the 

grant has been received. 

Discretionary grants are those grants where the Group has no obligation to award on receipt of the 

grant application and are recognised as expenditure when a successful applicant has been notified of 

the Group’s decision.    

8888....    Income TaxIncome TaxIncome TaxIncome Tax 

ARTA, ARC and ARH are generally exempt from paying income tax in New Zealand; however ARH's 

subsidiaries are standard tax-payers.  Group exemption from income tax does not include any income 

derived from port-related commercial undertakings. 

The income tax expense for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based 

on the applicable income tax rate. This is then adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities 

attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying 

amounts in the financial statements, and by unused tax losses. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences at the tax rates expected to 

apply when the assets are recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which are 

enacted or substantively enacted. The relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of 

deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the deferred tax asset or liability. An 

exception is made for certain temporary differences arising from initial recognition of an asset or a 

liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in relation to these temporary differences if they 
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arose in a transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time of the transaction did not 

affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if 

it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and 

losses. 

Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised directly in equity are also 

recognised directly in equity. 

9999....    LeasesLeasesLeasesLeases    

Finance leasesFinance leasesFinance leasesFinance leases 

A finance lease is a lease that transfers to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental 

to ownership of an asset, whether or not title is eventually transferred. 

Group as lessee 

At the commencement of the lease term, the Group recognises finance leases as assets and liabilities 

in the Statement of Financial Position at the lower of their fair value of the leased item or the present 

value of the minimum lease payments.  

The finance charge is charged over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of 

interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 

The amount recognised as an asset is depreciated over its useful life. If there is no certainty as to 

whether the Group will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term, the asset is fully depreciated 

over the shorter of the lease term and its useful life. 

Operating leasesOperating leasesOperating leasesOperating leases    

An operating lease is a lease that does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an asset.   

Group as lessee 

Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) under an operating lease are 

recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.  

Group as lessor  

Assets leased to third parties under operating leases are included within investment property and 

property, plant and equipment in the Statement of Financial Position.  Leased property, plant and 

equipment are depreciated over its expected useful life on a basis consistent with non-leased property, 

plant and equipment.  Rental income (net of any incentives given to lessees) is recognised on a 

straight-line basis over the lease term. 

10101010....    Cash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalentsCash and cash equivalents    

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, and 

other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are 

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in 

value, and bank overdrafts. 

Bank overdrafts are classified within borrowings in the Statement of Financial Position. 

11111111....    DebtorsDebtorsDebtorsDebtors    and other receivablesand other receivablesand other receivablesand other receivables 

Debtors and other receivables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost, less any provision for impairment. 

The ability to collect trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be 

uncollectible are written off. Trade receivables that are over 180 days overdue are considered 



Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 126 

potentially uncollectible and where there is evidence a trade receivable is in receivership or liquidation 

this would be recognised as uncollectible. A provision for impairment of receivables is established 

where there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according 

to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the 

debtor will enter into bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or delinquency in payments 

(more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that a trade receivable is impaired.  

The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying value and the present value 

of estimated future cash flows, discounted using the effective interest rate method. The loss is 

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in “other operating expenses”. When a trade 

receivable for which the provision for impairment has been recognised becomes uncollectible in a 

subsequent period, it is written off against the provision for impairment of receivables. Subsequent 

recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against “other operating expenses” in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

12121212....    InventoriesInventoriesInventoriesInventories 

Inventories held for distribution or consumption in the provision of services that are not supplied on a 

commercial basis are measured at cost, adjusted where applicable, for any loss of service potential.  

Where inventories are acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, the cost is the current 

replacement cost at the date of acquisition. 

Inventories held for use in the production of goods and services on a commercial basis are valued at 

the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the 

basis of weighted average costs. 

The amount of any write down for the loss of service potential or from cost to net realisable value is 

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period of the write down. 

For POAL inventories, raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the 

lower of cost and net realisable value.  Costs are assigned to individual items in inventory on the basis 

of weighted average costs. 

13131313....    Investments and other financial assetsInvestments and other financial assetsInvestments and other financial assetsInvestments and other financial assets    

The Group classifies its investments and other financial assets in the following four categories: financial 

assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and 

available-for-sale financial assets (financial assets at fair value through equity). The classification 

depends on the nature and purpose for which the investments and other financial assets were 

acquired. Management determines the classification at initial recognition and re-evaluates this 

designation at each reporting date, where appropriate. 

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs unless they are carried at fair 

value through profit and loss in which case the transaction costs are recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised at trade-date, the date on which the Group 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive 

cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Group has 

transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. 

Fair value estimationFair value estimationFair value estimationFair value estimation    

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets (such as publically traded derivates, and 

trading and some available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet 

date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price; the 

appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask price. 

The fair value of financial instruments for which there is no active market is determined using valuation 

techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market 

conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments 

are used for long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques, such as estimated discounted future 
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cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair value of 

interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated cash flows. The fair value of 

forward exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at balance date. 

The nominal value less credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to 

approximate their fair values.  

ImpairmentImpairmentImpairmentImpairment    

Financial assets are assessed for objective evidence of impairment at balance date.  Impairment losses 

are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Loans and other receivables, and held-to-maturity investments 

Impairment is established when there is objective evidence that the Council and Group will not be able 

to collect amounts due according to the original terms of the debt.  Significant financial difficulties of 

the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter into bankruptcy and default in payments are considered 

indicators that the asset is impaired.  The amount of the impairment is the difference between the 

asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted using the 

original effective interest rate.  For debtors and other receivables, the carrying amount of the asset is 

reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income.  When the receivable is uncollectible, it is written off against the 

allowance account. Overdue receivables that have been renegotiated are reclassified as current (that is, 

not past due).  Impairment in term deposits, local authority stock, government stock, and community 

loans, are recognised directly against the instrument’s carrying amount. 

Available-for-sale financial assets (financial assets at fair value through equity) 

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its 

cost is considered objective evidence of impairment. 

For debt investments, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 

into bankruptcy, and default in payments are considered objective indicators that the asset is impaired, 

If impairment evidence exists for investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, the 

cumulative loss (measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, 

less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income) recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Equity instrument impairment losses recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income are not 

reversed through the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

If in a subsequent period the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be 

objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss 

is reversed in the surplus or deficit.  

The categories of financial assets are:The categories of financial assets are:The categories of financial assets are:The categories of financial assets are:    

(a) Financial asse(a) Financial asse(a) Financial asse(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)ts at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)ts at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)ts at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair 

value through profit and loss on initial recognition. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if 

acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term or if it is part of a portfolio of financial 

instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit 

taking or if so designated by management. The Group's policy is to designate a financial asset in this 

category if the asset is subject to frequent changes in fair value and the performance of the asset is 

evaluated on a fair value basis in accordance with a documented investment strategy. Derivatives are 

also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated and effective as a hedging instrument. 

Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected 

to be realised within 12 months of the balance date, otherwise they are classified as non-current 

assets. 

After initial recognition they are measured at their fair values. Realised and unrealised gains and losses 

arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” 

category are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. 
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(b) Loans and receivables(b) Loans and receivables(b) Loans and receivables(b) Loans and receivables    

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly 

to a debtor with no intention of selling the receivable. They are classified as current assets, except for 

those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-

current assets.  

After initial recognition they are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less 

impairment. 

Gains and losses when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 

(c) Held(c) Held(c) Held(c) Held----totototo----maturity investmentsmaturity investmentsmaturity investmentsmaturity investments    

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 

and fixed maturities that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. They are 

classified as current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the balance 

sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets.  

After initial recognition they are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less 

impairment. 

Gains and losses when the asset is impaired or derecognised are recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 

(d) Available(d) Available(d) Available(d) Available----forforforfor----sale financial assets (financial assets at fair value through equitysale financial assets (financial assets at fair value through equitysale financial assets (financial assets at fair value through equitysale financial assets (financial assets at fair value through equity)))) 

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this 

category or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets 

unless the Group intends to dispose of the financial asset within 12 months of the balance sheet date. 

After initial recognition they are measured at their fair values. 

Equity shares held by the Group, which are classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are stated at 

fair value after adjustment for impairment, if any. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in 

the fair value of the equity securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other 

comprehensive income in the available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve. Where this results 

in a negative balance, which is not expected to reverse because there is objective evidence that it is 

impaired, the cumulative net loss is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income as an 

expense. Where equity securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or otherwise derecognised, 

the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in this reserve are transferred to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 

Available-for-sale financial assets comprise investments in listed and unlisted equity securities. The 

ARC’s investment in its subsidiaries is not included in this category as it is held at cost (as allowed by 

NZ IAS 27 and 28) whereas this category is to be measured at fair value. 

Effective interest methodEffective interest methodEffective interest methodEffective interest method    

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of 

allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly 

discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that form an 

integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through 

the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying 

amount of the financial asset. 

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial 

assets designated at FVTPL. 
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14141414....    Derivative financial instrumentsDerivative financial instrumentsDerivative financial instrumentsDerivative financial instruments    

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to reduce its exposure to interest rate risks arising 

from financing activities. In accordance with its Treasury Management Policy, the Group does not hold 

or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. 

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 

subsequently re-measured at their fair value at balance date.  The method of recognising the resulting 

gain or loss depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the 

nature of the item being hedged. 

POALPOALPOALPOAL    and ARTAand ARTAand ARTAand ARTA    

POAL and ARTA designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value of recognised assets 

or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or hedges of highly probable forecast transactions 

(cash flow hedge). At the inception of the transaction, POAL and ARTA documents the relationship 

between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and 

strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. POAL and ARTA also documents its assessment, 

both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging 

transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or 

cash flows of hedged items. 

Fair value hedgeFair value hedgeFair value hedgeFair value hedge    

Change in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded 

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged 

asset of liability that are attributable to the hedged risk.  

POAL and ARTA applies only fair value hedge accounting for hedged fixed interest rate borrowings. 

The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swaps that hedge fixed interest rate 

borrowings is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within “finance costs”.  The gain 

or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

within “gains” or “losses”. Changes in the fair value of the hedge fixed rate borrowings attributable to 

interest rate risk are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within “finance costs”. 

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount 

of a hedged item for which the effective interest method is used is amortised to the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income over the period to maturity. 

Cash flow hedgeCash flow hedgeCash flow hedgeCash flow hedge    

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash 

flow hedges is recognised in equity in the cash flow hedge reserve. The gain or loss relating to the 

ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Accounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the 

periods when the hedged item will affect the profit or loss (for instance when the interest payment 

that is hedged takes place). The gain or loss relating to the effective portion of the interest rate swap 

that hedge variable interest rate borrowings is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 

within finance costs when the related interest expense is recognised. When a forecast transaction that 

is hedged results in the recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, the gains and losses 

previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the measurement of the initial 

cost of the item of property, plant and equipment. The deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in 

the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the item of plant, property, and equipment is 

depreciated.  

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the 

criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loss existing in equity at the time remains in 

equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative 

gain or loss that was reported in equity is immediately transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive 

Income. 
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Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accountingDerivatives that do not qualify for hedge accountingDerivatives that do not qualify for hedge accountingDerivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting    

Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument that does not qualify for hedge accounting are 

recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

15151515....    NonNonNonNon----current assets held for salecurrent assets held for salecurrent assets held for salecurrent assets held for sale    

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 

through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. The condition is regarded as met only 

when the sale is highly probable and the asset is available for immediate sale in its present condition.  

The Group must be committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a 

completed sale within one year from the date of classification. 

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are recorded at the lower of the carrying amount and fair 

value less costs to sell. Fair value less costs to sell is based on an independent valuer’s report. 

Non-current assets are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified as held for sale.  

16161616.     Biological assets.     Biological assets.     Biological assets.     Biological assets    

LivestockLivestockLivestockLivestock    

Livestock are independently revalued annually at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs. The fair 

value is determined based on the present value of expected net cash flows at a current market 

determined pre-tax rate. 

Gains or losses arising on initial recognition of livestock at fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs 

and from a change in fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs are recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income. 

Wool is initially measured at its fair value less estimated point-of-sale costs at the time of shearing. The 

fair value of wool is determined based on market prices in the local area. 

17171717....    Property, Property, Property, Property, plant and equipmentplant and equipmentplant and equipmentplant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment consists of: 

Operational assetsOperational assetsOperational assetsOperational assets - These include land and improvements, buildings, plant and equipment, motor 

vehicles, rolling stock, railway stations, wharves, pavements, furniture and fittings, roads and civil 

structures. 

Restricted assetsRestricted assetsRestricted assetsRestricted assets – These are parks and reserves (including improvements and buildings) owned by the 

Group which provide a benefit or service to the community and cannot be disposed of because of legal 

or other restrictions. 

Those asset classes that are revalued are valued on a regular basis as described below. All other asset 

classes are carried at depreciated historical cost.  

Depreciation of these assets commences when these assets are ready for use. 

Fair valueFair valueFair valueFair value    

The fair value of an asset is the amount for which the asset could be exchanged between willing 

parties in an arm’s length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for the same asset or 

a similar asset in the same location and condition. Where the fair value is not able to be determined in 

this manner, the most common and accepted methods for assessing the current market value are the 

capitalisation of estimated rental approach and the discounted cash flow approach. Where the fair 

value of the asset is not able to be reliably determined using any of the above market based evidence, 

depreciated replacement cost is considered to be the most appropriate basis. This situation arises 

where assets are of a specialised nature, and where the asset is rarely sold, except as part of a 

continuing business. 
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ARH Property, plant and equipment (PPE)ARH Property, plant and equipment (PPE)ARH Property, plant and equipment (PPE)ARH Property, plant and equipment (PPE)    

Land, buildings and wharves (except for investment properties) are shown at fair value, based on 

periodic valuations by external independent valuers, carried out at least triennially, less subsequent 

depreciation for buildings and wharves and impairment losses. Any accumulated depreciation at the 

date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is 

restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Pavements are stated at deemed cost based on a 

valuation performed as at 30 June 2005. Land, buildings, wharves and pavements were all revalued at 

30 June 2009 by external independent valuers, Barrat-Boyes Jefferies Limited.  All other property, plant 

and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment losses.  Historical cost 

includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.  Cost may also include 

transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases 

of property, plant and equipment. 

CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil    

Council revalued restricted land and improvements for the first time as at 30 June 2010.  The valuation 

was performed by an independent registered valuer, Darroch Limited. The basis of valuation is based 

on fair market valuation.  There are no material movements between restricted land and buildings at 30 

June 2010 and 31 October 2010. 

ARTAARTAARTAARTA    

ARTA revalued the rolling stock, wharf structures, land (finance leases) and railway stations for the first 

time at 31 October 2010 using depreciated replacement cost method to ensure that their carrying 

amount does not differ materially from fair value.  This is required by the Auckland Transition Agency, 

in order to align the accounting policies for the new Auckland Council group post 31 October 2010. 

Other Property, plant and equipment (PPE)Other Property, plant and equipment (PPE)Other Property, plant and equipment (PPE)Other Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

All other PPE is stated at historical cost less depreciation less accumulated depreciation and 

impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of 

the items. Cost may also include transfers of any gains or losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of 

foreign currency purchases of PPE. 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow 

to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are 

charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the financial period in which they are 

incurred. 

AdditionsAdditionsAdditionsAdditions    

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if, and only if, it is 

probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 

Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Work in progress is recognised at cost less impairment and is not depreciated. 

In most instances, an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised at its cost. Where an asset 

is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, it is recognised at fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

DisposalsDisposalsDisposalsDisposals    

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount of 

the asset. Gains and losses on disposals are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

When revalued assets are sold, the Group’s policy is to transfer the amounts included in asset 

revaluation reserves in respect of those assets to retained earnings. 

DepreciationDepreciationDepreciationDepreciation    

Land and all capital projects in progress are not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is provided 

using the straight-line method at rates that will allocate their cost or revalued amounts, net of their 

residual values, over their estimated useful lives. The useful lives and associated depreciation rates of 

major classes of assets have been estimated as follows: 
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Asset classesAsset classesAsset classesAsset classes    Expected useful life (years)Expected useful life (years)Expected useful life (years)Expected useful life (years)    Depreciation rate (%)Depreciation rate (%)Depreciation rate (%)Depreciation rate (%)    

Rolling stockRolling stockRolling stockRolling stock    
  

ADK carriage    6    16.7    

ADL carriage    10    10    

SA/SD carriage - exterior    15    6.7    

SA/SD carriage - interior    7.5    13.3    

SX carriage    2 - 6    16.7 - 50    

Locomotives (leasehold improvements)    15    6.7    

Railway stations and associated assetsRailway stations and associated assetsRailway stations and associated assetsRailway stations and associated assets    
        

Structures    20 - 50    2 - 5    

Signage    3 -10    10 - 33    

Fencing    2 -15    6.7 - 50    

Plant, machinery and other equipmentPlant, machinery and other equipmentPlant, machinery and other equipmentPlant, machinery and other equipment    
  

Plant and machinery 5 -20 5 - 20 

Other equipment 1-20 5 - 100 

Cycle lockers 5 20 

Fibre optic cable 15.5 6.4 

Low value assetsLow value assetsLow value assetsLow value assets    1 100 

BuildingsBuildingsBuildingsBuildings      

Freehold Buildings    30 - 50 2 - 3.3 

Other buildings    10 – 100 1 - 10 

RoadsRoadsRoadsRoads    50 2 

Civil structuresCivil structuresCivil structuresCivil structures      

Dams, bridges and structures    50 2 

VehiclesVehiclesVehiclesVehicles     5 20 

Wharves, piers and associated assetsWharves, piers and associated assetsWharves, piers and associated assetsWharves, piers and associated assets       

Wharves    10-100 1 -10 

Piers    10-50 2 - 10 

Signage    3-10 10 - 33 

Fencing 2-15 6.7 - 50 

PavementsPavementsPavementsPavements 25 – 85 1.2- 4 

FurniturFurniturFurniturFurniture, fixtures and other equipmente, fixtures and other equipmente, fixtures and other equipmente, fixtures and other equipment      2 - 20 5 – 50 

The residual value and estimated useful life of an asset is reviewed, and adjusted if applicable, at each 

financial year end.  

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as 

owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. 

Accounting for revaluationsAccounting for revaluationsAccounting for revaluationsAccounting for revaluations    

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of certain land, building, wharves, rolling 

stocks and railway stations are credited to an asset revaluation reserve for that class of asset in equity. 

To the extent that the increases reverses a decrease previously recognised in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income, the increase is first recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Decreases that reverse previous increases of the same asset are first charged against asset revaluation 
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reserves directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the asset; all other 

decreases are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Work in progress (WIP)Work in progress (WIP)Work in progress (WIP)Work in progress (WIP)    

All capital projects in progress are designated WIP. The total cost of a project is transferred to the 

relevant asset class on its completion and depreciation commences. 

18181818....    Intangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assetsIntangible assets    

GoodwillGoodwillGoodwillGoodwill    

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of 

the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary or associate or joint venture at the date of 

acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is shown separately on the Statement of Financial 

Position. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in “investments in associates”. Goodwill on 

acquisitions of joint ventures is included in “investments in joint ventures”.  Goodwill acquired in 

business combinations is not amortised. Instead goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more 

frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried at 

cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the 

carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold. 

Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of impairment testing. Each of those 

cash generating units represents the Group’s investment in the operation by each primary reporting 

segment. 

 

Computer software acquisition and developmentComputer software acquisition and developmentComputer software acquisition and developmentComputer software acquisition and development    

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and 

bring to use the specific software. These costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over their 

estimated useful lives (three to five years). 

Costs that are directly associated with the development of identifiable and unique software products 

controlled by the Group and that will probably contribute to future economic benefits beyond one year 

are capitalised. Capital costs include external direct costs of materials and services, payroll and direct-

payroll related costs for employee’s (including contractors) time spent on the project. These costs are 

amortised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (three to five years), 

Costs associated with maintaining computer software are recognised as an expense when incurred. 

Operating leases Operating leases Operating leases Operating leases ––––    landlandlandland    

The operating leases on land are donated assets.  They are recognised in the financial accounts at fair 

value and are amortised over the life of the underlying leases. 

AmortisationAmortisationAmortisationAmortisation    

The carrying value of an intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight-line basis over its 

useful life. Amortisation begins when the asset is available for use and ceases at the date it is 

derecognised. 

The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  
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The useful lives and associated amortisation rates of major classes of intangible assets have been 

estimated as follows: 

 

Asset classesAsset classesAsset classesAsset classes    Expected useful life (years)Expected useful life (years)Expected useful life (years)Expected useful life (years)    Depreciation rate (%)Depreciation rate (%)Depreciation rate (%)Depreciation rate (%)    

Computer softwareComputer softwareComputer softwareComputer software    1-5    20 - 100    

Operating LeaseOperating LeaseOperating LeaseOperating Lease----    LandLandLandLand    63    1.6    

19191919....    Investment propertyInvestment propertyInvestment propertyInvestment property    

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation. They are not used 

in the production or supply of goods or services or for administration purposes and are not held for sale 

in the ordinary course of business. Investment properties are carried at fair value representing open 

market value determined annually by independent valuers.  

Changes in fair values are recorded in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Investment properties 

are not depreciated for financial accounting purposes. 

20202020.     Impairment of non.     Impairment of non.     Impairment of non.     Impairment of non----financial assetsfinancial assetsfinancial assetsfinancial assets    

Non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested 

annually for impairment and whenever there is an indication of impairment. Assets that have a finite 

useful life are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the 

carrying amount may not be recoverable.  If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the 

asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not 

possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating units to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and 

consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-

generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group of cash-generating units for 

which a reasonable and consistent allocation can be identified. 

The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In 

assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the 

risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable 

amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, 

unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which the impairment loss is treated as a 

revaluation decrease.  

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating 

unit) is increased to the revised estimate of the recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying 

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment 

loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of impairment is 

recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless the relevant asset is 

carried at a revalued amount, in which the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation 

increase. 

21212121....    CreditorsCreditorsCreditorsCreditors    and other payablesand other payablesand other payablesand other payables    

Creditors and other payables are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Group prior to the end of the 

financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of 

recognition. 
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POAL InteresPOAL InteresPOAL InteresPOAL Interestttt----bearing liabilitiesbearing liabilitiesbearing liabilitiesbearing liabilities    

Interest bearing liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.  Interest 

bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  

Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the interest bearing liabilities 

using the effective interest method. 

Interest bearing liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless POAL has an unconditional right to 

defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date. 

22222222....    Other financial liabilitiesOther financial liabilitiesOther financial liabilitiesOther financial liabilities    

Other financial liabilities, including interest bearing liabilities, are initially recognised at fair value, net of 

transaction costs incurred.  

Interest bearing liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 

method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is 

recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the period of the interest bearing liabilities 

using the effective interest method. 

Other financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right 

to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance date. 

23232323....    Employee benefitsEmployee benefitsEmployee benefitsEmployee benefits    

ShortShortShortShort----term employee benefitsterm employee benefitsterm employee benefitsterm employee benefits    

Liabilities for wages and salaries accrued up to balance date, (including non-monetary benefits), annual 

leave earned to, but not yet taken at balance date, long service leave entitlements expected to be 

settled within 12 months of balance sheet date, and sick leave are recognised as current employee 

benefit liabilities. They are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 

settled. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and 

measured at the rates paid or payable. 

The ARC and Group recognises a liability for sick leave to the extent that absences in the coming year 

are expected to be greater than the sick leave entitlements earned in the coming year. The amount is 

calculated based on the unused sick leave entitlement that can be carried forward at balance date, to 

the extent that the ARC anticipates it will be used by staff to cover those future absences. 

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses where it is contractually obliged or where 

there is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.  POAL recognises a liability and an 

expense for bonuses based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit attributable to the 

company’s shareholder after certain adjustments.   

LongLongLongLong----term employee entitlementsterm employee entitlementsterm employee entitlementsterm employee entitlements    

Liabilities for long service leave and gratuities (retiring leave) that are payable beyond 12 months are 

recognised as non-current employee benefits. 

The liability is measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 

services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected credit method. 

Consideration is given to the expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee 

departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the 

reporting date on national government bonds with terms and currency that match, as closely as 

possible, the estimated future cash outflows.  

Retirement benefit plansRetirement benefit plansRetirement benefit plansRetirement benefit plans    

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when 

employees have rendered service entitling them to contributions. 
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24242424....    Superannuation schemesSuperannuation schemesSuperannuation schemesSuperannuation schemes    

Defined benefit schemesDefined benefit schemesDefined benefit schemesDefined benefit schemes    

The ARC belongs to the Defined Benefit Plan Contributors Scheme (the scheme), which is managed by 

the Board of Trustees of the National Provident Fund. The scheme is a multi-employer defined benefit 

scheme. 

Insufficient information is available to use defined benefit accounting, as it is not possible to determine 

from the terms of the scheme, the extent to which the surplus/deficit will affect future contributions by 

individual employers, as there is no prescribed basis for allocation. The scheme is therefore accounted 

for as a defined contribution scheme. 

Defined contribution schemesDefined contribution schemesDefined contribution schemesDefined contribution schemes    

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution superannuation schemes are recognised as an 

expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when employees have rendered service entitling 

them to contributions. 

25252525....    ProvisionsProvisionsProvisionsProvisions    

The Group recognises a provision for future expenditure of uncertain amount or timing when: the 

Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past events; it is probable that 

expenditures will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the 

amount of the obligation. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses. 

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the 

obligation using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 

money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time 

is recognised as an interest expense and is included in “finance costs”. 

26262626....    BorrowingsBorrowingsBorrowingsBorrowings    

Borrowings are initially recognised at their fair value. After initial recognition, all borrowings are 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Council or Group has an unconditional right to 

defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after balance date or if the borrowings are 

expected to be settled within 12 months of balance date. 

27272727....    EquityEquityEquityEquity    

Equity is the community’s interest in the Group and is measured as the difference between total 

assets and total liabilities. Equity is disaggregated and classified into a number of components. 

 

The components of equity are:  

• retained earnings;  

• restricted reserves;  

• other reserves. 

Restricted and Council created reservesRestricted and Council created reservesRestricted and Council created reservesRestricted and Council created reserves    

Reserves are a component of equity generally representing a particular use to which various parts of 

equity have been assigned. Reserves may be legally restricted or created by the ARC i.e. special funds. 

Restricted reserves are those subject to specific conditions accepted as binding by the ARC and which 

may not be revised by the ARC without reference to the Courts or a third party. Transfers from these 
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reserves may be made only for certain specified purposes or when certain specified conditions are 

met. 

Also included in “restricted reserves” are reserves restricted by Council decision. Special fund 

reserves are designated for a particular project or planned commitment. The designation has an 

administrative purpose only, and does not legally restrict the Council’s discretion to apply the funds. 

Other reservesOther reservesOther reservesOther reserves    

This will include the following reserves: 

• property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve, 

• available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve, and 

• cash flow hedge reserve. 

Revaluation reserves arise when the value of an asset becomes greater than the value at which it was 

previously carried on the Statement of Financial Position. 

28282828....    Goods and Service Tax (GST)Goods and Service Tax (GST)Goods and Service Tax (GST)Goods and Service Tax (GST)    

All items in the financial statements are stated exclusive of GST, except for receivables and payables, 

which are stated on a GST inclusive basis, (unless not applicable). Where GST is not recoverable as 

input tax then it is recognised as part of the asset or expense. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the Inland Revenue Department, is included as 

part of receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position  

The net GST paid to, or received from the IRD, including the GST relating to investing and financing 

activities, is classified as an operating cash flow in the Statement of Cash Flows. 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed exclusive of GST. 

29292929....    SSSStatement of Cash Flowstatement of Cash Flowstatement of Cash Flowstatement of Cash Flows    

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, net of 

outstanding bank overdrafts. The following terms are used in the Statement of Cash Flows: 

Operating activities are the principal income producing activities of the Group and other activities that 

are not investing or financing activities. 

Investing activities are the acquisition and disposal of long-term assets and other investments not 

included in cash equivalents. 

Financing activities are activities that result in changes in the size and composition of the contributed 

equity and borrowings of the entity. 

30303030....    Comparative figuresComparative figuresComparative figuresComparative figures    

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified so as to be consistent with the figures 

presented for the current period.  The comparative figures are for the 12 month period ended 30 June 

2009, while those for the current period are for the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010. 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 requires Auckland Council to 

complete a report and financial statements of Auckland Regional Council and Group for the 16 month 

period to 31 October 2010.  Actual and budget financial information covers the 16 month period.  

Comparative information for the preceding financial period covers 12 months.  The two periods are 

therefore not directly comparable. 
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31313131....    Plan figuresPlan figuresPlan figuresPlan figures    

The plan figures, or budget figures, are those approved by the Council at the beginning of the year in 

the Annual Plan (the Plan) or Long-Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP). The Plan figures have been 

prepared in accordance with NZ GAAP, using accounting policies that are consistent with those 

adopted by the Council for the preparation of the financial statements. 

32323232....    Cost allocationCost allocationCost allocationCost allocation    

The ARC has derived the cost of service for each significant activity of the ARC Group using the cost 

allocation system outlined below. 

Direct costs are those costs directly attributable to a significant activity. Indirect costs are those costs, 

which cannot be identified in an economically feasible manner, with a specific significant activity. 

Direct costs are charged directly to significant activities. Indirect costs are charged to significant 

activities using appropriate cost drivers such as actual usage, staff numbers and floor area. 

33333333.     Critical accounting estimates assumptions.     Critical accounting estimates assumptions.     Critical accounting estimates assumptions.     Critical accounting estimates assumptions    

In preparing these financial statements, the Group has made estimates and assumptions concerning 

the future. These estimates and assumptions may differ from the subsequent actual results. Estimates 

and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 

including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 

The estimates, judgements and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 

adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year have been 

included below. 

Fair value of financial instrumentsFair value of financial instrumentsFair value of financial instrumentsFair value of financial instruments    

As described in note 18, the Group has used its judgement in selecting an appropriate valuation 

technique for financial instruments not quoted in an active market. The estimation of fair value of 

unlisted shares includes some assumptions not supported by observable market prices or rates. 

Details of the assumptions used and of the results of analysis are provided in note 48. 

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (PPE)Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (PPE)Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (PPE)Useful lives of property, plant and equipment (PPE)    

As described in the accounting policy for PPE, the Group reviews the estimated useful lives of 

property, plant and equipment at the end of each annual reporting period. The determination of the 

estimated useful lives has a significant impact on depreciation expense. 

Landfill aftercare provisionLandfill aftercare provisionLandfill aftercare provisionLandfill aftercare provision    

Note 35 presents an analysis of the exposure of the Group in relation to the estimates and 

uncertainties surrounding the landfill aftercare provision. 

Rolling Stock AssetsRolling Stock AssetsRolling Stock AssetsRolling Stock Assets    

There are a number of assumptions and estimates used when performing an impairment review over 

rolling stock.  These include: the physical deterioration and condition of an asset.  This risk is minimised 

by ARTA (or its agent) performing a combination of physical inspections and condition modelling 

assessments; estimating any obsolescence or surplus capacity of an asset; and estimates are made 

when determining the remaining useful lives over which the asset will be depreciated.  If useful lives 

do not reflect the actual consumption of the benefits of the asset, then ARTA could be over or under 

estimating the annual depreciation charge recognised as an expense in the Statement of 

Comprehensive Income.  To minimise this risk asset inspections, deterioration and condition modelling 

are carried out regularly as part of ARTA’s asset management planning activities, which gives ARTA 

further assurance over its useful life estimates.  



 

Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 139 

Impairment ofImpairment ofImpairment ofImpairment of    goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful livesgoodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful livesgoodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful livesgoodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives    

The Group determines whether goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are impaired at 

least on an annual basis.  This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating 

units to which the goodwill and intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated. 

Fair value of property, plant and equipment and investment propertyFair value of property, plant and equipment and investment propertyFair value of property, plant and equipment and investment propertyFair value of property, plant and equipment and investment property    

The ARC Group revalues investment property annually and certain property (plant and equipment every 

three years).  The valuations are performed by independent registered valuers.  The revaluation 

exercise requires an estimation of the amount for which these assets could be exchanged between 

willing parties in an arm's length transaction.  The determination of value has a significant impact on 

the total asset value reported for these assets and on the depreciation expense for property, plant and 

equipment. 

Fair value of derivative financial instrumentsFair value of derivative financial instrumentsFair value of derivative financial instrumentsFair value of derivative financial instruments    

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is determined by valuation experts using various 

valuation techniques.  The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of 

estimated future cash flows.  The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using 

forward foreign exchange market rates at the balance date.  Interest rate caps are valued using an 

option pricing model and assumptions based on market conditions existing at balance date. 

Fair value of investments in subsidiariesFair value of investments in subsidiariesFair value of investments in subsidiariesFair value of investments in subsidiaries    

The fair value of ARH's investment in POAL is determined by valuation experts using valuation 

techniques, being principally based on discounted cash flow methodology.  This is based on 

assumptions that may change. The key assumptions driving the valuation of POAL include container 

price, volumes, operating costs, capital expenditure programmes and the discount rate. 

Classification of Wynyard Precinct landClassification of Wynyard Precinct landClassification of Wynyard Precinct landClassification of Wynyard Precinct land    

Management has used its judgement in classifying the intercompany purchase of the land at the 

Wynyard Precinct as Property, Plant and Equipment. Management considers this property as Property, 

Plant and Equipment as it will ultimately be classified as a restricted asset upon ultimate transfer. 

34343434.     Critical .     Critical .     Critical .     Critical judgements in applying accounting policiesjudgements in applying accounting policiesjudgements in applying accounting policiesjudgements in applying accounting policies    

The following are the judgements that the ARC Group key management personnel have made in the 

process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have an effect on the amounts recognised 

in the financial statements. 

 

Impairment of intangible assets:Impairment of intangible assets:Impairment of intangible assets:Impairment of intangible assets:    

The ARC Group key management personnel have reviewed the intangible assets in light of subsequent 

events occurring after balance date and believe there is no impairment to intangible assets other than 

as noted in Note 29.  The carrying value of other intangibles assets relating to POAL is $4,221,000. 
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Note 2: Summary cost of services statements by Groups of activities 
Council Council   Council Council 

2009 2009   2010 2010 
12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 

Actual Plan   Actual Plan 
$000 $000 Note   $000 $000 

    
2222        SuSuSuSummary cost of services mmary cost of services mmary cost of services mmary cost of services     

IncomeIncomeIncomeIncome    
    95,737    110,208  Transport     74,344      83,253  
     1,092       1,023  Built environment     21,070      21,088  
    21,853      23,225  Natural environment and heritage     27,933      25,068  
        937       1,514  Economic development       1,441        2,346  
     1,795       2,635  Regional leadership and community development     12,701      14,664  
     9,941      12,022  Regional parks     11,270      10,969  
     2,525       1,992  Safety       3,128        2,684  
  133,880    152,619  Total Activity Income   151,887    160,072  

    (6,383)     (6,926) Less internal Income  (5,041) (5,516) 
  148,441    146,312  Rates Funding   206,081    205,269 
        275,938275,938275,938275,938                292,0292,0292,0292,005050505        Total Total Total Total incomeincomeincomeincome            352,927352,927352,927352,927                359,82359,82359,82359,825555        

  
Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services    

  170,287    186,823  Transport   182,864    237,339  
     5,002       7,157  Built environment       7,450      10,052  
    64,897      52,406  Natural environment and heritage     88,516      68,377  
     4,786       5,519  Economic development       6,897        7,360  
    12,879      15,272  Regional leadership and community development     28.855      36,274  
    35,328      35,157  Regional parks     36,898      39,873  
     4,203       3,928  Safety       3,891        5,127  
  297,382    306,262  Total Activity Cost of Services   355,371    404,402  

    (6,383)     (6,926) Less Internal Cost of Services         (5,041)         (5,516)  
        290,999 290,999 290,999 290,999             299,336299,336299,336299,336        Total Total Total Total Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services            350,330350,330350,330350,330                398,886398,886398,886398,886        

  
            (15,061(15,061(15,061(15,061))))                    (7,331(7,331(7,331(7,331))))        Net Gain/(Cost) of ServicesNet Gain/(Cost) of ServicesNet Gain/(Cost) of ServicesNet Gain/(Cost) of Services        2,592,592,592,597777    (39,061)(39,061)(39,061)(39,061)    

Each significant activity is stated gross of internal costs and revenues, and includes targeted rates attributable to activities (refer to note 3). In order to 
fairly reflect the total external operations for the Council in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, these transactions are eliminated as shown above. 
 
Refer to section 3 for detailed cost of services statements for each activity.  
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Note 3: Rates revenue 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

    
3333        Rates revenue Rates revenue Rates revenue Rates revenue     

  79,201   79,249      General rates General rates General rates General rates     
       

112,314     112,337  111,173  

    Targeted rates attributable to activities: Targeted rates attributable to activities: Targeted rates attributable to activities: Targeted rates attributable to activities:     

     5,260      5,260          Biosecurity   
          

7,009      7,009    7,009  
    5,793    5,793          Parkland purchase           6,171      6,171   6,171  
   57,787   57,787          Passenger transport          80,856      80,856   80,856  
       46       46          Possum control              60          60        60  
     (133)    (133)  Rates remissions           (273)      (273)         -  
  (2,315)  (2,315)  Rates discounts         (5,579)    (5,579)         -  
    2,754     2,754     Rates penalties          5,500      5,500            -  
        148,393 148,393 148,393 148,393     148,441 148,441 148,441 148,441                 Total rates revenue net of remissions Total rates revenue net of remissions Total rates revenue net of remissions Total rates revenue net of remissions                         206,058 206,058 206,058 206,058             206,081 206,081 206,081 206,081             205,269 205,269 205,269 205,269     

The general rate is used to fund (or part-fund) a range of Council Activities, including: regional growth strategy, stormwater management, coastal 
management, land management, natural heritage conservation, cultural heritage conservation, planning for the future, pollution response, resource consent 
management and compliance, economic development, democracy services, Maori relations, sustainable schools and communities, managing regional parks, 
visitor services, hazards management, civil defence and the Harbourmaster.   

The Council has set targeted rates for biosecurity, possum control in South Kaipara, possum control in Awhitu, parkland purchases and transport.  
• The biosecurity rate will fund activities including plant and animal pest control programmes, providing information, surveillance and enforcement of 

pest control provisions.  
• The parkland purchase rate will fund the repayment of existing parkland purchase loans (capital and interest repayments relating to existing land 

purchases).  
• The passenger transport rate will be used for funding most of Auckland Regional Transport Authority's (ARTA's) transport activities.  
• The possum control rate will be used to fund possum eradication programmes in South Kaipara and Awhitu.  

Any below Plan expenditure funded from a Targeted Rate is "ring-fenced" into a specific reserve to be used to fund future expenditure for that activity alone, 
refer note 38.  

The Council's rates revenue policies are as specified in the ARC's Long-Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP) 2009-19 and 4 month Annual Plan 2010/11.  

Rates remissions  Rates remissions  Rates remissions  Rates remissions   
Rates revenue is shown net of rates remissions. Council's rates remission policy allows ARC to remit rates on: sporting and other Groups providing services 
to communities, Maori Freehold Land, properties subject to QEII Open Space Covenants and penalties where late payment of rates resulted from 
circumstances outside the ratepayer's control and where it is just and equitable to remit the penalty.  

 Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

    148,526 148,526 148,526 148,526     148,574 148,574 148,574 148,574     Total gross rates revenue  Total gross rates revenue  Total gross rates revenue  Total gross rates revenue                          202020206666,,,,331331331331                202020206666,,,,354354354354        205,269 205,269 205,269 205,269     
Rates remissions  Rates remissions  Rates remissions  Rates remissions      

      120     120  
Land used for community, sporting and other 
organisations  providing community services  241 241 -  

      5        5  Land held as Maori Freehold Land  10 10 -  
        8        8    Land subject to QEII Open Space Covenants   22 22   -  
     133      133  Total rates remissions  273 273       -  

                
    148,393 148,393 148,393 148,393     148,441 148,441 148,441 148,441             Total rates revenue net of remissions Total rates revenue net of remissions Total rates revenue net of remissions Total rates revenue net of remissions                             206,058 206,058 206,058 206,058             206,081 206,081 206,081 206,081             205,269 205,269 205,269 205,269     



Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 142 

Non-rateable land   
Under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 certain properties cannot be rated for general rates.  The ARC also does not apply targeted rates.  These 
properties include schools, places of religious worship, public gardens and reserves. Non-rateable land does not constitute a remission under ARC's rate 
remission policy.  

 

Note 4: Auckland Regional Holdings income 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

4444    
    
Auckland Regional Holdings income Auckland Regional Holdings income Auckland Regional Holdings income Auckland Regional Holdings income     

    Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) general distributions Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) general distributions Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) general distributions Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) general distributions 
to fund: to fund: to fund: to fund:     

       -   18,800  
 Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) operating 
expenditure            -    32,334   36,834  

        -   69,508  
 Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) capital 
expenditure              -      33,192  34,273  

        -     1,408   Council Controlled Operations (CCO) monitoring costs             -       1,516    2,129  
        -   4,674   Stormwater grants              -       4,317    4,318  
         -         -     Other              -      30,000     30,000  
                            ----            94,390 94,390 94,390 94,390                 Total Auckland Regional Holdings income Total Auckland Regional Holdings income Total Auckland Regional Holdings income Total Auckland Regional Holdings income                                                 ----                101,359 101,359 101,359 101,359             107,554 107,554 107,554 107,554     

As per the Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004 (LGAAA 2004) section 34, the ARC must apply on a cumulative basis, in accordance with its 
Long-Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP) 2009-19, at least 85% of the funds received from ARH to: (a) ARTA for the purposes of land transport in the 
Auckland Region; or (b) for stormwater purposes in the Auckland Region.  
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Note 5: Net investment income / (loss) 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

5555    
        
Net investment income Net investment income Net investment income Net investment income     

Investment income and costs from financial assets at fair 
value through profit and loss  
Designated on initial recognition  

   14,067     -  - Interest         2,359     -   -  
         1,004        -  - Dividends        1,091          -          -  

    7,679         -  - Realised net gains/(losses)        (4,746) -         -  
 (22,926)       -  - Unrealised net gain/(losses)          26,900         -          -  

Classified as held for trading  
     6,188        -  - Unrealised net gains/(losses)         (2,541)          -          -  
 (22,718)        -  - Realised net gains/(losses)          11,283          -          -  

 Other investment income and costs  
    1,900      -   Dividend income - available-for-sale financial assets  1,027          -          -  
 3,338    2,250   Other interest income         4,933         2,037          1,592  

 (69,453)       -  
 Fair value gain/(loss) - investment properties (refer note 
26)         7,526          -          -  

   (6,727)       -  
 Transfer from available-for-sale financial assets 
revaluation reserve (refer note 38)          -          -          -  

  (219)       -     Loss on derecognition of subsidiary          -          -            -  
    (87,867)(87,867)(87,867)(87,867)                2,252,252,252,250 0 0 0                 Total net investment income Total net investment income Total net investment income Total net investment income /(loss)/(loss)/(loss)/(loss)                            47,832 47,832 47,832 47,832                         2,037 2,037 2,037 2,037             1,5921,5921,5921,592        
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Note 6: Net finance costs 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

6666    
        
Net Finance costs Net Finance costs Net Finance costs Net Finance costs     

 26,085      128   Interest and finance charges paid / payable       28,651   654   2,874  
     222      222   Interest - landfill upwind (note 35)         402        402          -  
     681        -   Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges ineffective portion       99          -          -  
    177      -   Interest rate swaps - fair value hedges           -          -          -  
    27,165 27,165 27,165 27,165                 350 350 350 350                 Total investment and finance costs Total investment and finance costs Total investment and finance costs Total investment and finance costs                     29,15229,15229,15229,152                        1,056 1,056 1,056 1,056             2,8742,8742,8742,874    

 

Note 7: Net farming income 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

7777    
        
Net farming income Net farming income Net farming income Net farming income     

    Farming sales Farming sales Farming sales Farming sales     
     479    479   Sale of cattle           363       363   599  
     438     438   Sale of sheep            426       426   553  
       56    56     Harvesting of wool           115       115     139  
        973 973 973 973                     973 973 973 973                 Total farming sales Total farming sales Total farming sales Total farming sales     904 904 904 904     904 904 904 904             1,291 1,291 1,291 1,291     

 Further detail on the farming operation can be found in 
note 24.  

    Value of livestock sold Value of livestock sold Value of livestock sold Value of livestock sold     
    820      820   Opening stock - cattle and sheep        1,031       1,031   2,152  
     169    169   plus purchases          178        178       377  
    961      961   plus gains  (note 9)        1,292      1,292          -  

  (1,031) (1,031)    less closing stock        (1,713)    (1,713)    (2,173) 
                    919 919 919 919             919 919 919 919                 Total value of livestock sold Total value of livestock sold Total value of livestock sold Total value of livestock sold                                     788 788 788 788                         788 788 788 788                     356 356 356 356     

                
                        54 54 54 54             54 54 54 54                 Net farming income Net farming income Net farming income Net farming income                                 116 116 116 116                         116 116 116 116                                 935 935 935 935     
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Note 8: Other income 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

8888    
        
Other income Other income Other income Other income     

   12,799    16,412   Service fees revenue       15,894   17,856  18,900  
    9,343  9,343   Facilities revenue      12,501     12,501  11,528  
 18,281       -   Rail fare revenue       28,417          -          -  
 4,482      -   Bus fare revenue        10,993          -          -  

   2,009       -   Ferry wharf revenue        3,445          -          -  
 162,682      -   Provision of services      221,820          -          -  
  11,472     -   Leasing of investment properties         13,193          -          -  

  109,158        -  
 New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) operating 
expenditure grants        153,796          -          -  

    4,373       -  
 New Zealand Transport Agency (NZTA) capital 
expenditure grants         44,777          -          -  

   3,968    1,594   Grants and subsidies        9,564      7,385   11,680  
     139      139   Merchandising income         153       153   249  
        -      -   Donated assets          -          -          -  
   1,646    1,435     Other operating income         3,352       3,182    1,765  

        340,352 340,352 340,352 340,352         28,923 28,923 28,923 28,923                 Total other income Total other income Total other income Total other income                 517,905517,905517,905517,905            41,077 41,077 41,077 41,077             44,122 44,122 44,122 44,122     
There are no un-fulfilled conditions and other contingencies attached to NZTA grants 

 

Note 9: Other gains / (losses) 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

9999    
    
Other gains Other gains Other gains Other gains     

      961      961  Livestock revaluation gains (refer notes 7 & 24)          1,292     1,292          -  
        -          -  Gains on disposal of non-current assets held for sale      20,362          -          -  
       -     -    Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment   345  177            -  
                961 961 961 961         961 961 961 961             Total gains Total gains Total gains Total gains                     21,99921,99921,99921,999            1,4691,4691,4691,469                            ----        

               9999    Other lossesOther lossesOther lossesOther losses    

 623   434  Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 391 ---- ----    
    623 623 623 623         434 434 434 434     Total lossesTotal lossesTotal lossesTotal losses    391391391391    ----    ----    
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Note 10: Grant expenditure 

Group   Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 12 months   12 months   16 months    16 months    16 months   
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   Note   $000   $000   $000  

    
10 10 10 10         Grant expenditure Grant expenditure Grant expenditure Grant expenditure     

1,541  1,451  
 
  Integrated Catchment Management Plan (ICMP)   1,307  1,307  1,307  

80  80   Other stormwater grants  117  117  -  
176,665  -   Transport grants and subsidies  258,695  - -  

                            
-  

                
93,163  

 Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) operating 
expenditure  - 

                
120,457  

                    
136,147  

                              
-  

                
69,508  

 Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) capital 
expenditure  - 

                  
60,380  

                       
88,791  

-  -       Eden Park  10,000  10,000    10,000  
178,286 178,286 178,286 178,286     164,202 164,202 164,202 164,202                         Total grant expenditure Total grant expenditure Total grant expenditure Total grant expenditure     270,119 270,119 270,119 270,119     192,261 192,261 192,261 192,261             236,245 236,245 236,245 236,245     

 

Note 11: Personnel Costs 

Group   Council         Group   Council     Council  
 2009   2009         2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual         Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000   Note       $000   $000     $000  

    
11 11 11 11         PersonnPersonnPersonnPersonnel Costs el Costs el Costs el Costs     

116,877 48,942  
 
  Salaries and wages  155,393 70,151 69,617  

676  1,167   Increase/(decrease) in employee benefits liabilities   (1,455)  (984) - 
2,424  270       Employer contributions to superannuation  3,398  707    620  

119,977 119,977 119,977 119,977     50,379 50,379 50,379 50,379                         Total Total Total Total personnel costspersonnel costspersonnel costspersonnel costs        157,336 157,336 157,336 157,336     69,874 69,874 69,874 69,874             70,237 70,237 70,237 70,237     
 

Employer contributions to superannuation include contributions to KiwiSaver. 

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010, the council made 33 redundancy payments, totalling $1.830 million.  Included in these redundancy payments 
arising from the dissolution of the Auckland Regional Council, in accordance with the Local Government (Auckland Transitional Provisions Act 2010), 28 
roles, including key management, were disestablished, which resulted in total redundancy payments of $1.663 million. 
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Note 12: Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

- 
 
- 12121212        Depreciation and amortisation expense Depreciation and amortisation expense Depreciation and amortisation expense Depreciation and amortisation expense     

    Property, plant and equipment (PPE) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) Property, plant and equipment (PPE) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)     
    Operational assets Operational assets Operational assets Operational assets     

     1      1   Land and improvements               1           1  1 
1,469     3   Buildings        1,713         3  3 

 16,393  1,012   Plant machinery and other equipment         22,723      2,187  2,041 
     546       546   Vehicles           743       743  693 

     5,122    2,903   Furniture, fixtures and equipment         6,430  3,572   3,334  
    128  128   Finance Leases             -         -  - 
     307  307   Roads  1,148  1,148 - 
    11  11   Dams        16 16 - 

      97  97   Bridges and structures    342 342 188 
13,713    -   Rolling stock      21,676  - - 
  1,091     -   Railway stations and associated assets         2,485  - - 
 3,262      -   Wharves, piers and associated assets          3,981  - - 
1,132    -   Pavements         1,686  - - 
     80       80   Low value assets           145     145  135 

    Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets     
2,277      541   Land and improvements  4,186  1,501 3,897 

  1,035   1,035     Buildings  1,370 1,370   -  
46,664 46,664 46,664 46,664                                             6,664 6,664 6,664 6,664                 Total depreciation Total depreciation Total depreciation Total depreciation (note 28)(note 28)(note 28)(note 28)    68,645 68,645 68,645 68,645     11,028 11,028 11,028 11,028                                         10,29210,29210,29210,292        

    Intangible assets Intangible assets Intangible assets Intangible assets     

 1,942    922  
  
Computer software         3,299   1,670  1,559 

    357       -     Operating lease - Land         477   -   -  
    2,299 2,299 2,299 2,299     922 922 922 922                 Total amortisation  Total amortisation  Total amortisation  Total amortisation  (note 29)(note 29)(note 29)(note 29)                            3,776 3,776 3,776 3,776                 1,670 1,670 1,670 1,670             1,5591,5591,5591,559    

                
    48,963 48,963 48,963 48,963             7,586 7,586 7,586 7,586                 Total depreciation and amortisation  Total depreciation and amortisation  Total depreciation and amortisation  Total depreciation and amortisation                              72,421 72,421 72,421 72,421         12,698 12,698 12,698 12,698                 11,851 11,851 11,851 11,851     
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Note 13: Other operating expenses 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

    
13131313        Other operating expenses Other operating expenses Other operating expenses Other operating expenses     

    Auditor remuneration Auditor remuneration Auditor remuneration Auditor remuneration     
 Fees to principal auditor:  

   243    144     audit fees for financial statement audit          368      210  436  
      85     85     audit fees for LTCCP amendment  - - - 
  184  184     audit fees for LTCCP   - - - 
      8       -  (a)    audit fees for assurance and related services  - - - 

 Fees to other auditors:  
    253       -     audit fees for financial statement audit         319  - - 
     2     -     audit fees for other services  - - - 

    Impairment Impairment Impairment Impairment     
  150    73   Bad debts written-off          86   81  - 
  154     43   Change in provision for impairment of debtors (refer note 16)           712      349  - 

      14  14  
 Change in provision for impairment of rate receivables (refer 
note 16)            (14)        (14)  - 

 183     -  
 Impairment charge for property, plant and equipment (refer 
note 28)      16,807  1,577 - 

- -  Impairment of Intangibles (refer note 29)         604     604  - 
- - Change in estimate (refer note 35) (2,168) (3,683) - 

 63,119  34,125      Professional Services Professional Services Professional Services Professional Services            62,803    38,366    32,450  

    Occupancy costs Occupancy costs Occupancy costs Occupancy costs     
    10,472     4,387   Operating lease rentals        10,080   5,795    4,231  
    4,667   3,082   Other occupancy costs         13,198      5,552    3,308  

    General General General General     
 1,309       -   Directors fees         1,651  - - 
  240    30   Net foreign exchange losses/(gains)        3,992          4  - 
     21     16   Donations/Koha          48    47  - 
 5,178    5,178   Maintenance and repairs         11,821     10,131    7,241  

    5,567     4,802   Information systems        6,629      5,225  6,132  
2,524      510   Marketing and advertising         3,460      603    2,117  

  31,380    3,729   Administration       41,413     5,308  11,578  
 26,763  10,727     Other operating expenses   28,508      3,498    9,833  
    152,516 152,516 152,516 152,516         67,129 67,129 67,129 67,129                 Total other operating exTotal other operating exTotal other operating exTotal other operating expenses penses penses penses                     200,317200,317200,317200,317                    73,65373,65373,65373,653                    77,326 77,326 77,326 77,326     

(a)   The auditor completed assurance engagements over ARTA's tender and consultation processes.  

     For items that are material their nature and amount has been disclosed separately.  
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Note 14: Taxation 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

    
14141414        Taxation Taxation Taxation Taxation     

  (a)(a)(a)(a)         Income tax recognised in profit or loss Income tax recognised in profit or loss Income tax recognised in profit or loss Income tax recognised in profit or loss         

Tax expense/(benefit) comprises: 
  12,922         -  Current tax expense       16,026  -      -  
 (2,561)    -  Deferred tax (revenue)/expense         3,648          -      -  
    634       -    Adjustments to current tax in prior years         294       -      -  
10,995 10,995 10,995 10,995         ----                    Total Total Total Total income income income income tax expense tax expense tax expense tax expense                         19,96819,96819,96819,968                                        ----                ----        

Relationship between taxRelationship between taxRelationship between taxRelationship between tax    expense and accounting expense and accounting expense and accounting expense and accounting 
surplus/(deficit):surplus/(deficit):surplus/(deficit):surplus/(deficit):    

    (123,868)(123,868)(123,868)(123,868)    (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)            Surplus / (deficit) before taxationSurplus / (deficit) before taxationSurplus / (deficit) before taxationSurplus / (deficit) before taxation                            67,67,67,67,069069069069            2,592,592,592,597777                    (39,061(39,061(39,061(39,061))))    
 (37,160)   (4,518) Tax at 30% (2009: 30%)       20,121       779  (11,718) 

Plus/(less) tax effect of:  
-     -  Impact of tax rate change 28 %( 2009:30%)        (2,259)         -     -  

  39,405    4,518  Non-taxable (surplus)/deficit      (7,640)      (779)    11,718  
  7,073      -  Non-deductible expenditure         4,907         -   -  
   164   -  Depreciation and amortisation         (353)         -         -  

- - Impact of reduction in Tax depreciation        3,446  - - 
     (532)    -  Share of net surplus from associates        (869)         -        -  
  1,045       -  Sundry items         990         -       -  

  440     -  
Deferred tax income relating to previous unrecognised 
temporary differences       2,185      -      -  

     560   -    Under provision of income tax in prior years       (560)        -       -  
  10,995      -   Total tax expense        19,968         -       -  

The Group is generally exempt from paying income 
tax. However it is not exempt from paying income tax 
on income derived from port-related commercial 
undertakings (PRCU). Therefore for ARH the income 
tax expense relates to taxable income earned from the 
leasing of investment properties which are used for 
PRCUs. 

 
 

(b)(b)(b)(b)    Income tax recognised directly in equityIncome tax recognised directly in equityIncome tax recognised directly in equityIncome tax recognised directly in equity    

The following current and deferred amounts were 
charges/(credited) to equity during the period: 

  (4,695)    -  Cash flow hedge reserve           33        -     -  
   482   -  Available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve         -           -      -  

- - Charged to Reserves     (4,437) - - 
 (4,653)    -    Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve        (72)  -          -  
  (8,866)    -   Total     (4,476)        -     -  
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Note 14: Taxation - continued 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

14141414    

(c)(c)(c)(c)    Imputation credit memorandum accountImputation credit memorandum accountImputation credit memorandum accountImputation credit memorandum account    

  77,560      -  Balance at 1 July         78,417        -         -  
 (1,180)         -  Prior period adjustment (1,766)         -     -  
  1,293      -  Attached to dividends received       1,837          -       -  

    9,252       -  Income tax paid (net of refunds)   10,281         -   -  
  (8,508)       -    Imputation credits extinguished on liquidation of ACVL           -       -         -  
  78,417      -   Balance at 30 June    88,769         -      -  

The imputation credits are subject to confirmation by 
the Inland Revenue Department and satisfaction of 
the shareholder continuity test.  

(d)(d)(d)(d)        Current tax assets and liabilities Current tax assets and liabilities Current tax assets and liabilities Current tax assets and liabilities     

    Current tax assetCurrent tax assetCurrent tax assetCurrent tax asset        
    1    -     Excess of tax paid for current period over amount due   -      -        -  
                1 1 1 1             ----                    Current tax receivable Current tax receivable Current tax receivable Current tax receivable                                     ----                                ----                            ----        

    Current tax liability Current tax liability Current tax liability Current tax liability     

  1,305    -    
 Shortage of tax paid for current period over amount 
due        4,062       -     -  

        1,305 1,305 1,305 1,305         ----                    Current tax payable Current tax payable Current tax payable Current tax payable                 4,062 4,062 4,062 4,062                     ----                                    ----        

 

Note 15: Cash and cash equivalents 

Group  Council             Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

15151515    
    
    Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents     

7,509    273   Cash at bank and on hand      108,357   1,820   73,124  
 2,402    -     Bank deposits with maturities less than 3 months       54,000      54,000        -  
    9,911 9,911 9,911 9,911             273 273 273 273                 Total cash and cash equivalents Total cash and cash equivalents Total cash and cash equivalents Total cash and cash equivalents             162,357 162,357 162,357 162,357             55,820 55,820 55,820 55,820             73,124 73,124 73,124 73,124     

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents and bank 
deposits with maturities less than 3 months equals their 
fair value.  

Cash and cash equivalents include the following  
for the purposes of the statement of cash flows:  

  7,509   273   Cash at bank and on hand  108,357      1,820   73,124  
    2,402           -   Bank deposits with maturities less than 3 months   54,000     54,000        -  
  9,911      273   Balance per cash flow statement  162,357     55,820   73,124  
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Note 16: Debtors and other receivables 

Group  Council       Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

16161616    
        
DebtorsDebtorsDebtorsDebtors    and other receivables and other receivables and other receivables and other receivables     

18,697     3,306  Debtors   26,697       3,010    3,000  
  (1,062)  (669)    less provision for impairment of debtors     (1,483)      (741)   -  
   17,635  2,637   Net debtors        25,214   2,269   3,000  

     7,227   7,227   Rates outstanding       39,868       39,868   24,937  
    (14)  (14)    less provision for impairment of rates    - -    -  
 7,213   7,213        39,868     39,868    24,937  

Other receivables:  
 13,938   1,427  Accrued income   12,214      1,165   666  
    3,645  3,151    Other   7,504       3,646      500  
42,431 42,431 42,431 42,431             14,428 14,428 14,428 14,428                 Total debtorsTotal debtorsTotal debtorsTotal debtors    and other receivables and other receivables and other receivables and other receivables             84,800 84,800 84,800 84,800             46,948 46,948 46,948 46,948                 29,103 29,103 29,103 29,103     

Debtors and other receivables are non-interest bearing and receipt is normally on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying value of debtors and other receivables 
approximates fair value. 

 

Movement in the provision for imMovement in the provision for imMovement in the provision for imMovement in the provision for impairment of receivables pairment of receivables pairment of receivables pairment of receivables     
----    debtors and rates: debtors and rates: debtors and rates: debtors and rates:         

Group  Council 
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 2010    2009   2010   2009  
 $000   $000     $000   $000  

 Balance at 1 July  
                         

1,076  
                    

908               683  
                  

626  

 Additional provisions recognised during the year     708       337     335        57  
 Provisions reversed during the year            (10)     (127)   -         -  
    Impairment charge for receivables Impairment charge for receivables Impairment charge for receivables Impairment charge for receivables            698      210   335         57  

 Receivables written-off during the year            (291)            (42)      (277)           -  
    Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October                                     1,1,1,1,484848483333                        1,076 1,076 1,076 1,076       741                              683 683 683 683     

Amounts charged to the provision for impairment of receivables are generally written-off when there is no expectation of recovery. 

The other classes within debtors and other receivables do not contain impaired or past due assets. 

The impairment provision has been calculated based on a review of specific overdue receivables.  The impairment of receivables has all been determined 
to be individually impaired because of the significant financial difficulties being experienced by the debtor.   
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Note 16: Debtors and other receivables - continued 

The status of receivables as at 31 October are detailed below:The status of receivables as at 31 October are detailed below:The status of receivables as at 31 October are detailed below:The status of receivables as at 31 October are detailed below:    

 
a)      Impaired receivables Impaired receivables Impaired receivables Impaired receivables ----        DDDDebtors ebtors ebtors ebtors     

As at 31 October 2010, debtors of the Group with a nominal value of $1,483k (2009: $1,062k) were impaired.  
The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to those customers experiencing significant financial difficulties. 

The ageing of these individually impaired debtors are as follows: Group Council 
 2010   2009   2010   2009  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
   $000   $000     $000   $000  

 Past due 1-90 days          831    120    190          9  
 Past due 91-120 days             201       301   133        19  
 Past due > 120 days             451         641     418  641  
 Total individual impairment of debtors         1,483   1,062  741   669  

 
b)      Impaired receivables Impaired receivables Impaired receivables Impaired receivables ----    Rates Rates Rates Rates     

 As at 31 October 2010, rates of $Nil (2009:$14k) were impaired.  
The Council has various powers under the Local Government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover as a debt rates unpaid.  These include the right to 
commence proceedings in a court to recover rates that remain unpaid; to recover rates that remain unpaid as a debt from the first mortgagee of a 
rating unit; if payment is not made following a Court's judgement, the right to apply to the Register of the High Court to have the judgement 
enforced by sale or lease of the rating unit. However there is a limitation of time for recovery of rates of 6 years from the date on which the last 
payment became due. 

Group Council 
 2010   2009   2010   2009  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
   $000   $000     $000   $000  

 Past due > 6 years   -         14     -    14  
 Total individual impairment of debtors                 -         14       -         14  

c)      Past due but not impaired Past due but not impaired Past due but not impaired Past due but not impaired ----    Rates Rates Rates Rates     
 As at 31 October 2010, rate receivables of $5,981 k (2009: $1,133k) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 
customers for who there is no recent history of default. 
  
The ageing analysis of these rate receivables is as follows: Group Council 

 2010   2009   2010   2009  
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  

   $000   $000     $000   $000  

Arrears from 2004/2005 85      10  85    10  
Arrears from 2005/2006 127       47  127   47  
Arrears from 2006/2007 286    102  286   102  
Arrears from 2007/2008              910     242      910  242  
Arrears from 2008/2009 4,573     732     4,573  732  
 Total rate receivables past due but not impaired  5,981    1,133     5,981    1,133  

 This reconciles as:  
 Total rate receivables past due but not impaired         5,981    1,133    5,981     1,133  
 Total current rate receivables       33,887    6,080    33,887    6,080  
 Total impaired rate receivables       -       14        -     14  
 Total rate receivables       39,868  7,227    39,868    7,227  

Ratepayers can apply for payment plan options in special circumstances. Where such repayment plans are in place, debts are discounted to their 
present value of future payments if the impact of discounting is material. 
  
The carrying amount of receivables that would otherwise be past due or impaired, whose payment terms have been renegotiated is $18.631k  
(2009: $30.337k). 
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Note 16: Debtors and other receivables - continued 

d)      Past due but not impaired Past due but not impaired Past due but not impaired Past due but not impaired ----    DDDDebtors ebtors ebtors ebtors     
 As at 31 October 2010, debtors of the Group with a nominal value of $10,807k (2009: $5,094k) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a 
number of independent customers for who there is no recent history of default.  

The ageing of these debtors is as follows: Group Council 
 2010   2009   2010   2009  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
   $000   $000     $000   $000  

 Past due 1-90 days        10,259    4,749  217       504  
 Past due 91-120 days            171       214     99     102  
 Past due > 120 days           377   131       371    130  
 Total debtors past due but not impaired        10,807     5,094   687        736  

 This reconciles as:  
 Total debtors past due but not impaired        10,807       5,094   687       736  
 Total current debtors       14,407    12,541    1,582      1,901  
 Total impaired debtors           1,483       1,062         741       669  
 Total debtors         26,697    18,697   3,010      3,306  

 
Note 17: Related party receivables 

Group  Council     Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009     2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual     Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note    $000   $000     $000  

17171717        Related party receivables Related party receivables Related party receivables Related party receivables     

Distributions for grants relate to the ARH Board's 
commitment in the year ended 30 June 2005 to provide 
ongoing funding to the ARC for grants made by the former 
Infrastructure Auckland, which are primarily to local 
councils. Under the Local Government (Auckland) 
Amendment Act 2004, the liabilities for these grants were 
vested in ARC and ARTA.  

    Current asset portion Current asset portion Current asset portion Current asset portion     
      -   17,967   Transport grants   -     3,946    1,073  

        -  13,403   Stormwater grants    -     12,336    5,909  
                        ----            31,370 31,370 31,370 31,370         Total current receivables  Total current receivables  Total current receivables  Total current receivables                              ----                16,282 16,282 16,282 16,282                         6,982 6,982 6,982 6,982     

    NonNonNonNon----current asset portion current asset portion current asset portion current asset portion     
      -    1,152   Transport grants  - -  10,407  
    -   16,271   Stormwater grants   -  9,495    13,475  
                    ----        17,423 17,423 17,423 17,423         Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current receivables  current receivables  current receivables  current receivables                                                              ----                            9,495 9,495 9,495 9,495             23,882 23,882 23,882 23,882     

              
                                    ----            48,793 48,793 48,793 48,793         Total related party receivables Total related party receivables Total related party receivables Total related party receivables ----    ARH owing to  ARC ARH owing to  ARC ARH owing to  ARC ARH owing to  ARC                                                 ----        25,777 25,777 25,777 25,777                 30,864 30,864 30,864 30,864     

The carrying amounts of current grants receivable 
approximates their fair value. In the prior year, the fair value 
of non-current grants receivable in a time frame of greater 
than one year were determined using cash flows discounted 
at a rate based on The Treasury 2010 discount default rate of 
8.00%.  
This year non-current grants receivable are not fair valued 
but are stated at the amount receivable as the difference 
between fair value and amount receivable is immaterial. 
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Note 18: Other financial assets 

Group  Council     Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009     2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual     Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note    $000   $000     $000  

18181818        Other financial assets Other financial assets Other financial assets Other financial assets     

(i) 

    Financial assets at fair Financial assets at fair Financial assets at fair Financial assets at fair 
value through profit and value through profit and value through profit and value through profit and 
losloslosloss (FVTPL) s (FVTPL) s (FVTPL) s (FVTPL)     

    Current asset portion Current asset portion Current asset portion Current asset portion     

 116,550      -  
 New Zealand short-term 
cash portfolio investments               -        -       -  

  116,550  -  
 Total current financial 
assets at FVTPL           -         -       -  

    NonNonNonNon----current current current current asset portion asset portion asset portion asset portion     

 3,505           -  
 New Zealand short-term 
cash portfolio investments  -          -      -  

   265,379      -  

 Diversified Financial 
Assets Portfolio 
investments       182,721            -    -  

 268,884      -  
 Total non-current financial 
assets at FVTPL       182,721          -         -  

              

        385,434 385,434 385,434 385,434                     ----        

    Total financial assets at Total financial assets at Total financial assets at Total financial assets at 
fair value through profit fair value through profit fair value through profit fair value through profit 
and loss and loss and loss and loss                         182,721 182,721 182,721 182,721                                     ----                            ----        

 During the 16-month period ended 31 October 2010, the Group reviewed and adjusted the composition of its financial assets portfolios to ensure that it 
could meet its short liquidity requirements. As a result of this review, the Group implemented a withdrawal of $60m from the DFA in September 2009 and 
disestablished it New Zealand Short-term Cash Portfolio mandates in late December 2009.  During 2010, the ARH Board has been conscious of the effect 
of its investment decisions on the Auckland Council, which will take over ownership of the DFA from 1 November 2010 as a result of the Auckland local 
government reorganisation.  To this end, the Group made the decision to withdraw a further $59m from the DFA in 2010 in order to allow the Auckland 
Council to make investment decisions unencumbered.  These funds are being held and invested as part of cash and cash equivalents (see note 15). 
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Financial asset portfolios.  
 The Group has two financial asset portfolios. The investments in both portfolios are managed by external fund managers and overseen by an external 
custodian.  
 The New Zealand short-term cash portfolio invests in bank deposits and registered certificates of deposit held with major NZ banks.  
 The investments have a maturity of 12 months or less and can be either held-to-maturity or traded.  
 The Diversified Financial Assets Portfolio (DFA) consists of investments in New Zealand cash, global equities and global bonds. The global equities and 
global bonds investments are pooled in unlisted trust units. Due to the nature of these investments they do not have maturity dates. 
 

 Group  Counciiiil   Group   Council  Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

(ii)     AvailableAvailableAvailableAvailable----forforforfor----sale fsale fsale fsale financial assets  inancial assets  inancial assets  inancial assets   
The investments categorised as available-
for-sale by default represent investments in 
equity instruments that offer the Group the 
opportunity for return through dividend 
income and fair value gains.  
 
Unrealised gain and losses arising from 
changes in the fair value of the equity 
securities classified as available-for-sale 
financial assets are recognised in equity in 
the available-for-sale financial assets 
revaluation reserve.  When equity securities 
classified as available-for-sale are sold or 
otherwise derecognised, the accumulated fair 
value adjustments recognised in the reserve 
are transferred to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  

    NonNonNonNon----current assets current assets current assets current assets     

 17,424       -  

 Listed equity securities in 
Northland Port Corporation 
(NZ) Ltd       13,972  - - 

     217    217  

 Unlisted shares in Local 
Government Insurance 
Corporation (LGIC)           217         217   217  

     -  815,479  
 Investment in subsidiaries 
(cost)  -     815,479    815,479  

                                                17,17,17,17,641 641 641 641                             815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     
    Total availableTotal availableTotal availableTotal available----forforforfor----sale sale sale sale 
financial assets  financial assets  financial assets  financial assets      

                                                                                            
14,189 14,189 14,189 14,189     

                                                
815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696                                 815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     

 Unlisted shares   
LGIC is an unlisted company, and accordingly there are no published price quotations to determine the fair value of this investment. The fair value of unlisted 
shares of LGIC have been determined using a valuation technique based on the total equity at balance date divided by the total number of shares at that 
date. 
 Investments in subsidiaries   
The Council has two subsidiaries created under the Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004. These are carried at cost in the parent entity's 
financial statements, refer note 44. 
 Listed equity securities  
POAL holds 19.9% of the listed equity securities in Northland Port Corporation (NZ) Ltd. The fair value of these securities is based on quoted market prices. 
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    403,075 403,075 403,075 403,075     815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     
    Total other financial Total other financial Total other financial Total other financial 
assets assets assets assets                                 196,910 196,910 196,910 196,910         815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696             815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     

Presented as:Presented as:Presented as:Presented as:    

    111111116,550 6,550 6,550 6,550                                 ----        
Other financial assets Other financial assets Other financial assets Other financial assets ----    
currentcurrentcurrentcurrent                                            ----                                    ----            ----        

        286,525 286,525 286,525 286,525     815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     
Other financial assets Other financial assets Other financial assets Other financial assets ----    
nonnonnonnon----currentcurrentcurrentcurrent                        196,910 196,910 196,910 196,910                 815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696             815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     

        403,075 403,075 403,075 403,075     815,696815,696815,696815,696                    196,910 196,910 196,910 196,910             815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     815,696 815,696 815,696 815,696     

IIIImpairment:mpairment:mpairment:mpairment:    There were no impairment provisions for other financial assets (2009:$nil). None of the financial assets are past due or impaired.    

 

Note 19: Derivative financial instruments 

Group  Council     Group   Council    Council  
 2009   2009     2010   2010     2010 

 Actual   Actual     Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note    $000   $000     $000  

19191919        Derivative financial instruments Derivative financial instruments Derivative financial instruments Derivative financial instruments     

Current asset portionCurrent asset portionCurrent asset portionCurrent asset portion    
 4,679       -   Forward foreign currency contracts          2,138  -    - 
 4,679     -   Total current asset portion        2,138         -    -  

NonNonNonNon----current asset portioncurrent asset portioncurrent asset portioncurrent asset portion    
5,201  -  Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges   -        -     - 

   5,201        -   Total non-current asset portion               -         -     -  
              

        9,880 9,880 9,880 9,880                 ----            Total derivative financial instrument assets Total derivative financial instrument assets Total derivative financial instrument assets Total derivative financial instrument assets                                 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138                                     ----                            ----        

Current liability portionCurrent liability portionCurrent liability portionCurrent liability portion    
   1,084        -   Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges  -        -   -  
1,084       -   Total current liability portion               -        -       -  

NonNonNonNon----current liability portioncurrent liability portioncurrent liability portioncurrent liability portion    
15,466      -   Interest rate swaps - cash flow hedges      11,240         -           -  

  15,466      -   Total current liability portion        11,240      -       -  
              

    16,550 16,550 16,550 16,550                 ----            Total derivative financial instrument liability Total derivative financial instrument liability Total derivative financial instrument liability Total derivative financial instrument liability                         11,240 11,240 11,240 11,240                                                         ----                ----        

        (6,670)(6,670)(6,670)(6,670)                ----        Net derivative financial instrumentsNet derivative financial instrumentsNet derivative financial instrumentsNet derivative financial instruments            (9,102)(9,102)(9,102)(9,102)                        ----                                ----        

 
Interest rate swap contractsInterest rate swap contractsInterest rate swap contractsInterest rate swap contracts    
POAL is party to interest rate swap contracts in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposures to fluctuations in interest rates in accordance 
with its financial risk management policies. POAL designates all its interest rate swap contracts as hedging instruments. Bank loans of POAL currently bear 
an average variable interest rate of 4.15% (2009: 3.32%).  It is policy to protect part of the loans from exposure to increasing interest rates. Accordingly POAL 
has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it is obliged to receive interest at variable rates and to pay at fixed rates. 
 
Swaps currently in place cover approximately 76% (2009: 77%) of the loan principal outstanding and are timed to expire as interest and loan repayments fall 
due. The fixed interest rates range between 5.36% and 6.94% (2009:  5.28% and 6.94%) and the maturity dates range between 14 November 2011 to  
21 December 2015. 
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Note 19: Derivative financial instruments – Continued 

The contracts require settlement of net interest receivable or payable on a quarterly basis.  The settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest is 
payable on the underlying debt.  The contracts are settled on a net basis.  The gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instruments at fair value is 
deferred in equity in the cash flow hedge reserve, to the extent that the hedge is effective, and re-classified into profit and loss when the hedged interest 
expense is recognised.  The ineffective portion is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income immediately. In the 16 month ended 31 October 2010 
an ineffective portion expense of $99k (2009: $681k credit) was transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
At 31 October, the notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts were as follows: 

Consolidated Group 

 2010   2009  

 16 months   12 months  

 Actual   Actual  

 $000   $000  

Less than 1 year 0  55,000  

1-2 years 70,000  10,000  

2-3 years 62,000  145,000  

3-4 years 50,000  60,000  

4-5 years 0  52,000  

Greater than 5 years 50,000  125,000  

232,000 447,000 

 

Forward exchange contractsForward exchange contractsForward exchange contractsForward exchange contracts 

ARH ARH ARH ARH  

ARH is party to forward exchange contracts in the normal course of business in order to hedge exposures to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates in 
accordance with its financial risk management policies.  
Within its Diversified Financial Assets Portfolio, ARH has investments in Unlisted Unit Trusts that are denominated in foreign currencies.   
As these are held for trading in the normal course of business they are designated as financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.  
 Fluctuations in the fair value of these contracts are recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.  The amount recognised in the  
Statement of Comprehensive Income during the 16 months was a net profit of $8.7m (2009: net loss of $16.5m). 

POALPOALPOALPOAL 
POAL is party to forward exchange contracts in order to manage foreign exchange risk. POAL's risk management policy is to hedge for major items of plant 
and equipment purchased in foreign currencies only. These contracts are hedging highly probable forecasted purchases for the ensuing financial year. The 
contracts are timed to mature when the payment for the purchase of major component parts fall due. At 31 October 2010 had no outstanding forward 
exchange contracts (30 June 2009: $nil).  During the year POAL has not entered into forward exchange contracts.  At 30 June 2009 POAL has no outstanding 
forward exchange contracts. POAL entered into USD forward exchange contracts to buy the equivalent of NZ$10,888k for the loan advanced to a joint venture 
company Seafuels Limited.  
 

Where forward exchange contracts have been designated and tested as an effective hedge, the portion of the gain or loss on the hedged instrument that is 
determined to be an effective hedge is recognised directly in equity.  When the cash flows occur, POAL adjusts the initial measurement of the component 
recognised in the Statement of Financial Position by the related amount deferred in equity.  The ineffective portion is recognised in the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income immediately.  At balance date these contracts had a fair value of $nil (2009: $nil).  Where forward exchange contracts are not 
designated and tested as an effective hedge, the gain or loss on the forward exchange contract is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as 
Investment Income. 
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Note 20: Rental expense / income in advance 

As disclosed in prior financial statements, ARH entered into a series of arrangements in June 2007 for property transactions with the Auckland City Council 
(ACC) and the ARC to enable the redevelopment of the Auckland Central Business District waterfront area known as Wynyard Precinct.  
 
The agreement included the sale of properties to be developed as public space from ARH to Auckland City and the ARC for the agreed cash compensation 
amount of $74.3 million (excluding GST).  ARH will receive specific stopped roads from Auckland City, which became ARH investment properties, and the 
purchase price for these properties has been netted off in the aforementioned cash compensation amount.  The property sales and purchases were 
completed in July and August 2007. 
 
 

In accordance with the agreed arrangements, the day-to-day operational management of the properties sold to Auckland City and ARC, including the 
termination of existing lessees, are to be managed by ARH, through its agent and subsidiary company – Sea+City Projects Limited, until the properties 
transfer to Auckland City and ARC over the period from 2009 to 2025 as they become vacant. ARH continues to collect rental receipts, however the degree of 
control that ARH has over the properties is limited to managing the existing tenants off the sites and is not that of a natural owner. Auckland City has 
registered compensation certificates over the land to protect their rights as the owner.  Should ARH be late in delivering any of the properties to Auckland 
City, then ARH will be liable to pay compensation.  ARH does not have any substantial acts to complete in relation to the property transactions.  
 
ARH has transferred the equitable interest in the properties to be developed as public space, on the completion dates – being the 
dates when the cash proceeds were received for the property sales. 
 
Due to the transfer dates for the properties being later than the completion dates, the sales have been treated as a Sale and 
Leaseback arrangement under NZ IAS 17.  ARH has derecognised the particular investment properties and is leasing the properties 
back until after the transfer dares.  The cash proceeds received represent the net amount of the fair value for the properties, less 
prepaid rental.  The prepaid rental will be amortised on an annual basis with a notional rental expense for the public space and a 
notional rental income for the stopped roads being recognised in ARH’s Statement of Comprehensive Income.  

Intercompany balances are eliminated on consolidation; therefore the portion relating to ACC only is shown below.  

Refer to note 28 for additional information.  
Property transactions with the Auckland City Council (ACC) 
   

Group  Council     Group   Council    Council 
 2009   2009     2010   2010    2010 

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual     Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note    $000   $000     $000  

20202020        Rental expense / income in advance Rental expense / income in advance Rental expense / income in advance Rental expense / income in advance     
   82,422      -   Current value of properties sold       82,422        -   -  
 (54,918)   -   Cash compensation amount received     (54,918)        -          -  
 27,504      -   Effective rental paid in advance        27,504          -   -  

 (3,801)     -   Previously amortised as notional rental expense     (7,612)         -      -  

    (3,811) - 
 Amortised as notional rental expense for 16 months to 31 October 
2010       (2,315)       -  - 

    19,892 19,892 19,892 19,892                         ----            Asset of rental expense in advance Asset of rental expense in advance Asset of rental expense in advance Asset of rental expense in advance                         17,577 17,577 17,577 17,577                                     ----                        ----        

    (4,558)      -   Current value of properties purchased        (4,558)        -   -  
4,118      -   Cash compensation amount paid         4,118              -        -  
 (440)      -   Effective rental received in advance      (440)      -     -  

   211  -  Previously amortised as notional rental income              364  - - 
 153     -   Amortised as notional rental income            76        -     -  
    (76)(76)(76)(76)                ----            Liability of rental income in advance Liability of rental income in advance Liability of rental income in advance Liability of rental income in advance                                                     ----                                    ----                            ----        

    Presented as: Presented as: Presented as: Presented as:     
3,811 3,811 3,811 3,811             ----            Rental expense in advance Rental expense in advance Rental expense in advance Rental expense in advance ----    current current current current                                 2,315 2,315 2,315 2,315                 ----            ----        

        16,081 16,081 16,081 16,081         ----            Rental expense in advance Rental expense in advance Rental expense in advance Rental expense in advance ----    nonnonnonnon----current current current current                     15,262 15,262 15,262 15,262                                 ----                            ----        
    19,892 19,892 19,892 19,892     ----                            17,577 17,577 17,577 17,577                                         ----                    ----        

                        (76)(76)(76)(76)                ----            Rental income in advance Rental income in advance Rental income in advance Rental income in advance ----    current current current current     ----                                ----                    ----        
                (76)(76)(76)(76)                ----                                                        ----                                        ----                    ----        
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 The value of the properties sold, net of properties purchased was $117.6m.  The effective value of rental paid in advance, net of rental received in advance was 
$43.3m.  The notional rental paid in advance that has been recognised as expenditure in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the 16 months to 31 October 
2010 is $0.3m (2009: $0.4m).  The notional rental received in advance that has been recognised as income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the  
16 months to 31 October 2010 is $0.4m (2009: $0.153m).  The total rental expense effectively paid in advance as at 31 October 2010 is   $20.9m (2009: $19.9m). 
The total rental income effectively received in advance as at 31 October 2010 is $0.2m (2009: $0.076m).  
 
    

Note 21: Inventories 

Group  Council       Group   Council     Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

21212121        Inventories Inventories Inventories Inventories     

    5,126   -   Rolling stock spare parts      5,896     -          -  
 4,352   -     POAL inventories       4,775     -    7 

            9,478 9,478 9,478 9,478                         ----                    Total inventories Total inventories Total inventories Total inventories                                 10,671 10,671 10,671 10,671                                 ----                                                7777        
 

Rolling stock  
Inventory of $5,896,067 (2009: $5,126,000) comprises spare parts for ARTA's rolling stock; it is held and managed by Kiwi Rail on ARTA's behalf.  
The carrying amount of the inventories is measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during 
the year is $4,396k (2009: $3,454k). There have been no write-downs of inventory to net NRV or reversals of write-downs.  
 
 
POAL inventories  
Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value recognised as an expense during the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 amounted to $85k (2009:$64k).  
This was offset by $2,070k due to reversal of write-downs. The net recovery has been included in other expenses.  
 
No inventories are pledged as securities for liabilities. 

 

Note 22: Assets held in trust 

Group  Council       Group   Council     Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

22222222        Assets held in trust Assets held in trust Assets held in trust Assets held in trust     

-       -   NZTA – Auckland Integrated Ticketing System        5,041  -           -  
                            ----                    ----                    Total Assets held in Trust Total Assets held in Trust Total Assets held in Trust Total Assets held in Trust                         5,041 5,041 5,041 5,041                 ----                                                    ----        

 

ARTA and NZTA have a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) covering the Auckland Integrated Ticketing System (AIFS), which ARTA is developing 
and is funded 100% by NZTA.  The MOU states that ARTA shall hold the asset in trust for NZTA until it is completed.  
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Note 23: Non-current assets held for sale 

Group  Council       Group   Council     Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

23232323        NonNonNonNon----current assets held for sale current assets held for sale current assets held for sale current assets held for sale     

1,292   -   Buildings  -         -         -  
     259   -   Other property, plant and equipment  -     -           -  
17,548        -     Wharves   -      -             -  

        19,099 19,099 19,099 19,099     ----                    TotaTotaTotaTotal nonl nonl nonl non----current assets held for sale current assets held for sale current assets held for sale current assets held for sale                                     ----                        ----                                                    ----        

 

Queens Wharf and associated assets were sold as per the sale and purchase agreement dated 7 August 2009.  The ownership of Queens Wharf and 
associated assets were transferred from ARH to ARC and the New Zealand Government on 1 April 2010. 
 
 

Note 24: Biological assets 
Group  Council       Group   Council     Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

24242424        Biological Assets Biological Assets Biological Assets Biological Assets     

Consolidated farm operationConsolidated farm operationConsolidated farm operationConsolidated farm operation    
         

   820        820  Balance at 1 July  1,031   1,031   1,031 
    169    169  Increases due to purchases      178     178        -  
 264   264  Natural increases     776      776         -  

Gains/(losses) arising from changes in fair value less 
estimated point of sale costs attributable to: 

 211   211   - physical changes      247     247        -  
522     522     - price changes      344     344           -  
 733   733  Net gains     591   591           -  

   (919)  (919) Value of goods sold   (788)  (788)      - 
   (36)    (36) Natural decreases       (75)      (75)      -  

                
1,01,01,01,031 31 31 31         1,031 1,031 1,031 1,031                 Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October                 1,713 1,713 1,713 1,713             1,713 1,713 1,713 1,713             1,0311,0311,0311,031    

 

The Auckland Regional Council manages 39,663 hectares of parkland in the Auckland region.  Approximately, 1,300 hectares of this area is farmed and 
managed at 18 park locations by the Regional Parks Farm Business Unit (FBU).     
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Note 24: Biological assets - Continued 

The FBU operates a traditional sheep and beef farming operation (breeding/finishing) for the purpose of producing meat and wool. The farming year 
commenced with 7,347 sheep and 825 cattle farmed on 1,300 hectares. The cattle number includes 159 dairy grazers (not owned by the ARC). 

 
Sheep Cattle 

Quantity at 1 July 2009 7,347 666 
Net increase during the period 5,421 133 
Quantity at 31 OctoberQuantity at 31 OctoberQuantity at 31 OctoberQuantity at 31 October    12,76812,76812,76812,768    799799799799    

 

The farmed areas range in size from 20 hectares to 330 hectares.  Sheep and beef cattle are managed on these areas and their geographic location, land type, 
soil type, climatic variations and more specifically public visitation influences whether a farm is used for breeding or finishing.  
    
Production Production Production Production     
• 77,818kg lamb and mutton (2009:92,366 kg) 
• 33,900 kg wool (2009: 39,256 kg) 
• 89,025 kg beef (2009: 116,930kg) 
All products are marketed for domestic and international processing. 

Valuation assumptions 
The following valuation assumptions have been adopted in determining the fair value of livestock: 
• fair value is determined through price movements, natural increases and the age of the herd and flock, 
• fair value reflects the trade price available in the market place, 
• the main market indicator is the price quoted for livestock around balance date, 
• movements in the market value of livestock are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and determined as the difference 

between the fair value of livestock recognised at the beginning of the year and the fair value of livestock recognised at reporting date. 
The total farm working expenses excluding salaries is $44.42 per stock unit (2009: $38.95). 
     
Financial risksFinancial risksFinancial risksFinancial risks    
• Moving schedule prices for lamb, beef and wool 
• Global demand for commodity products especially wool. 
• Confidence within the dairy sector to pay for the grazing of dairy heifers. 
• High currency exchange rates 
• Increased competition and higher supplies putting downward pressure on market prices  
ARC is a long-term farmer and does not expect livestock prices to decline significantly in the foreseeable future, therefore, has not taken any measures to 
manage the risks of a decline in livestock prices. 
 

Strategies 
• Soil fertility and pasture quality have an impact on livestock performance and farm profitability. 
• Lime base products have been applied to maintain production.  The cost of developing new properties impacts on the funding available to maintain 

existing farms. 
• Wool Partners International is intending to form a grower co-operative.  If successful, the selling of wool through the co-operative may increase 

prices received for wool during the next financial year. 
• Contracts for grazing dairy heifers have been renewed, and the income from these contracts will provide a steady cash flow to buffer the seasonal 

price variations received from meat and wool. 
• This strategy reduces the cost of purchasing (trading stock) and saves animal health expenditure as owners are responsible for meeting some of 

these costs. 
• The increasing costs of maintaining farm assets and infrastructure to park standard have impacted on working expenses this year, (30% of working 

expenses) but these have been offset by decreased expenditure in animal health, fertiliser and cartage. 

Other risks 
ARC livestock is also exposed to seasonal impacts such as drought, extreme wet and severe winters and disease outbreaks and these impacts on farm 
profitability.  Farm operations are constrained by farming within a public park setting and this compromises potential stocking rates, livestock policy, 
grazing management, marketing strategies and farming revenue. The 2010 year was severely impacted by seasonal drought.  Additional feed was 
purchased to sustain animal health and welfare. 

Note 25: Investments accounted for using the equity method 

Group  Council       Group   Council     Council  
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 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  
 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

25252525        Investments accounted for using the equity method Investments accounted for using the equity method Investments accounted for using the equity method Investments accounted for using the equity method     

   3,879     -  
POAL investment in associate (United Containers 
Limited)      4,073     -          -  

  1,626     -   POAL investment in joint venture (North Tugz Limited)   378         -            -  
11,413       POAL investment in joint venture (Seafuels Limited)        6,292        

    16,918 16,918 16,918 16,918     ----                
    Total investments accounted for using the equity Total investments accounted for using the equity Total investments accounted for using the equity Total investments accounted for using the equity 
method method method method             10,743 10,743 10,743 10,743                 ----                                            ----        

   421       -  Share of associate's surplus for the year         462        -            -  
  1,348    -     Share of joint venture's surplus for the year          2,433     -          -  
    1,769 1,769 1,769 1,769                     ----                    Total share of surplus of associate and joint venture Total share of surplus of associate and joint venture Total share of surplus of associate and joint venture Total share of surplus of associate and joint venture                 2,895 2,895 2,895 2,895                         ----                            ----        

Movement for theMovement for theMovement for theMovement for the    16 months to 31 October 201016 months to 31 October 201016 months to 31 October 201016 months to 31 October 2010    

    POAL investment in associate POAL investment in associate POAL investment in associate POAL investment in associate     
  3,828   -   Carrying value at 1 July  (including goodwill of $593k)       3,879           -         -  
   421  -   Share of surplus after income tax       -          -  
     -   -   Additions        462    -            -  

  (370)   -     Dividends received     (268)     -              -  

   3,879  -  
 Carrying value at 31 October 2010  (including goodwill 
of $593k)      4,073      -          -  
       
     Company: United Containers Limited 
     Principal Activity: Container depot 
     Ownership Interest: POAL 27.5% (2009: 27.5%) 
     Country of Incorporation: New Zealand 
     Balance Date: 30 June 

POAL investment in joint venturePOAL investment in joint venturePOAL investment in joint venturePOAL investment in joint venture    
   2,170    -   Carrying value at 1 July       13,039      -           -  
  1,348  -   Share of surplus after income tax      2,433      -      -  
  11,413   -   Loan advanced to Seafuels Limited         750      -      -  
 (250)     -  Loan repayments  (6,325)     -      -  

  (1,642)     -     Dividends received  (3,227)     -        -  
   13,039  -   Carrying value at 31 October 2010   6,670       -          -  

 
     Company: North Tugz Limited 
     Principal activity: Marine towage 
     Ownership interest: POAL 50% (2009: 50%) 
     Country of Incorporation: New Zealand 
     Balance Date: 30 June 

     Company: Seafuels Limited 
     Principal activity: Tanker for re-fuelling ships 
     Ownership interest: POAL 50% (2009: 50%) 
     Country of Incorporation: New Zealand 
     Balance Date: 31 December 
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Note 25: Investments accounted for using the equity method – Continued 

The joint ventures are not controlled entities due to the provisions of the shareholder agreements. 
 

Aggregate Balances Group's Portion * 
 2010   2009   2010   2009  

Share of joint venture's and associate's assets and liabilitiesShare of joint venture's and associate's assets and liabilitiesShare of joint venture's and associate's assets and liabilitiesShare of joint venture's and associate's assets and liabilities     Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000   $000   $000  

Current assets            8,774     8,253  3,144    2,980  
Non-current assets              66,962      66,128     30,347   30,067  
Total assets              75,736     74,381               33,491     33,047  

Current liabilities             8,443       8,827  3,465   3,769  
Non-current liabilities            42,934      41,628    20,331     19,634  
Total liabilities         51,377     50,455                23,796        23,403  

Net assets          24,359      23,926                 9,695         9,644  

* POAL owns 50% of the joint ventures and 27.5% of the associate 

Aggregate Balances Group's Portion * 
 2010   2009   2010   2009  

Share of joint venture's and assShare of joint venture's and assShare of joint venture's and assShare of joint venture's and associate's revenue, expenses and resultsociate's revenue, expenses and resultsociate's revenue, expenses and resultsociate's revenue, expenses and results     Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
   $000   $000     $000     $000  

 Revenue          55,143     35,656  19,067   11,826  
 Expenses         (46,751)   (30,302)   (15,412)   (9,616) 
 Surplus before income tax            8,392     5,354  3,655   2,210  

* POAL owns 50% of the joint ventures and 27.5% of the associate 
The associate and joint ventures had no contingent liabilities as at 31 
October 2010 (2009: $nil) 
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Note 26: Investment Properties 

Group  Council       Group   Council     Council  
 2009   2009       2010   2010     2010  

 Actual   Actual       Actual   Actual     Plan  
 $000   $000  Note      $000   $000     $000  

26262626    InInInInvestment propertiesvestment propertiesvestment propertiesvestment properties        
 

  244,256     -  Balance at 1 July      180,669       -               -  
  5,866     -  Capitalised expenditure   29,114     -         -  

  (69,453)   -  Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustment (note 5)         7,526       -              -  
     -         -  Transferred from Property Plant & Equipment (note 28)    28,655      -            -  
    -  -  Disposals       (9,700)     -               -  

    180,669 180,669 180,669 180,669             ----                    Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October             236,264 236,264 236,264 236,264                         ----                            ----        
 

Valuation BasisValuation BasisValuation BasisValuation Basis 
Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH) investment propertiesAuckland Regional Holdings (ARH) investment propertiesAuckland Regional Holdings (ARH) investment propertiesAuckland Regional Holdings (ARH) investment properties 
ARH's investment properties were valued at 31 August 2010 (and reviewed at 31 October 2010) by Seagar and Partners (Auckland) Limited and Gribble 
Churton and Taylor Limited, independent registered valuers and associates of the New Zealand Institute of Valuers.  They have recent experience in the 
location and category of the investment property being valued. The basis of the valuation of the investment properties is fair value being the amounts for 
which the properties could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction at the operative date. The determination of 
fair value is based on discounted cash flows because of the nature of the property and lack of comparable market factors.  The major inputs and 
assumptions that are used in the valuation that require judgement include forecasts of the current and expected future market rental and growth, 
maintenance and capital expenditure requirements, vacancy and leasing costs.  

Ports of Auckland Limited (POAL) investment propertiesPorts of Auckland Limited (POAL) investment propertiesPorts of Auckland Limited (POAL) investment propertiesPorts of Auckland Limited (POAL) investment properties 
POAL's investment properties are valued at 15 June 2010 by Gribble Churton and Taylor Limited as at 30 June 2010 and Colliers International NZ Limited at  
30 June 2010, independent registered valuers and associates of the New Zealand Institute of Valuers. The valuers have recent experience in the location and 
category of the investment property being valued. The basis of valuation of the investment properties is fair value being the amounts for which the properties 
could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm's length transaction at the operative date, based on current prices in an active market 
for similar properties in the same location and condition and subject to similar leases. 

Where the fair value is not able to be determined based on comparable sales, the most common and accepted methods for assessing the current market 
value are the capitalisation of estimated rental income approach and the discounted cash flow approach. 

The major inputs and associations that are used in the valuation that require judgement include forecasts of the current and expected future market rental 
and growth, maintenance and capital expenditure requirements, vacancy and leasing costs. 

 

Note 27: Goodwill 

Group  Council  
 

 

 Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000  Note  $000   $000   $000  

27272727        Goodwill Goodwill Goodwill Goodwill     
 

  46,006    -     Goodwill (on acquisition of Ports of Auckland Limited)         46,006        -            -  
 -    -     Goodwill (on acquisition of CONLIXX Limited)         3,300        -            -  

46,006 46,006 46,006 46,006                                 ----                    Total Goodwill Total Goodwill Total Goodwill Total Goodwill                     49,306 49,306 49,306 49,306                 ----                                                    ----        
 

Goodwill has arisen on consolidation due to the difference between the consideration paid by ARH ($169.6m) and the net asset value ($124.8m) of the 20% 
additional shareholding in Ports of Auckland Limited (POAL) acquired over a series of step acquisitions from June 2005 to August 2005, concluding with 
100% shareholding on 5 August 2005. Acquisition costs of $1.2m were capitalised and also form part of goodwill. 

In accordance with NZ IFRS goodwill is tested annually for impairment. No impairment losses have been recognised. Goodwill will continue to remain on 
the Statement of Financial Position in the future unless there are impairment losses. The recoverable value has been determined on the basis of fair value 
less costs to sell. The methodology used in determining fair value is discounted cash flow as determined by an independent valuation. 

The key assumptions during the valuation of POAL include container price, volumes, operating costs, capital expenditure programmes and the discount 
rate. The approach in determining the value assigned to each assumption has been on the basis of past experience and planned changes in operations. 
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Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which POAL's recoverable amount is based would not cause POAL's 
carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.  

 
CONLINXX Limited CONLINXX Limited CONLINXX Limited CONLINXX Limited     

 On 1 February 2010, POAL established a subsidiary company CONLINXX Limited (CONLINXX), to manage the Wiri Inland Port in South Auckland.  
 CONLINXX issued and POAL subscribed, and paid cash for, 700 shares at $1 each. The non-controlling interest subscribed, and paid in cash for,  
 300 shares at $1 each.  Immediately subsequent to incorporation, CONLINXX acquired the inland port business from POAL with fair value of $7,700,000  
 in exchange for 7,700,000 ordinary shares and the Wiri trucking and logistics shuttle service business from the non-controlling interest with fair value of  
 $3,300,000 in exchange for 3,300,000 ordinary shares.  The acquisition of the inland port business from POAL is an intra-Group transaction and has been 
eliminated in full on consolidation.  
 
Details of the fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill are as follows: 
 

 Group  
 2010  

 Actual  
 $000  

 Consideration paid in cash  - 
 Non-controlling interest                           3,300  

                         3,300  

 Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition  - 

    Total Goodwill Total Goodwill Total Goodwill Total Goodwill                                                                                                         3,300 3,300 3,300 3,300     
 
 
 
 
The fair value of the 3,300,000 issued as part of the consideration paid for the Wiri trucking and logistics shuttle service business  
 and recognised as the non-controlling interest was determined on the basis of an independent valuation by Forsyth Barr Limited.  The fair value  
 estimate was estimated using a discounted cash flow analysis using the following assumptions:  
  - a going concern basis;  
  - an assumed discount rate of 13.6%; and  
  - free cash flow estimated for a 10 year forecast period based on historical experience; and  
  - a terminal value of future cash flows after the 10 year forecast period calculated assuming the terminal year unlevered free cash flows   
 grow in perpetuity at a terminal growth rate of 2% per annum;  

 Goodwill of $3,300,000 arose because the consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in relation to the benefit of expected   
 synergies, revenue growth and future market development.  These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill as they do not meet  
 the recognition criteria for intangible assets.  

 None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deducted for income tax purposes.  

 Acquisition related costs for the period amount to $180,000.  

 The acquired business contributed revenues of $5,266,000 and net loss of $1,247,000 to the Group for the period 1 February to 31 October 2010.  
 If the acquisition had occurred on 1 July 2009, consolidated revenue and consolidated loss for the year ended 30 June 2009 would have been  
 $6,141,000 and $2,040,000 respectively.  
 
NonNonNonNon----controllicontrollicontrollicontrolling interest ng interest ng interest ng interest     
 Interest in:  
Share capital 3,300 
Retained profits                                  (374) 
NonNonNonNon----controlling interestcontrolling interestcontrolling interestcontrolling interest                                                        2,9262,9262,9262,926        
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Note 28: Property, plant and equipment 

Movements for each class of property, plant and equipment are shown as follows:  
  
Council 2009 Council 2009 Council 2009 Council 2009      Cost  Accumulated  Carrying  Additions   WIP    Net  Depreciation   Cost  Accumulated   Carrying  

 depreciation   amount  transfers  Disposals   depreciation   amount  
1 July 
2008 1 July 2008 

1 July 
2008 

 30 June 
2009 

 30 June 
2009 

 30 June 
2009 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
Operational assets Operational assets Operational assets Operational assets     
Land and improvements        9          4    5      -      -      -                1            9          5         4  
Buildings     98         48    50     -       -       -          3          98         51   47  
Plant machinery and 
other equipment  19,807        11,458    8,349    1,109  1,182      76     1,012   21,507         11,955  9,552  
Vehicles      4,798      3,441      1,357  124     616      44          546      4,820    3,313        1,507  
Furniture, fixtures and 
equipment    30,764      21,589    9,175   1,491   1,365         3        2,903  32,637       23,512     9,125  
Finance lease        948       820    128         -         -          -          128     948        948       -  
Roads   8,963       2,391  6,572     321   1,129        -        307    10,413         2,698     7,715  
Dams      257        116  141      -         -    -         11    257        127       130  
Bridges and structures    1,755        537   1,218     86      473         -   97  2,314        634    1,680  
Low value assets     559         559      -      80        -        -         80      639         639      -  
Work in progress   10,174             -    10,174    3,103    (9,243)         -          -      4,034           -     4,034  
Total operational assets   78,132     40,963   37,169    6,314   (4,478)    123      5,088      77,676       43,882   33,794  

RestRestRestRestricted assets ricted assets ricted assets ricted assets     
Land and improvements   170,597      7,265   163,332      6,857     1,533    1,208           541   176,519     6,546   169,973  
Buildings   57,801      12,268   45,533    1,089  2,945       104      1,035     61,559        13,131    48,428  
Total restricted assets   228,398        19,533  208,865    7,946       4,478        1,312        1,576    238,078         19,677    218,401  

Total Council property, Total Council property, Total Council property, Total Council property, 
plant and equipment plant and equipment plant and equipment plant and equipment         306,530 306,530 306,530 306,530                 60,496 60,496 60,496 60,496     246,034 246,034 246,034 246,034             14,260 14,260 14,260 14,260                             ----                1,435 1,435 1,435 1,435                             6,664 6,664 6,664 6,664             315,754 315,754 315,754 315,754                 63,559 63,559 63,559 63,559                 252,195 252,195 252,195 252,195     
 

Significant asset Significant asset Significant asset Significant asset 
acquisitions: acquisitions: acquisitions: acquisitions:     

 Date 
acquired 

 Cost   
$000 

 Te Arai Point Land  31.07.2008      4,769  
 Tapapkanga - Blundell property  30.06.2009      1,069  
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Note 28: Property, plant and equipment - Continued 

Council 2010Council 2010Council 2010Council 2010    
    

 Cost  Accumulated  Carrying  Additions   WIP    Net  Reclass-
ifications 

Depre-
ciation 

Re-
valuation 

Impairment 
/ Reversals 

 Cost  Accumulated  Carrying  

depreciation  amount  transfers  Disposals   depreciation   amount  
1 July 
2009 1 July 2009 

1 July 
2009 

   31 Oct 
2010  31 Oct  2010 

 31 Oct 
2010 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

    Operational assets Operational assets Operational assets Operational assets       

 Land and 
improvements  

                    
9  

     
5  

                    
4  

                 
-  

                      
-  

                     
-  

                     
-  

                       
1  - 

                
- 

                            
8 

                            
5  

            
3  

 Buildings   98          51   47     -     -    -    -         3  - -   94  50     44  

 Plant machinery and 
other equipment     21,507      11,955     9,552   871       514   -  -     2,187       - 

 
 

1,577   16,249     9,076  7,173 

 Vehicles  4,820      3,313   1,507   605      102      115  -       743  - - 2,895    1,539      1,356  
 Furniture, fixtures 
and equipment     32,637               23,512  

            
9,125  

         
1,011  

                
679  

                    
9  -     

               
3,572  - 

                      
-  

                  
10,921  

                  
3,687  

                 
7,234  

 Finance lease  948       948    -  - -   -    -  - - -  948 948     -  

 Roads  10,413  2,698  7,715     -     -  - (6,567) 1,148 - -     -         -     -  

 Dams    257       127 130     -   -    -  (114) 16      -  -   -          -   -  
 Bridges and 
structures    2,314        634      1,680   20,000      -       -  

     
(1,280)  342        -  

                     
-    20,327            269   20,058  

 Low value assets    639      639      -  137   8    -    -    145  - -    145    145      -  

 Work in progress    4,034          -  4,034    2,046    (3,976)        -         -  -  - -     2,104           -    2,104  
 Total operational 
assets  

          
77,676               43,882  

          
33,794        24,670  

           
(2,673) 

             
124  

             
(7,961)  

               
8,157  

                  
- 

 
1,577 

                  
53,691  

                  
15,719  

                
37,972  

  

    Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets       

 Land and 
improvements  

        
176,519               6,546  

        
169,973        22,186  

             
2,624  - 55,019  

               
1,501  

               
202,856  

         
- 

                
451,158  

                             
-  

             
451,158  

 Buildings  
    

61,559             13,131  48,428      -       -        -  
      

(47,058)  1,370       -  
                
-    -     -      -  

 Total restricted 
assets  

        
238,078               19,677  

        
218,401        22,186  

             
2,624  

                     
-  

                     
7,961  

               
2,871  

               
202,856  

                
- 

                
451,158  

                       
-  

             
451,158  

  

    Total Council Total Council Total Council Total Council 
property, plant and property, plant and property, plant and property, plant and 
equipment equipment equipment equipment     

                                
315,754 315,754 315,754 315,754                                                         63,559 63,559 63,559 63,559     

                                
252,195 252,195 252,195 252,195                             46,856 46,856 46,856 46,856     

                                                                    
(49)(49)(49)(49)    

                                                    
124124124124            ----                                                

                                                    
11,028 11,028 11,028 11,028     

                                                            
202202202202,856 ,856 ,856 ,856     

                                                                                                                                                
                                                                    

504,849504,849504,849504,849    
                                                                        

15,71915,71915,71915,719        489,130489,130489,130489,130    1,5771,5771,5771,577    

 

Significant asset Significant asset Significant asset Significant asset 
acquisitions: acquisitions: acquisitions: acquisitions:     

 Date 
acquired 

 Cost   
$000 

 Queens Wharf  01.04.2010        20,000  
 Te Muri Land  01.10.2010       15,062  

 

Valuation Valuation Valuation Valuation     
Land and improvements – restricted assets were revalued during the financial year, resulting in a gain of $202,856m (2009: $nil).   
 
Council previously held land and improvements at cost.  Due to the pending Auckland Council reorganisation, and to bring the valuation policy in line with 
the valuation policies adopted by the other councils in the Auckland region, ARC revalued its land and improvements.   
 
Auckland Regional Council land and improvements – restricted assets were valued at 30 June 2010 by Darroch Valuations, independent valuers and 
property advisors. The basis of valuation of the land and buildings was fair value as defined under NZ IAS 16, being the amount for which an asset could 
be exchanged, or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arms-length transaction.  Darroch undertook inspections on the majority 
of the Council’s property portfolio.  Buildings were valued at a replacement cost approach, as derived from construction contracts of like assets and 
recent costings obtained from construction details and Property Institute of New Zealand’s cost information. 
 
Underlying Valuation AssumptionsUnderlying Valuation AssumptionsUnderlying Valuation AssumptionsUnderlying Valuation Assumptions    
 
Building Valuation 
 
Inspections were undertaken for the majority of the Councils property portfolio; however no internal inspections have been undertaken for residential 
housing and leased properties. Where access has not been gained we have relied on records held by Quotable Value Limited, Darroch Valuations or 
provided by the Auckland Regional Council.  
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Darroch Corporate Advisory has relied upon ownership details provided by the Auckland Regional Council. 
 
Where the ARC has building leases in place and has not provided the lease details, Darroch Corporate Advisory have relied on the information that was 
held by Darroch Valuations or assumed a market rent.  
 
Darroch’s parent company Quotable Value Ltd holds data on all property within New Zealand. This information is maintained through Data Management 
contracts with individual Local Authorities throughout New Zealand. Where QV does not maintain the council data, it has purchase contracts in place, 
which provide frequent information updates.   
 
When there is any change to the nature of a property such as a building consent, sub division, street address change or change of ownership, the Local 
Authority is notified by the actioning party. In the case of a change in ownership, the acting solicitor will notify the respective Local Authority. This in turn 
will be amended within Council records and forms part of the frequent updates made to the QV National Property Database. 
 
Land Valuation Process 
 
Land is valued as vacant and incorporates the influences of size, contour, quality, location, zoning, designation and current and potential usage. 
 
Darroch’s have assumed an open market “willing buyer willing seller” scenario. This is effectively the price an informed purchaser would have to pay to 
acquire a similar property.  Darroch’s note that there is a discrepancy between the land ownership grouping between QV data and ARC. In terms of rating 
purposes, Darrochs were informed by ARC that the land grouping and assessments are correct, however not all parcels of land which are grouped and 
rated under one assessment are owned by ARC. Parcels owned by the Crown could be rated together with ARC owned land for rating purposes. 
 
As Darroch’s did not search the individual Certificate of Titles, it was agreed with ARC to assess those parks which contain a large number of Certificate of 
Titles, mainly the Waitakere and Hunua Ranges, either at one rate (dollars per ha) or split up into groups and applying a rate depending on the topography 
and use of the land. Darroch’s have assumed that the land areas provided by ARC are accurate and that the land is not to be sold off in smaller parts. 
Some of the smaller parks which contained a small number of Certificate of Titles were valued by individual Certificate of Title. 
 
 
ReclassificationReclassificationReclassificationReclassification    
Due to the change in Accounting Policy, the Council revalued restricted assets.  Dams, Roads and Bridges and Structures that had previously been 
accounted for as separate classes of assets have been reclassified and revalued as part of restricted land and improvements on the basis that those 
dams, roads and buildings had been built on, and form part of, the restricted land. 
 
ImpairmentImpairmentImpairmentImpairment    
Impairment losses recognised in respect of plant and equipment during the year amounted to $1,577k (note 13).  This was not as a result of the 
dissolution. 
 
Change in Useful LivesChange in Useful LivesChange in Useful LivesChange in Useful Lives    
The useful lives of certain assets at Mt Smart have been re-assessed.  Accordingly, the amortisation of these assets has been increased to write off their 
remaining carrying value over the revised useful lives.  The change in useful lives has increased amortisation charges for the 16 month period ended 31 
October 2010 by $1,954k. 
 
Restricted AssetsRestricted AssetsRestricted AssetsRestricted Assets    
All ARC land is subject to the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government Amendment Act 2006, which set out procedures for the sale or 
exchange of ARC land and, in some cases, how the proceeds of sale are to be applied.  Land which was taken or otherwise acquired under the Public 
Works Act 1981, and is no longer required for public works, is subject to the rights of the former owners of that land under sections 40 and 42 of that Act. 
 
Regional Parks and Reserves are also subject, in some cases, to the provisions of the Reserves Act 1977.  All parkland is classified as restricted, 
 
Mt Smart Stadium is governed by The Mt Smart Regional Recreation Centre Act 1985. 
 
There is no property, plant and equipment pledged as security for liabilities. 
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Note 28: Property, plant and equipment - Continued 

GroupGroupGroupGroup    2009 2009 2009 2009     
    

 Cost  
Accumulated  
depreciation  

 Carrying  
 amount  Additions  

 WIP   
transfers  

 Net  
Disposals  

Reclass-  
ifications  

 Exchange  
Difference  

Revaluation  
 Surplus  

Deprec-
iation  

Impairment  
 and 

(reversals)   Cost  

 
Accumulated   Carrying  

 
depreciation   amount  

1 July 
2008 1 July 2008 

1 July 
2008 

30 June 
2009 

30 June 
2009 

30 June 
2009 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Operational Operational Operational Operational 
assetsassetsassetsassets    
Land and 
improvements  

        
328,789  

                       
4  

        
328,785  

                 
-  

                      
-  

                     
-  

               
6,720  

                            
-  

                  
43,040  

                            
1  

                       
53  

              
278,976  

                        
5  

            
278,971  

Land - finance 
lease*  

          
15,050  

                        
-  

          
15,050  

                 
-  

                      
-  

                     
-  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                             
-  

                           
-  

                 
15,050  

                         
-  

              
15,050  

Buildings     43,685        48    43,637  198          -      -    (3,662)  1,292       5,325     1,469      130     39,332         51   39,281  
Plant machinery 
and other 
equipment  

        
218,423  

             
85,047  

        
133,376  

         
4,128  

           
(1,929) 

                
829  

                  
202  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                  
16,393  

                           
-  

              
217,060  

              
98,909  

            
118,151  

Vehicles     4,797     3,441   1,356     124   616     44          -       -          -      546       -   4,819       3,313        1,506  
Furniture, fixtures 
and equipment  

          
67,418  

             
46,544  

          
20,874  

         
3,195  

             
1,365  

                  
23  

                 
(202) 

                       
259  

                             
-  

                    
5,122  

                           
-  

                 
70,264  

          
50,032  

         
20,232  

Finance Leases  948           820   128      -      -      -    -   -       -      128      -  948    948      -  

Roads   8,963     2,391  6,572     321   1,129     -     -     -        -      307        -   10,413   2,698       7,715  

Dams   257       116   141   -     -  -   -       -        -  11            -    257       127     130  
Bridges and 
structures  

            
1,755  

                  
537  

            
1,218  

              
86  

                
473  

               
-  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                          
97  

                           
-  

                   
2,314  

                    
634  

                 
1,680  

Rolling stock    92,726     26,218  66,508     -     36,467       -        -           -        -   13,713       -   129,193     39,931  89,262  
Railway stations 
and associated 
assets  

          
22,400  

                  
502  

          
21,898  

                 
-  

            
6,204  

                
254  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                    
1,091  

                           
-  

                 
28,322  

                 
1,565  

              
26,757  

Wharves, piers 
and associated 
assets  

        
195,844  

                  
555  

        
195,289  

              
75  

             
1,896  

                     
-  

                  
932  

                 
17,548  

                     
6,707  

                    
3,262  

    
-  

              
170,127  

                 
1,316  

            
168,811  

Pavements    66,431       3,108    63,323   10,774          -        -    (3,990)        -              -    1,132            -      81,195     4,240   76,955  

Low value assets    559     559   -    80  -  -  -  -      -     80  -       638     638      -  
Work in progress  
railway stations  

            
8,792  

                        
-  

            
8,792  

      
25,993  

           
(6,204) 

                     
-  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                             
-  

                           
-  

                 
28,581  

                         
-  

              
28,581  

Work in progress 
- rolling stock  

          
36,531  

                        
-  

          
36,531  

      
38,787  

         
(36,467) 

                     
-  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                             
-  

         
-  

                 
38,851  

                         
-  

              
38,851  

Work in progress 
- plant, 
machinery & 
other equipment  

          
12,643  

                        
-  

          
12,643  

         
3,529  

             
3,111  

     
-  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                             
-  

                           
-  

                 
19,283  

                         
-  

              
19,283  

Work in progress 
- wharves  

            
1,997  

                        
-  

            
1,997  

         
4,241  

           
(1,896) 

                     
-  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                       
-  

                           
-  

                   
4,342  

                         
-  

                 
4,342  

Work in progress 
- buildings  

          
10,174  

                        
-  

          
10,174  

         
3,103  

           
(9,243) 

          
-  

                        
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                             
-  

                           
-  

                   
4,034  

                         
-  

                 
4,034  

Total operational 
assets  

     
1,138,182  

          
169,890  

        
968,292  

      
94,634  

           
(4,478) 

             
1,150  

                        
-  

                 
19,099  

                  
55,072  

                  
43,352  

                     
183  

      
1,143,999  

            
204,407  

            
939,592  

Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets     
Land and 
improvements  

        
185,097  

               
7,265  

        
177,832  

         
6,857  

             
1,533  

             
1,208  

            
-  

                            
-  

                             
-  

                    
2,277  

                           
-  

              
191,019  

                 
8,282  

            
182,737  

Buildings     57,801   12,268   45,533  1,089       2,945    104  -  -  -     1,035  -   61,559    13,131      48,428  
 Total restricted 
assets  

        
242,898  

             
19,533  

        
223,365  

         
7,946  

             
4,478  

             
1,312  

                        
-  

                        
-  

                             
-  

                    
3,312  

                           
-  

              
252,578  

              
21,413  

            
231,165  

Total Total Total Total GroupGroupGroupGroup    
property, plant property, plant property, plant property, plant 
and equipment and equipment and equipment and equipment     

                    
1,381,080 1,381,080 1,381,080 1,381,080     

                                        
189,423 189,423 189,423 189,423     

                
1,191,657 1,191,657 1,191,657 1,191,657     

                
102,580 102,580 102,580 102,580     

                                                                                        
----        

                                                    
2,462 2,462 2,462 2,462     

                                                                                                
----        

                                                                    
19,099 19,099 19,099 19,099     

                                                                        
55,072 55,072 55,072 55,072     

                                                                        
46,664 46,664 46,664 46,664     

                                                                                    
183 183 183 183     

                                            
1,396,577 1,396,577 1,396,577 1,396,577     

                                                
225,820 225,820 225,820 225,820     

                                    
1,170,757 1,170,757 1,170,757 1,170,757     
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Note 28: Property, plant and equipment - Continued 

    GroupGroupGroupGroup    2010 2010 2010 2010     
    

 Cost  
Accumulated  
depreciation  

 Carrying  
 amount  Additions  

 WIP  
transfers  

 Net  
Disposals  

Reclass-  
ifications  

 Exchange  
Difference  

Revaluation  
 Surplus  

 
Deprec-
iation  

 
Impairment  

 and 
(reversals)  

 Cost  
 

Accumulated   Carrying  
 

depreciation   amount  

1 July 
2009 1 July 2009 

1 July 
2009 

31 
October 

2010 
31 October 

2010 

31 
October 

2010 

  $000 $000 $000 $000   $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Operational Operational Operational Operational 
assetsassetsassetsassets    
Land and 
improvements  

        
278,976  

                       
5  

        
278,971  -  -  -  

           
(18,842) -  -  

                            
1  -  

              
260,134  

                        
6  

            
260,128  

Land - finance 
lease*  

          
15,050  

                        
-  

          
15,050  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

                  
2,519  

                 
12,531  

                         
-  

              
12,531  

Buildings    39,332           51     39,281  407  -  -  -  -  -    1,713       3,633    36,040     1,698     34,342  
Plant machinery 
and other 
equipment  

        
217,060  

             
98,909  

        
118,151  

         
4,387  

             
9,944  

             
227  

                 
(482) - 

                   
- 

                  
22,723  

                  
3,793  

              
215,714  

            
110,457  

            
105,257  

Vehicles  
            

4,819  
               

3,313  
            

1,506  
            

605  
                

102  
      

115  -  -  -  
                        

743  -  
                   

4,700  
                 

3,345  
                 

1,355  
Furniture, fixtures 
and equipment  

          
70,264  

             
50,032  

          
20,232  

         
2,930  

                
679  

                
115  -  -  -  

                    
6,430  -  

                 
64,306  

              
47,010  

              
17,296  

Finance Leases          948       948  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -    948            948  -  

Roads  10,413 2,698 7,715 -  -  -  (6,567)  -  -  1,148  -  -  -  -  

Dams  257  127 130 -  -  -  (114)  -  -  16  -  -  -  -  
Bridges and 
structures  

                
2,314 

                    
634  

               
1,680  

      
20,000  

                      
-  

                     
-  (1,280)  -  -  

                        
342  -  

                 
20,327  

                    
269  

              
20,058  

Rolling stock  129,193     39,931   89,262  -    56,322  -  -  -       40,077   21,676  -   168,540    4,555  163,985  
 stations and 
associated assets  

          
28,322  

               
1,565  

          
26,757  -  

           
79,592  

                
201  -  -  -  

                    
2,485  

                  
5,403  

                 
98,260  -  

              
98,260  

Wharves, piers 
and associated 
assets  

        
170,127  

               
1,316  

        
168,811  

            
289  

           
10,268  

                     
-  

               
1,618  -  -  

                    
3,981  

                  
1,459  

              
178,410  

                 
2,864  

            
175,546  

Pavements     81,195        4,240      76,955  1,110  -           26   (10,949) -  -    1,686  -     71,330         5,926     65,404  

Low value assets    638         638  -    137     8  -  -  -  -       145  -         782         782  -  
Work in progress 
- railway stations  

          
28,581  

                        
-  

          
28,581  

      
48,661  

         
(73,077) -  -  -  -  -  -  

                   
4,165  -  

                 
4,165  

Work in progress 
- rolling stock  

          
38,851  

                        
-  

          
38,851  

      
28,394  

         
(56,321) -  -  -  -  -  -  

                 
10,924  -  

              
10,924  

Work in progress 
- plant, 
machinery & 
other equip  

          
19,283  

                        
-  

          
19,283  

      
13,738  

         
(16,608) -  -  -  -  -  -  

                 
16,413  -  

              
16,413  

Work in progress 
- wharves  

            
4,342  

                        
-  

            
4,342  

         
6,683  

           
(9,606) -  -  -  -  -  -  

                   
1,419  -  

                 
1,419  

Work in progress 
- buildings  

            
4,034  

                        
-  

            
4,034  

         
2,046  

           
(3,976) -  -  -  -  -  -  

                   
2,104  -  

                 
2,104  

Total operational 
assets  

     
1,143,999  

          
204,407  

        
939,592  

    
129,387  

           
(2,673) 

             
684  

           
(36,616) 

                            
-  

                  
40,077  

                  
63,089  

                
16,807  

           
1,167,047  

            
177,860  

            
989,187  

Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets Restricted assets     
Land, buildings 
and 
improvements  

        
191,019  

             
8,282  

        
182,737  

      
22,186  

             
2,624  -  55,019  -  

       
202,856  

                    
4,186  

              
465,657  

                 
4,421  

            
461,236 

Buildings  61,559  13,131  48,428  -  -  -  (47,058)  -  -  1,370  -  -  -  -  
Total restricted 
assets  

        
252,578  

             
24,413  

        
231,165  

      
22,186  

             
2,624  

                     
-  

               
7,961 

                            
-  

                
202,856  

                    
5,556  

                           
-  

              
465,657  

              
4,421  

            
461,236  

Total Total Total Total GroupGroupGroupGroup    
property, plant property, plant property, plant property, plant 
and equipment and equipment and equipment and equipment     

                    
1,396,5771,396,5771,396,5771,396,577        

                                        
225,820225,820225,820225,820        

                
1,170,7571,170,7571,170,7571,170,757        

                
151,573 151,573 151,573 151,573     

                                                                    
(49)(49)(49)(49)    

                                                    
684684684684        

                                            
((((22228,655)8,655)8,655)8,655)    

                                                                                                                
----        

                                            
242,933242,933242,933242,933        

                                                                        
68,645 68,645 68,645 68,645     

                                                                
16,80716,80716,80716,807        

                                            
1,1,1,1,632,704632,704632,704632,704        

                                                
182,281 182,281 182,281 182,281     

                                    
1,1,1,1,450,423450,423450,423450,423        

 

Work in Progress (POAL)Work in Progress (POAL)Work in Progress (POAL)Work in Progress (POAL)    
The consolidated carrying value of property, plant and equipment includes POAL work in progress of $2.9m (2009: $18.5m). 
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Note 28: Property, plant and equipment - Continued 

Wynyard precinct land Wynyard precinct land Wynyard precinct land Wynyard precinct land     

The amount of $12.7m (2009: $16.1m) is added to the value of the Wynyard Precinct land in Group land and improvements (restricted assets)  
 

 Council  
 2010  

 Actual  
 $000  

 Current value of properties sold by ARH to ARC  39,730 
 Cash compensation amount paid / received by ARC to ARH  23,500 

    Effective rental paid in advance Effective rental paid in advance Effective rental paid in advance Effective rental paid in advance     16,230 

 Amortised as notional rental expense to June 2009  3,466 

    Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 31 October 2010 added to the value of the land Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 31 October 2010 added to the value of the land Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 31 October 2010 added to the value of the land Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 31 October 2010 added to the value of the land     12,764 

 Amortised as notional rental expense for 16 months to 31 October 2010  2,685 

    Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 3Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 3Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 3Total asset of rental expense in advance as at 31 October 2010 added to the value of the land 1 October 2010 added to the value of the land 1 October 2010 added to the value of the land 1 October 2010 added to the value of the land     10,079 

 

Land Land Land Land ----    finance lease* finance lease* finance lease* finance lease*     
The finance leases over the downtown ferry terminal water space and land are for an indefinite lease term until such time as ARTA does not comply with 
the required and permitted use clauses in the finance leases. The land subject to these leases is therefore recognised at its fair value until such time as 
the leases are not to be renewed in perpetuity.  The net carrying amount of land held under finance leases is $12,531k (2009: $15,050k).  

Valuation of land, building and wharves Valuation of land, building and wharves Valuation of land, building and wharves Valuation of land, building and wharves     (ARH)(ARH)(ARH)(ARH)    
In the current financial period, land and buildings were not revalued. 
 
All POAL port operations land, buildings and wharves were revalued to fair value as 30 June 2009.   The valuation basis is fair value, being the amounts 
for which the assets could be exchanged between willing parties in an arms length transaction, based on current prices in an active market for similar 
properties in the same location and condition. The value was determined as at 8 May 2009 by independent registered valuers, Barratt-Boyes Jefferies 
Limited, associates of the New Zealand Institute of Valuers. The revaluation changes net of applicable deferred income taxes were charged to the 
property, plant and equipment reserve in equity (refer to note 38).  
 
Where the fair value of an asset is able to be determined by reference to the price in an active market for the same asset or similar asset, the fair value 
of the asset is determined using this information.  Where the fair value is not able to be determined in this manner, the most common and accepted 
methods for assessing the current value are the capitalisation of estimated rental income approach and the discontinued cash flow approach.  The major 
inputs and assumptions that are used in the valuation that require judgement includes forecasts of the current and expected future market rentals and 
growth, maintenance and capital expenditure requirements, vacancy and leasing costs.  
 
Where the fair value of the asset is not able to be reliably determined using any of the above mentioned market based evidence, depreciated replacement 
cost (DRC) is considered to be the most appropriate basis for the determination of fair value.  This situation arises where assets are of a specialised 
nature such as buildings and wharves, and where the asset is rarely sold, except as part of a continuing business.  
    
Valuation (ARTA)Valuation (ARTA)Valuation (ARTA)Valuation (ARTA)    
The valuation for rolling stock is significantly influenced by the exchange rate from Australian Dollars to New Zealand Dollars. The exchange rate has 
fluctuated from 4.3% from 30 June 2010 to 31 October 2010 which has a theoretical impact on the valuation of $5.9m.  The most recent rolling stock 
valuation was performed by independent Valuers A Smith of Halcrow Pacific Pty Ltd (Australia); covering $153.3m of assets and valuation is effective  
31 October 2010. 
 
NZ IAS 16 permits public benefit entities to account for revaluation of property, plant and equipment on a class by class basis. ARTA has exercised this 
discretion and recorded items using the cost model except for where certain classes the revaluation model provides a closer representation of fair value.  
In making this determination, ARTA has considered the relevance and reliability of the information – specifically which approach assists in the readability 
of financial statements and whether the statements can be arrived at objectively. 
 
 
The most recent rail and buildings, wharves and wharf structures, and land valuations were performed by independent valuers M E Gumby of Telfer Young 
(Auckland) Ltd in conjunction with Echo Cain of OPUS International Consultants Limited, covering $149,418,869 of assets and the valuation is effective as 
at 31 October 2010.  The net increase in value was $30.7m 
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Impairment Impairment Impairment Impairment     
Impairment losses of $16.8m (2009: $183k) have been recognised during the financial year in respect of buildings and plant, machinery and other 
equipment. $5,681k relates specifically to POAL and is attributable to the demolition of a building and the write down of the recoverable amount for 
property, plant and equipment.  The impairment loss has been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the line item "Other operating 
expenses".  
 
None of these impairments are as a result of the dissolution. 
 
Restricted Assets Restricted Assets Restricted Assets Restricted Assets     
All ARC land is subject to the Local Government Act 2002 and the Local Government Amendment Act 2006, which set out procedures for the sale or 
exchange of ARC land and, in some circumstances, how the proceeds of sale are to be applied.  

Land which was taken or otherwise acquired under the Public Works Act 1981, and is no longer required for public works, is subject to the rights of the 
former owners of that land under sections 40 and 42 of that Act.  

Regional Parks and Reserves are also subject, in some cases, to the provisions of the Reserves Act 1977.  

All parkland is classified as restricted.  

Mt Smart Stadium is governed by The Mt Smart Regional Recreation Centre Act 1985.  

POAL Capitalised Borrowing Costs POAL Capitalised Borrowing Costs POAL Capitalised Borrowing Costs POAL Capitalised Borrowing Costs     
The capitalised borrowing costs of POAL (as per NZ IAS23), has been eliminated in the Group $148k (2009:$140k). 
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Note 29: Intangible assets 

Movements for each class of intangible asset are as follows:  
 

Council 2009 Council 2009 Council 2009 Council 2009     
     Cost  Accumulated  Carrying  Additions   WIP   Amortisation  Cost  Accumulated  Carrying  

amortisation  amount  transfers   charge amortisation   amount  
1 July 
2008 1 July 2008 

1 July 
2008 

30 June 
2009 

30 June 
2009 

30 June 
2009 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Computer software   7,040    5,180    1,860    1,460    1,529      922  10,029       6,102     3,927  
Computer software - WIP  1,359          -  1,359   194  (1,529)         -        24          -     24  
Total Council intangible assetsTotal Council intangible assetsTotal Council intangible assetsTotal Council intangible assets    8,399 8,399 8,399 8,399             5,180 5,180 5,180 5,180         3,219 3,219 3,219 3,219         1,654 1,654 1,654 1,654                                 ----                    922 922 922 922     10,053 10,053 10,053 10,053         6,102 6,102 6,102 6,102             3,951 3,951 3,951 3,951     

 

Council 2010 Council 2010 Council 2010 Council 2010      Cost Accumulated Carrying Additions  WIP  Impairment Amortisation  Cost Accumulated  Carrying 
amortisation amount transfers  charge amortisation  amount 

1 July 
2009 

1 July 
 2009 

1 July 
2009 

31 October 
2010 

31 October 
2010 

31 October 
2010 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000     $000 

 Computer software  10,029     6,102  3,927   266       73      604         1,670      10,368       8,376    1,992 
 Computer software - WIP    24 -      24 -     (24) - - - - - 
    Total Council intangible assets Total Council intangible assets Total Council intangible assets Total Council intangible assets     10,053 10,053 10,053 10,053 6,102 6,102 6,102 6,102             3,951 3,951 3,951 3,951     266 266 266 266     49 49 49 49             604 604 604 604     1,670 1,670 1,670 1,670                 10,368 10,368 10,368 10,368         8,376 8,376 8,376 8,376             1,992 1,992 1,992 1,992 

 

There are no restrictions over the title of ARC's intangible assets, nor are any intangible assets pledged as security for liabilities.  
Impairment Impairment Impairment Impairment     
Impairment losses of $604k have been recognised during the financial year (2009 $nil).  
The impairment loss has been recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in the line item "Other operating expenses".  
The useful lives of certain intangible assets have been reassessed as they will not be required for the ongoing operation by Auckland Council from 01 November. 
Accordingly, the amortisation of these assets has been increased to write off their remaining carrying value over the revised useful lives. The change in useful lives has 
increased amortisation charges for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 in note 12 by $0.6 million at a Group level and increased the net deficit before tax by the 
same amount.  

 

GroupGroupGroupGroup    2009 2009 2009 2009     
     Cost Accumulated Carrying Additions  WIP  Development Disposals Impairment Amortisation  Cost Accumulated Carrying 

amortisation amount transfers  costs* amortisation amount 
1 July 
2008 

1 July 
 2008 

1 July 
2008 

30 June 
2009 

30 June 
2009 

30 June 
2009 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

Computer software  17,395    12,661   4,734 5,722    1,676      514          2 -     1,942   25,305  14,603 10,702 
Computer software - WIP   1,359 -   1,359    377   (1,676) - - - -     60 -    60 
Operating lease - Land  22,522    268  22,254 - - - -   357   22,522       625   21,897 
Total Total Total Total GroupGroupGroupGroup    intangible intangible intangible intangible 
assets assets assets assets     

                                        
41,276 41,276 41,276 41,276 

                                                    
11112,929 2,929 2,929 2,929 

                                        
28,347 28,347 28,347 28,347 

                                    
6,099 6,099 6,099 6,099 

                                                                                        
----    

                                                                
514 514 514 514 

                                                                                            
2 2 2 2 

                                                                                                                
----    

                                                                                
2,299 2,299 2,299 2,299 

                                                                
47,887 47,887 47,887 47,887 

                                                                    
15,228 15,228 15,228 15,228 

                                                        
32,659 32,659 32,659 32,659 

    GroupGroupGroupGroup    2010 2010 2010 2010      Cost Accumulated Carrying Additions  WIP Development Disposals Impairment Amortisation  Cost Accumulated  Carrying 
amortisation amount transfers  costs* amortisation amount 

1 July 
2009 

1 July 
2009 

1 July 
2009 

31October 
2010 

31 October 
2010 

31October 
2010 

  $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

 Computer software  25,305    14,603  10,702  4,769     73      684      70      604 3,299     30,426      18,171   12,255 
 Computer software - WIP      60        -      60  1,636   (24) - - - -   1,672       -    1,672 
 Operating lease - Land  22,522     625 21,897 - - - - -       477    22,522    1,102    21,420 
    Total Total Total Total GroupGroupGroupGroup    Intangible Intangible Intangible Intangible 
Assets Assets Assets Assets     

                                        
47,887 47,887 47,887 47,887 

                
15,228 15,228 15,228 15,228 

                                        
32,659 32,659 32,659 32,659 

                                    
6,405 6,405 6,405 6,405 

                                                                        
49 49 49 49 

                                                                
684 684 684 684 

                                                                                
70 70 70 70 

                                                                                            
604 604 604 604 

                                                                                
3,776 3,776 3,776 3,776 

                                                                
54,620 54,620 54,620 54,620 

                                                                    
19,273 19,273 19,273 19,273 

                                                        
35,347 35,347 35,347 35,347 

 

* Capitalised development costs are an internally generated asset.  
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    Operating lease Operating lease Operating lease Operating lease ----    Land Land Land Land     
The operating lease intangible has been recognised at its fair value on acquisition and is being amortised over the period of the underlying lease (63 years). 
This lease is for the land at each of the railway station sites along the Auckland passenger rail network. 
 
There are no restrictions over the title of intangible assets, 
No intangible assets are pledged as security for liabilities. 
 

Note 30: Creditors and other payables 

Group  Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

  24,069    8,475   Trade payables     49,292     7,796      16,658  
   198     198   Deposits and bonds      149    149      - 

 45,348    3,365   Accrued expenses     22,195      6,917     -  
   2,748     2,748   Rates in advance      117,383   117,383      -  
    1,625    1,479   Income received in advance    5,435     4,849  -  
    2,122  -  Restructuring provision  - - - 
    2,447     154     Other payables         14,797        795    -  
    78,557 78,557 78,557 78,557         16,419 16,419 16,419 16,419                 Total creditorsTotal creditorsTotal creditorsTotal creditors    and other payables and other payables and other payables and other payables                 209,209,209,209,251251251251        137,889137,889137,889137,889                            16,65816,65816,65816,658        

 

Creditors and other payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 30-day terms, therefore the carrying value of creditors and other payables 
Is approximately their fair value.  
 

Note 31: Related party payables 

Group  Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

 ARC provides funding to ARTA for operating activities.  
 ARC also provides funding to ARTA in order for ARTA to 
fulfil its  
responsibilities under the grants assumed from 
Infrastructure  
 Auckland as at 1 July 2004.  

    Current liability portion Current liability portion Current liability portion Current liability portion     
- 28,975   ARTA operating expenses  -   19,063      38,580 
-  19,819     Transport grants  -     3,946      1,073  
----        48,794 48,794 48,794 48,794                 Total current payables Total current payables Total current payables Total current payables     ----        23,009 23,009 23,009 23,009             39,639,639,639,655553 3 3 3     

    NonNonNonNon----current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion     
-   1,152   Transport grants  - - 1,152 
----            1,152 1,152 1,152 1,152                 Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current payables current payables current payables current payables     ----    ----                1,1521,1521,1521,152    
                
----            49494949,946 ,946 ,946 ,946                 Total related party payables Total related party payables Total related party payables Total related party payables ----    ARC owing to ARTA ARC owing to ARTA ARC owing to ARTA ARC owing to ARTA     ----                    23,009 23,009 23,009 23,009             40,80540,80540,80540,805    

 

The carrying amounts of current grants payable approximate their fair value. 

In the prior year the fair value of non-current grants payable in a time frame of greater than one year was determined using cash flows discounted at a rate 

based on The Treasury 2010 discount default rate of 8.00%. 

This year non-current grants payable are not fair valued but are stated at the amount payable as the difference between fair value and amount payable is 

immaterial. 
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Note 32: Other financial liabilities 

Group  Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

    CuCuCuCurrent liability portion rrent liability portion rrent liability portion rrent liability portion     
  19,819       -   Transport grants     3,946     -         -  
   13,455   13,455   Stormwater grants        12,336     12,336  127,526  

-  -     Unrealised Foreign Currency Loss        2,572  -      
        33,274 33,274 33,274 33,274         13,455 13,455 13,455 13,455                 Total current financial liabilities Total current financial liabilities Total current financial liabilities Total current financial liabilities                         18,854 18,854 18,854 18,854                     12,336 12,336 12,336 12,336             127,526127,526127,526127,526    

    NonNonNonNon----current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion     
     1,152  -   Transport grants  -  -  -  
 16,271   16,271   Stormwater grants      9,495     9,495   8,047  

- -  Unrealised Foreign Currency Loss      1,416  -    -  
17,423 17,423 17,423 17,423                                     16,271 16,271 16,271 16,271                 Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current grant liabilities current grant liabilities current grant liabilities current grant liabilities             10,911 10,911 10,911 10,911                 9,495 9,495 9,495 9,495             8,0478,0478,0478,047    

                
50,697 50,697 50,697 50,697                                     29,726 29,726 29,726 29,726                 Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current financial liabilities current financial liabilities current financial liabilities current financial liabilities     29,765 29,765 29,765 29,765     21,831 21,831 21,831 21,831             135,573135,573135,573135,573        

 

The carrying amounts of current grants payable approximate their fair value.  

In the prior year the fair value of non-current grants payable in a time frame of greater than one year was determined using cash flows discounted at a rate 
based on The Treasury 2010 discount default rate of 8.00%.  

This year non-current grants payable are not fair valued but are stated at the amount payable as the difference between fair value and amount payable is 
immaterial.  

As at 31 October 2010, ARTA has an unrealised foreign currency loss of $3.988m.  This relates to forward contracts for both EURO and USD amounts relating 
to one contract.  The current portion of the unrealised loss is $2.571m and non-current is $1.416m  
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Note 33: Borrowings 

Group  Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

Current liabilityCurrent liabilityCurrent liabilityCurrent liability    
-  -  Short term facility 1,044 -  -  

 111,200   10,700  Interest bearing liabilities -  -  -  
    106     106    Electricity Efficiency and Conservation Authority (EECA) loan    106  106         - 

111,306 111,306 111,306 111,306         10,806 10,806 10,806 10,806                 Total current borrowings Total current borrowings Total current borrowings Total current borrowings         1,150 1,150 1,150 1,150     106 106 106 106                                         ----    

NonNonNonNon----current liabilitycurrent liabilitycurrent liabilitycurrent liability    
  344      344  Electricity Efficiency and Conservation Authority (EECA) loan  212      212         - 

-  -  Long Term Borrowings - Transport         27,467  27,467  27,039  
-  -  Loans from Related Parties         364  -  -  

100,000 -  $100 million rolling seven year non-amortising term loan -  -  -  
150,000 -  $150 million rolling five year non-amortising term loan -  -  -  

-  -     $250 million rolling three year revolving credit facility     240,041  -    -  
250,344 250,344 250,344 250,344     344 344 344 344                 Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current borrowings current borrowings current borrowings current borrowings                     268,268,268,268,084 084 084 084             27,679 27,679 27,679 27,679                 27,03927,03927,03927,039        

    361,650 361,650 361,650 361,650         11,150 11,150 11,150 11,150                 Total borrowings Total borrowings Total borrowings Total borrowings                 269,234 269,234 269,234 269,234         27,785 27,785 27,785 27,785                             27,27,27,27,039039039039    

 

NonNonNonNon----interest bearing liabilities interest bearing liabilities interest bearing liabilities interest bearing liabilities     
On 18 June 2008 Council approved a proposal to significantly reduce energy consumption by replacing the existing lighting system with ultra efficient fittings 
coupled with intelligent sensors and energy saving controls. The capital cost of the project was funded by an interest free loan from the Electricity Efficiency 
and Conservation Authority (EECA) of $318k.  
The agreement was signed on the 31 July 2008.  

Interest bearing liabilities Interest bearing liabilities Interest bearing liabilities Interest bearing liabilities  
At balance date, POAL had unsecured borrowings of $241.0m (2009: $350.5m) under a term and revolving advances facility put in place on 26 November 2009 
and subsequently amended to $290.0m on 22 October 2010 under a term of revolving advances facility put in place on 19 December 2005.   
The facility consisted of a $290m rolling three year revolving advances facility replaces the $500.0m term and revolving advances facility put in place on  
19 November 2005.   
 
NZTA LoanNZTA LoanNZTA LoanNZTA Loan 

In November 2009, the council entered into a loan facility agreement with New Zealand Transport Agency, for the purpose of purchasing train sets. The facility 
was set-up for $32.8m to be able to drawdown as required and expires on 30 June 2013. Interest is charged 6 months in arrears from the date of the relevant 
drawdown. The interest rate charged is the rate prevailing at each drawdown as set by the New Zealand Government bond rate at that time.  

Revolving FacilRevolving FacilRevolving FacilRevolving Facilitiesitiesitiesities    ----    ARHARHARHARH 

At 31 October 2010, the undrawn amount under the revolving advances facility was $49.0m  

At 30 June 2009, the term and revolving advances facility consisted of a $250m rolling three year revolving advances facility (Facility A), a $150m rolling five 
year non-amortising term loan (Facility B) and a $100m rolling seven year non-amortising loan (Facility C).  As at 30 June 2009, the undrawn amount under 
Facility A was $149.5m. 

At 31 October 2010, POAL had in place a $290m revolving advances facility (2009: $500m term and revolving advances facility) that is subject to a negative 
pledge deed dated 17 July 1995 and amended by way of Deed of Variation and Restatement dated 19 December 2005 and Variation Deed relating to the 
negative pledge deed poll dated 18 May 2007 and 24 November 2009.  This is for the benefit of Westpac Banking Corporation, Bank of New Zealand and 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia.  

The current and non-current borrowings are unsecured.  POAL borrows under a negative pledge deed which requires certain certificates and covenants.  

At 31 October 2010, POAL had borrowings from related parties NZL Group of $364,000.  NZL Group owns 30% non-controlling interest in CONLINXX Limited.  

The fair value of interest bearing liabilities is based upon market prices where a market exists or by discounting the expected future cash flows by the 
current interest rates for liabilities with similar risk profiles. The carrying amounts of other current and non-current borrowings approximate their fair values.  
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Note 34: Employee benefit liabilities 

Group   Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

    Current liability portiCurrent liability portiCurrent liability portiCurrent liability portion on on on     
   13,044   5,504     Employee benefit liabilities        11,216     4,005       5,471  
            13,044 13,044 13,044 13,044         5,504 5,504 5,504 5,504                 Total current employee entitlements Total current employee entitlements Total current employee entitlements Total current employee entitlements                     11,216 11,216 11,216 11,216                 4,005 4,005 4,005 4,005                                 5,471 5,471 5,471 5,471     

    NonNonNonNon----current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion     
2,965   1,109     Employee benefit liabilities            3,338     1,624                1,144  

            2,965 2,965 2,965 2,965         1,109 1,109 1,109 1,109                 Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current employee entitlements current employee entitlements current employee entitlements current employee entitlements                             3,338 3,338 3,338 3,338                 1,624 1,624 1,624 1,624                         1,144 1,144 1,144 1,144     

    16,009 16,009 16,009 16,009             6,613 6,613 6,613 6,613                 Total employee benefit liabilities Total employee benefit liabilities Total employee benefit liabilities Total employee benefit liabilities                             14141414,554 ,554 ,554 ,554             5,629 5,629 5,629 5,629                                                 6,615 6,615 6,615 6,615     

 

The employee benefit liability is the Group's future obligation for accrued pay, annual leave, sick leave, long service leave, bonus leave, days in lieu and 
gratuities.  

The carrying amounts of current employee benefit liabilities payable within one year approximates their fair value.  

The fair value of non-current employee benefits payable in a time frame of greater than one year have been determined using cash flows discounted at a rate 
based on The Treasury 2010 discount default rate of 8.00% (2009: 6.40%).  
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Note 35: Provisions 

Group  Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

    CurrCurrCurrCurrent liability portion ent liability portion ent liability portion ent liability portion     
1,115    1,115   Landfill aftercare costs       1,246    1,247          9,000  

                1,115 1,115 1,115 1,115         1,115 1,115 1,115 1,115                 Total current provisions Total current provisions Total current provisions Total current provisions                                         1,246 1,246 1,246 1,246     1,247 1,247 1,247 1,247                             9,0009,0009,0009,000        

    NonNonNonNon----current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion current liability portion     
  11,923   11,923   Landfill aftercare costs          7,034       7,034       11,923  
 15,500  -     Remediation          23,915  -    -  
        27,423 27,423 27,423 27,423     11,923 11,923 11,923 11,923                 Total nonTotal nonTotal nonTotal non----current provisions current provisions current provisions current provisions                             30,949 30,949 30,949 30,949                             7,034 7,034 7,034 7,034                                                     11,92311,92311,92311,923        

        28,538 28,538 28,538 28,538         13,038 13,038 13,038 13,038                 Total provisions Total provisions Total provisions Total provisions                         32,195 32,195 32,195 32,195                     8,281 8,281 8,281 8,281                                         20,92320,92320,92320,923        

    Movements for each class of provision are as follows: Movements for each class of provision are as follows: Movements for each class of provision are as follows: Movements for each class of provision are as follows:     

    Landfill aftercare costs Landfill aftercare costs Landfill aftercare costs Landfill aftercare costs     
 5,001   5,001   Balance at 1 July       13,038  13,038         20,627 
     222     222   Interest upwind           402    402       296  
    (923)    (940)  Expenditure for the year   (1,476)    (1,476) - 
   8,738  8,755     Change in estimate        (3,683)  (3,683)   -  
 13,038   13,038   Balance at 31 October       8,281    8,281       20,923  

    Included in the landfill reserves: Included in the landfill reserves: Included in the landfill reserves: Included in the landfill reserves:     
    * Greenmount Landfill * Greenmount Landfill * Greenmount Landfill * Greenmount Landfill     

   1,599   1,599   Balance at 1 July   4,887    4,887  
     58       58   Interest upwind         365      365  

     (449)  (449)  Expenditure for the year           (567)      (567) 
    3,679    3,679     Change in estimate    (1,203)    (1,203) 

4,887  4,887   Balance at 31 October      3,482        3,482  

    * Rosedale Landfill * Rosedale Landfill * Rosedale Landfill * Rosedale Landfill     
    1,592   1,592   Balance at 1 July         4,484   4,484  

    71    71   Interest upwind        21         21  
    (344) (344)  Expenditure for the year         (525)   (525) 
     3,165  3,165     Change in estimate     (798)   (798) 
    4,484    4,484   Balance at 31 October      3,182    3,182  

    * Pikes Point Landfill * Pikes Point Landfill * Pikes Point Landfill * Pikes Point Landfill     
  886    886   Balance at 1 July          2,047       2,047  
     48   48   Interest upwind      16         16  

      (62)     (62)  Expenditure for the year      (262)     (262) 
1,175   1,175     Change in estimate        (993)   (993) 

  2,047    2,047   Balance at 31 October         808         808  

    * Devonport Landfill * Devonport Landfill * Devonport Landfill * Devonport Landfill     
   924  924   Balance at 1 July     1,620      1,620  
      45   45   Interest upwind  - - 
    (68)   (85)  Expenditure for the year           (123)       (123) 
  719      736     Change in estimate     (689)   (689) 

  1,620   1,620   Balance at 31 October        808    808  
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Note 35: Provisions - Continued 

 

Group  Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

    Other provisions Other provisions Other provisions Other provisions     
   2,502  -  Balance at 1 July  - - - 

   (2,406) -  Unused amounts reversed  - - - 
        (96) -    Amounts incurred and charged  - -   - 

- -  Balance at 31 October  - - - 

    Remediation Remediation Remediation Remediation     
   13,900  -  Balance at 1 July         15,500  - - 

    1,600  - 
 Unwinding of discount and effect of changes in the 
discount rate  1,515 - - 

- -  Obligations transferred to ARH         6,900  - - 
 15,500  -  Balance at 31 October       23,915  - - 

            28,538 28,538 28,538 28,538             13,038 13,038 13,038 13,038                 Total provisions Total provisions Total provisions Total provisions     32,195 32,195 32,195 32,195             8,288,288,288,281111                20,92320,92320,92320,923        
 

Remediation Remediation Remediation Remediation     
The remediation provision is ARH's future obligation to remediate its investment properties over the long-term.  
The provision is expected to be utilised from 2009 to 2016.  

Other provisions Other provisions Other provisions Other provisions     
Other provisions include provision for POAL's environmental liabilities related to contamination which were utilised during the 2009 year.  

Landfill aftercare costs Landfill aftercare costs Landfill aftercare costs Landfill aftercare costs     
ARC has responsibility under the resource consent of the landfill and in terms of an agreement to provide ongoing maintenance and monitoring of the landfill 
after the site is closed.  

The cash outflows for landfill post-closure are expected to occur in one to ninety-six years time (or between 2010 and 2106). The long-term nature of the 
liability means there are inherent uncertainties in estimating costs that will be incurred.  

The provision has been estimated using existing technology and known changes to legal requirements.   

The gross provision before discounting is $91,400,193 (2009: $104,198,750).  

The following major assumptions have been made in calculating the provision:  
 * the estimated remaining years of landfill aftercare are as follows: Greenmount 97 years, Rosedale 94 years, Pikes Point 85 years, and Devonport 85 years.  

This estimate is based on estimations by ARC landfill consultants. This extends beyond the original resource consent period.  
 * a discount rate of 9.0% (2009: 6.4%); and   
 * an inflation factor of 3.0%.  
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Note 36: Deferred tax liability 

Group  Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 
     (60) - Inventories        (65) - - 
  (3,581) - Provisions and prepayments      (4,121) - - 

  43,141  - 
Depreciation / amortisation / revaluations - property, plant and 
equipment 41,041  - - 

     248  - Depreciation / amortisation / revaluations - investment property        436  - - 
2,796  - Deferred income      2,359  - - 

        (8) - Other temporary differences          (54) - - 
  42,536  - Amount recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income        39,596  - - 

- - - 
    7,089  - Revaluation of property, plant and equipment      9,168  - - 

- - Available-for-sale financial assets - - 
  (3,405) -    Cash flow hedges  (3,372) -   - 

3,684  - Charged to reserves        5,796  - - 

                46,220 46,220 46,220 46,220     ----                    Total deferred tax liabilities Total deferred tax liabilities Total deferred tax liabilities Total deferred tax liabilities                         45,392 45,392 45,392 45,392     ----                ----        

    Movement in deMovement in deMovement in deMovement in deferred tax ferred tax ferred tax ferred tax     

  57,647  - Balance at 1 July       46,220  - - 

  (2,561) - 
Charged / (credited) to the Statement of Comprehensive Income  
(refer to note 14)         3,648  - - 

- - Business acquisition - - - 
   (8,866) -   Charged / (credited) to reserves       (4,476) -   - 
   46,220  - Balance 31 October         45,392  - - 

 

The Budget on 28 May 2010 introduced two changes which impact deferred tax:  
  - reduction in company tax rate; and  
  - reduction in tax depreciation rates on buildings with a useful life of 50 years or more to 0%  

The 28% company tax rate applies from the 2012 income tax year and therefore will apply for the first time to the 30 June 2012 year end.  Where appropriate, 
the deferred tax balance is restated  (for balance dates post 20 May) to ensure that the deferred tax balances on temporary differences 
existing at the current year end, but which will unwind at the new 28% rate, are calculated at the new rate.  No restatement is required for deferred tax 
balances where the temporary difference is expected to unwind at the 30% rate. 

The reduction in building depreciation rates to 0%, also apples from the 2012 income year.  This means that there is only one year of building depreciation 
remaining to be claimed.    
 
For existing buildings (held for use either as property, plant and equipment or investment property), there is a deferred tax impact.  

The loss of future tax depreciation deductions causes the temporary differences to increase, leading to an increased deferred tax liability.  
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Note 37: Retained earnings 

Group   Council   Group   Council   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Plan  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

    1,248,051 1,248,051 1,248,051 1,248,051                 1,001,300 1,001,300 1,001,300 1,001,300         Balance at 1 July  Balance at 1 July  Balance at 1 July  Balance at 1 July              1,057,807 1,057,807 1,057,807 1,057,807             989,987 989,987 989,987 989,987                             978,978,978,978,334334334334    

  (58,100)     (1,505)  Net transfers to restricted reserves (see note 38)      (92,009)     (15,885)      29,090  
      5,253       5,253   Net transfers from restricted reserves (see note 38)        1,070  1,265        169  
 (2,534) -  Net loss from fair value adjustment on grants  - - - 

 (134,863)   (15,061)  Net surplus/(deficit) for the year       47,475  2,597      (39,061) 

1,057,807 1,057,807 1,057,807 1,057,807         989,987 989,987 989,987 989,987                 Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October                 1,011,011,011,014,3434,3434,3434,343                977,96977,96977,96977,964444                            968,532968,532968,532968,532        
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Note 38: Reserves 

Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000   $000   $000  

(a) Restricted reserves Restricted reserves Restricted reserves Restricted reserves     

(i) Busin(i) Busin(i) Busin(i) Business Unit Reserves ess Unit Reserves ess Unit Reserves ess Unit Reserves     

    Farming Reserve Farming Reserve Farming Reserve Farming Reserve     
    404   404   Balance at 1 July             823        823  
     419     419     Net transfer from retained earnings             558     558  
      823   823   Balance at 31 October          1,381  1,381  

                        823 823 823 823                     823 823 823 823                 Total business unit reserves Total business unit reserves Total business unit reserves Total business unit reserves                         1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381                     1,381 1,381 1,381 1,381     

(ii) Specific Activity Reserves (ii) Specific Activity Reserves (ii) Specific Activity Reserves (ii) Specific Activity Reserves     

    Transport Ring Fence Reserve Transport Ring Fence Reserve Transport Ring Fence Reserve Transport Ring Fence Reserve     
    6,832  6,832   Balance at 1 July           1,949      1,949  
   (4,883)  (4,883)    Net transfer from/(to) retained earnings       14,635      14,635  

       1,949    1,949   Balance at 31 October       16,584       16,584  

    Parkland Purchases Reserve Parkland Purchases Reserve Parkland Purchases Reserve Parkland Purchases Reserve     
     1,212   1,212   Balance at 1 July      1,678      1,678  
        466      466     Net transfer from retained earnings          678        678  
    1,678       1,678   Balance at 31 October         2,356       2,356  

    Biosecurity Reserve Biosecurity Reserve Biosecurity Reserve Biosecurity Reserve     
1          1   Balance at 1 July  - - 

       (1)      (1)    Net transfer to retained earnings  - - 
- -  Balance at 31 October  - - 

                        3,627 3,627 3,627 3,627         3,627 3,627 3,627 3,627                 Total specific activity reserves Total specific activity reserves Total specific activity reserves Total specific activity reserves                     18,940 18,940 18,940 18,940                                 18,940 18,940 18,940 18,940     

    (iii) Trust and Bequest Reserves (iii) Trust and Bequest Reserves (iii) Trust and Bequest Reserves (iii) Trust and Bequest Reserves     

    Parks Reserve Parks Reserve Parks Reserve Parks Reserve     
          29    29     Balance at 1 July            29           29  
       29   29   Balance at 31 October             29           29  

                        29 29 29 29         29 29 29 29                 Total trust and bequest reserves Total trust and bequest reserves Total trust and bequest reserves Total trust and bequest reserves                         29 29 29 29                         29 29 29 29     
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Note 38: Reserves - continued 
 Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000   $000   $000  

    (iv) Special Fund Reserves (iv) Special Fund Reserves (iv) Special Fund Reserves (iv) Special Fund Reserves ----    NonNonNonNon----interest bearing interest bearing interest bearing interest bearing     

    EIF Reserve EIF Reserve EIF Reserve EIF Reserve     
   94   94   Balance at 1 July          231         231  

       137   137     Net transfer from / (to) retained earnings         (195)        (195) 
     231   231   Balance at 31 October           36          36  

    Civil Defence Reserve Civil Defence Reserve Civil Defence Reserve Civil Defence Reserve     
    338      338   Balance at 1 July    341          341  
      3     3     Net transfer from/(to) retained earnings            -           -  

     341   341   Balance at 31 October   341       341  

                    572 572 572 572                 572 572 572 572                 Total special fund reserves Total special fund reserves Total special fund reserves Total special fund reserves ----    nonnonnonnon----interest bearing interest bearing interest bearing interest bearing     377377377377                            377 377 377 377     

    (v) Special Fund Reserves (v) Special Fund Reserves (v) Special Fund Reserves (v) Special Fund Reserves ----    Interest bearing Interest bearing Interest bearing Interest bearing     

    Greenmount Reserve Greenmount Reserve Greenmount Reserve Greenmount Reserve     
  2,559    2,559   Balance at 1 July          2,710        2,710  
    151     151     Interest    105       105  
    151    151   Net transfer from retained earnings      105         105  

    2,710   2,710     Balance at 31 October     2,815  2,815  

    Elections Reserve Elections Reserve Elections Reserve Elections Reserve     
    145  145   Balance at 1 July          364          364  
    9    9   Interest            14       14  

   210     210     Transfer from/(to) retained earnings  - - 
       219     219   Net transfer from/(to) retained earnings              14            14  

        364        364     Balance at 31 October         378         378  

    Landfill RLandfill RLandfill RLandfill Reserves* eserves* eserves* eserves*     
 11,789  11,789   Balance at 1 July         11,631      11,631  
     699       699   Interest upwind           402      402  

       (857)  (857)    Transfer to retained earnings     (1,353)  (1,353) 
      (158)  (158)  Net transfer from/(to) retained earnings           (951) (951) 

  11,631     11,631     Balance at 31 October        10,680       10,680  
 



Auckland Regional Council 2009 – 2010 Annual Report (to 31 October 2010) Page 184 

Note 38: Reserves - continued 
 Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000   $000   $000  

*The landfill reserve represents a cash reserve which shows funds left for 
anticipated future costs.  

Refer to note 35, provisions, which currently accounts for the present value of 
the future landfill aftercare cost. Interest is calculated on the actual amount 
left and actual expenses are deducted from this amount to give a closing 
balance. Any excess of future costs will be funded from retained earnings. 

Included in the landfill reseIncluded in the landfill reseIncluded in the landfill reseIncluded in the landfill reserves: rves: rves: rves:     
    * Greenmount Landfill * Greenmount Landfill * Greenmount Landfill * Greenmount Landfill     

 10,158    10,158   Balance at 1 July           10,310     10,310  
         602    602   Interest upwind             365         365  
    (450)     (450)    Expenditure for the year             (566)          (566) 

    10,310    10,310   Balance at 31 October        10,109   10,109  

    * Rosedale Landfill * Rosedale Landfill * Rosedale Landfill * Rosedale Landfill     
  1,065   1,065   Balance at 1 July           783         783  

         63          63   Interest upwind           20          20  
       (345)   (345)    Expenditure for the year         (524)     (524) 

  783   783   Balance at 31 October             279      279  

    * Pikes Point Landfill * Pikes Point Landfill * Pikes Point Landfill * Pikes Point Landfill     
    566    566   Balance at 1 July           538        538  

         34    34   Interest upwind            16      16  
  (62)   (62)    Expenditure for the year   (262)     (262) 

     538    538   Balance at 31 October            292        292  

    Watercare Riparian Projects Watercare Riparian Projects Watercare Riparian Projects Watercare Riparian Projects     
                        ----            ----         Balance at 1 July                                                  110 110 110 110                                     110 110 110 110     
 10     10   Interest            1               1  

     100    100     Transfer from /(to) retained earnings  
              

(106)     (106) 
110  110   Net transfer from retained earnings         (105)       (105) 

   110  110     Balance at 31 October               5             5  

    Seabed Licence Fee (SBLF) Reserve  Seabed Licence Fee (SBLF) Reserve  Seabed Licence Fee (SBLF) Reserve  Seabed Licence Fee (SBLF) Reserve      
  330    330   Balance at 1 July              119         119  
     19          19   Interest  - - 
 (230)      (230)    Transfer to retained earnings            (119)        (119) 
 (211) (211)  Net transfer to retained earnings         (119)        (119) 

       119   119     Balance at 31 October  - - 

    14,934 14,934 14,934 14,934         14,934 14,934 14,934 14,934                 Total special fund reserves Total special fund reserves Total special fund reserves Total special fund reserves ----    interest binterest binterest binterest bearing earing earing earing                         13,878 13,878 13,878 13,878                     13,878 13,878 13,878 13,878     

                19,985 19,985 19,985 19,985         19,985 19,985 19,985 19,985             Total restricted reserves Total restricted reserves Total restricted reserves Total restricted reserves                         34,60534,60534,60534,605                34,605 34,605 34,605 34,605     
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Note 38: Reserves - continued 
Nature and Purpose of Restricted Reserves Nature and Purpose of Restricted Reserves Nature and Purpose of Restricted Reserves Nature and Purpose of Restricted Reserves  

The Group has created the following reserves:  

 (i) Business unit reserves  
 The reserve relating to the Farming Business Unit reflects the cumulative surplus achieved by this business unit. Generally the release of these funds can 
only be approved by Council.  

 (ii) Specific activity reserves   
Reserves for different areas of benefit are used where there is a discrete set of rate or levy payers as distinct from a general rate. Any surplus or deficit 
relating to these activities is applied to the specific reserves.  

These include Parkland Purchases, Transport Ring Fence.  

 (iii) Trust and bequest reserves  
 Trust and bequest reserves are set up where Council has been donated funds that are restricted for particular purposes. Deductions are made where funds 
have been used for the purpose for which they were donated.  

 (iv) and (v) Special fund reserves - non-interest bearing and interest bearing  
 Special fund reserves are built up annually from general rates and are made available for specific events.  
 Interest is added where applicable and expenditure is made when funds are required for the purpose for which the reserve was set up.  
 In terms of a consent granted under the Resource Management Act 1991, the ARC maintains an aftercare account for Greenmount, Rosedale, Pikes Point 
and Devonport landfills and credits all levies and other monies received on account of the Landfill.  As part of its obligation the ARC is required to 
summarise the transactions related to the landfills in its annual accounts.  
 

Group  Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009        2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual     Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000   Other reservesOther reservesOther reservesOther reserves     $000   $000  

      
   (i) Cash flow hedge reserve(i) Cash flow hedge reserve(i) Cash flow hedge reserve(i) Cash flow hedge reserve      

  2,280  -   Balance at 1 July  (7,796) - 

(16,986) -  Revaluation losses 
         

(10,652) - 
 2,215  -  Transfers to the Statement of Comprehensive Income      10,909  - 

- -  Transfers to property, plant and equipment - - 
   4,695 -  Deferred tax (33) - 

  (10,076) -  Total movements             224  - 
            (7,796)(7,796)(7,796)(7,796)    -      Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October                                 (7,572)(7,572)(7,572)(7,572)    - 

 

This reserve relates to gains and losses on hedging instruments in cash flow hedges that are recognised directly in equity as described in the accounting policy 
(refer note 1). Amounts are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income when the associated hedged transaction affects the surplus or deficit or as 
part of the asset when the associated hedged transaction affects the Statement of Financial Position. 
 

   (ii) Available(ii) Available(ii) Available(ii) Available----forforforfor----sale financial assets revaluation reservesale financial assets revaluation reservesale financial assets revaluation reservesale financial assets revaluation reserve             
 (1,034)    169    Balance at 1 July  90 169 
    6,727  -  Transfer to the Statement of Comprehensive Income (refer note 5)     (3,452) - 
 (5,121) -  Revaluation losses - - 
  (482) -  Deferred tax - - 
 1,124  -  Total movements  (3,452) - 

    90 90 90 90                     169 169 169 169          Balance at 31 Balance at 31 Balance at 31 Balance at 31 October October October October                             (3,(3,(3,(3,333362626262))))                            169 169 169 169     
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Note 38: Reserves - continued 
 
This reserve relates to the unrealised movement in the fair value of investments and other financial assets, classified by default as available-for-sale to 
comply with NZ IFRS. Fair value movements are recorded in this reserve as described in the accounting policies (refer note 1). 
 
Where this results in a negative balance in these reserves, which is not expected to reverse, the cumulative net loss is charged as an expense to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.  When shares are classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 
 
The transfer to the Statement of Comprehensive Income shown in the reconciliation of movements in this reserve for the year ended 30 June 2009 on the 
Statement of Changes in Equity for Auckland Regional Holdings, relates to the derecognition of ARH's investment in America's Cup Village Limited. 
 
The transfer to the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009 relates to POAL's shareholding in Northland Port 
Corporation (NZ) Limited. There was a significant decline in the market price of this listed equity security. This resulted in the portion of the revaluation 
reserve relating to Northland Port Corporation (NZ) Limited having a deficit which has been transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

 

Group Council Group Council 
2009 2009 2010 2010 

Actual  Actual   Actual Actual 
$000  $000      $000 $000 

    Capital  Grants Reserve      
205,089  -  Balance at 1 July 261,684 - 
56,595  -  Net transfer from retained earnings 76,319 - 
261,684  -  Balance at 31 October 338,003 - 

 

The capital grants reserve represents capital expenditure grants that have not been offset by an associated depreciation charge. 

 
(iii) Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve(iii) Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve(iii) Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve(iii) Property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve    

81,996 81,996 81,996 81,996     
    

----    Balance at 1 July  31,577 31,577 31,577 31,577     ----        
 (55,072) 

 
- Revaluation gains / (loss)  242,765  202,856  

4,653  
 

 -   Deferred tax 4,437  -  
 (50,419) 

 
- Total movements 247,202  202,856  

  
- 

  
31,577 31,577 31,577 31,577     

    
    ----                Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October     278,278,278,278,779779779779        202,856 202,856 202,856 202,856     

The property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the 
revaluation of non-current assets as described in the accounting policies (see note 1). 

The Property Plant & Equipment revaluation reserve for each class of asset 
consist of:  

 Group   Council  
16 months 16 months 

 2010  2010 

  
31,577          -  Property, Plant and Equipment  238,702  202,856 

-          -  Rolling stock  40,077  -  
31,577 - 278,779  202,856 

  
(iv) Waitawa Forestry Reserve(iv) Waitawa Forestry Reserve(iv) Waitawa Forestry Reserve(iv) Waitawa Forestry Reserve    

  
- - Balance at 1 July  ----        ----        
- - Transfer to/from  income statement  58  58  
- - Total movements 58  58  

  
- -     Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October Balance at 31 October     58 58 58 58     58 58 58 58     

    Income from Forestry & Rent to be used for upgrading the Forrest Income from Forestry & Rent to be used for upgrading the Forrest Income from Forestry & Rent to be used for upgrading the Forrest Income from Forestry & Rent to be used for upgrading the Forrest                     

285,555 285,555 285,555 285,555     169169169169                Total other reserves Total other reserves Total other reserves Total other reserves     605,906 605,906 605,906 605,906     203,083 203,083 203,083 203,083     
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Note 39: Reconciliation of net surplus / (deficit) after tax to net cash flow from operating activities 

Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000      Note Note Note Note     Reconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) after tax to net cash flow fromReconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) after tax to net cash flow fromReconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) after tax to net cash flow fromReconciliation of net surplus/(deficit) after tax to net cash flow from    

operating activitiesoperating activitiesoperating activitiesoperating activities    
 $000   $000  

    39 39 39 39     
    (134,863)(134,863)(134,863)(134,863)        (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)                    Surplus/(deficit) after tax Surplus/(deficit) after tax Surplus/(deficit) after tax Surplus/(deficit) after tax     47,101 47,101 47,101 47,101     2,597 2,597 2,597 2,597     

    Add/(less) nonAdd/(less) nonAdd/(less) nonAdd/(less) non----cash items: cash items: cash items: cash items:     
48,954  7,586   Depreciation and amortisation expense  72,421  12,698  
16,706  -   Capitalised income on portfolio investments   (34,351) -  
69,453  -   (Gains)/losses in fair value of investment property   (7,526) - 
(1,575) -   (Gains)/losses in fair value of grants  -  -  
 (961)  (961)  (Gains)/losses in fair value of livestock   (1,292)  (1,292) 

- -   Foreign Exchange loss on derivatives  3,988  - 
5,546  -   Notional rental expense  5,001  -  
 (153) -   Notional rental income   (76) -  
240  30   Realised foreign exchange losses  -  -  

6,727  -   Transfer from available-for-sale financial assets revaluation reserve  -  - 
- -  Impairment of intangibles 604 604 

184  -   Impairment of property, plant and equipment  16,807  1,577  
57  57   Impairment of doubtful debts  698  335  
- -  (Gain)/Loss on disposal of Non-Current Assets   (20,707)  (177) 
-  -   Bad debts   81  81 

13  -   Portfolio transaction and management fees deducted at source  3  - 
- -   Deferred tax  2,185  -  

  
    Items classified as investing or financing activities: Items classified as investing or financing activities: Items classified as investing or financing activities: Items classified as investing or financing activities:     

250  -   Capital items included in working capital movements   (17,087) -  
243  -   Movements in associates and joint ventures  600  -  
125  -   Movements in borrowings allocated to interest paid   (375) - 
 (54)  (54)  Gains on disposal of livestock   (116)  (116) 
670  434   Gains on disposal of property, plant & equipment   (5,000) - 
172  

 
 GST on Disposal of Non-Current Assets Held for Sale  99  - 

878  -   Fair value movements in derivatives  -  -  

    
  

    Add/(less) movements in working capital items: Add/(less) movements in working capital items: Add/(less) movements in working capital items: Add/(less) movements in working capital items:     
  

 (2,930)  (986)  Debtors and other receivables   (49,215)  (32,520) 
 (147)  (147)  Prepayments   (3,240)  (2,334) 
824  16,145   Related party receivables  -  23,016  

 (4,371) 14   Inventories   (1,193) - 
 (327) 1,293   Creditors and other payables  122,856  120,617  

 (14,404)  (14,404)  Other financial liabilities   (24,332) (7,895) 
5   (9,582)  Related party payables  -  (26,937) 

3,264  -   Current tax liability  2,758  -  
 (2,561) -  Deferred Tax  1,491  - 

975  659   Employee benefits   (1,454) (984) 
7,151  8,054   Provisions  3,658  (4,757)  

91 91 91 91         (6,923)(6,923)(6,923)(6,923)                        Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities     114,387 114,387 114,387 114,387     84,513 84,513 84,513 84,513     
 

Generally Accepted Accounting Practice prevents the netting off of monies paid and received except in the case where there is an agency relationship. 
Receipts and payments representing monies paid and received on behalf of the territorial authorities (TAs), from New Zealand Transport Agency for roading 
and bus shelter claims have been netted of in the cash flows from operating activities, as such these amounts reflect the activities of the TA not ARTA. The 
amount netted off relating to TA activities for 2010 was $231.0m (2009: $171.0m). 
Categories in the reconciliation of net surplus after tax to net cash flow from operating activities have been reclassified, as stated throughout the notes to 
the financial accounts, to provide meaningful information.  
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Note 40: Capital commitments and operating leases 

Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000  Capital commitmentsCapital commitmentsCapital commitmentsCapital commitments     $000   $000  

Commitments at the end of the period not provided for in the financial 
statements  

    23,371  -  Property, plant and equipment - ARTA            44,340  - 
   3,081  -  Property, plant and equipment - POAL           2,323  - 

- - Intangible Assets-Computer Software 709 - 
- -    Property, plant and equipment - ARC  - - 

  26,452  -  Total capital commitments           47,372  - 
 

The ARH capital relates primarily to Property Plant & Equipment ($2.3m) & intangibles ($0.7m) 

 

Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009           2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual  Actual 
 $000   $000   Operating lease commitments as lesseeOperating lease commitments as lesseeOperating lease commitments as lesseeOperating lease commitments as lessee  $000   $000  

The future commitment for minimum lease payments payable under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows 

   6,346    4,429   Not later than one year         2,918      2,918  
    16,994    16,953   Later than one year and not later than five years      12,589       12,589  
      2,796  2,796     More than 5 years        17      17  
   26,136  24,178   Total non-cancellable operating leases        15,524      15,524  

 

POAL leases land under a non-cancellable operating lease agreement. The lease reflects normal commercial arrangements with escalation clauses and 
renewal rights. On renewal the terms of the lease are renegotiated.  
ARTA has an operating lease commitment representing payments to the Crown for track access, leasing of the Silver Fern train set and use of Britomart 
station.  

ARC has operating lease commitments for premises and car parks and photocopiers. The leases reflect normal commercial arrangements with escalation 
clauses and renewal rights. On renewal the terms of the lease are renegotiated.  
Lease expenditure is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income during the period and is disclosed in note 13. 

 

 Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual  Actual 
 $000   $000  Operating lease commitments as lessorOperating lease commitments as lessorOperating lease commitments as lessorOperating lease commitments as lessor  $000   $000  

As sub landlord, the ARC subleases Level 5, 21 Pitt Street to Beca Holdings 
Limited (Subtenant). 
The sublease commenced on the 1 May 2006. It was renewed on the 1 May 
2008 for three years. 
The final expiry date is 30 April 2011. 
 
 The future commitment for minimum lease payments to be collected under non-cancellable 
operating leases are as follows: 
  

-   179   Not later than one year  90        90  
-    149   Later than one year and not later than two years  - - 
- -    2 to 5 years  - - 
- 328  Total non-cancellable operating leases  90 90 
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Note 40: Capital commitments and operating leases - continued 

 Group   Council           Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

 Actual   Actual   Actual  Actual 
 $000   $000  Operating commitments Operating commitments Operating commitments Operating commitments ----    Rail ContractsRail ContractsRail ContractsRail Contracts  $000   $000  

   2,400  -  Not later than one year  1,604 - 
- -  Later than one year and not later than two years          -  - 
- -    2 to 5 years  - - 

   2,400    -   Total non-cancellable operating commitments     1,604  - 

The non-cancellable contract is for management of the rail service.  
Rail contracts have been extended to March 2010 only, with annual renewals 
available until 2014 and have been transferred to Auckland Transport after  
1 November 2010. 

 Group   Council   Group   Council  
 2009   2009   2010   2010  

12 months 12 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000  Operating commitments Operating commitments Operating commitments Operating commitments ----    (Including other transport contracts)(Including other transport contracts)(Including other transport contracts)(Including other transport contracts)  $000   $000  

        
   117,469  -  Not later than one year        123,256  - 
  28,677  -  Later than one year and not later than two years  9,774  - 
    2,275  -    2 to 5 years  630 - 
148,421  -  Total non-cancellable operating commitments           133,660  - 

Other non-cancellable contracts represent the cost today of provision of bus 
and ferry services in the Auckland region for the duration of their contracts. 
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Note 41: Contingencies 

Consolidated Group Council 
 2010   2009   2010   2009  

 Actual   Actual   Actual     Actual  
Contingent liabilitiesContingent liabilitiesContingent liabilitiesContingent liabilities     $000   $000   $000   $000  

Auckland Regional Transport Network Limited       4,000       4,000           4,000     4,000  
Rodney District Council              1,311    1,193          1,311  1,193  
Auckland Maritime Foundation and the Bucklands Beach Yacht Club  6,751 - 6,751 - 

Total contingent liabilities Total contingent liabilities Total contingent liabilities Total contingent liabilities                     11112,0622,0622,0622,062                        5,193 5,193 5,193 5,193                         12,062 12,062 12,062 12,062                       5,193 5,193 5,193 5,193     

 

Auckland Regional TranspAuckland Regional TranspAuckland Regional TranspAuckland Regional Transport Network Limited (ARTNL) ort Network Limited (ARTNL) ort Network Limited (ARTNL) ort Network Limited (ARTNL)     

 The ARC, along with Auckland Regional Transport Network Limited's (ARTNL's) shareholders, has agreed to be responsible for any liabilities incurred by ARTNL, 

where those liabilities relate to ARTNL's rail and ferry assets and functions (other than the Britomart Rail Station), they arise in the period prior to the transfer 

of those assets to ARTA, and they cannot be met out of ARTNL's surplus funds. The contingent liability remains for a period of 6 years from the date of transfer 

of the assets, 1 October 2007, and has a maximum liability for the ARC of $4m (2009: $4m).  

Rodney District Council Rodney District Council Rodney District Council Rodney District Council      

 On 20 October 2006 the ARC gave a guarantee to the Bank of New Zealand (BNZ) on behalf of the Rodney District Council. This was in the nature of a 

performance bond for $1.31m (2009: $1.19m).  

AucklAucklAucklAuckland Regional Holdingand Regional Holdingand Regional Holdingand Regional Holdings (ARH) s (ARH) s (ARH) s (ARH)         

 On 24 September 2010, ARH received notice that Frankel Consultants Limited was seeking to be indemnified by ARH (as successor to Auckland Regional 

Services Trust (ARST)) under a deed dated 25 September 1995 relating to the sale of property by ARST.  

 At the time of these financial statements being authorised for issue, no further details regarding the basis of the claim or the amount claimed pursuant to the 

indemnity have been forthcoming from Frankel Consultants Limited.  

ContaminaContaminaContaminaContaminated land potented land potented land potented land potential liabilitytial liabilitytial liabilitytial liability        

Prior to the planned development of the Wynward Precinct investment property, some of the sites require remediation of ground contamination.  The 
contamination has occurred because of the quality of landfill used in the initial reclamation as well as the activities of the lessees on the sites. 
  
 The majority of leases require the lessees to remediate the land prior to exiting their lease. In some situations the lease does not make it clear what level of 
remediation in terms of area is required or what environmental standard the site needs to achieve after the remediation has been undertaken. 

Sea+City Projects Limited (as agent for ARH) has been in negotiations with lessees, on sites where exit is anticipated in the next few years, regarding the 
extent of remediation required by lessees prior to exiting their leases.  It is anticipated that in some cases legal action may be required to determine the 
standard and level of the remediation required by the tenant. 
 
 If the extent of remediation finally required by the lessee is lower than that required for the anticipated development, the costs of the development to be 
incurred by Auckland Waterfront Development Agency Limited which will take ownership of the investment property from 1 November 2010 will increase 
significantly. Current indications are that additional cost could be upwards of $50m. 

Auckland Regional Transport AuthorityAuckland Regional Transport AuthorityAuckland Regional Transport AuthorityAuckland Regional Transport Authority    

There are no contingent liabilities (2009: nil). 
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Auckland Regional CouncilAuckland Regional CouncilAuckland Regional CouncilAuckland Regional Council 

A claim has been made against Auckland Regional Council for $6,7m which has been filed in the High Court on 27 May 2010 by the Auckland Maritime 

Foundation and the Bucklands Beach Yacht Club Incorporated and is seeking repayment of fees paid to the Council under various seabed licences between  

3 October 1991 and 30 April 2010, together with interest. The claim is that the Council has not been authorised to charge those fees, which have therefore been 

paid under a mistake and ought to be refunded.  The Council will be defending these proceedings.  At this stage it is estimated that there will be no impact as 

a result of this action. 

Ports of Auckland LimitedPorts of Auckland LimitedPorts of Auckland LimitedPorts of Auckland Limited    

POAL has been named in a court action.  POAL received notice that the Port of Tauranga Limited has added POAL as a Third Defendant in its claim against 

Sulphur Point Container Terminals Limited and NZL Group Limited.  POAL will be defending these proceedings.  At this stage it is estimated that there will be 

no impact as a result of this action. 

    

Contingent AssetsContingent AssetsContingent AssetsContingent Assets    

    There are no contingent assets at 31 October 2010 (2009: $nil).  
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Note 42: Related party transactions 

Auckland Regional Council (ARC) is the ultimate parent of the Group. The ARC has two subsidiaries, Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) and Auckland 
Regional Holdings (ARH).  

By virtue of the Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004, the ARC has certain control responsibilities defined by NZ IAS 27 and therefore 
consolidates ARH and ARTA into its financial statements. 

Intercompany balances are eliminated on consolidation.  
Council 

 2010   2009  
16 months 12 months 

 Actual  Actual 
Related party transactions with subsidiaries Related party transactions with subsidiaries Related party transactions with subsidiaries Related party transactions with subsidiaries   $000   $000  

Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)   Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)   Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)   Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)    
 Payable to ARC - transport a grants *  3,946   19,119  
 Payable to ARC -  stormwater grants *  21,831    29,674  

 Payable to ARC - general distributions - ARTA capex  - 
                  

824  
 Paid to ARC  - transport grants        7,415   9,563  

- stormwater grants          15,559       6,582  
- general distributions - refer note 4    102,784    93,566  
- occupancy costs  - lease of office premises and car parks        134        77  
  - building operating expenses           58  26  

* Payable to the ARC (refer note 17) relates to the ARH Board's commitment as at 1 July 2004 
to provide ongoing funding to the ARC for grants made by the former Infrastructure Auckland 
(IA). 

Under the Local Government (Auckland) Amendment Act 2004, the liabilities for these grants 
were vested in the ARC and ARTA. 
Grants are primarily made to local authorities. Funds are only drawn down as per the contract 
to fund ex IA grantees for stormwater and/or transport projects as originally stated 

2010  2009  
16 months 12 months 

Actual Actual 
Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA) Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)  $000  $000  
 Payable by ARC -operating expenses - refer note 31         19,063     28,975  
 Payable by ARC - transport grants  - refer note 31             3,946      20,971  
 Paid by ARC - transport grants - refer note 31  17,025      7,711  
 Paid by ARC  - general distributions - ARTA opex - refer note 10  120,457    93,163  
                                                          - ARTA capex - refer note 10          60,380     69,508  

Paid to ARC - shared services - information technology, treasury management, financial 
processing and facilities services   3,666    2,685 

- Contact Centre -      2,706  
- other services - copy centre, catering, information services, vehicles, 

information technology, taxi, etc. -   825  

 ARC provides funding to ARTA for operating activities and for capital expenditure.   
 ARTA purchases from the ARC shared services.  
 

Transactions with kTransactions with kTransactions with kTransactions with key management personnel ey management personnel ey management personnel ey management personnel     

Key management personnel includes the Councillors, Chief Executive and senior management personnel. Remuneration detail is disclosed in note 43.  

During the year key management personnel as part of a normal customer relationship, were involved in minor transactions with the Council, (such as 
payments of rates, hiring of campsites etc).  

During the year ARC purchased services from Auckland Regional Chamber of Commerce and Industry, in which Councillor Michael Barnett is a Director. These 
services cost $nil (2009: $53,282) and were supplied on normal commercial terms.  

Two elected Councillors of the ARC Mrs J Bassett and Mr P Walbran are also directors of ARH. (Fees paid are disclosed in note 43).  

No provision has been required, nor any expense recognised for impairment of receivables for any loans or other receivables to related parties (2009: $nil).  
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Note 43: Remuneration 
Council 

 2010   2009  
16 months 12 months 

 Actual   Actual  
 $   $  

ChiChiChiChief Executiveef Executiveef Executiveef Executive 
 Salary*       668,986    356,642  
 Car Allowance       11,995       8,966  
 Termination Payment         91,500  - 
 Other long-term benefits  -      7,133  
 Total CE remuneration     772,481    372,741  

The above termination payment was for 3 months remuneration paid on 
termination of fixed term contract, based on performance. 
 
* This covers a 16 month period and also includes holiday pay paid out on 
termination. 

    Key Management Personnel Key Management Personnel Key Management Personnel Key Management Personnel         3,239,852  1,898,446  
 Classified as:  
 Salaries and other short-term employee benefits       3,012,351  1,861,222  
 Redundancy Payments        167,254  - 
 Other long-term benefits        60,247     37,224  

Redundancy payments arising on the dissolution of council includes the amount paid to the Chief Executive and is included in the amounts in note 11. 

 Group Council 
 2010   2009   2010   2009  

16 months 12 months 16 months 12 months 
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  

    $ $ $ $         $ $ $ $      $   $  

    Elected representatives Elected representatives Elected representatives Elected representatives     
 Barnett, Michael          73,272   59,240          73,272     59,240  
 Bassett, Judith         136,321   107,777       57,221   48,452  
 Burrill, William      122,697   94,944       122,697    94,944  
 Carter, Clive          56,886   46,831         56,886    46,831  
 Cayford, Joel    70,005    52,798         70,005     52,798  
 Coney, Sandra             99,419  76,652         99,419     76,652  
 Glenn, Dianne       146,171    120,082      146,171   120,082  
 Lee, Michael (Chairman)     213,461  156,398      213,461   156,398  
 Morrisey, Brent        74,328      66,487         74,328     66,487  
 Rankin, Christine     53,990     40,009          53,990    40,009  
 Rose, Christine          118,536       98,529        118,536     98,529  
 Sinclair, Janis          90,698       69,371          90,698     69,371  
 Walbran, Paul      193,963     155,923     51,630  86,365  
 Total Councillor remuneration     1,449,747   1,145,041     1,228,314  1,016,158  

Councillor remuneration is made up of several components: monthly honorarium, meeting attendance fees, consent hearings and mileage.  
Expenses for reimbursement of costs have not been included.  

Group remuneration for Councillor Basset includes fees of $79,100 (2009: $59,325) as Chair of the ARH Board. Group remuneration for Councillor Walbran 
includes fees of $47,000 (2009: $35,000) as a Director of ARH and fees for $95,333 (200: $34,558) as a Director of ARH subsidiary Sea+City Projects 
Limited.  
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Note 44: Investment in subsidiaries 

Principal ActivityPrincipal ActivityPrincipal ActivityPrincipal Activity    % Interest% Interest% Interest% Interest    
Auckland Regional Council investment in subsidiariesAuckland Regional Council investment in subsidiariesAuckland Regional Council investment in subsidiariesAuckland Regional Council investment in subsidiaries    
Auckland Regional Holdings Investment Company    100 
Auckland Regional Transport Authority Transport planning and delivery 100 

Auckland Regional Holdings investment in subsidiary companiesAuckland Regional Holdings investment in subsidiary companiesAuckland Regional Holdings investment in subsidiary companiesAuckland Regional Holdings investment in subsidiary companies    
Ports of Auckland LimitedPorts of Auckland LimitedPorts of Auckland LimitedPorts of Auckland Limited    Port Operator 100 

   Ports of Auckland Nominees Limited Corporate Trustee for the POAL 
Superannuation Scheme and ESOP - 
Non-trading 

   Ports of Auckland Investments Limited Investment Company Non-Trading 100 

   Axis Intermodal Limited Non-trading 100 

   Axis International Limited Non-trading 100 

   Freemans Bay Properties Limited Non-trading 100 

   West Tugz Limited Non-trading 100 

   CONLINXX Limited Port Operator 70 

Sea+City Projects LimitedSea+City Projects LimitedSea+City Projects LimitedSea+City Projects Limited    
  formerly Northern Disposal Systems Limited (NDSL)    

Property Manager and Property 
Redevelopment Facilitator 100 

All subsidiary companies have balance dates of 30 June. 

 

Significant operating statements of ARC Significant operating statements of ARC Significant operating statements of ARC Significant operating statements of ARC     
and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries and its subsidiaries     
FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010FOR THE 16 MONTHS ENDED 31 OCTOBER 2010    

Consolidated Group  Council  ARTA ARH Eliminations* 
 2010   2010   2010   2010   2010  

16 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 16 months 
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

Revenue            206,058       307,440    156   235,013       (336,551) 
Investment Income               47,832           2,037  -     45,795  - 
Other Income               540,808       43,450      424,444        20,544          52,370  
Total IncomeTotal IncomeTotal IncomeTotal Income                                                794,794,794,794,698698698698                352,927352,927352,927352,927                                424,600 424,600 424,600 424,600             301,352 301,352 301,352 301,352     (284,181)(284,181)(284,181)(284,181)    

Other expenses             701,372     349,274      363,147      171,296      (182,345) 
Investment costs              29,152         1,056  -  28,096  - 
Total ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal Expenditure                                            730,730,730,730,524524524524                        350,350,350,350,330330330330                    363,147363,147363,147363,147        199,392 199,392 199,392 199,392                 ((((182,345182,345182,345182,345))))    

                
Operating surplus/(deficit) before taxOperating surplus/(deficit) before taxOperating surplus/(deficit) before taxOperating surplus/(deficit) before tax                                        64,17464,17464,17464,174                                2,5972,5972,5972,597                                61,45361,45361,45361,453        101,960 101,960 101,960 101,960                         ((((101,836101,836101,836101,836))))    
Share of associate and joint venture surplus                                                         2,895 2,895 2,895 2,895     ----    - 2,895               -  
Surplus/(deficit) before taxSurplus/(deficit) before taxSurplus/(deficit) before taxSurplus/(deficit) before tax    67,06967,06967,06967,069        2,5972,5972,5972,597    61616161,453,453,453,453        104,855 104,855 104,855 104,855         ((((101,836101,836101,836101,836))))    

Income tax expense/(benefit)                                                     19,968 19,968 19,968 19,968     ----          2,185   17,783  - 
Surplus/(deficit) after taxSurplus/(deficit) after taxSurplus/(deficit) after taxSurplus/(deficit) after tax    47,10147,10147,10147,101    2,5972,5972,5972,597    59,26859,26859,26859,268        87,072 87,072 87,072 87,072         ((((101,836101,836101,836101,836))))    

Net assetsNet assetsNet assetsNet assets    1,657,7801,657,7801,657,7801,657,780        1,215,6521,215,6521,215,6521,215,652        365,295365,295365,295365,295    892,421892,421892,421892,421    ((((818181815,5885,5885,5885,588))))    

* This represents the elimination, on consolidation of the Group, of transactions that occurred between the Group entities. 
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Note 44: Investment in subsidiaries - continued 

Significant operating Significant operating Significant operating Significant operating 
statements of ARC and its statements of ARC and its statements of ARC and its statements of ARC and its 
subsidiariessubsidiariessubsidiariessubsidiaries    
FOR THE YEARFOR THE YEARFOR THE YEARFOR THE YEAR    ENDED 30 JUNE ENDED 30 JUNE ENDED 30 JUNE ENDED 30 JUNE 
2009200920092009 

Group  Council  ARTA ARH POAL **ACVL SCPL 
 2009   2009   2009   2009   2009   2009   2009  

12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 12 months 
 Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual   Actual  Actual  
 $000   $000   $000   $000   $000   $000   $000  

Revenue         148,393 148,393 148,393 148,393      242,831  298,966  10,386  163,745  630  1,608  
Investment Income -     2,250  - - - - - 
Other Income     342,286 342,286 342,286 342,286        30,857    4,587  -       108  - - 
Total IncomeTotal IncomeTotal IncomeTotal Income        490,679 490,679 490,679 490,679         275,938 275,938 275,938 275,938     303,553 303,553 303,553 303,553     10,386 10,386 10,386 10,386     163,853 163,853 163,853 163,853             630 630 630 630         1,608 1,608 1,608 1,608     

Net Investment Loss             87,867 87,867 87,867 87,867     - - 
             

73,365  
                      

8,074            (167) 
                   

(3) 
Other expenses      501,284 501,284 501,284 501,284      290,649  247,415     14,747   117,426    (168) 1,440  
Investment costs         27,165 27,165 27,165 27,165           350  - - 26,815   370     -  
Total ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal ExpenditureTotal Expenditure        616,316 616,316 616,316 616,316     290,999 290,999 290,999 290,999     247,415 247,415 247,415 247,415     88,112 88,112 88,112 88,112     152,315 152,315 152,315 152,315     35 35 35 35     1,437 1,437 1,437 1,437     

            
OpeOpeOpeOperating surplus/(deficit) rating surplus/(deficit) rating surplus/(deficit) rating surplus/(deficit) 
before taxbefore taxbefore taxbefore tax    (125,637)(125,637)(125,637)(125,637)    (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)        56,138 56,138 56,138 56,138     (77,726)(77,726)(77,726)(77,726)        11,538 11,538 11,538 11,538         595 595 595 595                 171 171 171 171     
Share of associate and joint 
venture surplus     1,769 1,769 1,769 1,769             -  -  -  1,769  -  -  
Surplus/(deficit) before taxSurplus/(deficit) before taxSurplus/(deficit) before taxSurplus/(deficit) before tax    (123,868)(123,868)(123,868)(123,868)    (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)    56,138 56,138 56,138 56,138         (77,(77,(77,(77,726)726)726)726)    13,307 13,307 13,307 13,307     595 595 595 595     171 171 171 171     

Income tax expense 10,995 10,995 10,995 10,995     -  440  2,422  7,902  178  53 
Surplus/(deficit) after taxSurplus/(deficit) after taxSurplus/(deficit) after taxSurplus/(deficit) after tax    (134,863)(134,863)(134,863)(134,863)        (15,061)(15,061)(15,061)(15,061)    55,698 55,698 55,698 55,698         (80,148)(80,148)(80,148)(80,148)    5,405 5,405 5,405 5,405     417 417 417 417     118 118 118 118     

Net assetsNet assetsNet assetsNet assets    1,363,347 1,363,347 1,363,347 1,363,347     1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141 1,010,141     265,950 265,950 265,950 265,950     1,026,803 1,026,803 1,026,803 1,026,803     336,950 336,950 336,950 336,950     ----        478 478 478 478     

* This represents the elimination, on consolidation of the Group, of transactions that occurred between the Group entities. 
** The income and expenditure for ACVL is principally for the period 1 July 2008 to 18 December 2008.  ACVL was placed into voluntary liquidation on 18 December 
2008.  On that date, ARH ceased to have control over ACVL and in accordance with accounting policy a) principles of consolidation, the subsidiary has been 
deconsolidated from that date.  ACVL was struck-off the Companies Register on 22 May 2009. 
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Note 45: Severance Payments 

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010, ARC made no severance payments to employees (2009: Nil).  

 

Note 46: Events after balance date 

The Local Government (Tamaki Makaurau Reorganisation) Act 2009 dissolved Auckland Regional Council and Group on 31 October 2010 
The Reorganisation Act provides that: 
• The functions, duties, and powers of Auckland Regional Council became the functions, duties and powers of the Auckland Council, which is 
responsible for governing the Auckland region from 1 November 2010, Environment Waikato and Auckland Council controlled entities. 
• All property belonging to Auckland Regional Council vested in the Auckland Council, Environment Waikato and Auckland Council controlled entities. 
• All money payable to or by Auckland Regional Council became payable to or by the Auckland Council, Environment Waikato and Auckland Council 
controlled entities. 
• All rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and engagements of Auckland Regional Council became the rights, liabilities, contracts, entitlements, and 
engagements of the Auckland Council, Environment Waikato and Auckland Council controlled entities. 

The Auckland Council inherited the responsibilities of the ARC in the Auckland region, except for the Mangatawhiri and Mangatangi catchments and part of 

the Franklin District and the Firth of Thames. These areas were transferred to Hauraki and Waikato Districts and Environment Waikato assumed the 

responsibilities of the ARC.  Whilst the administrative boundary cuts through the Hunua Ranges, the land and assets on that part of the Hunua Regional Park 

outside the Auckland Council's administrative boundary, including Waharau and Whakatiwai Regional Parks are vested in the Auckland Council.  These areas 

continue to be managed and maintained by the Auckland Council as regional parks. 

The Local Government (Auckland Transitional Provisions) Act 2010 defines a ‘boundary adjustment order’ in the Interpretation (Section 7 (1)) to include as 
published in the Government Gazette (2010 p. 858). 
 
The Gazette includes a Schedule which vests land in the Auckland Council and excludes all land from those areas outside the southern boundary being 
transferred to Hauraki or Waikato Districts.  Therefore land and assets for Hunua, Waharau and Whakatiwai Regional Parks are retained in ownership and 
management of Auckland Council. 
 
The table below summarises, from an Auckland Regional Council Group perspective, where the key assets and investments will be transferred to at  
1 November 2010 and an estimate of their net book value. 
 
TRANSFER OF KEY TRANSFER OF KEY TRANSFER OF KEY TRANSFER OF KEY GROUPGROUPGROUPGROUP    PROPERTYPROPERTYPROPERTYPROPERTY,,,,    PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIESPLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIESPLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIESPLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIES 

KEY KEY KEY KEY ARC PROPERTYARC PROPERTYARC PROPERTYARC PROPERTY,,,,    PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS ANPLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS ANPLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS ANPLANT AND EQUIPMENT, INVESTMENTS AND LIABILITIESD LIABILITIESD LIABILITIESD LIABILITIES    
TRANSFERREDTRANSFERREDTRANSFERREDTRANSFERRED    

        ESTIMATED ESTIMATED ESTIMATED ESTIMATED 
VALUEVALUEVALUEVALUE    

RECEIVING ENTITIES RECEIVING ENTITIES RECEIVING ENTITIES RECEIVING ENTITIES 
FOR FIXED ASSETS & FOR FIXED ASSETS & FOR FIXED ASSETS & FOR FIXED ASSETS & 
INVESTMENTSINVESTMENTSINVESTMENTSINVESTMENTS                        $ millions$ millions$ millions$ millions    

Public Transport Related Assets Auckland Regional 
Transport 
Authority  

368   Auckland Transport 

Ports of Auckland    701   Auckland Council 
Investments Ltd 

Mount Smart   72   Regional Facilities 
Auckland Ltd 

Land, Wharves & Marina's Wynyard Quarter 
Queen's Wharf  

213   Auckland Waterfront 
Development Agency Ltd 

All other major fixed assets and investments vest in Auckland Council       
OTOTOTOTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIESHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIESHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIESHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES        
Other assets and liabilities will be allocated to Auckland Council and CCO's based 
on the specific activities to be undertaken by each receiving entity 

  
    

DEBTDEBTDEBTDEBT        
At 1 November 2010 all Auckland Regional Council Group debt will be transferred to 
Auckland Council and a portion of the consolidated debt of Auckland Council will 
be allocated to Auckland Transport, Auckland Council Investments Ltd, Regional 
Facilities Auckland Ltd and Auckland Waterfront Development Agency Ltd. 

      

  

There are no other significant events after balance date. 
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Note 47: Business Combinations 
There has been no business combinations during the 16 months ended 31 October 2010. 
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Note 48: Financial risk management 

Financial Financial Financial Financial instrument categoriesinstrument categoriesinstrument categoriesinstrument categories    

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below 
 

Financial Assets                                          Financial Assets                                          Financial Assets                                          Financial Assets                                          
CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil    

Loans and 
Receivables 

Available for 
sale financial 

assets *  

Designated as 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss 

Derivatives 
used for 
hedging 

Derivatives at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss Total *  

    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010    
Cash and cash equivalents 55,820 - - - - 55,820 
Debtors and other receivables 46,948 - - - - 46,948 
Related party receivables 25,777 - - - - 25,777 
Other financial assets - 217 - - - 217 
Total financial assetsTotal financial assetsTotal financial assetsTotal financial assets    128,545 217 - - - 128,762 

As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009    
Cash and cash equivalents 273 - - - - 273 
Debtors and other receivables 14,428 - - - - 14,428 
Related party receivables 48,793 - - - - 48,793 
Other financial assets - 217 - - - 217 
Total financial assetsTotal financial assetsTotal financial assetsTotal financial assets    63,494 217 - - - 63,711 

Financial Assets                            Financial Assets                            Financial Assets                            Financial Assets                                                                                    
GroupGroupGroupGroup    

Loans and 
Receivables 

Available for 
sale financial 

assets *  

Designated as 
fair value 

through profit 
or los  

Derivatives 
used for 
hedging 

Derivatives at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss Total *  

    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010    
Cash and cash equivalents 162,357 - - - - 162,357 
Debtors and other receivables 84,800 - - - - 84,800 
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 2,138 2,138 
Other financial assets - 14,189 182,721 - - 196,910 
Total finanTotal finanTotal finanTotal financial assetscial assetscial assetscial assets    247,157 14,189 182,721 - 2,138 446,205 

As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009    
Cash and cash equivalents 9,911 - - - - 9,911 
Debtors and other receivables 42,431 - - - - 42,431 
Derivative financial instruments - - - 5,201 4,679 9,880 
Other financial assets - 17,641 385,434 - - 403,075 
Total financial assetsTotal financial assetsTotal financial assetsTotal financial assets    52,342 17,641 385,434 5,201 4,679 465,297 

 

 

* The above table shows the group’s maximum credit risk exposure for each class of financial instruments with the exception of Available for sale  

financial assets. 
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Note 48: Financial risk management - Continued 

Financial Liabilities                                        Financial Liabilities                                        Financial Liabilities                                        Financial Liabilities                                        
CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil    

Derivatives used for 
hedging 

Derivatives at 
fair value 

through profit or 
loss 

Measured at 
amortised cost Total 

      $000 $000 $000 $000 

As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010    
Creditors and other payables - - 137,889 137,889 
Related party payables - - 23,009 23,009 
Borrowings - - 27,785 27,785 
Other financial liabilities - - 21,831 21,831 
Total financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilities    - - 210,514 210,514 

As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009    
Creditors and other payables - - 16,419 16,419 
Related party payables - - 49,946 49,946 
Borrowings - - 11,150 11,150 
Other financial liabilities - - 29,726 29,726 
Total financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilities    - - 107,241 107,241 

Financial Liabilities                                        Financial Liabilities                                        Financial Liabilities                                        Financial Liabilities                                        
GroupGroupGroupGroup    

Derivatives used for 
hedging 

Derivatives at 
fair value 

through profit or 
loss 

Measured at 
amortised cost Total 

      $000 $000 $000 $000 

As aAs aAs aAs at 31 October 2010t 31 October 2010t 31 October 2010t 31 October 2010    
Creditors and other payables - - 209,251 209,251 
Derivative financial instruments 11,240 - - 11,240 
Borrowings - - 269,234 269,234 
Other financial liabilities - - 29,764 29,764 
Total financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilities    11,240 - 508,249 519,489 

As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009    
Creditors and other payables - - 78,557 78,557 
Derivative financial instruments 16,550 - - 16,550 
Borrowings - - 361,650 361,650 
Other financial liabilities - - 50,697 50,697 
Total financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilitiesTotal financial liabilities    16,550 - 490,904 507,454 
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Note 48: Financial risk management – Continued 

Financial instrument risksFinancial instrument risksFinancial instrument risksFinancial instrument risks    

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects 
on the financial performance of the Group. 

Risk management is carried out by management, who evaluate and manage financial risks under policies approved by the Directors.  The Group does not hold 
derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes. 

(a) Market risk(a) Market risk(a) Market risk(a) Market risk    

Currency risk Currency risk Currency risk Currency risk ----    referreferreferrefer    to note 19to note 19to note 19to note 19    
Currency risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s 
functional currency, New Zealand dollars.    
 
Within the Group’s Diversified Financial Assets Portfolio (DFA) there are investments in financial assets that are denominated in foreign currencies (USD, AUD 
and Euros).  The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge a portion of its foreign denominated financial investments back to NZD.  The Group’s 
derivates are not designated as hedge instruments and changes in fair value are recognised immediately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Currency risk is managed by: 
(a) establishing a foreign currency hedging policy for each foreign asset class; 
(b) specifying the bounds within which each Fund Manager may take on currency exposures relative to their benchmark; and 
(c) engaging one or more currency execution agents to transact the foreign exchange transactions, including both spot and forward transactions, at the most 
favourable rate. 
 
The instruments Fund Managers may use, and the credit worthiness of the counterparties, are detailed in the investment management agreements with 
respective Fund Managers.  Any forward contracts entered into must be with entities that have an appropriate credit rating as determined by an international 
credit rating agency for counterparty risk and appropriate contractual arrangements (for example, an International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) 
agreement) must be in place between the currency fund manager and the counterparty. 
 
Forward exchange contracts are used by POAL to manage currency risk. In accordance with its Treasury policy, POAL enters into foreign exchange contracts 
for the purchase of major items of plant and equipment and the full amount of the purchase is hedged.  Arrangements that meet the hedge accounting 
criteria are accounted for in accordance with the policy set out in note 19.  During the financial period, POAL’s foreign currency exposure included exposures 
to various currencies, the main currency exposure being Euros. 

It is Group policy to manage foreign currency risk arising from contractual commitments and liabilities, (that are above a specified amount), by entering into 
forward exchange contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk exposure. This means the Group is able to hedge a portion of its foreign denominated financial 
investments back into NZD and fix the New Zealand dollar amount payable prior to the delivery of the item from overseas.  

The Group would typically enter into a foreign exchange contract for the purchase of major items such as plant and equipment from overseas and the full 
amount of the purchase would be hedged.  The main currency exposure being USD for the 2010 financial year. 
 
During the 2010 financial year the ARC entered into a contract to bring the American major league soccer club, LA Galaxy, to Auckland. The main currency for 
purchase was USD. 
 
ARTA’S Exposure to CurARTA’S Exposure to CurARTA’S Exposure to CurARTA’S Exposure to Currency Riskrency Riskrency Riskrency Risk    
    
As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010                            

ARTA's exposure to foreign exchange risk on financial instruments outstanding at reporting date is summarised as follows:ARTA's exposure to foreign exchange risk on financial instruments outstanding at reporting date is summarised as follows:ARTA's exposure to foreign exchange risk on financial instruments outstanding at reporting date is summarised as follows:ARTA's exposure to foreign exchange risk on financial instruments outstanding at reporting date is summarised as follows:        

In NZ$M               USD EUR TOTAL 

Foreign currency riskForeign currency riskForeign currency riskForeign currency risk                      

Foreign currency derivativesForeign currency derivativesForeign currency derivativesForeign currency derivatives                    

Notional principle (NZ$)             5.918 29.011 34.930 

Non-hedge accounted              -  -  - 

Balance               5.918 29.011 34.930 
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Cash flows in respect of foreign currency are expected to occur as follows 

Not later than one year             5.046 18.355 23.401 

Later than 1 year not later than 2 
years 

          0.872 10.657 11.529 

                5.918 29.011 34.930 

                      

 

Foreign currency sensitivity on financialForeign currency sensitivity on financialForeign currency sensitivity on financialForeign currency sensitivity on financial    instrumentsinstrumentsinstrumentsinstruments                  

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of ARTA's financial instruments at reporting date to a reasonably possible appreciation/depreciation in 
the United States Dollar and the European Community Euro against the New Zealand Dollar.  All other variables are held constant. 
As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010                      

In NZ$M               USD EUR TOTAL 

On profit before taxation                   

5 cents appreciation             -0.374 -2.536 -2.910 

5 cents depreciation             0.328 2.108 2.436 

                      

SIGNIFICANT FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES USED AT BALANCE DATE FOR ONE NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR ARE:SIGNIFICANT FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES USED AT BALANCE DATE FOR ONE NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR ARE:SIGNIFICANT FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES USED AT BALANCE DATE FOR ONE NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR ARE:SIGNIFICANT FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATES USED AT BALANCE DATE FOR ONE NEW ZEALAND DOLLAR ARE:        

            2010201020102010    2009200920092009          

European Community Euro         0.5426 N/A       

United States Dollar         0.7545 N/A       

                      

Sensitivity analysisSensitivity analysisSensitivity analysisSensitivity analysis                      

The sensitivity analyses shown above are hypothetical and should not be considered predictive of future performance.  They only include financial 
instruments (derivative and non-derivative) and do not include the future forecast hedged transactions.  As the sensitivities are only on financial 
instruments the sensitivities ignore the offsetting impact on future forecast transactions which many of the derivatives are hedging.  Changes in fair 
value can generally not be extrapolated because the relationship of change in assumption to change in fair value may not be linear.  In addition, for the 
purposes of the above analyses, the effect of a variation in a particular assumption is calculated independently of any change in another assumption.  In 
reality, changes in one factor may contribute to changes in another, which may magnify or counteract the sensitivities.  Furthermore, sensitivities to 
specific events or circumstances will be counteracted as far as possible through strategic management actions.  The estimated fair values as disclosed 
should not be considered indicative of future earnings on these contracts. 
 
The following table sets out the contractual undiscounted cash flows fThe following table sets out the contractual undiscounted cash flows fThe following table sets out the contractual undiscounted cash flows fThe following table sets out the contractual undiscounted cash flows for derivative financial instrumentsor derivative financial instrumentsor derivative financial instrumentsor derivative financial instruments          

As at 31 October 2010                   

Principle in NZ$                   

              Total Carrying     

Forward Contracts < 6 
months 

6-12 
months 

1-2 years 2-5 
years 

> 5 years contractual amount 
of 

    

    $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000     

Foreign exchange                   

Inflow   14,127  9,274  11,529  -   -   34,930  -       

Outflow   (14,127) (9,274) (11,529)                   
-   

                     
-   

(34,930)                     
-   

    

Total   -   -   -   -   -   -   -       

                      

                      

During the 2010 financial year, the main currency for purchase was EURO, in the 2009 financial year the main currency for purchase was AUD. 
 

CasCasCasCash flow interest rate riskh flow interest rate riskh flow interest rate riskh flow interest rate risk----    refer to note 19refer to note 19refer to note 19refer to note 19    
Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
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Borrowings and investments issued at variable interest rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.  

The Group's main interest risk arises from long-term borrowings. The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using floating to fixed interest rate 
swaps. Such interest rate swaps have the economic effect of converting borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates.  
As at the reporting date the Group had the following variable rate borrowings and interest rate swap contracts outstanding. 
 
 
 

 

31 October 2010 30 June 2009 
Weighted Average 

Interest Rate 
Balance  

$000 

Weighted Average 
Interest Rate 

Balance  
$000 

% % 
Bank overdrafts and bank loans 4.20 241,449 3.30 350,500 
Interest rate swaps (notional principal amount) 6.50 232,000 6.30 447,000 

Interest bearing loans are at floating interest rates and are repriced quarterly.  Interest rate swaps are used to hedge the interest on these loans and are also 
repriced quarterly. 

An analysis by maturities is provided in note 19 and a summary of terms and conditions in note 33. 
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Note 48: Financial risk management - Continued 

Fair value interest rate riskFair value interest rate riskFair value interest rate riskFair value interest rate risk----    refer to note 19refer to note 19refer to note 19refer to note 19    

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.  

Borrowings and investments listed at fixed rates of interest expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.  

Generally, the ARC raises short-term borrowings at fixed rates. 
As at the reporting date the ARC had the following fixed rate borrowings outstanding. 

31 October 2010 30 June 2009 
Weighted Average 

Interest Rate 
Balance  

$000 

Weighted Average 
Interest Rate 

Balance  
$000 

% % 
Bank loans 4.20 - 3.23  10,700  

An analysis is provided in note 33 

The Group has the risk that the fair value of its New Zealand Short-Term Cash Portfolio and a portion of its Diversified Financial Asset Portfolio will fluctuate 
because of changes in market conditions. 

31 October 2010 30 June 2009 
Weighted Average 

Interest Rate 
Fair value 

Weighted Average 
Interest Rate 

Fair value 

Maturity % $000 % $000 
Less than one month - -  2.56 53,763 
Between one and six months 5.10 20,000 2.87 63,367 
Between six and twelve months - -  3.16 2,925 
Refer note 12 5.1 20,000 2.74 120,055 

 

 
Fair Value EstimationFair Value EstimationFair Value EstimationFair Value Estimation    
 
Financial instruments that are valued at fair value on the balance sheet can be divided into the following categories based on the method used to determine 
fair value: 
 
Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted priced (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
 
Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly ( i.e. derived from prices); and 
 
Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include fair value inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on 
observable market data. 
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The following tables provide an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at far value, Grouped into Level 1 to 3 
based on the degree to which fair value is observable.  
 

Level 1Level 1Level 1Level 1    Level 2Level 2Level 2Level 2    Level 3Level 3Level 3Level 3    Total BalanceTotal BalanceTotal BalanceTotal Balance    

$000$000$000$000    $000$000$000$000    $000$000$000$000    $000$000$000$000    

GroupGroupGroupGroup    

As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010As at 31 October 2010    

Financial Assets 

Available-for-sale Financial Assets 13,972  - 217 14,18914,18914,18914,189    

Portfolio Investments (note 26) 152,532  30,189  - 182,721182,721182,721182,721        

Derivatives - 2,138  - 2,138 2,138 2,138 2,138     

Total AssetsTotal AssetsTotal AssetsTotal Assets    166,504 166,504 166,504 166,504     32,327 32,327 32,327 32,327     217217217217    199,048199,048199,048199,048        

Financial Liabilities 

Derivatives - 11,240  - 11,240 11,240 11,240 11,240     

Total LiabilitiesTotal LiabilitiesTotal LiabilitiesTotal Liabilities    ----        11,240 11,240 11,240 11,240     ----0 0 0 0     11,240 11,240 11,240 11,240     

GroupGroupGroupGroup    

As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009As at 30 June 2009    

Financial Assets 

Available-for-sale Financial Assets 17,424  - 217  17,64117,64117,64117,641        

Portfolio Investments (note 26) 242,188  143,246  -  385,434 385,434 385,434 385,434     

Derivatives -  9,880  - 9,880 9,880 9,880 9,880     

Total AssetsTotal AssetsTotal AssetsTotal Assets    259,612 259,612 259,612 259,612     153,126 153,126 153,126 153,126     217217217217        412,955412,955412,955412,955        

Financial Liabilities 

Derivatives - 16,550  - 16,550 16,550 16,550 16,550     

Total LiabilitiesTotal LiabilitiesTotal LiabilitiesTotal Liabilities    ----    16,550 16,550 16,550 16,550     ----    16,550 16,550 16,550 16,550     

 
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active if 
quoted prices are readily available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry Group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual 
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid 
price. 
 
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example over-the-counter derivates) is determined by using valuation 
techniques. The valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific 
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument in included in level 2. 
 
If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3. 
 
Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include: 
-Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments; 
-The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows based on yield curves; 
-The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange contracts at the balance sheet date, with resulting value 
discounted back to present value; and 
-other techniques, such as discounted cash flow analysis, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. 
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Price riskPrice riskPrice riskPrice risk    
Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.  

Price risk is managed by diversification of the Group's investment portfolio. 

The ARC Group is not exposed to price risk on its investments, which are classified as unlisted as there is no market movement.  The shares are unlisted and 
there is no market movement. 

The Group is exposed to price risk through its investments in POAL and SCPL. Additionally the Group's investments in Unlisted Unit Trusts as part of the DFA 
are exposed to price risk as the price of the units can go up and down depending on the performance of the underlying investment of the Trust   

POAL is exposed to price risk because of the investment held in Northland Port Corporation (a listed company). 

    
Sensitivity analysisSensitivity analysisSensitivity analysisSensitivity analysis    
The following table summarises the sensitivity of the Group's and Council's financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk, foreign exchange 
risk and other price risk.  It shows the effect on equity and profit before tax at balance date from a movement in the relevant variables, with all other 
variables held constant. 

A sensitivity of 100 basis points movement (1%) in interest rates, and 10% movement in foreign exchange rates and equity price have been applied 
respectively.  These are considered reasonable given the current level of interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices and the volatility observed 
both on a historical basis and market expectations for future movement. 
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Note 48: Financial risk management - Continued 

Carrying 
Amount 

$000 

Interest Rate Risk Foreign Exchange Risk Other Price Risk 
-1% +1% -10% +10% -10% +10% 

Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity 
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 

                                                                                                                
GroupGroupGroupGroup                                                                                                                
At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010                                                                                    
                                                                                  
Financial Assets                                                                                 
Cash and cash equivalents 162,357  - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Debtors and other 
receivables 84,800  - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Related party receivables - - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Derivative financial 
instruments 2,138  - - - - (214) - 214  - - - - - 
Other financial assets                         - 
Portfolio Investments 182,721  (420) - 420  - (4,890) - 4,890  - (14,789) - 14,789  - 
Available-for-sale financial 
assets 14,189  - - - - - - - - (1,397) - 1,397  - 

                          
Financial Liabilities                           
Creditors and other 
payables 209,251  - - - - 8  - 13  - - - - - 
Related party payables -  - - - - - - - - - - - - 
Borrowings   269,234  594  - (594) - -   - - - - - -  
Derivative financial 
instruments 11,240  - (4,754) 14  4,543  - - - - - - - - 
Other financial liabilities 29,764  - - - - - - - - - - - - 

                                                                                
Total Increase / (Decrease)   174 174 174 174     (4,754)(4,754)(4,754)(4,754)    (160)(160)(160)(160)    4,543 4,543 4,543 4,543     (5,096)(5,096)(5,096)(5,096)    ----        5,117 5,117 5,117 5,117     ----        (16,186)(16,186)(16,186)(16,186)    ----        16,186 16,186 16,186 16,186     ----        

                                                                                                        
GrouGrouGrouGroupppp                                                                                    
At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009                                                                                    
                                                                                  
Financial Assets                           
Cash and cash equivalents 9,911  (27) -  27  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Debtors and other 
receivables 42,431  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Related party receivables -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Derivative financial 
instruments 9,880  2  (4,045) (2) 3,651  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other financial assets                         
Portfolio Investments 385,434  (1,999) -  1,999  -  (10,647) -  10,647  -  (24,228) -  24,228  -  
Available-for-sale financial 
assets 17,641  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (1,764) -  1,764  -  

                          
Financial Liabilities                           
Creditors and other 
payables 78,557  -  -  -  -  (3) -  4  -  -  -  -  -  
Related party payables -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Borrowings   361,650  892  -  (892) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Derivative financial 
instruments 16,550  1  (7,336) (1) 7,059  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other financial liabilities 50,697  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

                                                                                
Total Increase / (Decrease)         (1,131)(1,131)(1,131)(1,131)    (11,381)(11,381)(11,381)(11,381)    1,131 1,131 1,131 1,131     10,710 10,710 10,710 10,710     (10,650)(10,650)(10,650)(10,650)    ----        10,651 10,651 10,651 10,651     ----        (25,992)(25,992)(25,992)(25,992)    ----        25,992 25,992 25,992 25,992     ----        
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Note 48: Financial risk management - Continued 

  Interest Rate Risk Foreign Exchange Risk Other Price Risk 
  -1% +1% -10% +10% -10% +10% 

Carrying 
Amount Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity Profit Equity 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
                                                                                                  

CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil                                                                                        
At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010                                                                                    

                                                                                
Financial Assets                                                                                 
Cash and cash equivalents 55,820  558  -  (558) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Debtors and other 
receivables 46,948  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Related party receivables 25,777  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other financial assets 217  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (22) -  22  

                          
Financial Liabilities                           
Creditors and other 
payables 137,889  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Related party payables 23,009  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Borrowings    27,785  278  - (278) - - - - - - - - - 
Other financial liabilities 21,831  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

                                                                                      
Total Increase / (Decrease)Total Increase / (Decrease)Total Increase / (Decrease)Total Increase / (Decrease)            836 836 836 836     ----        (836)(836)(836)(836)    ----        ----        ----        ----        ----        ----        (22)(22)(22)(22)    ----        22 22 22 22     

                                                                                      
CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil                                                                                          
At 30 At 30 At 30 At 30 June 2009June 2009June 2009June 2009                                                                                          

                                                                                      
Financial Assets                                                                                       
Cash and cash equivalents 273  (3) -  3  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Debtors and other 
receivables 14,428  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Related party receivables 48,793  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other financial assets 217  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  (22) -  22  

                               
Financial Liabilities                           
Creditors and other 
payables 16,419  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Related party payables 49,946  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Borrowings    11,150  107  -  (107) -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other financial liabilities 29,726  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

                                                                                      
Total Increase / (Decrease)         104 104 104 104     ----        (104)(104)(104)(104)    ----        ----        ----        ----        ----        ----        (22)(22)(22)(22)    ----        22 22 22 22     
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Note 48: Financial risk management - Continued 

(b) Credit risk(b) Credit risk(b) Credit risk(b) Credit risk    
Credit risk is the risk that a third party will default on its obligation to the Group, resulting in financial loss to the Group to incur a loss. 

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as credit 
exposures to customers from outstanding receivables. Transactions are spread across a number of counterparties to avoid concentrations of credit exposure.  
The Group manages customer relationships on a credit basis with recognised, creditworthy third parties. Customers who wish to complete transactions with 
the Group on a credit basis are subject to a credit assessment, which may include a review of their financial strengths, previous credit history with the Group, 
payments habits with other suppliers, bank references and credit rating agency reports. Trade receivables are also monitored on a regular basis and 
impairment allowances made if risks are identified, so that the Group is not exposed to any additional default risks on trade receivables. Derivative 
counterparties and cash transactions are limited to high credit quality institutions.  The Group has policies in place to limit the amount of cash exposure to 
any one financial institution. 

The ARC has powers under the Local government (Rating) Act 2002 to recover outstanding debts from ratepayers. 

Within the Group's Diversified Financial Assets Portfolio, credit risk is managed by requiring managers of global fixed interest investments to: 
(a)   ensure the average credit quality within the manager’s portfolio is within agreed guidelines; 
(b)   that exposure to different tiers of credit (including unrated debt) are within agreed guidelines; 
(c)   the maximum permitted exposure to any one issuer is within agreed guidelines; and 
(d)   the long-term debt of all entities in which the manager invests is either rated by an approved recognised rating agency or, if it is not-rated, is 

constrained to the maximum permitted exposure to such debt. 

(c)(c)(c)(c)    Liquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity riskLiquidity risk    
Liquidity risk is the risk that ARC Group will encounter difficulty raising liquid funds to meet commitments as they fall due. 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities and the spreading of debt maturities.  

To help reduce liquidity risk, the Group manages its cash requirements by forecasting and utilising flexibility in its funding facilities. The Group aims to 
minimise the cost of capital through effective cash management.  It also has a liquidity policy which targets a minimum level of committed funding facilities 
to net debt. 

Within the Group's Diversified Financial Assets Portfolio, liquidity risk is managed by: 
(a)   requiring managers to invest primarily in securities traded on recognised exchanges with specified maximums for unlisted securities; 
(b)   requiring managers, within the terms of their individual contracts, to hold diversified portfolios; and 
(c)   limiting the credit rating of all fixed interest investments to minimum levels. 

The Council has a committed cash facility with the BNZ for $20m (2009: $20m). There are no restrictions on the use of this facility. 

The table below analyses the Group's and Council's financial liabilities, net and gross settled derivative financial instruments, into relevant maturity 
groupings based on the remaining period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date.  The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows. 
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Note 48: Financial risk management - Continued 

Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

Less than 6 
months 

6-12 
months 

1 to 2 
years 2 to 5 years 

Over 5 
years 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
                  
GroupGroupGroupGroup                  
At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010                  
Creditors and other payables 209,251  210,058  176,500  33,558  -  -  -  
Related party payables -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Borrowings 269,234  295,457  5,084  5,072  501  284,800  -  
Other financial liabilities 29,764  29,764  17,831  1,023  4,758  6,153 -  
Derivative financial instruments   11,240  11,725  3,208  2,871  3,397  2,249    -  
Total    519,489  547,004  202,623  42,524  8,656  293,202  -  
                  
                  
GGGGrouprouprouproup                  
At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009                  
Creditors and other payables 78,557  78,222  78,222  -  -  -  -  
Related party payables -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Borrowings 361,650  382,153  116,947  4,182  155,912  105,112  -  
Other financial liabilities 50,697  50,697  24,112  9,162  7,654  9,769  -  
Derivative financial instruments   16,550  17,278    5,157    4,759    4,923    2,439  -  
Total    507,454  528,350  224,438  18,103  168,489  117,320  -  

For floating rate instruments the amounts disclosed are determined by reference to the interest rate at the last reporting date. 

Carrying 
amount 

Contractual 
cash flows 

Less than 6 
months 

6-12 
months 

1 to 2 
years 2 to 5 years 

Over 5 
years 

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
                  
CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil                  
At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010At 31 October 2010                  
Creditors and other payables 137,889  137,889  104,331  33,558  -  -  -  
Related party payables 23,009  23,009  23,009  -  -  -  -  
Borrowings 27,785  31,219 106  -  -  31,113 -  
Other financial liabilities 21,831  21,831  12,336  -  3,342 6,153  -  
Derivative financial instruments   -  -    -    -    -    -  -  
Total    210,514  213,948  139,782  33,558  3,342  37,266 -  
                  
                  
CouncilCouncilCouncilCouncil                  
At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009At 30 June 2009                  
Creditors and other payables 16,419  16,084  16,084  -  -  -  -  
Related party payables 49,946  49,946  43,570  5,224  1,152  -  -  
Borrowings 11,150  11,150  10,753  53  212  132  -  
Other financial liabilities 29,726  29,726  9,516  3,939  6,502  9,769  -  
Derivative financial instruments -  -    -    -    -    -  -  
Total    107,241  106,906  79,923  9,216  7,866  9,901  -  

 

Other financial liabilities relates to grant liabilities (see note 31) that are required to be paid out when the organisation that the grant has been awarded to 
draws on the grant funds.  The nature of this means that the contractual maturity date is not able to be accurately measured.   
 
The disclosure in the table above has been based on a forecast of the dates the payments will be required as estimated by the ARC. 
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Note 49: Capital management 

The Council’s capital is its equity (or ratepayers’ funds), which comprise retained earnings and reserves.  
 Equity is represented by net assets.  

 The Local Government Act 2002 (the Act) requires the Council to manage its revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial 
dealings prudently and in a manner that promotes the current and future interests of the community. Ratepayer’s funds are largely managed as a by-product 
of managing revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities, investments, and general financial dealings.  

 The objective of managing these items is to achieve intergenerational equity, which is a principle promoted in the Act and applied by the Council. 
Intergenerational equity requires today’s ratepayers to meet the costs of utilising the Council’s assets and not expecting them to meet the full cost of long-
term assets that will benefit ratepayers in future generations. Additionally, the Council has in place asset management plans for major classes of assets 
detailing renewal and maintenance programmes, to ensure ratepayers in future generations are not required to meet the costs of deferred renewals and 
maintenance.  

 The Act requires the Council to make adequate and effective provision in its Long-Term Council Community Plan (LTCCP) and in its Annual Plan (where 
applicable) to meet the expenditure needs identified in those plans. And the Act sets out the factors that the Council is required to consider when 
determining the most appropriate sources of funding for each of its activities. The sources and levels of funding are set out in the funding and financial 
policies in the Council’s LTCCP.  

 ARC has the following Council created reserves, refer note 38:  
 * specific activity reserves   
 * business unit reserves  
 * special fund reserves  
 * trust and bequest reserves  
 * revaluation reserves 
*  capital grants reserve 
 
Capital risk management 
The Group’s capital structure consists of reserves and retained earnings as shown in the Statement of Financial Position.  The Group’s objective when 
managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern.  The Group monitors balance sheet strengths and flexibility using cash flow 
forecasts analysis and detailed budgeting processes. 
 
There were not changes in the Group’s capital risk management during the year. 
 
 

 

Note 50: Major variances against plan 

Explanations for major variances from ARC's estimated figures in the 2009/10 Annual Plan and the 2010/2011 four month Annual Plan are as follows:  
 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
 
Council total income at $352.9 million was $6.9 million, 1.9% below plan.   
Council total operating expenditure was $350.3 million, was $49.0 million (12.2%) below plan. 
Key variance explanations are detailed below 
 

    Council Council Council Council             Council Council Council Council     

    Plan 2010 Plan 2010 Plan 2010 Plan 2010     
    Actual Actual Actual Actual 
2010 2010 2010 2010         Variance Variance Variance Variance         Refer Refer Refer Refer     

    Operating Surplus/Operating Surplus/Operating Surplus/Operating Surplus/((((deficitdeficitdeficitdeficit))))            (39,(39,(39,(39,061061061061))))    2,597 2,597 2,597 2,597         ((((41,41,41,41,658658658658))))    

 Rates revenue  205,269  206,081   (812)  A  
 Auckland Regional Holdings income  107,554  101,359  6,195   B  
 Net investment income  1,592  2,037   (445)  C  
 Farming sales  1,291  904  387   D  
 Other income  44,122  41,077  3,045   E  
 Other gains  -  1,469     (1,469)  F  
 Total revenue  359,828  352,927    6,901  
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 Finance costs  2,874  1,056  1,818   C  
 Value of livestock sold  356  788   (432)  D  
 Grant expenditure  236,245  192,261  43,984   J  
 Personnel Costs  70,237  69,874  363   G  
 Depreciation and amortisation expense  11,851  12,698   (847)  H  
 Other operating expenses  77,326  73,653  3,673   I  
    Total Expenditure Total Expenditure Total Expenditure Total Expenditure     398,889398,889398,889398,889        350,330 350,330 350,330 350,330             48,48,48,48,559559559559    
    Net Variance Net Variance Net Variance Net Variance                             41,65841,65841,65841,658        

 

 
A   Due to phasing of the budget into 4-8 month split  
    B   Reduced distributions income received from ARH, due to below plan spend on ARTA  OPEX & CAPEX expenditure  
 C   Net finance Costs favourable to plan by $1.8m due to reduced funding for ARTA OPEX & CAPEX expenditure  
 D  Net farming costs in line with plan 
 E  Increase in facilities income for Mt Smart and earlier than planned subsidy income which is not 

fully offset by relevant expenditure due to timing of events. 
 F  Gain on livestock $1.3m 
 G  Personnel costs lower than plan due to various vacant positions across council 
 H  Actual depreciation was higher than plan.  The revision of useful lives of Mt Smart plant & 

equipment resulted in an additional charge of $1.9m 
 I  Revision of the landfill provision resulted in a write back of $3.7m, offset by a provision for 

building remediation work at Pitt Street 
J 

 
Grant expenditure relates primarily to lower than planned spend on ARTA operational and capital 
expenditure due to phasing into 4-8 month spend.  

    
Statement of Financial Position 
 
Property, plant and equipment is above plan, due to a revaluation of $202.9 million, in relation to restricted assets, for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010.  
 
Other creditors and payables were higher than plan which is offset by lower than plan on other financial liabilities.  This is due primarily to rates received in 
advance. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents is $17 million below plan. Refer to the Statement of Cashflows for further details. 

 

Note 51: Breach of reporting deadline 

 
Breach of Local government Act 2002Breach of Local government Act 2002Breach of Local government Act 2002Breach of Local government Act 2002    

 

Section 98(3) of the Local Government Act 2002 requires the Council to complete and adopt by resolution its annual report, within four months after the end of 
the financial year to which it relates. Auckland Regional Council did not comply with this requirement by the statutory date of 28 February 2011. 
 
The annual report was completed and adopted on 31 March 2011. 
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COST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENT    ––––    TRANSPORTTRANSPORTTRANSPORTTRANSPORT 

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

Actual Plan     Actual Plan 
12 months 12 months 

  
16 months 16  months 

2009 2009     2010 2010 
$000s $000s     $000s $000s 

   
Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services    

  
       167,780         184,610  

 
ARTA Operating and Capital Funding          178,257              231,726  

   
Grants and Subsidies 

 
   

- ARTA Operating Expenditure 
 

   
- ARTA Capital Expenditure 

 
   

- ARTA Partnered Services and Share of Costs 
 

   
MAXX 

 
          2,507            2,213    Land Transport Strategy              4,607                 5,613  

         170,287           186,823    Total Cost of Services              182,864                  237,339  

      
   

RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue    
  

        94,789         109,366  
 

ARTA Operating and Capital Funding            72,914               82,246 

   
Grants and Subsidies 

  
   

- ARTA Operating Expenditure 
  

   
- ARTA Capital Expenditure 

  
   

- ARTA Partnered Services and Share of Costs 
  

   
MAXX 

  
             948               842    Land Transport Strategy              1,430                 1,008  

            95,737           110,208    Total Revenue                74,344  83,254  

      
            74,550              76,615    Net Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of Services                 108,520                  154,085  
 

Underspend relates to the NZTA providing a lower than requested allocation of operating funding to 

ARTA.  This has been subsequently reflected in reduced distributions income received from ARH. 

The net finance costs were favourable to plan by $1.8m also due to the reduced funding for ARTA 

operating and capital expenditure. 

 

COST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENT    ––––    BUILT ENVIRONMENTBUILT ENVIRONMENTBUILT ENVIRONMENTBUILT ENVIRONMENT    

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

Actual Plan     Actual Plan 
12 months 12 months 

  
16 months 16  months 

2009 2009     2010  2010 
$000s $000s     $000s $000s 

   
Cost of ServiceCost of ServiceCost of ServiceCost of Servicessss    

  
          5,002            7,157    Regional Growth Strategy              7,450               10,052 

              5,002                7,157  
 

Total Cost of Services                  7,450                    10,052  

      
   

RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue    
  

          1,092            1,023    Regional Growth Strategy            21,070               21,088  
              1,092                1,023  

 
Total Revenue                21,070                    21,088  

      
              3,910                6,134    Net CosNet CosNet CosNet Cost of Servicest of Servicest of Servicest of Services              (13,620)             (11,036) 
 

Favourable variance in the net cost of services is due mostly to the timing of grants and subsidies 

received and when work was carried out. 
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COST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENT    ––––    NATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND HERITANATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND HERITANATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND HERITANATURAL ENVIRONMENT AND HERITAGEGEGEGE    

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

 
Actual Plan     Actual Plan 

12 months 12 months 
  

16 months 16  months 
2009 2009     2010  2010  
$000s $000s     $000s $000s 

   
Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services    

  
12,937 12,018 

 
Stormwater Management            16,075                 6,769  

6,235 5,070 
 

Freshwater Management            12,508               10,776  
5,008 5,080 

 
Coastal Management              7,464                 4,474  

5,050 6,467 
 

Improving Air Quality              7,004                 4,191  
2,249 2,156 

 
Natural Heritage Conservation              2,034                 3,486  

1,916 1,874 
 

Cultural Heritage Conservation              2,952                 2,476  
23,353 11,099 

 
Land Management            28,301               24,118  

1,882 2,546 
 

Planning for the Future              2,881                 3,982  
6,267 6,096   Biosecurity              9,297                 8,105  

            64,897              52,406    Total Cost of Services                88,516                    68,377  

      
   

RRRRevenueevenueevenueevenue    
  

          7,214            9,187  
 

Stormwater Management              6,489                 6,160  
          2,217            2,210  

 
Freshwater Management              4,044                 3,501  

          2,116            2,096  
 

Coastal Management              2,662                 2,020  
          1,701            1,612  

 
Improving Air Quality              1,826                 1,394  

             256               299  
 

Natural Heritage Conservation                539                    370  
             233               247  

 
Cultural Heritage Conservation                347                    237  

          7,313            6,663  
 

Land Management            10,505               10,429  
             156               210  

 
Planning for the Future                401                    245  

             647               701    Biosecurity              1,120                    712  
            21,853              23,225  

 
Total Revenue                27,933                    25,068  

      
            43,044              29,181    Net Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of Services                   60,583                    43,309  
 

A revision of the landfill provision resulted in a writeback of $4.7m to Other Operating Expenses, offset 

by a provision for building remediation work at Pitt Street. 

 

A large number of projects across this activity, were completed during the 16-month period, leading to 

a greater operational spend than planned.  
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COST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENT    ––––    ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTECONOMIC DEVELOPMENTECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT    

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

Actual Plan     Actual Plan 
12 months 12 months 

  
16 months 16  months 

2009 2009     2010  2010  
$000s $000s     $000s $000s 

   
Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services    

  
          4,786            5,519    Economic Development              6,897                 7,360  

              4,786                5,519  
 

Total Cost of Services                  6,897                       7,360  

      
   

RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue    
  

             937            1,514    Economic Development              1,441                 2,346  
                  937                1,514  

 
Total Revenue                  1,441                       2,346  

      
              3,849                4,005    Net Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of Services                     5,456                       5,014  
 

The main area of variance was the timing of externally funded projects.  Personnel costs were lower 

than planned as vacant positions were not filled. 

    

COST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENT    ––––    REGIONAL LEADERSHIP AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENTREGIONAL LEADERSHIP AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENTREGIONAL LEADERSHIP AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENTREGIONAL LEADERSHIP AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT    

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

Actual Plan     Actual Plan 
2009 2009     2010  2010  

12 months 12 months 
  

16 months 16  months 
$000s $000s     $000s $000s 

   
Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services    

  
          3,632            5,492  

 
Sustainable Schools and Communities              5,276                 7,809  

          2,652            1,530  
 

Democracy Services4              3,132                    207  
             910               923  

 
Te Hononga Maori/Maori Relations              1,676                 1,587  

          5,685            7,327    Regional Coordination and External Relations            18,771               26,671  
            12,879              15,272  

 
Total Cost of Services                28,855                    36,274  

      
   

RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue    
  

             970            1,381  
 

Sustainable Schools and Communities              1,382                 1,769  
             172               197  

 
Democracy Services                  18                      30  

               91               105  
 

Te Hononga Maori/Maori Relations                160                    265  
             562               952    Regional Coordination and External Relations            11,141               12,600  

              1,795                2,635  
 

Total Revenue                12,701                    14,664  

      
            11,084              12,637    Net Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of Services                   16,154                    21,610  
 

The ARC provided staff resources for the ATA’s transport, CCO, legal and democracy workstreams in 

the creation of the new Auckland Council.  A reduction in the number of Enviroschools facilitators as a 

result of government funding cuts in the 2009 budget and the loss of key staff during the transition to 

the Auckland Council necessitates a reduced service to schools.  
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COST OFCOST OFCOST OFCOST OF    SERVICES STATEMENTSERVICES STATEMENTSERVICES STATEMENTSERVICES STATEMENT    ––––    REGIONAL PARKSREGIONAL PARKSREGIONAL PARKSREGIONAL PARKS    

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

Actual Plan     Actual Plan 
2009 2009     2010  2010 

12 months 12 months 
  

16 months 16  months 
$000s $000s     $000s $000s 

   
Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services    

  
        12,767          10,354  

 
Looking After Our Regional Parks            18,700               19,991 

          4,125            3,868  
 

Auckland Botanic Gardens              3,974                 5,799  
          4,352            5,121  

 
New Regional Parks              3,390                 4,286  

          1,157            1,032  
 

Farming in Regional Parks              1,706                 1,270  
          9,317            7,159  

 
Mt Smart Stadium              7,016                 4,985  

3610 7623   Visitor Services              2,112                 3,542  
            35,328              35,157  

 
Cost of Services                36,898                    39,873  

      
   

Visitor Services reallocation of internal charges 1,599 - 

   
Total Cost of Services 38,497 39,873 

      
   

RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue    
  

          2,960            2,500  
 

Looking After Our Regional Parks              5,071                 5,049  
             222               322  

 
Auckland Botanic Gardens                512                    293  

               12                 20  
 

New Regional Parks                  20                      11  
          1,534               995  

 
Farming in Regional Parks              2,182                 1,380  

          4,819            6,701  
 

Mt Smart Stadium              4,608                 4,188  
             394            1,484    Visitor Services             (1,123)                      48  

              9,941              12,022  
 

Revenue                11,270                    10,969  

      
   

Visitor Services reallocation of internal charges 1,599 - 

   
Total Revenue 12,869 10,969 

      
            25,387              23,135    Net Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of Services                   25,628                    28,904  
 

 

The revision of useful lives of Mt Smart plan and equipment resulted in an additional depreciation 

charge for this area.  An increase in facilities income for Mt Smart and earlier than planned subsidy 

income which is not fully offset by relevant expenditure due to timing of events. 

 

 

Optimisation and streamlining have assisted in reducing the cost of services.  Examples include 

implementation of recycling water run-off to be used to irrigate nursery crops and green roof 

installation in the children’s garden to minimise run-off and insulate buildings. 
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COST OF SERCOST OF SERCOST OF SERCOST OF SERVICES STATEMENTVICES STATEMENTVICES STATEMENTVICES STATEMENT    ––––    SAFETYSAFETYSAFETYSAFETY    

For the 16 months ended 31 October 2010 

 

Actual Plan     Actual Plan 
2009 2009     2010  2010  

12 months 12 months 
  

16 months 16  months 
$000s $000s     $000s $000s 

   
Cost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of ServicesCost of Services    

  
          1,562            1,561  

 
Hazards              1,086                 2,043  

             656               989  
 

Civil Defence                611                    990  
          1,985            1,378  

 
The Harbourmaster              2,194                 2,094  

              4,203                3,928  
 

Total Cost of Services                  3,891                       5,127  

      
   

RevenueRevenueRevenueRevenue    
  

               33               104  
 

Hazards                  92                    148  
          1,767            1,115  

 
Civil Defence              1,952                 1,410  

             725               773  
 

The Harbourmaster               1,084                 1,126  
              2,525                1,992  

 
Total Revenue                  3,128                       2,684  

      
              1,678                1,936    Net Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of ServicesNet Cost of Services                         763                       2,443  
 

Personnel costs were lower than planned due to vacant positions not being filled.  Volunteers were 

relocated as a result of the transition and the availability of staff was monitored.   
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Your Council 

Elected representatives 

During the period from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010, the ARC had 13 councillors, elected from 

across the Auckland region: Auckland, Franklin/Papakura, Manukau, North Shore, Rodney and 

Waitakere. The  Council was elected in 2007. 
 

 

Michael Lee, ChairmanMichael Lee, ChairmanMichael Lee, ChairmanMichael Lee, Chairman 

Chair, Regional Sustainable 

Development Forum 

Chair, CE Review Committee 

Deputy Chair, Hauraki Gulf Forum 

(Auckland) 

 

Michael Barnett, Deputy ChairMichael Barnett, Deputy ChairMichael Barnett, Deputy ChairMichael Barnett, Deputy Chair 

Chair, Regional Economic 

Development Forum 

Deputy Chair, Regional Transport 

Committee 

(Auckland) 

 

 

Judith Bassett QSO 

Chair, Auckland Regional Holdings 

(Auckland) 

 

Bill Burrill 

Chair, Finance Committee 

(Manukau) 

 

Clive Carter 

Deputy Chair, Finance Committee 

(Auckland) 

 

Joel Cayford 

(North Shore) 

 

Sandra Coney 

Chair, Parks and Heritage Committee 

(Waitakere) 

 

Dianne Glenn 

Chair, Environmental Management 

Committee 

(Franklin/Papakura) 

 

Brent Morrissey 

Deputy Chair, Transport and Urban 

Development Committee 

(Manukau) 

 

Christine Rankin 

Deputy Chair, Regional Strategy and 

Planning Committee 

(North Shore) 
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Christine Rose 

Chair, Transport and Urban 

Development Committee 

Chair, Regional Transport Committee 

Deputy Chair, Parks and Heritage 

Committee 

(Rodney) 

 

Jan Sinclair 

Deputy Chair, Environmental 

Management Committee 

(Manukau) 

 

Paul Walbran 

Chair, Regional Strategy and Planning 

Committee 

Director, Auckland Regional Holdings 

Director Sea + City Projects Limited 

(Waitakere) 

    

 

All councillors were members of the various five standing committees which met monthly. These 

committees had the delegated powers, functions and duties to carry out the bulk of the ARC’s 

decision-making work. 

The standing committees included: 

• Environmental Management Committee 

• Finance Committee 

• Parks and Heritage Committee 

• Regional Strategy and Planning Committee 

• Transport and Urban Development Committee 

Other committees and subOther committees and subOther committees and subOther committees and sub----committeescommitteescommitteescommittees had a review or recommendation role. Ad hoc committees 

formed as required for special issues included the subcommittees for the Regional Parks Management 

Plan, the Environmental Initiative and Coastal Enhancement fund applications, plan change hearings, 

parks discretionary hearings and restricted coastal activity hearings. Special committees, with limited 

membership, were established during the term to deal with specific issues and include the Mt Smart 

Special Committee, CE Review Committee, ARTA Appointments Panel and the ARH appointments 

panel. 

Regional CommitteesRegional CommitteesRegional CommitteesRegional Committees,,,, established under specific legislation, generally comprised at least one ARC 

councillor, an elected representative from each city and district council in the region and other 

government, local government and statutory representatives. Regional committees during the 16 

months ended 31 October 2010 included: 

• Auckland Regional Civil Defence Emergency Management Group; 

• Regional Sustainable Development Forum; 

• Hauraki Gulf Forum; 

• Regional Transport Committee; and 

• Auckland Regional Economic Development Forum. 
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Council committees and their achievements for the 16 months ended  
31 October 2010  

EnEnEnEnvironmental Management Committeevironmental Management Committeevironmental Management Committeevironmental Management Committee    

 

$454,000 was allocated via 26 applications to 23 Groups through the Coastal Enhancement Fund 

distribution round. 

 

$400,480 of grants given to projects from the Environmental Initiatives Fund. 

 

Approved funding assistance for resource consents to not for profit organisations for projects 

 

Re-established a Rural Industry Group to discuss key rural issues with the ARC. 

 

Launched the Sustainable Catchment Programme, with projects at Mahurangi, Whangateau and Hoteo. 

 

$220,000 was allocated through the landowner assistance fund, to complete 10.5km of riparian 

fencing, and planting of 59,000 plants to protect 41ha from erosion. 

 

The Landfill Aftercare programme was reviewed resulting in improved aftercare management and in 

particular non routine maintenance activities. 

 

Progressed the development of Integrated Catchment Management Plans (ICMP), with one final ICMP 

and five draft ICMPS received, and a workshop held on how to produce ‘good ICMPs’. 

 

A second round of the Low Impact Design Innovative Grants programme was completed.  

 

Monitored the investigation and response to environmental concerns such as the Hauraki Gulf marine 

toxin outbreak, and the Whangateau cockle deaths.  Supported MAF’s closure of the Whangateau  for 

shellfish gathering to allow stocks to recover. 

 

In partnership with the Auckland War Memorial Museum, facilitated the Hauraki Gulf Symposium on 

the future of the Marine Park. 

 

1196 resource consent applications processed for period 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010. 96% 

processed within the statutory timeframe. All notified applications processed since 1 July have met the 

statutory timeframes.  

 

Monitored performance for processing resource consent applications  

 

Implemented new processes following the Resource Management Act reforms, including processes to 

implement the RMA discount regulations. 

 

Initiation of four prosecutions for breaches of Resource Management Act.  Six prosecutions concluded 

successfully.  The prosecution of the companies responsible for the fuel spill at Glen Innes resulted in 

the highest total fine and cost orders ever for an ARC prosecution.  The Cash for Scrap prosecution 

finally concluded with the operator being imprisoned for 6 months– the longest imprisonment sentence 

for a New Zealand RMA case. 

 

For the period 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010 Pollution Response team responded to 4435 incidents, 

of which 2025 were open burning and domestic fires. 

 

Ongoing programme of proactive activities including presentations to industries and schools, working 

with individual companies on environmental practices and attending community days, including 

undertaking the largest ever Pollution Awareness Exercise, auditing over 130 sites in New Lynn. 
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316 dairy farm inspections were completed, with significant improvement in compliance on 09/10.  

94% of farms inspected were either fully compliant or had minor technical issues. 

 

73 rural complaints were investigated and resolved. These comprised agrichemical spray drift, dead 

animals in watercourses, sediment from cultivated land entering watercourses, dairy effluent run-off, 

vegetable wash water discharge, greenhouse nutrient solution discharge, offal holes and rural odours.  

 

Trees for Survival operates in 67 schools in the Auckland region. It is a partnership between the Trees 

for Survival Committee, Auckland Regional Council, supporting organisations such as service or 

business Groups, schools and owners of erosion prone rural land. This year approximately 50,000 trees 

have been planted on 67 sites in the Auckland region, involving over seventeen hundred students and 

more than six hundred adult helpers. The programme has operated since 1991 and this year celebrated 

the millionth tree planted nationally. 

 

As part of the Industrial Pollution Prevention Programme (IP3), completed the assessment of sites 

involved in the Scrap Metal and Automotive Dealers industry. 

 

Development of the Register of Land Quality (for contaminated land) to the point of having a working 

model. 

 

Finance CommitteeFinance CommitteeFinance CommitteeFinance Committee    

    

Administered the remission of rates for community, sporting and other organisations providing 

community services. 

 

Monitored the performance of ARTA, ARH and Sea+City projects including reviewing quarterly and 

annual reports, statements of intent, long term funding plans, administration budgets, funding 

agreements and reviewed ARTA and ARH major transaction approvals. 

 

Regularly reported on the Council’s organisational sustainability. 

 

Managed ARC finances within the financial framework of the ARC Annual Plan 1 July 2009 to 30 June 

2010 and the 2010/11 four month plan to 31 October 2010. 

 

Endorsed the findings of the internal audit reports into Mahurangi Action Plan, the internal control 

environment and legislative compliance at the ARC, the Harbourmaster’s Safety Management System, 

the fuel management system and the Mahurangi Action Plan grant process. 

 

Approved the draft submission on the Local Government Act 2002 Amendment Bill. 

 

Monitored progress on the Annual Report. 

 

Parks and Heritage CommitteeParks and Heritage CommitteeParks and Heritage CommitteeParks and Heritage Committee    

 

Purchased Te Muri Regional Park. 

 

Opened the Hilary Trail. 

 

Completed review of the Regional Parks Management. 

 

Purchased/ Acquired new parkland at Duder, Atiu Creek, Karekare and Pakiri. 

 

Approved the Botanic Gardens Master Plan. 

 

Adopted ARC Arts Strategy and Artists in Residence Programme. 
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Approved Ark in the Park work programme 2010/11. 

 

Endorsed ARC Regional Parkland Acquisition vision. 

 

Approved the Biosecurity Research Implementation Plan 2009.  

 

Approved the 2009-10 Operational Plan for the Auckland Regional Pest Management Strategy.  

Endorsed the Draft Regional Parks Fire Prevention and Suppression Plan 2009-2011. 

 

Approved the 2008-09 Biosecurity Operational Plan Annual Report and Strategic Achievements Report.  

 

Developed design guidelines for regional parkland in the Piha locality. 

 

Endorsed the commencement of construction of the Shakespear Open Sanctuary Fence. Parks (fence 

construction and delivery) and Programmes and Partnerships.  

 

Tawharanui Marine Reserve application by the ARC approved by the Ministers of Conservation and 

Fisheries.  

 

Published the History of regional parks; Dreamers of the Day 
 

Stoneleigh Sculpture in the Gardens Exhibition.  

 

Extensions to the Potter Children’s Garden and the Edible Garden. 

 

Rock Fishing Safety Programme. 

 

Beachlands to Maraetai Walkway – completion of Stage 1 in association with Manukau City Council. 

 

Development of a Care Code – Waitakere Ranges Regional Park. 

 

Interpretation programmes across parks that increased the awareness of cultural and social history. 

 

Events: Ambury Farm Day, Love your regional park day, Artakai Kids Day., Omana Children’s Day 

 

Bach Escapes – continued development of bach accommodation and the Bach Escape Brochure. 

 

Continued re-vegetation of regional parks with over 80,000 trees planted through volunteer 

programmes. 

 

Regional Strategy and Planning CommitteeRegional Strategy and Planning CommitteeRegional Strategy and Planning CommitteeRegional Strategy and Planning Committee    

Endorsed and released the State of the Auckland Environment Report 2009.  

Reviewed and adopted the Auckland Regional Policy Statement (ARPS) for recommendation to the 

new Auckland Council.  

Developed the Future Land Use and Transport project providing a model of different scenarios for 

future urban development in Auckland.  

Approved of Plan Change 8: Landscape to the ARPS.  

Received three requests to extend the Metropolitan Urban Limits.  

Heard submissions and issued a decision on Private Plan Change 13 (Mangere Gateway).  
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Made 90 per cent of the Auckland Regional Plan: Air, Land, Water operative after settling a number of 

appeals. Settled final appeals on Chapter 4A – Agrichemicals. 

Adopted Plan Change 4 (Mangroves) to the Auckland Region Plan: Coastal following resolution appeals 

by consent.  

Approved negotiation process and ensured significant progress on resolution of appeals to Plan Change 

3 (Wynyard Quarter) to the Auckland Regional Plan Coastal (only one appeal remains, requirement for 

Environment Court unlikely). 

Considered some 48 technical reports and studies for publication.  

Submitted on behalf of the Auckland region on discussion papers & proposals, including: air quality 

standards, greenhouse gas reduction, energy and energy efficiency, aquaculture, mining & mineral 

resources, soil contaminants, and the future Auckland social policy forum. 

Advocated for a positive outcome for Auckland’s urban, rural, coastal and heritage environment’s, by 

making numerous submissions to territorial authority plan changes and consent hearings.  

Approved Variation 4 to the Auckland Regional Plan: Air, Land, Water which expanded the Urban Air 

Quality Management Areas in Hobsonville to align with the shift in the Metropolitan Urban Limit in the 

Regional Policy Statement. Settled 58 appeals to ARC planning documents.  

Settled 55 appeals to TA planning documents and decisions and ensured that the amended provisions 

align district with regional policies. 

Wynyard Quarter - Auckland Regional Council and Auckland City Council have worked closely together 

on Plan Change 4 to the Auckland City Council’s District Plan, Central Area Section with the result that 

the plan change is now largely operative.  There are three outstanding issues which relate to: the 

inclusion of more character buildings; marine activities on the ground floor of buildings (retail and other 

activities); and NZ Transport Authority with respect to existing and future major infrastructure, it is 

expected that agreement will be reached on this issue in the near future. 

There have been a number of Environment Court decisions on appeals.  Of particular note was a 

decision on Plan Change 13 to the Manukau City Council’s District Plan.  Plan Change 13 related to a 

proposal to develop a “Maritime Canal Village” outside of the Metropolitan Urban Limit and outside of 

any existing coastal settlement or village.  The decision supported the position of the Council and 

refused the plan change. 

Transport and Urban Development CommTransport and Urban Development CommTransport and Urban Development CommTransport and Urban Development Committeeitteeitteeittee    

 

Championed and advocated for the purchase of Queens Wharf. 

 

Opened Queens Wharf to the public. 

 

Oversaw plans for a cruise ship terminal on Queens Wharf. 

 

Advocated for the protection of Shed 10, and its refurbishment for a rugby world cup site, and prepared 

the way for the sympathetic removal and recycling of Shed 11. 

 

Supported the preparation of an economic feasibility study for the Commonwealth Games and 

preparation of a cost benefit analysis. 

 

Supported completion of the western ring route while advocating for environmental improvements 

Approved A+ statement of Intent. 
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Endorsed the leasing of the ITM site at Onehunga and advocated and supported the establishment and 

opening of the new railway station at Onehunga and the opening of the Onehunga branchline 

Advocated and supported the establishment and opening of the new railway station at Onehunga and 

the opening of the Onehunga branchline. 

 

Submitted to the Auckland Regional Land Transport Strategy . 

 

Advocated for a railway station for Parnell, and that the historic Newmarket railway station be relocated 

in Parnell. 

 

Formally supported Mainline Steam in remaining in its present location in Parnell and supported the 

Parnell community in redevelopment of the area as a heritage area. 

 

Submitted to the Safer Journeys Road Safety discussion document. 

 

Advocated for rail services to be provided to Huapai and Waimauku in lieu of the end of the service to 

Helensville. 

 

Submitted on NZTA draft farebox revenue ratio policy. 

 

Supported the preparation of Waterfront Tramway Feasibility Study. 

 

Submitted to ARTA’s draft Auckland Public Transport Plan. 

 

Successfully lobbied government to fund electrification for Auckland rolling stock. 

 

Developed a policy position on Puhoi to Wellsford Road of National Significance. 

 

Endorsed a preferred option for CBD Rail link. 

 

Submitted on the document “Options to change the SuperGold free off-peak public transport travel 

scheme”. 

 

Supported planning and design work for the Wynyard Quarter Gateway project. 

 

Endorsed sign the Partnering Protocol with KiwiRail for the Auckland Metro EMU procurement with 

conditions. 

 

Supported and provided comment on the comprehensive area Structure Plan proposal by ARH for part 

of Jellico Precinct , Wynyard Quarter. 

 

Championed land purchase at 65 Princes Street, Onehunga. 

 

Authorised signing of the Airport Rail Memorandum of Understanding. 

 

Provided comment to ACC on Dominion Road bus lanes. 

 

Provided comment to KiwiRail on the Rail Turn Around Plan 
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Councillor meeting attendance and remuneration for the 16 months ended 31 October 2010  

Councillor 

Number of meetingsNumber of meetingsNumber of meetingsNumber of meetings Remuneration and ExpensesRemuneration and ExpensesRemuneration and ExpensesRemuneration and Expenses 
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fees 

RMA+ 

payment 
Mileage 

Other 

Expenses 

  

TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL TOTAL     

($)($)($)($) 

Barnett 23 3 10 3 4 6 49 2 12 0 63 73,272.33 0.00 0.00 0.00 $73,272.36$73,272.36$73,272.36$73,272.36    

Bassett* 26 18 13 20 23 11 111 0 1 2 114 132,835.28 1,725.00 1,240.68 519.35 $136,320.81$136,320.81$136,320.81$136,320.81    

Burrill 31 28 15 26 37 11 148 2 16 17 183 95,506.36 16,813.00 8,705.20 1,672.55 $122,697.11$122,697.11$122,697.11$122,697.11    

Carter 23 17 10 18 21 10 99 1 1 0 101 55,577.64 0.00 219.80 1,089.00 $56,886.44$56,886.44$56,886.44$56,886.44    

Cayford 30 25 11 42 24 13 145 11 0 6 162 65,472.28 2,193.00 763.00 1,577.00 $70,005.28$70,005.28$70,005.28$70,005.28    

Coney 24 20 13 56 25 11 149 1 5 0 155 96,649.36 0.00 2,285.78 483.97 $99,419.11$99,419.11$99,419.11$99,419.11    

Glenn 28 29 13 21 26 9 126 12 5 35 178 95,513.26 27,098.00 22,314.46 1,245.50 $146,171.22$146,171.22$146,171.22$146,171.22    

Lee 31 14 12 15 17 10 99 12 16 0 127 207,212.04 0.00 3,532.20 2,716.93 $213,461.17$213,461.17$213,461.17$213,461.17    

Morrissey 27 22 12 47 25 10 143 6 1 2 152 68,060.54 556.75 5,110.00 601.00 $74,328.29$74,328.29$74,328.29$74,328.29    

Rankin 18 12 10 14 14 8 76 0 2 0 78 51,179.64 0.00 2,809.94 0.00 $53,989.58$53,989.58$53,989.58$53,989.58    

Rose 28 25 14 53 34 12 166 13 5 6 190 100,573.36 4,165.00 12,152.00 1,645.22 $118,535.58$118,535.58$118,535.58$118,535.58    

Sinclair 27 26 13 48 22 10 146 5 0 3 154 68,499.64 3,604.00 18,434.50 159.98 $90,698.12$90,698.12$90,698.12$90,698.12    

Walbran** 25 20 11 20 36 7 119 6 13 0 138 184,197.64 3,172.71 5,857.60 735.00 $193,962.95$193,962.95$193,962.95$193,962.95    

*Councillor Bassett’s remuneration includes ARH Board Chair fees 
**Councillor Walbran’s remuneration includes ARH Board Director fees and Sea+City Projects Limited Director fees. 

+RMA = Resource Management Act 

 

The table above shows councillor attendance at scheduled council and statutory committee meetings 

and required committee and sub-committee meetings. While thirteen Council meetings were 

scheduled for the 16 month period, additional meetings were added to address specific issues and 

topics. 

 

This table only records formal meetings as defined by the Local Government Official Information and 

Meetings Act 1987. It should be noted that the number of meetings recorded within the table above is 

only an indication of councillors’ time allocation as where a meeting extends for more than one day it is 

counted for each day. The standing committee meeting count also includes subcommittee meetings 

which all councillors are not automatically members of such as plan changes, the Environmental 

Management Subcommittee (EIF &CEF), the Parks and Heritage RPMP Subcommittee and so forth. In 

addition, councillors attend a significant number of briefings, community meetings, conferences and 

site visits that are not recorded here. 

 

Councillor remuneration is made up of several components: annual salary, honorarium, and meeting 

fees.  To note income from Resource Management Act hearings is met by the applicant and is 

therefore not ratepayer funded. Expenses include reimbursements for costs such as internet 

broadband, communications and other out of pocket expenses in line with Remuneration Authority 

policy. 
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The ARC Group 

This section outlines the organisational structure, management and corporate governance for the 

Auckland Regional Council Group including its two council controlled organisations, Auckland Regional 

Holdings (ARH) and Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA). The following diagram illustrates 

the structure and relationship of the ARC Group. 
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ARC's management team 
The role of the ARC’s management team is to work in partnership with the Chairman, councillors and 

staff to ensure the best decisions are made for the region. The team is made up of the chief executive 

and departmental managers. 

 

During the 16 months to 31 October the team included: 

    

Chief ExecutiveChief ExecutiveChief ExecutiveChief Executive    

The chief executive is responsible to the Council  

for: 

• implementing Council decisions, 

• advising the Council, 

• performance of powers and duties delegated to the CE or other employees, 

• management of the council’s operations, 

• maintaining systems that enable effective planning and reporting, 

• providing leadership for, and employing staff on behalf of, the Council. 

Peter WinderPeter WinderPeter WinderPeter Winder    
Chief Chief Chief Chief 
ExecutiveExecutiveExecutiveExecutive    

General Managers:General Managers:General Managers:General Managers:    

 

Christine Perrins 
Executive Manager 

Chief Executive’s Office 

 

Louise Mason 

General Manager 

Programmes and Partnerships 

 

Mace Ward 
General Manager 

Parks 

 

Lesley Baddon 
General Manager 

Policy and Planning 

 

Janine Bell 

General Manager 

Regulatory Services 

 

John Smith 

General Manager 

Transport and Urban Development 

  

 

Brian Monk 

Chief Operating Officer 

Corporate Services  
Brian was seconded to work with the 

ATA from November 2009.  During his 

absence his position was subdivided 

and filled by: 

Richard Kerr, Acting Chief Financial 

Officer 

Phillippa Wilson, Acting General 

Manager, Operations 

 

Julia Wiegandt-Goude 
General Manager 

Human Resources 

Julie was seconded part-time to work 

with the ATA from September 2009. 

Her position was filled part-time by 

Duncan Bremner. 
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Corporate Governance and Risk and Assurance report 
 

Corporate Governance 

Identification and management of risksIdentification and management of risksIdentification and management of risksIdentification and management of risks    

The ARC’s corporate governance practices have been established to ensure that all legally required 

responsibilities, such as financial accountability and risk and assurance, are carried out. 

Financial and performance reportingFinancial and performance reportingFinancial and performance reportingFinancial and performance reporting    

Monthly financial results for each department are reported against budget and monitored by 

management, with the Financial Management Report considered at the monthly Finance Committee 

meeting. 

Extensive KPIs relating to all departments have been developed and are reported quarterly through a 

balanced scorecard to the Council. 

The Local Government Act 2002 requires the ARC to report against community outcomes every three 

years and Groups of activities annually. 

ARC’s audit, risk and assurance programmeARC’s audit, risk and assurance programmeARC’s audit, risk and assurance programmeARC’s audit, risk and assurance programme    

The ARC has an internal audit function, with the primary objective to assist management by providing 

an independent and objective opinion to the organisation on the control environment (comprising the 

systems of governance, risk management and internal control). This objective is achieved by 

examining, evaluating and reporting on the adequacy of the council’s control environment via a number 

of individual audit assignments each year (Annual Audit Plan). Internal audit reports to the Finance 

Committee. 

In 2007, the Audit and CEO Review Special Committee (now the Finance Committee) approved the 

Internal Audit Charter and the Audit Committee Charter. These documents guide the internal auditor in 

performing audits thereby giving assurance to management and other stakeholders. 

Finance CommitteeFinance CommitteeFinance CommitteeFinance Committee    

Internal audit reports quarterly to the Finance Committee on all findings and recommendations as well 

as improvement actions undertaken by management on audits performed. The Committee’s main 

responsibilities are: 

External Focus:External Focus:External Focus:External Focus: 

a) Oversee council compliance with the Local Government Act 2002. 

The finance committee of ARC was responsible for a) and b) above up to and including 31 October 

2010.  The responsibility for b), c) and d) below were transferred to Auckland Council on 1 November 

2010. 

b) Review the final draft financial statements prior to approval by Council, taking on board any external 

audit comments. In particular the review should focus on: 

• significant changes in accounting policies and practises; 

• major risk areas; 

• significant audit adjustments; 

• any concerns raised by Audit New Zealand; and 

• any proposed departures from accounting standards. 

(c) Review management responses to audit reports and the extent to which external audit 

recommendations concerning internal accounting controls and other matters are implemented. 

(d) Recommend the adoption of the Annual Report. 
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Internal Audit Focus:Internal Audit Focus:Internal Audit Focus:Internal Audit Focus: 

(a) Ascertain that the activities undertaken by the internal audit function are in accordance with the 

Internal Audit Charter. 

(b) Provide guidance around the development of the audit plan and activities of the internal audit 

function. 

(c) Review the effectiveness of the internal audit function including compliance with best practise. 

(d) Review the implementation of significant recommendations made by the internal audit function 

around critical risk areas. 

OOOOther Matters:ther Matters:ther Matters:ther Matters: 

 (a) Review the internal control environment including computerised information system controls and 

security. 

(b) Review, with the Council, legal compliance and any legal matter that could have a significant impact 

on the Council’s financial statements. 

(c) Recommend special projects or investigations. 

(d) Oversee the establishment and ongoing management of the ARC’s risk management framework 

and strategies, including: 

• Insurance; 

• risk documentation; 

• reporting; 

• mitigation; and 

• avoidance strategies. 
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Risk and Assurance Report:     

Assurance assignments undertaken from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010 included the following: 

Delegated AuthorityDelegated AuthorityDelegated AuthorityDelegated Authority    

In light of the importance of a clear and well articulated delegation strategy to an effective internal 

control system, internal audit conducted a review of the ARC ’s delegation of authorities. The objective 

of this review was to assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the delegation of authority instruments 

and mechanisms at the ARC.  

Human Resources and PayrHuman Resources and PayrHuman Resources and PayrHuman Resources and Payrollollolloll    

The audit objective was a full review of the controls to ensure that the payroll is accurately and 

securely paid to legitimate employees, e.g. reviewing segregation of duties around payroll and HR 

processes, and by checking to see if the HR system and payroll system contain corresponding data. 

Risk ManagementRisk ManagementRisk ManagementRisk Management    

Internal audit participates in the development of the ARC’s methodology to identify, assess and 

mitigate risks, and to ensure risk management systems and processes are embedded into the 

organisational structure, and that there are clear responsibilities for individuals within the council to 

manage risk.    

Grant ManagementGrant ManagementGrant ManagementGrant Management----Mahurangi Action PlanMahurangi Action PlanMahurangi Action PlanMahurangi Action Plan    

The focus of the audit was to ensure controls were in place to ensure grants were used for the 

purposes intended and that there were sufficient controls in place around the allocation of funding and 

the tracking of expenditure. 

Harbourmaster’s Safety Management System (SMS) AuditHarbourmaster’s Safety Management System (SMS) AuditHarbourmaster’s Safety Management System (SMS) AuditHarbourmaster’s Safety Management System (SMS) Audit    

The scope of the audit was to: 

• determine if the SMS is being operated in accordance with the harbour’s navigational safety 

policy and the provisions of the Port and Harbour Marine Safety Code 

• monitor the overall effectiveness of the system 

• support the continuous improvement in navigational safety performance 

• confirm that SMS procedures were understood and being actioned by those involved 

• determine whether the harbour’s marine operations and navigational safety and security 

procedures remain appropriate and effective, thus comprising effective SMS components. 

Sensitive ExpenditSensitive ExpenditSensitive ExpenditSensitive Expenditure ure ure ure ––––    Credit Cards and Credit Card Policy reviewCredit Cards and Credit Card Policy reviewCredit Cards and Credit Card Policy reviewCredit Cards and Credit Card Policy review    

The focus of the review was the existence of and communication of ARC Policy regarding sensitive 

expenditure including transactional testing of key controls (granting of spend, completeness of returns, 

approvals, tracking etc). 

Fuel Management System Audit and Development of a Fuel Card PolicyFuel Management System Audit and Development of a Fuel Card PolicyFuel Management System Audit and Development of a Fuel Card PolicyFuel Management System Audit and Development of a Fuel Card Policy    

The objective of the review was to determine whether controls were adequate over the procurement 

of fuel using fuel cards and to ensure fuel cards are only used for valid expenditure (only to obtain fuel, 

oil and carwashes). 
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Council controlled organisations   
ARTA and ARH are 100 per cent owned, council-controlled organisations established to assist the ARC 

fulfil its responsibilities in relation to: 

• setting the strategy for the Auckland regional land transport system, 

• integrating the planning, funding and development of the Auckland regional land transport 

system, and 

• stormwater funding in the long-term interests of the region. 

While the ARC has a responsibility to monitor and report on each CCO's performance as part of its 

annual report, ARH and ARTA prepare their own annual reports and readers are referred to them for 

further detail. 

Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)Auckland Regional Transport Authority (ARTA)    

ARTA’s objective is set by legislation through the LGAAA. Its objective is to plan, fund and develop the 

Auckland regional land transport system in a way that contributes to an integrated, safe, responsive 

and sustainable land transport system for the region. 

In addition to this objective, the ARC has, through its governance arrangements with ARTA, instituted a 

number of policies and objectives that relate to the ownership and control of ARTA. These 

arrangements include specific objectives and performance targets incorporated within the ARTA 

Statement of Intent 2009-12 and 2010-13. 

Nature and scope of activities of ARTANature and scope of activities of ARTANature and scope of activities of ARTANature and scope of activities of ARTA    

ARTA was established by statute on 1 July 2004 although it did not become fully operational until 1 

December 2004. 

ARTA is responsible for a range of functions including: 

• Preparation of a land transport programme for the Auckland land transport system that includes 

all of ARTA’s activities under the Act in accordance with the Land Transport Management Act 

2003. 

• Responsibility for the public transport service obligations of the ARC vested in it by section 24 

of the LGAAA. 

• The functions of a regional council for the Auckland region under the Public Transport 

Management Act 2008. 

• Responsibility for the approved activities of the ARC under the national land transport 

programme (other than activities relating to the exercise of the ARC’s powers under sections 

175 to 182 of the Public Transport Management Act 2008).   

• Seeking and receiving funding for the Auckland regional land transport systems from sources 

other than the National Land Transport Account and making payments from the Auckland 

Regional Land Transport Fund. 

• Carrying out research, education, or training in relation to land transport in the Auckland region. 
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Performance objectives and results (ARTA)Performance objectives and results (ARTA)Performance objectives and results (ARTA)Performance objectives and results (ARTA)        

Performance objectives and targets were agreed between the ARC and ARTA as part of ARTA’s 

Statement of Intent. A summary of ARTA’s assessment of its performance against those targets is set 

out below. Full details are contained in ARTA’s Annual Report 2009/10. 

 

Levels of Service: 

Performance measures: Target 2009/10 Actual 2009/10 Target  
- 1 July 2010 to 
31 October 2010 

Actual  
- 1 July 2010 to 31 
October 2010 

Total PT patronage increases. 

Total public transport patronage 

increases by 4% 

60,972,000 60,618,000 

increase of 

3.4 per cent 

82,192,000 82,669,000 

Capital projects implemented to schedule and on budget. 

Capital projects included in the Funding 

Agreement are progressed to schedule 

and within agreed budgets. 

85 per cent 64 per cent 

(all projects) 

87 per cent 

(controllable 

projects) 

85 per cent 64 percent (all 

projects)* 87 

per cent 

(controllable 

projects)* 

Administration costs managed to budget. 

Administration costs in any financial 

year do not exceed the amount 

approved by the ARC. 

Achieve Achieved Achieve Achieved 

Accounting policies are consistent with the ARC Group and all legal and audit requirements are met. 

100 per cent compliance as measured 

by Audit NZ annual audit. 

Achieve Achieved Achieve Achieved 

Policies, procedures and processes consistent with Land Transport NZ’s requirements. 

100 per cent compliance as measured 

by Land Transport NZ annual audit. 

Achieve Achieved Achieve Achieved 

Rapid Transport Network services arrive at all stations within 5 minutes of scheduled time. 

Northern Busway services arrive at 

destination station within 5 minutes of 

schedule. 

99 per cent  99 per cent 99 per cent 99.6 per cent 

Western Line rail services arrive at 

destination station within 5 minutes of 

schedule. 

85 per cent 73.3 per cent 85 per cent 84.9 per cent 

Southern and Eastern Line rail services 

arrive at stations within 5 minutes of 

schedule. 

85 per cent 82 per cent 85 per cent 79.5 per cent 

High frequency bus corridors offer a 15 minute or better service frequency 7am – 7pm weekdays. 

Proportion of customers on high 

frequency corridors boarding services 

for which there was a wait of more than 

15 minutes. 

 .  99.6 per cent 

adherence to 15 

minute headway 

Note: Data provided based on the Statement of Service Performance prepared for year ending  

30 June 2010. 

* This measure was not updated for the months 1 July 2010 to 31 October 2010 and only available 

annually. 
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Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)Auckland Regional Holdings (ARH)    

ARH was established by statute with effect from 1 July 2004 and at that time received the assets and 

liabilities of Infrastructure Auckland. 

ARH’s functions were: 

• Own directly or indirectly and manage assets (including funds) in the long-term interests of the 

Auckland region 

• Provide funds to ARC in accordance with ARH’s long term funding plan 

• Make land transport assets available to assist ARTA to achieve its objective, and 

• Undertake such other functions as are given to it by its statement of intent. 

ARH had the following subsidiaries: 

• Ports of Auckland Limited (POAL) 

• Sea+City Projects Limited (SCPL), previously known as Northern Disposal Systems Limited. 

ARH’s assets included a managed portfolio of treasury investments and land-holdings in the Wynyard 

Quarter area. 

Performance objectives and results (ARH)Performance objectives and results (ARH)Performance objectives and results (ARH)Performance objectives and results (ARH)        

Strategic challengeStrategic challengeStrategic challengeStrategic challenge    

ResultResultResultResult    

12 month12 month12 month12 month    

to June 2010to June 2010to June 2010to June 2010    

ResultResultResultResult    

4 month4 month4 month4 month    

To October 2010To October 2010To October 2010To October 2010    

ARH will ensure that it makes available the 

amounts for distributions to the ARC in the 

2009/10 financial year for Infrastructure 

Auckland Grants and the ARC general 

distributions as set out in its SOI. 

ARH paid 100% of distributions 

requested during the 2009/10 

financial year. ($92.1m) 

100% of distributions 

requested by the ARC per 

paid by ARH. ($34.3m) 

Ensure that ARH’s financial performance for 

the 2009/10 financial year will meet or exceed 

the forecast in ARH’s 2009-19 Long-Term 

Funding Plan. 

Net profit after tax for the 

financial year is $20.1m/90% 

higher than budget for the 

financial year. 

Net profit after tax for the 4 

months to 31 October 2010 

is $17.6m/163% higher 

than budget for the 4 month 

period. 

ARH ensures that the management of its 

investment portfolio is consistent with the 

investment strategy and investment and 

treasury management policy and liability 

management policy in its Long-Term Funding 

Plan. 

ARH has not been able to meet 

its policy of sustaining baseline 

revenue generating capacity, 

due to the recent economic 

downturn and continued need 

for distributions. 

ARH has not been able to 

meet its policy of sustaining 

baseline revenue generating 

capacity, due to the recent 

economic downturn and 

continued need for 

distributions. 

ARH will review its investment portfolio, 

policies and strategy annually, by 30 June 

each year. 

This review has not been 

completed as ARH was 

disestablished on 1 November 

2010, as part of the Auckland 

local government 

reorganisation. 

This review has not been 

completed as ARH was 

disestablished on 1 

November 2010, as part of 

the Auckland local 

government reorganisation. 

ARH contributes to the ARC’s waterfront 

objectives through the redevelopment of 

Wynyard Precinct being undertaken by 

Sea+City on ARH’s behalf. 

Sea+City is currently working 

on construction and 

redevelopment of a number of 

sites in the Wynyard Precinct. 

Sea+City had significant 

participation in District and 

Coastal Plan hearings and 

the resulting appeal 

resolution process. 

ARH will use its best efforts to work to ensure 

POAL continues to operate as a successful 

business contributing to the region’s interests 

and economic well-being.  

ARH’s governance of POAL 

has been aimed at ensuring 

POAL operates as a successful 

business.   

Reports on POAL’s 

performance have been 

included in ARH’s quarterly 

reports to the ARC. 
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Organisational performance  

Improving the sustainability of Improving the sustainability of Improving the sustainability of Improving the sustainability of ARC ARC ARC ARC operations operations operations operations  

The ARC is committed to ensuring that all aspects of its operations, service delivery and decision-

making processes are aligned to the principles of sustainability. 

The ARC has two sustainability objectives for the 16 month period ended 31 October 2010, which are 

to: 

1. Measure, manage and mitigate the greenhouse gas emissions arising from ARC operations. 

2. Continue to improve the sustainability of ARC operations 

To achieve these objectives, the ARC has developed an integrated action plan (including objectives, 

targets and actions), which enables us to measure, manage, improve and report on our sustainability 

performance. 

The ARC Action Plan outlines our commitment to responsible energy management in order to 

minimise pollution, particularly CO2 emissions, and to, wherever possible, reduce dependence on fossil 

fuels through the use of renewable energy sources. The ARC aims to make sustainable use of natural 

resources and will conserve non-renewable resources through efficient use and careful planning. 

The ARC has continued to make progress during the 16 month period ended 31 October 2010 in the 

development and implementation of a council-wide programme of action which will deliver upon 

commitments stated in the Annual Plan for the 16 month period ended 31 October 2010. This 

programme, with revised objectives, targets and action, is driven by clear policy and priority action 

areas, and informed by government policy, current performance and best practice. 

The key purposes of this programme are:The key purposes of this programme are:The key purposes of this programme are:The key purposes of this programme are: 

• To strengthen our organisational capacity and commitment to take a sustainable development 

approach in all that we do. 

• To manage and mitigate the ARC’s impacts and greenhouse gas (ghg) emissions. 

• To drive continuous improvement in the internal sustainability performance of the organisation. 

• To provide regional leadership as a working example of a sustainable organisation. 

Key achievements in Key achievements in Key achievements in Key achievements in tttthe 16 month periodhe 16 month periodhe 16 month periodhe 16 month period::::    

• A decrease of 4.5 per cent (tonnes CO2e) in ghg emissions from farming from the previous 

financial year. 

• A decrease of 3 per cent (tonnes CO2e) in ghg emissions from all ARC operations (including 

farming) from previous financial year. 

• Energy use at Head Office has reduced by 14 per cent (KWh/m2) for the 16 month period 

ended 31 October 2010. compared with the previous financial year.  

The following table shows the measures, targets and performance of the ARC during the 16 month 

period ended 31 October 2010. They reflect the main issues that ARC is addressing to put 

sustainability into practice and the progress we have made to date. 
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Principles Goals for 2009-2019 Achievements in the 16 month period 

Environmental well-being 

To take positive action 

to minimise the 

adverse impacts that 

the ARC has on the 

environment.  

Advocate for alternative 

air, land water and 

energy sustainable 

management practices. 

Reduce green house 

gas emissions through 

the ongoing 

improvement of 

organisational carbon 

mitigation 

programmes. 

 

• Prioritisation and development 

of new techniques and 

methods for estimating and 

minimising adverse 

environmental effects. 

• Development of the Environmental 

Sustainability Centre at the Botanic gardens. 

Including the installation of a Solar Hot water 

system, 2kW Photo Voltaic array, smart 

metering, a green roof and a water 

harvesting system.  

• Undertake a qualitative 

assessment of the influence of 

climate change on ARC 

operations. 

• Carbon Now programme has been 

developed to measure the community 

greenhouse gas footprint of the Auckland 

region and the process to undertake the 

carbon foot printing of the Auckland Council. 

The impact of the Auckland Regional 

projections up to 2050, have been 

undertaken to be used within the spatial 

planning process for the Auckland Council. 

• Undertake a full energy audit of 

all ARC operations in 

accordance with the ARC 

Energy Management 

Programme to highlight areas of 

energy inefficiency for ongoing 

cost saving improvement.  

• Energy Audit undertaken of Mt Smart 

Stadium. 384,513 kWh savings identified for 

project cost of $8,366. 

• Reduce the ARC CO2e footprint 

(including farming) by 20% by 

2019, in-line with the 

commitment towards a low 

carbon region. 

• A decrease of 4.5 per cent (tonnes CO2e) in 

green house gas emissions from farming 

from the previous financial year. 

• A decrease of 3 per cent (tonnes CO2e) in 

green house gas emissions from all ARC 

operations (including farming) from previous 

financial year. 

• Energy use at Head Office has reduced by 

14 per cent (KWh/m2) in 2009/10 compared 

with the previous financial year.  

• Continually improve fleet fuel 

efficiency, including 

investigating alternative fuel 

use and electric vehicles. 

• Fuel efficiency has improved from 

11lt/100km in 2008/9 to 10.5lt/100km in 

2009/10, with older vehicles being replaced. 

• Reduce water use throughout 

the ARC and investigate water 

harvesting opportunities. 

• Water has reduced by 5.5 per cent at Head 

Office from previous financial year. Water 

harvesting was investigated for Mt Smart 

Stadium.  

• Reduce all waste to landfill and 

to continue to reduce, reuse, 

and recycle. 

• All events organised by the 

ARC to be run as zero waste 

events by 2012. 

• Zero waste initiative with a two bin system 

of recyclables and compostable materials 

only, implemented at Mt Smart Stadium 

reducing ARC waste to landfill, as a trial for 

other stadiums in preparation for the Rugby 

World Cup 2011. 
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Principles Goals for 2009-2019 Achievements in the 16 month period 

• Reduce paper consumption per 

FTE through efficient paper use, 

as well as using cleaner printing 

practices.  

• Paper has increased by 23 per cent (Kg/fte) 

due to bringing more printing in house to 

save costs. 

• Enable the character of 

countryside regional parks to be 

maintained, by reducing the 

levels of both direct and indirect 

pollution associated with 

farming activities; while 

continuing to generate revenue 

for the ARC. 

• A responsible approach to sustainable 

farming includes all aspects of animal health 

and welfare.  This includes breeding animals 

that are resistance to disease and using 

technologies and tools that enable better 

outcomes to be achieved in livestock 

management and production. A series of 

tests implemented on specific technology 

has been trialled at four regional parks (Atiu, 

Shakespear, Duder and Tapapakanga) 

identify drench resistant and to enable 

managers to administer the correct products 

and set in place quarantine strategies, 

thereby reducing chemical use, improving 

livestock health and revenue from the meat 

sold.  

• Develop and implement a 

sustainable procurement policy 

and supporting practices.  

• Sustainability practices have been 

incorporated into the ARC procurement 

policy and guidelines. 

• Sustainability processes have been utilised 

across the region for the joint procurement 

of energy for the councils of the region. 

• Sustainable procurement toolkit has been 

developed by the environmental 

sustainability workstream for the Rugby 

World Cup. 

• Implement a travel plan, which 

is a customised package of 

measures for the ARC that 

promotes alternative travel 

choices for staff. 

• Travel plan has been implemented, a follow 

up survey of staff travel modes was 

undertaken, with 27 per cent of staff 

travelling by car to work compared to the 

regional average of 69 per cent. 
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Principles Goals for 2009-2019 Achievements in the 16 month period 

Social well-being 

To be recognised as a 

socially responsible 

organisation that cares 

about its people. 

  

•  No serious workplace 

accidents. Less than 10 per 

cent non- serious workplace 

accidents. Less than 20 percent 

near-miss workplace accidents.  

• Serious harm events = 0.35% 

• Non-serious harm = 9% 

• Near-miss events  = 3.5% 

• Staff are treated fairly and 

equitably, as measured by level 

of staff satisfaction equal to or 

above 75 per cent. 

• Typically ARC has undertaken a Staff 

Satisfaction Survey in the latter half of each 

year.  For 2010 the ARC did not undertake a 

staff satisfaction survey given the volume of 

change activity at this time and because the 

ARC would not exist beyond 31 October 

2010. 

Cultural well-being 

Promoting, within our 

staff, a mix in gender, 

age and ethnicity.  

•  Developing and delivering a 

cultural awareness training 

programme for ARC staff. 

• Due to the ARC being amalgamated into the 

new Auckland council organisations, 

significant resources and focus were 

redirected to contribute towards the 

transition.  The programmes delivered to 

assist people with the transition included a 

preparation for change programme, 

resilience workshops, CV writing and 

interview skills training.  Coaching and 

support were also provided during this 

period. 

•  ARC addresses equal 

employment opportunities in a 

positive way, as measured by 

the staff satisfaction survey. 

• Typically ARC has undertaken a Staff 

Satisfaction Survey in the latter half of each 

year.  For 2010 the ARC did not undertake a 

staff satisfaction survey given the volume of 

change activity at this time and because the 

ARC would not exist beyond 31 October 

2010. 

Economic well-being 
To deliver public value 

for money by operating 

in an economically 

efficient and 

responsible way. 

•  Maximise all potential energy, 

water and waste cost saving 

opportunities through 

prioritising cost neutral 

sustainable work programmes. 

• Utilised software management of energy 

and water accounts to identify potential 

savings  

• Energy audits at Mt Smart Stadium identify 

per annum savings of 105,130 kWh 

• Minimise cost of ARC 

operations and support per staff 

member. 

• Operations and support cost per staff 

member of $6,536 

• Minimise cost of ARC vehicle 

fleet per km travelled 

• Cost per km of $0.39, compared to $0.31 in 

2008/09 

• Actively avoid unnecessary 

consumption and manage 

demand (doing more for less) 

by following the environmental 

standard: reduce, reuse, and 

recycle.  

•  ‘Zero waste’ trial at Mt Smart Stadium to 

reduce the waste going to landfill 

• Computer power saving to reduce power 

use at the ARC head office. 
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Glossary and abbreviations: 

Abbreviation Description 

Department Term used to describe the major management units of the organisation- for example 

Regulatory Services, Finance etc. Led by General Managers. 

Group Term used to describe the major divisions within Departments- for example Biosecurity, 

CCO Monitoring, Consents and Consent Compliance. Headed by Group Managers 

A+ or AucklandPlus The Economic Development Business Unit of the ARC 

ACC Auckland City Council/Auckland City 

Activity These are the Groups of projects which together contribute to achieving our community 

outcomes. They are measured through Key Performance Indicators [KPIs] to ensure that we 

are achieving them. 

AP Annual Plan or Accounts Payable 

AR Annual Report or Accounts Receivable 

ARC Auckland Regional Council 

AREDS Auckland Regional Economic Development Strategy 

ARGS Auckland Regional Growth Strategy 

ARH Auckland Regional Holdings 

ARLTS Auckland Regional Land Transport Strategy 

ARPS Auckland Regional Policy Statement 

ARTA Auckland Regional Transport Authority 

ARTNL Auckland Regional Transport Network Ltd 

ASF Auckland Sustainability Framework 

BCP Business Continuity Plan 

BCU The Big Clean Up 

BG Botanic Gardens 

Capex Capital Expenditure 

CCO Council-controlled organisation 

CCP Communities for Climate Change (programme) 

CDEMG Civil Defence Emergency Management 

CEO Chief Executive (Officer) 
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Abbreviation Description 

Community outcome These are the statements that describe what you aspire to and have told us we should aim 

for as a region, such as “Quality built environment”.  

Council or ARC Auckland Regional Council 

DoC Department of Conservation 

EAS Environmental Awareness Survey 

EIF Environmental Initiatives Fund 

EOC Emergency Operations Centre 

FDC Franklin District Council 

Financial year Information reported as 2008 and 2009 refers to the 12 months ending 30 June in the year 

stated.  Note that 2009/10 refers to the 16 months from 1 July 2009 to 31 October 2010 

GEUDO Government Environment, Urban Affairs and Development Office 

Groups of Activities These are the ARC’s Groups of activities that focus on the Council’s key deliverables. Each 

Group comprises a number of LTCCP programmes. 

IA Infrastructure Auckland (disestablished 2004) 

IT Information Technology 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 

LGA Local Government Act 2002 

LGAAA Local Government (Auckland)  

Amendment Act 2004 

LGOIMA Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 

LTCCP Long-Term Council Community Plan 

LTFS Long -Term Financial Strategy 

MCC Manukau City Council 

MfE Ministry for the Environment 

MoU Memorandum of Understanding 

MUL Metropolitan Urban Limit (part of Regional Growth Strategy framework) 

NSCC North Shore City Council 

Opex Operating Expenditure 

PDC Papakura District Council 

POAL Ports of Auckland Limited (100% equity  

owned by ARH) 
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Abbreviation Description 

PT Passenger transport 

PTRA Passenger Transport Rateable Area 

RDC Rodney District Council  

REDF Regional Economical Development Forum 

RMA Resource Management Act 

RP:C Regional Plan: Coastal 

RSDF Regional Sustainable Development Forum 

RTC Regional Transport Committee 

RWC 2011 Rugby World Cup 2011 

SOE State of the Environment (Report) 

SOI Statement of Intent 

SOP Statement of Proposal (required by Local Government Act) 

TA/ TLA Territorial Authority, Territorial Local Authority 

WCC Waitakere City Council  
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Contact Details 

 

Auckland Council General Enquiries 

For enquiries about rubbish and recycling, rates 

information, noise control, dog ownership, graffiti 

removal, and much more. 

Write us Auckland Council 

Private Bag 92-300 

Auckland 1142 

Phone  09 301 0101 

Facsimile 09 301 0100 

Email:  info@aucklandcouncil.govt.nz 

Website: www.aucklandcouncil.govt.nz 

After hours/Emergency 

24-Hour Pollution 

Hotline 

09 377 3107 

Tap water or mains 

water supply problem 

09 422 2222 

Moorings and Harbour 

Safety Patrol 

09 362 0397 

Regional Parks 09 366 2000 

Service Centres 

For a full listing of our service centres, please visit our 

website. www.aucklandcouncil.govt.nz/Contact_us 

  

 

Auckland Libraries 

For enquiries about public libraries including hours of 

service, membership and book collections. 

Phone 09 301 0101 

Website www.aucklandlibraries.govt.nz 

Watercare Services 

For enquiries about water supply and water meter readings 

contact Watercare Services directly. If you have a problem 

with your street drain, please contact Auckland Council.  

Phone 09 442 2222 

Website www.watercare.co.nz 

Auckland Transport 

For enquiries about roads, footpaths, public transport, 

parking and parking tickets, traffic signals and street lights.  

Phone 09 355 3553 

Website www.aucklandtransport.govt.nz 

MAXX  
For bus, train and ferry timetable information in the 

Auckland area.  

Telephone 09 366 6400 

0800 10 30 80 

Website www.maxx.co.nz 
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